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PRESENT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

revenue, economic affairs, statistics division, planning and development as well as industry and commerce areas 

specific areas of development, governance, poverty, privatization, and public-private partnerships in numerous 

the Emerging Markets Group in 2006 and Bankers Trust in 2007. She was also amongst Asian Wall Street 

not-for-profit Company that focuses on fostering economic growth and creating jobs through financial inclusion 
of unbanked individuals and unserved enterprises, with a special focus on women and youth. She was a 



Annual Report 2025

Mr. Muhammad Raziuddin Monem
Director

Systematic Performance Management including emphasis on QHSE and Team Building. He started his career in 

for the company – through his consistent display of sound business acumen, good people skills resulting in 

Economics. He has authored several papers at international petroleum seminars, co-chaired SPE and other industry 

Suzuki Motor Company, Ghandara Nissan. Mr. Monem is a prolific social service volunteer and served as Chairman 

Mr. Muhammad Amin Rajput
Acting Managing Director

finance, audit and management in oil and gas, energy, manufacturing and automobile sectors.  Before joining SSGC, 
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achievement in planning, development, and growth of the oil and gas industry. A highly motivated individual with 
successful working experience in the oil and gas and service industries across the world, he has a solid track record 

gas processes, and implementing and coordinating efficiency improvement techniques with Affiliate management 

skills have allowed him to achieve career growth and a special talent for translating strategy into action and 
achievement. As a change management consultant, he successfully secured contracts directly and through 
consultancy organizations, according to the client requirements and International standards. He worked as a 

Affiliate. He was also responsible for determining competency requirements for all functions and staff against the 
competency standards and successfully delivered the annual training plan within budget and on time. Mr. Khan has 
extensive experience in policy formation, development, and execution of IT strategy to support operations by 

managed IT projects exceeding the £10 million budget, including software development, business process 
reengineering, processes development, implementation, audit, managing multiple departments, and compliance with 

MSc. and M.A. from England, which gives him unique skills and advanced subject knowledge on how to promote and 
market an organization to achieve its strategic goals.

Dr. Sohail Razi Khan
Director
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Mr. Shakeel Qadir Khan
Director

Shangla, Swat, Mohmand, and Khyber Agency in the initial days of his service. He has served as the Chief 

varied experience during his various tenures with financial management, disaster management, institutional 
development, planning and development, social services delivery, and security-related issues being his forte.

Montreal, and completed his MBA in Finance and Money and Financial Markets with distinction from Columbia 
Business School, New York.

Mr. Ayaz Dawood
Director
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Mr. Shoaib Javed Hussain
Director

Through his global engagements across Europe, North America and Asia, Mr. Hussain has deep understanding and 
knowledge of finance, audit, risk and strategy matters with a proven track record of demonstrating proactive, dynamic, 
driven leadership with effective delivery from the conceptual stage through to successful implementation, expert 
analysis and decision-making skills,  utilizing technical acumen and strategic depth, leading and delivering strategic 

audits and risk management programs, initiating policy and control improvements and driving programs that enhance 
transparency, governance and control and strong experience of industry and regulatory engagement on global 
supervisory developments and lobbying with international regulators and supervisory authorities. Before joining State 

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed
Director

of working in economic policy and implementation, covering power and petroleum, fiscal and trade, economic 
diplomacy, international development, regulation, and compliance. Before assuming her responsibilities at the 
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Mr. Usman Ahmed Chaudhry
Director

Programme. He has worked extensively with bilateral and multilateral development partners, including the Foreign, 

governance, and public policy. He has also contributed internationally, supporting the Government of South Sudan in 
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NOTICE OF 71
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

ST

Notice is hereby given that the 71st Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited will be held on  
Thursday, November 27, 2025 at 11:00 a.m, at Jade Hall, Arena, Habib Rehmatullah Road, Karsaz, Karachi as well as through 
audio / video link to transact the following business:

1. To review the minutes of the 70th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on June 16, 2025.

2. To consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, 
 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

 for the re-appointment as auditors of the Company.

close of business on Wednesday, November 19, 2025.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Place: Karachi

Date: November 6, 2025
Fawad Ahmed Khan

Company Secretary

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

at the Annual General Meeting.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

3.
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Notes:

BOOK CLOSUREA.

REQUIREMENTS FOR ATTENDING THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGB.

REQUIREMENTS FOR APPOINTING PROXIESC.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORTS VIA QR ENABLED CODE AND E-MAILD.

PARTICIPATION IN AGM THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANSE.

Thursday, November 20, 2025 to Thursday, 
November 27, 2025,

business on Wednesday, November 19, 2025 will be considered for entitlement to attend and vote.

i.

In the case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder whose registration details are uploaded as per the i.

-14, Gulshan-e-lqbal, Karachi, not later than forty-eight (48) hours before the time of the meeting and must be duly 
stamped, signed and witnessed.

i.

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (the “Company”) has electronically transmitted its Annual Report 2025 to its Members 
through a web link, QR-enabled code, and email to those Members whose email addresses are available in the records of 
the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited.

However, for Members whose email addresses are not available with the Share Registrar, printed copies of the Notice of 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) containing the QR code and the Weblink to view and download the Annual Audited 
Financial Statements / Annual Report 2025 have been dispatched to their registered addresses.

Notwithstanding the above, the Company shall provide hard copies of the Annual Report 2025, free of cost, to any Member 
upon receipt of a written request at their registered address, within one (1) week of such request. Members desirous of 
obtaining printed copies of the Annual Report 2025 may submit their request using the Standard Request Form available 

The Company has made arrangements for participation of shareholders in the AGM via video link. Those members who 
are willing to attend and participate in the AGM via video link are requested to register themselves by sending an email 
along with following particulars and valid copy of both sides of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) at 

message via WhatsApp on +92 321 820 0864 along with a valid scanned copy of the applicant’s CNIC. While participating 
through electronic means, members are advised to provide the following mandatory information:

ii.

iii.

iv.

the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting (unless it has been provided earlier to the Shares Registrar).
v.

of the nominee shall also be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of meeting.
ii.

Name of Shareholder  CNIC #Company Folio /
CDS Account  #

     Cell # Email
Address

 

SSGC

i.
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video link at their provided email address. The login facility will be opened thirty (30) minutes before the meeting time to 

AVAILABILITY OF ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON THE COMPANY’S WEBSITE F.

Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 have been uploaded on the Company’s website www.ssgc.com.pk.
i.

NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE IN ADDRESSG.
Shareholders are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.i.

H. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to 

Mandate Form” available on Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Share Registrar 

Form” must be submitted directly to shareholder’s broker /participant /CDC account holder.

i.

I. CONVERSION OF PHYSICAL SHARES TO CDC ACCOUNTS
In compliance with Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, physical shares are required to be converted into book-entry 

convert their shares into book-entry form at the earliest. The shareholders of the Company may contact the Share Registrar, 

Karachi, for the conversion of physical shares into book-entry form.

i.

J. UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS AND SHARE CERTIFICATES
Shareholders, whose dividend or bonus shares are still unclaimed or have not collected their physical shares, are advised 
to contact our Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, to collect/enquire regarding their unclaimed 
dividends or pending shares, if any.

K. DECLARATION AS PER ZAKAT AND USHER ORDINANCE 1980

Registrar, if not provided earlier.
i.

L. SUBMISSION OF COPY OF CNIC / NTN CERTIFICATE (Mandatory)

M. POSTAL BALLOT / E-VOTING 
thereon the Company's name and respective folio numbers.

i.

mode (e- voting), in accordance with the requirements and procedures contained in the aforesaid Regulations.

i.

N. CONSENT FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY 
In accordance with Section 132 and 134 of the Companies Act, 2017, members can also avail video conference facility.

location other than the city of the meeting, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days prior to the 
date of the Annual General Meeting; the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of 

Company 7 days before holding of the Annual General Meeting.

The Company will intimate to members regarding the venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of 
the Annual General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

i.

I/We _______________ of________________ being a member of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited, holder of 
_______________ordinary share(s) as per Registered Folio/CDC Account No.______________ hereby opt for video 
conference facility at_____________.

Signature of Member

ii.
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FOR TOMORROW
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BOARD / COMMITTEE
MEETINGS
JULY 01, 2024 Till JUNE 30, 2025

BOARD HUMAN RESOURCE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Name of Directors Total Number of Meetings* Number of Meeting(s) Attended

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS

Name of Directors Total Number of Meetings* Number of Meeting(s) Attended
Dr. Shamshad Akhtar

Mr. Muhammad Raziuddin Monem 

Mr. Momin Agha

Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem

Mr. Zafar Abbas

Mr. Shakeel Qadir Khan

Mr. Shoaib Javed Hussain

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed

Dr. Sohail Razi Khan

Mr. Ayaz Dawood 

Mr. Amin Rajput **

Mr. Imran Maniar ***

20

20

9

1

7

20

20

20

20

20

15

3

20

20

6

1

7

12

19

20

20

20

15

3

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar

Mr. Muhammad Raziuddin Monem 

Mr. Shoaib Javed Hussain

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed

Mr. Zafar Abbas

Mr. Amin Rajput **

Mr. Imran Maniar ***

3

3

3

3

1

2

1

3

3

2

3

1

2

1
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**Acting Charge of MD was assigned to Mr. Amin Rajput on September 13, 2024.

***Mr. Imran Maniar resigned as the MD on September 13, 2024.

****Attended through invitation.

*****Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem ceased to be the Director on August 05, 2024.

******Mr. Zafar Abbas ceased to be the Director on November 28, 2024.

BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT, LITIGATION AND HSE & QA COMMITTEE

Name of Directors Total Number of Meetings* Number of Meeting(s) Attended
Mr. Muhammad Raziuddin Monem 
Mr. Shakeel Qadir Khan
Mr. Shoaib Javed Hussain
Dr. Sohail Razi Khan

1
1
1
1

1
0
1
1

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name of Directors Total Number of Meetings* Number of Meeting(s) Attended

BOARD FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

Name of Directors Total Number of Meetings* Number of Meeting(s) Attended

Mr. Ayaz Dawood 
Dr. Sohail Razi Khan
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem*****
Mr. Shoaib Javed Hussain
Mr. Zafar Abbas******

10
10
10
1

10
2

10
10
10
1
9
2

Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed
Dr. Shamshad Akhtar****
Mr. Ayaz Dawood
Dr. Sohail Razi Khan
Mr. Zafar Abbas
Mr. Shahbaz Tahir Nadeem
Mr. Shakeel Qadir Khan
Mr. Amin Rajput **
Mr. Imran Maniar ***

9
1
9
9
3
1
9
7
2

9
1
9
9
3
1
7
7
2

BOARD SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON UFG

Name of Directors Total Number of Meetings* Number of Meeting(s) Attended
Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Mr. Muhammad Raziuddin Monem 
Ms. Saira Najeeb Ahmed ****
Mr. Shoaib Javed Hussain
Dr. Sohail Razi Khan
Mr. Ayaz Dawood
Mr. Shakeel Qadir Khan

2
2
2
2
2
2
2

2
2
2
1
2
2
1
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each of the committees to ensure that the interest of the Company is safeguarded. The synopsis of their Terms of Reference 
is given below:

The Terms of Reference of the Board Human Resource and Remuneration Committee includes the following:

TERMS OF REFERENCE
OF THE BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD HUMAN RESOURCE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Terms of Reference of Board Finance and Procurement Committee includes the following:
BOARD FINANCE AND PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE

To thoroughly study and evaluate all HR related issues presented by the management and to formulate concise 

To review MD's performance on an annual basis and recommend increment as per the contemporary practices.

To review the recruitment policy and procedures.

assessment and succession planning.

Human Resource Management.

special needs / disability etc.

To review strategic business/investment proposals and policies prepared in pursuit of the corporate purpose of the 

including but not limited to providing oversight on the receivable and payable position of the Company and procurement 
cycle of goods and services, etc.

thereon.

thereof.

To accord approval to contracts or purchase orders in local or foreign currency for the supply of material, services, or other 

purchase of land.

To Be Continued...
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The Terms of Reference of the Board Audit Committee include the following:
BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Terms of Reference of Board Risk Management, Litigation and HSE&QA Committee includes the following:

BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT, LITIGATION AND HSE&QA COMMITTEE

To lay down time limits/parameters in respect of procurement of various materials and services.

To review the borrowing plans of the Company by assessing the requirements thereof and make recommendations to the 

involved.

focusing on:

audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of management where necessary).

coverage, as far as possible.

reporting structure, are adequate and effective.
To ensure the continuing suitability of the organization structure at all levels.
To determine the appropriate measures to safeguard the Company's assets and their performance, including post facto to 
review major investment projects and programs.

appropriately placed within the Company.
To approve the annual internal audit plan, review internal audit reports issued and actions taken thereon.
To review the appointment, performance, remuneration, and replacement of the Head of Internal Audit Department, 

To determine the compliance with relevant statutory requirements.

thereof.

To identify and mitigate risks affecting the objectives, business strategy, and reputation of the Company.
To identify and mitigate risks impacting operations, projects, and the continuous and reliable supply of gas to SSGC 
customers.
To monitor the methodology used in identifying risks and setting up mitigation strategies.

To Be Continued...
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The Terms of Reference of Board UFG Committee includes the following:

BOARD SPECIAL COMMITTEE ON UFG

chain.

To monitor the performance of management in reducing wastage on demand side.
To recommend Company’s position vis-a-vis Government and the Authority regarding different issues.



GAINING
FINANCIAL STRENGTH
GAINING
FINANCIAL STRENGTH
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Performance
Indicators

202020212022202320242025

Earnings per share Profit Before Tax Net Profit Margin as % of Sales

EBITDA Capital Expenditure Breakup Value Market Price per share

202020212022202320242025

202020212022202320242025202020212022202320242025
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Details Of
Distribution Network
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Six-year
Financial Highlights
Key Indicators

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Trading Results Rs Million
Net Revenue 451,480 375,559 296,129  290,240    
Gross profit / (loss) 28,179 7,719       (5,750)     (17,051)   

(1,591)              (7,735) 1,135      (19,049)      
(1,601)

465,870
10,383

9,210
6,839  (11,444) 1,956      (21,393)      

Operating Ratios %
Gross margin

Net margin

Financial position Rs. Million
Shareholders equity  5,917              (4,479)      (22,172) (23,691)

 203,910           175,264   135,988 134,346
Net current assets / (liabilities)  (119,095)          (117,980)  (98,192) (90,551)

 13,410             5,980       6,100 1,734      
Long term liabilities  92,308             67,743     66,067 69,220
Capital employed 48,458

(2,688)
187,414

(119,173)
10,583
81,512
29,501             19,202     7,169  13,483

Performance
Rs. Million  23,705 12,407     10,348    8,825      

Asset turnover ratio  0.42 0.53         0.48        0.51        
 2.38 2.41         2.19        2.20        

Inventory turnover Days 3.20 2.52         2.39        2.49        

12,701
0.48 
2.40 
3.18 

Valuation and other Ratios
Rs. (1.82) (12.99)      2.22       (24.28)          

Net assets per share (breakup value) Rs. (3.05) (5.08)        (25.17) (26.89)     
Market value per share at 30 June Rs. 8.59 9.06         13.30 13.34           

(4.73) (0.70)        5.99       (0.55)       
Current ratio 0.88 0.84         0.83        0.84        
Debt service coverage ratio 0.93

 7.76
 6.72
 9.48
 1.22
 0.89
 1.53

2025

 435,074
 10,990
 7,098
 2,689

 8,268
 228,656

 (152,316)
 13,602
 81,674
 61,672

 33,336
 0.38
 2.01
 3.31

 3.05
 9.39

 42.79
 14.02
 0.85
 1.21 0.02         1.13 (0.22)       



DIRECTORS’
REPORT
DIRECTORS’
REPORT
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

KEY FINANCIAL DRIVERS

DIRECTORS’
REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors of Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) is pleased to present the 71st Annual Report along with 
the Audited Financial Statements and Auditors' Report for the year ended June 30, 2025.

OGRA’s Revenue Determination:

Impact of Borrowing Rates:

FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

(Rupees in Million)

Variance

Profit Before Taxation and Levy

3.05

9,210

(2,371)

(2,112)

Taxation and Levy

Profit After Taxation and Levy

Earnings Per Share (Rs.)
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NETWORK EXPANSION

TRANSMISSION, CP AND SCADA

TECHNOLOGY AND INNOVATION

Region / Location Supply Mains Dist. Network

( % ) ( % )

97

77

93 55

Protection Level 2024-25

Lower Sindh

Upper Sindh

Balochistan
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CUSTOMER BILLING

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (GIS)

data management, and reconciliation.

MEASUREMENT - TRANSMISSION AND LNG OPERATIONS

MEASUREMENT - DISTRIBUTION

Period

This Fiscal Year (24-25) 72 220

701Since Inception

No. of Cargoes Handled
at EETPL Terminal

RLNG volume added to
the System (BCF) EETPL



Annual Report 2025

SECURITY SERVICES & COUNTER GAS THEFT OPERATIONS

PROCUREMENT – SUPPLY CHAIN

CAPITALIZATION

HSE & QA – TRANSFORMATION ‘FROM POST DEFECT REPORTING’ TO ‘IN-BUILT QUALITY’

Inspection of Construction and Rehabilitation Projects:

Pressure Factor Survey for Domestic Connections at High-Rise Buildings:

HSE Audits and Risk Assessments:

HSE Trainings and Awareness Sessions:

Emergency Response Drills
potential emergency situations.

Environmental Monitoring & Compliance:
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INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND AUTOMATION

SUSTAINABILITY AND EFFICIENCY INITIATIVES

EPADS Integration (PPRA):

Roll out of Treasury Function Application:

Data Security and Information Protection:

Fintech and Digital Payments:

Deployment of Heat Shrink Sleeves:

Energy-Saving Gadgets:2.
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HUMAN RESOURCE

SSGC LPG LIMITED (SLL)

SSGC ALTERNATE ENERGY (PRIVATE) LIMITED

SSGC SUBSIDIARIES AND OTHER VENTURES
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METER MANUFACTURING PLANT (MMP)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar 
Chairperson, Board of Directors

Muhammad Amin Rajput
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

NOTES:

Chairperson1

2

3

Name of Directors 
A er-Tax 
Remuner-
a on (Rs.) 

Board of 
Directors  

Board Human Resource 
and Nomina on 

Commi ee 

Board Audit 
Commi ee 

Board Finance 
and 

Procurement 
Commi ee 

Board Special 
Commi ee on 

UFG 

Board Risk 
Management, 
Li ga on and 

HSEQA 
Commi ee 

Member A . Member A . Member A . Member A . Member A . Member A . 

1 2,0 0,000  20/20   3/3  – – – –  1/1  2/2  

r. uhammad 
Ra iuddin onem  2,0 0,000  20/20   3/3  – – – –  2/2  1/1  

r. omin Agha 2  0,000  9/  – – – – – – – – – – 

Nadeem 3 2 0,000  1/1  – – – –  1/1   1/1 – – 

 1,0 0,000  7/7   1/1   2/2   3/3  – – – – 

 1, 00,000  20/12  – – – – – –  9/7  1/1  

 2,5 0,000  20/19   3/2   10/9  – –  1/1  1/1  

s. Saira a ee  
Ahmed 3,520,000  20/20   3/3   10/10   9/9   2/2 – – 

Dr. Sohail Ra i han 3,3 0,000  20/20  – –  10/10   9/9   2/2  1/1  

r. Aya  Dawood  3,2 0,000  20/20  – –  10/10   9/9   2/2 – – 
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EXPANDING
HORIZONS
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Energy
Overview
for economic growth and national security. Rising 

to reduce reliance on costly imports and is a pressing 

hydropower.

nuclear energy, and 12.19% other resources (Figure 

Pakistan-Primary Energy Mix
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OPERATIONAL
OVERVIEW
SSGC is guided by its core values of Integrity, excellence, team work, transparency, creativity and responsibility to stakeholders. 
In alignment with the Company’s mission, SSGC endeavors to provide natural gas facilities to continuously expand its customer 
base.  Divisional and department-wise details of projects and achievements during FY 2024-25 are as under:

During the year under review, following gas pipeline projects were commisioned:

Technical Services Division - Planning and Development (P&D) Department

injecting approximately 15 MMSCFD natural gas in SSGC’s transmission system. The key achievement of P&D Department 
was that despite challenging security concerns, the 8’ dia. x 102 kms pipeline project was successfully commissioned during 
FY 2024-25.

8” dia. x 102 kms Jhal Magsi Pipeline Project1.

To ensure reliable gas pressure and supply for meeting future demand of the customers of Larkana and Nawabshah, 
upgradation of SMSs Larkana and Nawabshah was initiated.  The Project was successfully completed and commissioned in 
June 2025.

Upgradation of SMS Larkana and Nawabshah2.

resulted in the vulnerability of pipeline to rupture and structural damages. In order to permanently resolve the issue and 
considering the deteriorating security condition in Balochistan region,  the Project was divided into four phases for execution. 
Phase 1, which included makeshift arrangement for restoration of existing 12" dia. pipeline from Shikarpur to Quetta and 

Re-routing of 24” / 12” dia. QPL pipeline from Bibi Nani Bridge3.
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SSGC is enhancing the HQ-Sibi Compressor Station to raise compression capacity to 240 MMSCFD for addressing the rising 
gas demand in Quetta and nearby areas. The Project aligns with SSGC’s broader capacity enhancement initiatives in 
Balochistan and complies with Balochistan High Court’s orders to ensure adequate winter gas supply for Quetta city.

Tests of the engines and Balance of Plant materials work concluded, while the turbo compressors have been dismantled and 
are ready for shipment for upgradation. The Project is presently in the execution phase and remains on track for 
commissioning in December 2025.

Revamping of existing two units of compressor at Sibi4.

pipeline washouts in the Bibi Nani and Pinjra Bridge areas, following phases of the Project are planned to be executed in FY 
2025-26:

Re-routing of 24” / 12”dia. QPL pipeline from Bibi Nani Bridge1.

To enhance the stand-by capacity of HQ-2 Compressor Station and ensure a reliable back-up system, the installation of a new 
200 MMscfd compressor—operating in parallel with existing units—has been planned, in line with the consultant’s 
recommendations.

Installation of New Compressor at Nawabshah3.

To reduce UFG, improve supply pressure, and support segregation of key sales metering stations, a 16’ dia., 10 kms pipeline 
from SMS-KT to TBS-Maymar CNG has been planned. The Project will also enable isolation of the North City main at Sohrab 

Commissioning is scheduled for FY 2025.

Construction of 16” dia. x 10 kms Pipeline from SMS KT To TBS Maymar CNG2.

Future Plan

12" dia. pipeline, approximately 9 kms, from MVA Dadhar to MVA Bolan.

12" dia. pipeline, approximately 8 kms, from MVA Bolan to MVA Gokart.

Phase 2:

Phase 3:

Phase 4:



45
Annual Report 2025

Planning & Development – South
Planned Schemes in FY 2024–25 (Rehabilitation, Reinforcement and Segregation)

reduce technical losses, and ensure reliable supply to both commercial and residential consumers.

in urban areas, especially where network performance has been historically constrained.

63 gas distribution schemes and 134 sales cases were planned, with an estimated cost of approximately Rs 29 billion. 
Following is the breakdown of schemes:

Rehabilitation Schemes – Karachi Region

Looking ahead, the Company has developed an aggressive network rehabilitation strategy for FY 2025–26 to further reduce 
UFG, enhance gas pressure, and ensure uninterrupted supply across the Karachi region.

In addition to rehabilitation, reinforcement, replacement, and segregation schemes will be undertaken based on regional 
priorities and technical requirements. Furthermore, sales cases will continue to be planned in coordination with the Sales 
Department, in keeping with customer demand.

Scheme Type Number of Schemes Total Length (kms)
Rehabilitation 46                               2,499.7 kms
Segregation 6                               2.8 kms
Reinforcement 4                               11.9 kms
Replacement 7                               24.0 kms
Sales Cases 134 (customer-funded)  –

Future Plan 

improve industrial supply in Hub City:

Major Distribution Pipeline Project – FY 2024–25

16" / 12" dia. x 11 kms Pipeline – Hub City Master Plan
Objective: Pressure enhancement and network reinforcement for industrial consumers.
Project cost: Rs. 730 million
Status: Successfully commissioned in FY 2024–25

Total rehabilitation schemes proposed: 2,689 kms
Estimated cost: Rs. 22 billion (Approx.)
Execution status: In progress (execution phase initiated)

Orangi Town and Extension Zone  
Society Zone
Gulshan-e-Iqbal Zone
Saddar Zone
,

This initiative will play a key role in strengthening gas distribution infrastructure, improving supply reliability, and supporting the 
growing energy needs of Karachi’s residential and industrial sectors.

Planned Major Distribution Pipeline Project – FY 2025–26

16" dia. x 10 kms Pipeline – SMS-KT to TBS Maymar CNG

Purpose:

Estimated cost: Rs. 751 million

Execution timeline: Scheduled for FY 2025–26

1.

Target Areas for Rehabilitation
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Summary Table – Key Figures
Category                                                   FY 2024–25                                    FY 2025–26 (Planned)

Total Schemes (All Types)                       63 schemes                                   As per execution plan

Total Length (kms)                                    2,538.4 kms                                  2,689 kms

Sales Cases                                             134 cases (customer-funded)     As per demand

Estimated Cost                                         Rs. 29 billion (Approx.)     Rs. 22 billion (Approx.)

Major Pipeline Project                              16"/12" x 11 kms (Hub City)          16" x 10 kms (SMS-KT to Maymar CNG)

Cost of Major Pipeline Projects                Rs. 730 million                              Rs. 751 million

Rehabilitation of Gas Distribution Networks – Karachi and Sindh
Karachi:

North Karachi – 479 kms
PAF Korangi Creek – 15 kms
DHA Phase-II Extension – 26 kms
Various other projects – 129 kms

Sindh:
Mehrabpur City, District Nawabshah – 22 kms
Sinjhoro City, District Sanghar – 32 kms
Hala City, District Matiari – 51 kms
Mehar City, District Dadu – 20 kms
5 kms Radius Scheme (Phase-IV), Sawan Gas Field, District Khairpur – 32 kms
5 kms Radius Scheme, Jhal Magsi Gas Field – 5 kms

Recent Achievements (FY 2024-25)

North Karachi, Lyari, Garden, Malir in Lower Sindh Region and selected towns and villages in Upper Sindh.  Total gross   

Rehabilitation Progress and Forward Plan
Fiscal Year   Rehabilitation Target (kms)
•  FY 2013 – FY 2022  •  ~200
•  FY 2022-23   •  742
•  FY 2023-24   •  1,500
•  FY 2024-25   •  2,500
•  FY 2025-26   •  2,500 (planned)
•  FY 2026-27   •  2,500 (planned)
•  FY 2027-28   •  2,500 (planned)
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Projects and Construction Department

Key Strengths
Proven track record in the execution of complex, large-scale pipeline projects.
Skilled workforce with extensive experience in high-pressure pipeline construction.
Strong project management capabilities, ensuring timely completion within scope and budget.

Integrated approach, including civil works for operational facilities and support infrastructure.

Completed and Ongoing Projects
High pressure major transmission pipeline projects:

8" dia. x 100 kms gas pipeline from Jhal Magsi Gas Field to RS-Shori.

Fabrication and installation works for the upgradation of SMSs Larkana and Nawabshah.

Departmental Overview

and distribution by undertaking strategic infrastructure development and rehabilitation projects. With a strong focus on safety, 
quality, and timely execution, the Department has consistently demonstrated its capability in managing high-pressure 
transmission pipelines, major distribution projects, and civil infrastructure works. The team’s technical expertise and proactive 
project management ensures alignment with the Company’s long-term operational and strategic goals.

High pressure major distribution pipeline projects:
16" dia. x 10 kms master plan for Hub City.

Reinforcement & Relocation Projects – Quetta:

8" dia. x 1.6 kms Reinforcement Pipeline in Faqeerabad, Jail Road.

8" dia. x 1.7 kms Reinforcement Pipeline from Gawalmandi to Abdul Wali Chowk.

Summary of Pipeline Construction Activities:

Project Type                                                       Total Length (kms)

High-Pressure Transmission Pipelines               100 kms

Major Distribution Pipelines                                10 kms

Rehabilitation – Karachi Region                          983  kms

Rehabilitation – Interior Sindh                             162  kms

Reinforcement & Relocation – Quetta                 6.9  kms

Grand Total                                                         1,261.9 kms

Civil Works –  P&C Department:

Extension and refurbishment of the Fire Hydrant System at LHF Plant HQ-3 (Phase II).

Renovation of nine buildings inside RO Larkana.
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gas from various supply points to distribution networks and end-users. With transmission pipeline infrastructure over 4,300 
kilometers, the Department ensures gas reaches domestic, commercial, and industrial consumers across Sindh and 

inspections and preventive maintenance of pipeline infrastructure help prevent failures and extend asset lifespan. In 
emergencies, the Department can swiftly manage repairs and infrastructure rehabilitation, ensuring minimal service disruption.

Lowering of Quetta Pipelines
In light of the challenging law and order situation in Balochistan, ensuring the safety of high-pressure natural gas transmission 
pipelines is paramount. The Transmission Department has successfully lowered 9,985 RFT of 12-inch and 7,105 RFT of 

Implementation of Laser Technology for Gas Leak Detection
To enhance leak detection, the Transmission Department acquired a vehicle-mounted laser system. A survey of over 500 

Installation of New SMS at Sawan
The Transmission Department has fabricated and installed a new Sales Meter Station (SMS) at Sawan, aimed at gasifying 
towns and villages within Tehsil Nara, enhancing natural gas availability in the region.

Refurbishment of Fire Hydrant System at HQ-3 Jamshoro

Right of Way (RoW) Maintenance

Installation of Strainers on Compressors
The Department fabricated 12 strainer spools for compressor stations. Six have been successfully installed at compressors 

Transmission Department

Achievements of the Transmission Department

Lowering Job of 18 inch dia. QPL
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Future Plan 
Mass Concreting and Water Siphon Construction
The Department plans to implement mass concreting and construct a water siphon on main transmission pipelines in the 
HQ-3 section. This initiative aims to safeguard the main pipeline lines and ensure an uninterrupted supply of natural gas 
through transmission pipelines.

Right of Way (RoW) Maintenance
To facilitate smooth operation and maintenance of high-pressure transmission pipelines, the Department will ensure 
well-marked access to the designated right-of-way (RoW). Maintenance of 150 kms of RoW will be carried out to enhance 
accessibility and safety.

RCC Footings for Sludge Catcher Pipes
At the Liquid Handling Facility, RCC footings for sludge catcher pipes with steel plates and bracings will be constructed to 
maintain the integrity of the assets.

Leak Detection System Implementation
The Transmission Department has acquired a vehicle-mounted laser technology-based leak detection system and plans 
to conduct a leak survey of 500 kms of buried pipeline along its RoW for enhancing safety measures.

New Approach Path Construction
To address access issues during the rainy season, a new approach path to the 42-inch diameter RLNG line from LHF HQ-3 
will be constructed for improving operational convenience.

Meter Station (SMSs) and 275 main valve assemblies will be undertaken to ensure system integrity.

Remote Valve Testing
The Department plans to conduct remote valve testing of 130 MPL valves using the SCADA system, enhancing monitoring 
and control capabilities.

compliance with safety standards.

Renovation and Repair of Civil Infrastructure
Due to the dilapidated condition of old civil infrastructure, heavy rains, and waterlogging, renovation and repair work on 23 
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Measurement-Transmission Department
gas entering and exiting SSGC’s transmission network. By ensuring precise metering at Points of Delivery (PoDs) and Sales 
Metering Stations (SMSs), the Department plays a critical role in maintaining the integrity and accountability of the 
transmission system.

Key Functions and Achievements
Joint Meter Checks (JMC):
Successfully conducted approximately 830 JMCs across all PoDs and Custody Transfer Stations (CTS), ensuring 

Meter Replacement Drive:
Replaced 68 aging meters across various SMSs with calibrated, proven units to enhance metering reliability and regulatory 
compliance.

equipped with the state-of-the-art metering infrastructure.

Sustainability Initiative – Solarization: 

savings.

•  Amount Recovered in June 2025: Rs. 3.43 billion.

Gas Quality Assurance:
Operated a dedicated Gas Quality Analysis Laboratory at Karachi Terminal where approximately 600 gas samples were 

billing.
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The LNG Department is primarily responsible for ensuring seamless operations of the FSRU-based LNG import terminal under 

onward supply to SNGPL.

During FY 2024–25, the Department demonstrated strong operational resilience and strategic agility in managing unplanned 

ensured full compliance with contractual obligations and successfully avoided any laytime demurrage liabilities, protecting the 

implemented forward-looking risk management strategies to ensure uninterrupted terminal performance and a stable RLNG 
supply.

LNG Department

Operational Highlights

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS

No major safety incidents reported during the year
Cumulative LNG handled:
•  678 vessels since inception
•  41.13 million metric tons processed
•  2,013.188 BCF of RLNG delivered to the network

Total LNG Quantity Handled and Regasified

B
C

F

M
TP

A

LNG Vol. (MTPA)

Year

RLNG Vol. (BCF)
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Key Achievements (LNG Department)

the LNG Services Agreement (LSA) and aligned with SNGPL’s demand forecast. This proactive planning reinforced supply 
chain readiness and highlighted the department’s critical role in ensuring national energy security.

Key Achievements

GSPA Section-Highlights
The Gas Sales & Purchase Agreements (GSPA) Section is responsible for leading and concluding various gas-related 
agreements with Exploration & Production (E&P) companies and other stakeholders, including:

Gas Sales & Purchase Agreements (GSPA)
Term Sheets (TS)
Letter Agreements (LA)
Supply Agreements (SA)
Gas Transportation Agreements (GTA)
Addendums and Amendments

•  Two GSPAs
•  Two Term Sheets / Letter Agreements
•  One Addendum to existing agreement

nine years.

optimal terminal operations. Every aspect of the contract will be duly monitored and complied with, in order to avoid any 
dispute or demurrages and to ensure compliance with company policies and procedures. 

Future Plan
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SSGC operates one of South Asia’s leading meter manufacturing plants, serving as a cornerstone of the Company’s long-term 

technological infrastructure to meet the growing domestic and regional demand for precision gas metering solutions. With a 
production capacity exceeding 1.5 million G-1.6 and G-4 domestic gas meters per annum, manufactured in strict compliance 

the facility’s designed capacity and underscores its ability to meet the country’s large-scale domestic demand. MMP 
successfully completed the delivery of 1,279 million G-1.6 gas meters against two purchase orders from SNGPL, maintaining 
strict adherence to the delivery schedule of 100,000 meters per month. In addition, the supply of 1578 meters to private 

achieving 97 percent deletion of imported components for G-4 Measuring Units. This accomplishment represents the complete 

sustainable savings of foreign exchange.

Aligned with its sustainability objectives, MMP also implemented a comprehensive recycling initiative for aluminum die-cast 
components of G-1.6/G-4 gas meters. A total of 1,450,000 retired G-1.6 and G-4 meters were dismantled, and their aluminum 

program demonstrates SSGC’s commitment to circular economy principles and positions MMP as a pioneer of sustainable 
manufacturing practices in Pakistan’s energy sector.

overarching Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) objectives. The Plant continues to invest in renewable integration, 

manufacturing practices.

Meter Manufacturing Plant (MMP)
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accomplishments are highlighted below:

1. Supply of LPG to air mix plants in Balochistan and Sindh and SNG supply to the consumers
  In FY 2024-25, SSGC successfully uplifted and transported 5,192 M.Tons of LPG worth PKR 1.07 billion to its LPG-Air Mix 

2. Installation and Commissioning of Air Compressor and Air Dryer at LPG-Air Mix plant Gwadar, Balochistan
 An Air Compressor and Air Dryer were successfully installed and commissioned at the LPG-Air Mix Plant, Gwadar, 

3. Implementation of environment friendly Green Energy initiative at LPG-Air Mix Plants 

Gwadar, Noshki, and Kot Ghulam Muhammad (KGM) were shifted from conventional energy source to solar energy. This 
transition reduces the plants’ carbon footprint and operational costs.

4. Compliance requirement fulfillment by Fire-water Storage Capacity Enhancement
 To strengthen safety infrastructure and comply with NFPA-58 standards, the Department successfully constructed and 

LPG-Air Mix Plants
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The Compression Department delivered an exemplary performance during FY 24-25, ensuring high reliability and operational 

Jobs, the Department achieved maximum equipment availability and reliability, reinforcing its role as a vital contributor to the 
Division overall performance.

The Department’s ability to complete its major tasks while maintaining operational consistency, highlights its dedication to 

All maintenance activities were carried out in strict compliance with safety and environmental standards, resulting again, in a 

while meeting operational goals.

Moving forward, the Compressor Maintenance Department remains committed to fostering innovation, encouraging 
continuous improvements and adopting industrial best maintenance practices to improve future outcomes. Looking ahead, the 
Department will continue to focus on preventive maintenance, technical skill enhancement, and sustainable operational 
practices. This approach will not only ensure the long-term reliability of critical assets but also align with the Department’s 

Overall Performance
Compressor Maintenance Department

• Gas Turbine Replacement: The successful replacement of one Solar Taurus 60 Turbine engine restored full operational 

shutdowns, ensuring seamless operations under increased system demands.

• Centrifugal Rotor Replacement: Successfully replaced the complete rotor of DR – Unit B at HQ-Shikarpur, involving the 
precise installation of all associated accessories, including high-performance bearings, dry gas seals, and buffer air seals. 

failures, ensuring the longevity and reliability of the equipment.

• Gas Generators Overhaul: In-house maintenance of 3 gas generators across Compressor Stations, extended their 

• Isolation Valve Replacement: The replacement of eroded isolation valves of Filtration System improved system integrity and 

ongoing operations.

• Strainer Installation:
enhanced system reliability, safety, and integrity. This project was executed as planned, demonstrating our commitment to 
operational excellence and proactive maintenance.

• 3rd Party Calibration Of Pressure Safety Valves: Collaborated with third-party specialists to complete the calibration of pressure 

risk of overpressure incidents.

• Air Compressor Installation:

ensuring uninterrupted service. 

• DP Transmitter Installation:

• Parallel Axis Gearbox: Successfully replaced the parallel axis gearbox as part of breakdown maintenance, which included 
comprehensive overhauling and precise alignment with turbo machinery and compressors. This timely action and expertise 

• Centrifugal Pump Replacement: Successfully replaced and installed a diesel engine-driven centrifugal pump as part of the 

and demonstrates commitment to safety and operational excellence.

Key Achievements
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SSGC’s Corrosion Control Department continued to play a vital role in safeguarding pipeline integrity across the Transmission 
and Distribution networks during FY 2024–25. Adhering to global standards such as NACE, ASME, ISO and API, the 
Department focused on mitigating corrosion-related risks through advanced coating systems, cathodic protection (CP) 
techniques, and real-time monitoring solutions.

In the Transmission network, spanning over 4,500 kms of high-pressure pipelines, several technology-driven initiatives were 
undertaken to ensure long-term infrastructure reliability. A total of 547.9 kms of pipeline were assessed under the External 
Corrosion Direct Assessment (ECDA) Survey. The Department implemented a high-durability liquid epoxy coating system, 
offering superior corrosion resistance and extended service life. In an effort to enhance power reliability for CP systems, legacy 
infrastructure such as battery banks, deep wells, and thermoelectric generators was replaced with 59 newly installed solar 
modules. Additionally, 97 SMS/MVA units were deployed for comprehensive asset integrity assessments and 22 insulation 
assessments at MVA/SMS. The Remote Monitoring Unit (RMU) system, initiated in 2023, became fully operational in 2025, 10 
Remote Monitoring Systems were installed enabling real-time tracking of CP performance and immediate response to 
anomalies across the network.

Corrosion Control

Meanwhile, the Distribution network protected over 6,000 kms of supply mains and approximately 25,000 kms of distribution 

Anode (SACP) installations annually.

During the year, the Department successfully completed 258 kms of ECDA survey, installed 23 new ICCP stations, deployed 
989 magnesium anodes, and conducted 53 soil resistivity tests. In addition, 30 insulation assessments were carried out at 

Remote Monitoring Systems (RMS) were commissioned to enhance system visibility and support data-driven maintenance. 
These initiatives collectively contributed to strengthening corrosion protection measures, ensuring improved reliability and 
long-term integrity of the distribution network.

Looking ahead to FY 2025–26, the department plans to further expand CP station coverage, refurbish aged coatings, renew 
ground beds, and scale up integrity assessments using CIPS, DCVG, and PCM methods. Additional test points and RMS 

Epoxy Coated Pipeline Remote Monitoring System for CP Power Source
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Support for 2,500 kms Rehabilitation Schemes
As part of the 2,500 kms rehabilitation program, Stores Department played a crucial role by ensuring the timely provision and 
availability of materials required for the Rehabilitation of the aging pipeline network. This unprecedented target of 2,500 kms 

managed material forecasting in close coordination with User departments, maintained strict control over critical material 

Unaccounted-for-Gas (UFG) and enhancing overall system reliability. 

Ensuring Uninterrupted Logistics
Stores also maintained its role as the backbone of uninterrupted logistics, ensuring the timely movement of materials across 

Recycling of Retired Gas Meters
A key achievement during the reporting period was the successful recycling of approximately 1.5 million retired gas meters. 
Through this activity, Stores Department supported the Company’s sustainability agenda by supplying recycled gas meters or 
components for the production of new meters. This not only reduced reliance on new gas meters / components but also 

stewardship.

Disposal Activities
Stores Department carried out systematic disposal activities through open auction in accordance with approved SOPs and 
industry best practices. Obsolete or unserviceable items and assets from various departments across the Company were 

Stores Department continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring operational excellence and material readiness across the 
franchise area of Company during the year. Leveraging its extensive network of 22 store locations across Sindh and 
Balochistan, the Department aligned its services with corporate objectives and successfully facilitated key initiatives, including 

and disposal activities through open auction.

Stores Department

timely procuring of materials for rehabilitation and other projects with full compliance under the PPRA ambit and ensured to 
make the availability of the material without any delay. Further, due to Procurement Department efforts, SSGC became the 
only SoE in the energy sector to implement EPADS by uploading method which is in compliance of the Regulator/GOP/Prime 

Procurement Department always strives to procure goods, services and works for SSGC in the shortest possible time while 
ensuring integrity, fairness and transparency by remaining within the PPRA ambit. The Department aims to remain focused in 
obtaining the best value for money by adopting PPRA Rules in true spirit and keeping its self abreast for meeting any type of 
challenges for the accomplishment of the projects.

Procurement Department 
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its market position.

SSGC LPG Ltd. (SLL)
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Human Resource

Gender Pay Gap - June 2025

Location

Executive
Subordinate

8%

20%

22%

25%

Mean Gender Pay Gap Median Gender Pay Gap
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Customer Relations Department (CRD)

Description  Calls 
Received  

 
Calls Received  

 
Landed Calls   

Total Calls  586,375  Within 10
 

Within 20 
 

Within

  

Answered Calls        
Abandoned Calls        

Location  
Quantity
Awarded  

Vendor’s Name  
Installed up to
June  2025 

 220,000   220,015

18,850

 

 50,000    

    

Sukkur   

Larkana    

   



FY 2024-25

Target Achieved
Activities

1,220

51

Meter Shifting from Inside to Outside
Premises

Complaints Meter Shifted No. Access / CDA Pending

120 120

2

CRD - Overall performance / operational review, contributions and achievements

Annual Report 2025
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Customer
Class Unit / Region

Recovery Actions Recoveries from Customers

No. of
Customers

Action Amount
(Rs.in Million)

Recovered
Amount

(Rs.in Million)

Engaged 
Amount

(Rs.in Million)
No. of

Reconnections

Domestic

Total Domestic

Total Commercial

Total Domestic and Commercial

623,006 28,516 269,729 7,255 8,810

9,351 2,575 4,384 989 1,088

632,357 31,091 274,113 8,243 9,898

Unit-A Karachi

Unit-B Interior 
Sindh

 Unit-Q 
Balochistan

 

 

Commercial

Unit-A Karachi

Unit-B Interior 
Sindh

 Unit-Q 
Balochistan

2,022

505

 

Recovery (CRD)

Issuance of Notices / Reminders: 

Persuasion of High Value Defaulters: 

Action against Defaulters: 

a)

b)

c)

Outsourcing of Recovery Activities:d)
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250

100

implementation plan 

1

2

# Target (2024-25) 

55

AchievementsDescription 

New Initiatives

Sales Department

Performance – Annual Targets

Contractor Name

(Pvt.) Limited

258

(Pvt.) Limited

Couriers

Lot # Region

Total 1,362

Operations 
Commenced

*Recovery FY 2024-25 
(Rs. in Million)
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Medical Services Department 



HEADING TOWARDS
INDIGENZATION



CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
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CASUAL VACANCY ON THE BOARD

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

 Annual Report 2025.

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

EVALUATION OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
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AUDITORS

DIVIDENDS

2025 to the shareholders. 

Report.

Categories
2024

(Rs. in Million)
2025

(Rs. in Million)
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Categories Name Of Directors

1.  Dr. Shamshad Akhtar, Chairperson

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES(CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 

Name of Company: SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED
Name of the Line Ministry: Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division)
Year Ended: June 30, 2025

01.

02.

05.

08.
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Name of Committee Composition

Committee 

1.  Dr. Shamshad Akhtar, Chairperson 

1.  Dr. Shamshad Akhtar, Chairperson 

12.

10.

11.
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15.

18.

Name of Committee Number of Meetings

10

02

01

S. #

SOEs Act, 2023 / State-owned 
Enterprises Ownership and 
Management Policy 2023
(SOE Policy)

Description Explanation

business plan was approved 01

and published the Statement 
of Corporate intent at the 

•

•

•

•
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establish an appropriate evaluation 

Annual Report.

02

not independent.

dent. transitional situation that will be 
appropriately addressed upon the 

who violate the Code.

for its review and approval.

05
investments and properties by the 

of their appointment.

•

•

•
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A summary of annual report has not 

A report has not been submitted on 
the Company operations and its 
subsidiaries within four months of 

statements was also delayed. 

September 2025 after approval of 

08

Government within two months of 

earliest possible to ensure full 

10

Amin Rajput Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson



STRATEGIZING
AND GROWING
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE 
MEMBERS OF SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 

S. # SOEs Act, 2023 SOE Policy/ Regulation No. Description

01

02

•

•

annual report.

•

•

•

independent.
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S. # SOEs Act, 2023 SOE Policy/ Regulation No. Description

Code.

05

appointment.

A summary of annual audit report has not been submitted as 

A report has not been submitted on the Company operations 08

10

Place: 

Dated: 

UDIN: 

BDO EBRAHIM & CO. 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Engagement Partner: Tariq Feroz



FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS



AUDITOR’S REPORT

Qualified opinion

�

�

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis for qualified opinion
1)

2)

•
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Emphasis of Matter

Key Audit Matters

on these matters.

assessed risk of material misstatement, revenue is 

 

Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit mattersS.No

1.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REVENUE

1)

2)

•

•

•

•

•



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Key audit mattersS.No

2.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

3. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

81
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial 
Statements

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

to do so. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

•

•

•

•

•



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

a)

b)

d)

Place: 

Dated: 

UDIN: 
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 228,656,118      203,910,241      
Intangible assets 6 255,948             186,844             
Right of use assets 7 87,460               89,695               
Deferred taxation 8 11,160,804        11,160,804        
Long term investments 9 1,556,387          1,340,413          
Long term loans 10 518,309             610,309             
Long term deposits 23,030               21,713               

Total non-current assets 242,258,056      217,320,019      

Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 11 4,350,843          4,031,530          
Stock-in-trade 12 3,214,955          4,037,257          
Customers' installation work-in-progress 13 249,970             289,376             
Trade debts 14 130,923,618      127,447,585      
Loans and advances 15 1,017,033          1,076,442          
Advances, deposits, and prepayments 16 664,034             358,483             
Interest accrued 17 690,544             707,080             
Other receivables 18 681,182,782      808,932,872      
Taxation - net 19 48,768,689        13,862,447        
Cash and bank balances 20 1,187,075          1,123,182          

Total current assets 872,249,543      961,866,254      
Total assets 1,114,507,599   1,179,186,273   

(Rupees in '000)

The annexed notes 1 to 58 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves 

Share Capital 21 8,809,163          8,809,163          
Reserves 22 4,907,401          4,907,401          
Surplus on re-measurement of FVTOCI securities 417,582             220,178             
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 23 59,835,137        59,835,137        
Accumulated loss (65,700,834)       (67,854,673)       

8,268,449          5,917,206          
LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long term financing 24 11,049,039        34,561,766        
Security deposits 25 39,086,356        31,399,978        
Employee benefits 26 9,623,940          7,262,302          
Payable against transfer of pipeline 27 430,722             523,169             
Deferred credit 28 5,612,881          5,759,812          
Contract liabilities 29 12,248,838        10,274,822        
Lease liabilities 30 11,732               17,886               
Long term advances 31 3,610,466          2,508,204          

Total non-current liabilities 81,673,974        92,307,939        
Current liabilities

Current portion of
Long term financing 32 42,354,518        7,978,924          
Payable against transfer of pipeline 27 92,447               84,527               
Deferred credit 28 573,451             566,724             
Contract liabilities 29 334,269             286,977             
Lease liabilities 30 78,527               68,292               

Short term borrowings 33 82,806,374        37,774,786        
Trade and other payables 34 895,653,702      1,030,545,323   
Unclaimed dividend 341,320             341,320             
Interest accrued 35 2,330,568          3,314,255          

Total current liabilities 1,024,565,176   1,080,961,128   
Total liabilities 1,106,239,150   1,173,269,067   
Total equity and liabilities 1,114,507,599   1,179,186,273   
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 36

The annexed notes 1 to 58 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in '000)
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

Revenue from contracts with customers - Gas sales - net 37 439,329,021    412,660,088  
(Less) / Add: Tariff adjustment 38 (4,255,351)       53,209,635    

435,073,670    465,869,723  
Less: Cost of gas sales 39 (424,084,077)   (455,487,214) 
Gross profit 10,989,593      10,382,509    
Less: Operating Expenses

Administrative and selling expenses 40 (7,378,093)       (7,184,811)     
Other operating expenses 41 (3,131,415)       (22,851,640)   
Allowance for expected credit loss (5,716,317)       (1,950,297)     

(16,225,825)     (31,986,748)   
(5,236,231)       (21,604,239)   

Other operating income 42 24,477,027      44,189,145    
Operating profit 19,240,795      22,584,906    
Finance cost 43 (12,142,883)     (13,374,738)   
Profit before levy and taxation 7,097,912        9,210,168      
Levy

Minimum tax differential (4,402,530)       (2,370,259)     
Final tax (6,074)              (783)               

(4,408,604)       (2,371,042)     
Profit before taxation 2,689,308        6,839,126      
Taxation 44 -                   -                 
Profit for the year 2,689,308        6,839,126      

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 46 3.05                 7.76               

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to 58 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

Profit for the year 2,689,308      6,839,126   

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year 

Remeasurement (loss) / gain of retirement benefit obligation - net of tax (535,469)        1,660,992   

Unrealised gain on remeasurement of FVTOCI investments 197,404         105,001      

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (338,065)        1,765,993   

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,351,243      8,605,119   

The annexed notes 1 to 58 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in '000)

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss:
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Issued, 
subscribed Capital Revenue
and paid-up reserves reserves

capital (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Note 21.2) (Note 23)

                                                  

Balance as at July 01, 2023 8,809,163   234,868        4,672,533     115,177         59,835,137       (76,354,791)  (2,687,913)   

Profit for the year                 -                     -                     -                       -                          -   6,839,126     6,839,126     
Other comprehensive income for the year                 -                     -                     -             105,001                        -        1,660,992 1,765,993     

                -                     -                     -             105,001                        -        8,500,118 8,605,119     
Balance as at June 30, 2024 8,809,163   234,868        4,672,533     220,178         59,835,137       (67,854,673)  5,917,206     

Profit for the year                 -                     -                     -                       -                          -   2,689,308     2,689,308     
Other comprehensive income for the year                 -                     -                     -             197,404                        -          (535,469) (338,065)      

                -                     -                     -             197,404                        -        2,153,839 2,351,243     
Balance as at June 30, 2025 8,809,163   234,868        4,672,533     417,582         59,835,137       (65,700,834)  8,268,449     

The annexed notes 1 to 58 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Total comprehensive income for the year 
ended June 30, 2024

Total comprehensive income for the year 
ended June 30, 2025

Reserves

(Rupees in '000)

 
Accumulated 

loss 
Total

Surplus on re-
measurement 

of FVTOCI 
securities

Surplus on 
revaluation of 
property, plant 
and equipment
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 47 26,732,781           29,283,943           
Financial charges paid (15,246,584)          (15,936,880)          
Employee retirement benefits paid (243,603)               (204,818)               
Contribution paid for employee retirement benefits (2,538,700)            (881,913)               
Long term security deposits received 7,686,378             3,620,105             
Long term deposits paid (1,317)                   (1,585)                   
Loans and advances to employee - net 151,408                169,060                
Interest income received 541,040                337,487                
Taxes paid (39,314,846)          (5,862,025)            

Net cash flows (used in) / generated from operating activities (22,233,443)          10,523,374           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (33,336,255)          (23,704,806)          
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 73,709                  117,693                
Payment against payable for transfer of pipeline (135,733)               (135,733)               
Dividend received 40,490                  5,220                    

Net cash flows used in investing activities (33,357,789)          (23,717,626)          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long term financing 20,000,000           15,018,320           
Repayments of long term financing (9,273,205)            (4,666,667)            
Proceeds from consumer finance 1,056                    -                        
Repayment of consumer finance (275)                      (276)                      
Repayment of lease liability (104,039)               (97,043)                 

Net cash flows generated from financing activities 10,623,537           10,254,334           
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (44,967,695)          (2,939,918)            
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (36,651,604)          (33,711,686)          
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 47.2.1 (81,619,299)          (36,651,604)          

The annexed notes 1 to 58 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in '000)
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1

Region Address

Karachi West Plot No. F-36 and F-37 SITE Area Karachi.
Karachi East Plot # 21/1, Sector 22, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.
Karachi Central

Hyderabad Opposite New Eidgah, National Highway Qasimabad, Hyderabad. 
Nawabshah Near Sikandar Art Gallery Housing Society, Nawabshah.
Sukkur Golimar Road, SITE area Sukkur.
Larkana Near Shaikh Zaid Women Hospital, Larkana.
Quetta Samungli Road, Quetta.

1.2 Regulatory framework

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited ("the Company") is a public limited Company
incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017 (repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984) and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company came
into being on March 30, 1989 after the amalgamation of Karachi Gas Company,
Indus Gas Company and Sui Gas Transmission Company. The main activity of the
Company is transmission and distribution of natural gas in Sindh and Balochistan.
The Company is also engaged in certain activities related to the gas business
including the manufacturing and sale of gas meters and construction contracts for
laying of pipelines. 

The registered office of the Company is situated at SSGC House, Sir Shah
Muhammad Suleman Road, Block 14, Gulshan- e-Iqbal, Karachi. The meter
manufacturing plant is situated at its' registered office.

SSGC Karachi Terminal opposite Safari Park Main University
Road, Karachi.

Under the provisions of license given by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority
(OGRA) under the OGRA Ordinance, 2002, the Company is provided with annual
return before taxation based on Weighted Average Cost of Capital (‘WACC’) from
the year 2019 excluding interest, other non-operating expenses and non-operating
income from the reference figures in place of the fixed rate of return of the average
operating assets (excluding pipelines constructed or built under deferred credit
arrangements).

The determination of annual required return is reviewed by OGRA, under the terms
of the license for transmission, distribution and sale of natural gas, targets and
parameters set by OGRA. Income earned in excess/(short) of the above guaranteed
return is payable to / recoverable from the Government of Pakistan (GoP). 
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2 BASIS FOR PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

-

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policies.

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with
accounting and reporting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires
management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the
application of accounting policies, the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenue, expenses and the accompanying disclosures. The estimates and
assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectation of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting
and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and
Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and State-
Owned Enterprises (Governance and Operations) Act (SOE Act), 2023.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 and State-
Owned Enterprises (Governance and Operations) Act, 2023 differ with the
requirement of IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 and State-Owned Enterprises (Governance and Operations) Act, 2023
have been followed.
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The following estimates and assumptions which are significant to these
unconsolidated financials statements.

2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

2.4.2 Stock in trade

2.4.3 Stores, spares and loose tools

2.4.4 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets due from public sector consumers

The Company reviews the net realisable value of stock in trade to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values and also review the stock for slow
moving and obselence.

Determining the recoverability of these financial assets, the Company uses objective
evidence for the uncollectability of the due balances according to the original terms.

Judgements made by the Company in estimating the recoverability of the balances
based on the paying ability of the respective consumers. The debts determined
doubtful, required provision or are considered to be written off.

The Company reviews the stores, spares and loose tools for possible impairment on an 
annual basis. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying 
amounts of the respective items of stores, spares and loose tools with a corresponding 
effect on the provision.

The Company reviews the appropriateness of useful lives / rates of depreciation / 
amortisation, methods of depreciation / amortisation and residual values of property, 
plant and equipment and intangibles on the reporting date. Any change in the 
estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of 
property, plant and equipment and intangibles with a corresponding effect on the 
depreciation / amortisation charge and impairment. Further, the Company reviews the 
carrying values of the assets for possible impairment, if any, on each reporting date.



93
Annual Report 2025

3

3.1

3.1.1

January 01, 2024
2024

January 01, 2024
2024

2024

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
      stnemegnarra ecnanif reilppuS

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a
seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are
effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

Effective date  
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)

Other financial assets

2.4.5 Employee benefits 

2.4.6 Taxation

2.4.7 Provisions and contingencies

The Company takes into account the applicable income tax law and the decisions /
judgements taken by the appellate authorities. Accordingly, the current and deferred
tax recognised based on these applicable laws, decisions / judgements.

The Company uses significant estimates and judgements in accounting for the
contingencies and provisions relating to legal and taxation matters which are
contested at various forums based on applicable laws and decisions / judgements.

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in note 45 to these
unconsolidated financial statements for valuation of these obligations. Any changes
in assumptions will impact the carrying amount of these obligations.

The estimate of the collectible amount of other financial assets is made according to 
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year 
ended June 30, 2025. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either 
not relevant to the Company's operations or did not have significant impact on these 
unconsolidated financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.
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January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Non-current liabilities with covenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier
finance arrangements

Effective date  
(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)

3.2

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2027

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs and IASs.

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that are often
structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for
accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them.
These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the
Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the
Company's unconsolidated financial statements other than certain additional  disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding the classification and measurement of
financial instruments

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments
regarding the classification and measurement of financial instruments

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates' - Lack of Exchangeability

Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -
Amendments regarding nature-dependent electricity contracts that
are often structured as power purchase agreements (PPAs)
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IFRS 1 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards' has been
issued by IASB effective from July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet
locally by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by
IASB effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally
by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. However SECP has notified
the revised timeframe for the adoption of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January
01, 2027.

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by
IASB effective from January 01, 2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally
by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

3.3

3.3.1

Exemptions from applicability of certain standards and interpretations to standards

On August 14, 2009, the Government of Pakistan (GoP) launched Benazir
Employees’ Stock Option Scheme the (‘Scheme’) for employees of certain State
Owned Enterprises (SOEs) and non-State Owned Enterprises where GoP holds
significant investments (non-SOEs). The scheme is applicable to permanent and
contractual employees who were in the employment of these entities on the date of
launch of the Scheme, subject to completion of five years vesting period by
contractual employees and by permanent employees in certain instances.

The Scheme provides for a cash payment to employees on retirement or termination
based on the price of shares respective entities. To administer this scheme, GoP
shall transfer 12% of its investment in such SOEs and non-SOEs to Trust Fund to be
created for the purpose by each of such entities. The eligible employees would be
allocated units by each Trust Fund in proportion to their respective length of service,
and on retirement or termination, such employees would be entitled to receive such
amounts from Trust Funds in exchange for the surrendered units as would be
determined based market price for listed entities or breakup value for non-listed
entities. The shares relating to the surrendered units would transferred back to GoP.

It is also mentioned in the scheme that 50% of dividend related to shares transferred
to the respective Trust Fund would be distributed amongst the unit holder
employees. The balance 50% dividend would be transferred by the respective Trust
Fund to the Central Revolving Fund managed by the Privatization Commission of
Pakistan (PCP) for payment to employees against surrendered units. The deficit, if
any, in Trust Funds to meet the re-purchase commitment would be met by GoP.
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3.3.2 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018. The
application of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for
impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach
with expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

The Scheme, developed in compliance with the stated GoP policy for empowerment
of employees of SOE's need to be accounted for by the covered entities, including
the Company, under the provisions of amended International Financial Reporting
Standard 2 – Share-based Payment (IFRS 2). However, keeping in view the
difficulties that may be faced by the entities covered under the Scheme, the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on receiving representations
from some of entities covered under the Scheme and after having consulted the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has granted exemption to such
entities from the application of IFRS 2 to the Scheme vide S.R.O 587(I)/2011 dated
June 07, 2011.

Had the exemption not been granted there would have been no impact on the net
profit of the Company as the annual return of the Company is determined under the
regulatory revenue requirement, which would have covered any additional cost if
incurred by the Company in respect of the aforesaid Scheme.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement for annual periods beginning on or after July 01, 2018. The
application of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Company’s accounting for
impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach
with expected credit loss (ECL) approach.

The detailed judgment of the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) has been 
issued in relation to the Scheme. The SCP has held that the Scheme was established 
without any policy input of the Council of Common Interests. Therefore, it fell beyond the 
ambit of authority of the Federal Cabinet and contravened Article 154 of the Constitution of 
the Islamic Republic of Pakistan, 1973. Accordingly, the SCP upheld the judgment dated 
January 03, 2018 passed by the Honourable High Court of Sindh.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Notification has 
exempted the Company from application of IFRS 9 with respect to recognition 
requirements of Expected Credit Losses on financial assets due from GoP or 
ultimately due from the GoP in respect of circular debt. SECP has made a partial 
modification in S.R.O 67(1)/2023, vide notification and extended the date of exemption 
for application of expected credit loss till December 31, 2025.

Accordingly, there is no ECL recorded on the financial assets due from the GoP in 
respect of circular debt in these unconsolidated financial statements.
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3.4

In terms of SECP’s Notification S.R.O. 1480 (I)/2019 dated July 01, 2019, the
Company was granted exemption from the requirements of IFRS 14 - Regulatory
Deferral Accounts which was further extended from time to time and the latest
exemption was available till June 30, 2024 vide its letter
SMD/PRDD/Comp/(4)/2021/168 dated December 03, 2024. 

Non-compliance with IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Initial recognition

Elements of Cost

The cost of the operating fixed assets includes:

(a) 

(b)

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the years presented.

The cost of an item of operating fixed assets is recognised as an asset if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
and the cost of such item can be measured reliably. 

its purchase price including import duties, non refundable purchase taxes after
deducting trade discounts and rebates; and
any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management.

The Company has taken up the matter of further extension with the concerned 
authorities, however, as of reporting date, the exemption is not available accordingly, 
the Company has not incorporated any adjustment and / or presentation and 
disclosure requirements as laid down under IFRS 14 in these unconsolidated financial 
statements.
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Measurement after recognition

Operating fixed assets except freehold land, leasehold land and capital work in
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if
any.  

Freehold land and leasehold land are stated at revalued amount and surplus arising
on revaluation of freehold land and leasehold land is recognised as surplus on
revaluation of property plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure

Depreciation

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as
the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and
is recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and freehold
land is recognised in unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as “Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment”, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for
the same asset.

The increase in carrying amount of an asset is adjusted to the extent of previously
recognised loss charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit and loss. Any
decrease in carrying amount of an asset arising on the revaluation is charged to
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset.

Expenditures incurred to replace a component of an item of operating fixed assets is
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired. Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the entity and the cost of the items can be measured reliably. All
other expenditures are recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss when
incurred. 

Depreciation is charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss using
straight line basis over its useful life at the rate given in note 5.1 of these
unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month when assets are available for use and no depreciation is charged in the
month of disposal.

Assets' residual values and their useful lives are reviewed and adjusted at each
reporting date if significant and appropriate.
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Capital work in progress 

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, less any accumulated impairment losses.
The cost includes expenditure incurred, borrowing costs related to the specific asset
during the installation and construction period, and advances made in the course of
construction and installation. Transfers are made to the relevant asset category
when the assets are completed and available for their intended use.

4.2 Intangible assets

4.3 Leases - Right of use assets

Right of use assets

Intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized on a straight line basis at the
rates as mentioned in note 6 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
Amortization begins when the asset is available for use and ceases when the asset
is derecognised. Amortization charge is recognised in unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss. 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease based whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contains a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

The right of use asset is initially measured at cost which is the initial measurement of
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs
to dismantle, remove the underlying or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentive received. Subsequently, right of use
asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The right of use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the lease
term mentioned in note    7    to these unconsolidated financial statements.
Depreciation is charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset, if it is probable that future economic
benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can
be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
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Lease Liability

Lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the expected lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases of the Company, the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an assets of similar value to the
right of use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms and
conditions.

4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-
financial assets to identify circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash
flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the assets. An impairment loss is
recognised, as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation decrease. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognised previously. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried

Lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in fixed lease payments or an index or rate, change
in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual
value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. The corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss if the carrying amount of right of use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The Company has not elected to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low
value assets.
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4.5 Investment in subsidiary

at a revalued amount, in which the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date
for indicators that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, if no impairement loss has been recognised.

Investment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cost. At subsequent reporting dates,
the recoverable amount is estimated to determine the extent of impairment loss, if
any, and the carrying amount of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment
losses are recognised as an expense in the unconsolidated statement of profit or
loss.

4.6 Financial Instruments

4.6.1 Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets

At amortized cost

Financial assets are classified into appropriate categories at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss.
The management determines the classification of financial assets into appropriate
categories based on the Company’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

When the impairment losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amount of the
investments are increased to the revised recoverable amount but limited to the
extent of the initial investments. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised in these
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

A financial instruments is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
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At fair value through other comprehensive income

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For financial assets classified as equity instruments, the Company may elect to
classify irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI.
Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income when:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

Other financial assets

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

All financial assets which do not fall into the first two categories must be stated at fair
value through profit or loss.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets at amortized cost are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses, if any. Interest income and impairment losses are recognised in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income are
initially and subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised in unconsolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
values of the financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss are included in
the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4.6.2 Financial liabilities

4.6.3 Derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized
initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequently to
initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial
asset, in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, other than the financial assets that are recognised in
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income which on derecognition are
transferred to retained earnings in equity.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

4.6.4 Off-setting

4.6.5 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
unconsolidated statement of financial position only when there is a legally
enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and the Company intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

The Company recognizes an allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss, excluding financial assets due 
from Government of Pakistan in respect of circular debt due to exemption granted by 
SECP as explained in note 3.3.2 above. ECL are based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 
the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original 
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale 
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 
terms. 
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The Company measures the ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects: 

- the time value of money; and 

ECL are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL). 

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a 
range of possible outcomes; 

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or 
effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of 
future economic conditions.

- ECL are measured for the maximum contractual period over which the entity is 
exposed to credit risk. The significant estimates relating to the measurement of 
ECL relate to the fair value of the collaterals in place, the expected timing of the 
collection and forward looking economic factors.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company has applied simplified 
approach in calculating ECL adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the 
debtors and the economic environment. 

Elements of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgments and estimates include: 
- development of ECL model, including the various formulas and choice of inputs; 

- the segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis; 

- determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk 
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL 
basis and the qualitative assessment; 

- selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability
  weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL model; and 
- determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, 
economic inputs, and their effect on Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure at 
Default (EADs) and Loss Given Default (LGDs).

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are
significantly past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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The Company recognises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecasted direction of economic conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial assets, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset
being credit-impaired at the reporting date. 

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The Company also reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other
receivables that are due from GOP to assess amount of bad debts and provision
required there against on annual basis. As referred in note 3.3.2 to these
unconsolidated financial statements, the SECP has exempted application of the
requirements of ECL on financial assets due directly / ultimately from GOP, provided
that the Company is following the requirements of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, in respect of these financial assets.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Company considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical

The Company recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on trade 
debts except for receivable balances as mentioned in note 3.3.2 due from GoP or 
ultimately due from the GoP in respect of circular debt. The amount of ECL is adjusted 
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the 
respective financial assets
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experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort.

(1)
(2)

(3)

(ii)

(iii)

(a)
(b)
(c)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above);
the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:

The financial instrument has a low risk of default,
The borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, and
Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

Definition of default

The Company employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and
generate estimates of probability of default (“PD”) of exposures with the
passage of time. This analysis includes the identification for any changes in
default rates and changes in key macro-economic factors across various
geographies of the Company.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Company becomes a party
to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of initial recognition
for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Company considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 
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(d)

(e)

(iv) 

4.7 Stores, spares and loose tools

4.8 Stock-in-trade

 

Gas in pipelines

A provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stores, spares and loose tools.

Stock of gas in transmission pipelines is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis.

the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on
financial assets other than those mentioned in note 3.3.2.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting
date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at moving average cost except in-transit,
which are valued at cost basis comprising invoice value plus other charges paid
there on till the reporting date.

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, or
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Meter manufacturing

4.9 Trade debts and other receivables 

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

4.11 Share Capital

4.12 Dividend and reserves appropriation

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated cost of completion and the estimate cost necessary to make sales.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Additionally, cash and cash equivalents includes short-term borrowings that are
repayable on demand. Bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings are presented
within borrowings in current liabilities in the unconsolidated statement of financial
position. 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Discount
on issue of shares is separately reported in unconsolidated statement of changes in
equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and
reserve appropriation are recognized in the period in which these are approved by
the Board of Directors.

Stock of meter manufacturing is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The cost is determined as follows:

- Component material At moving average cost comprising purchase price,
transportation cost and other overheads.

- Work in process and 
finished

At moving average cost comprising direct cost of
common material, labour and other production and related overheads.

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and loss 
allowance, if any. The Company measures the loss allowance for trade and other 
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL), other than 
receivables from GoP (in respect of circular debt) which is based on incurred loss 
model and impairment is determined when there is an objective evidence that 
balances get impaired.
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4.13 Borrowings

From financial institutions

From Government Authorities

4.14 Borrowing costs

4.15 Deferred Credit

Covenants that the Company is required to comply with, on or before the end of the
reporting period, are considered in classifying loan arrangements with covenants as
current or non-current. Covenants that the Company is required to comply with after
the reporting period do not affect the classification at the reporting date.

Long term loans received from the Government of Sindh with interest rate lower than
prevailing market interest rates for a similar instrument are initially measured at fair
value. The fair value is estimated at the present value of all future cash payments
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for a similar instrument with a
similar credit rating. Difference between fair value and proceeds received is treated
as government grant and is amortized over the useful life of related asset
constructed. 

The borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying assets in which case such costs are capitalised as part of
the cost of their assets, net-off interest income as the Company investments on their
borrowings. All other borrowing costs are charged off in the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. The Company
determines a weighted average capitalization rate in case of general borrowings
attributable to qualifying asset.

Deferred Credit received from the government to cover the cost of supplying and
laying transmission, service, and main pipelines. Amortization of deferred Credit
begins when the related asset is available for use and continues over its estimated
useful life.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the payment amount is recognised in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Company has a right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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4.16 Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is recognised for the Company’s obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration, 
or the Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. a
receivable), before the Company transfers a good or service to the customer, the
entity shall present the contract as a contract liability when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities include amounts
received from customers as contributions toward the cost of supplying and laying
transmission, service, and main pipelines. Revenue recognition for such contract
liabilities begins when the related asset is available for use and is amortised over its
useful life.

4.17 Trade and other payables

4.18 Employee benefits

4.18.1 Short term obligations

Trade and other payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not
billed to the Company.

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual
leaves that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in
respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the statement of
financial position.

4.18.2 Post employment benefits

The Company operates the following post employment benefits schemes for its employees:

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the “Projected Unit Credit method”. The most recent valuation was
carried out as at June 30, 2025.
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a) Pension and Gratuity Schemes

In case of gratuity scheme, qualifying service period for executives is five years
of service and non-executives is one year on death or permanent total
disablement during service, otherwise five years of service. Contributions to the
schemes are payable on the recommendations of the actuary. 

An executive who qualifies for pension at the time of retirement from the
Company and does not surrender his pension, shall be entitled to gratuity at the
rate of 20 days basic salary for each completed year of service. An executive
who qualifies for pension at the time of retirement from the Company and
surrenders his pension, shall be entitled to gratuity at the rate of 50 days basic
salary for each completed year of service. Significant assumptions used for
valuation of these schemes are mentioned in note 45. 

Plan assets held by the fund include equity instruments, mutual funds, Pakistan
Investment Bonds, Marker Treasury Bills, Term Finance Certificates, Term
Deposit and cash and cash equivalents. The actual return on plan assets
represents the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the beginning
of the year and as at the end of the year, after adjustments for contributions
made by the Company as reduced by benefits paid during the year. 

The Company operates an approved funded pension scheme and an approved
funded gratuity scheme for executives and non-executives.

b) Medical and free gas facility schemes

The Company provide medical and free gas facility to executives and their
dependents, post-retirement. Executives who retired up to December 31, 2000,
are eligible for the free gas facility. Significant assumptions for valuing these
schemes are provided in note 45.

The amount recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by the
fair value of the plan assets. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions for the defined benefit plan
are charged or credited to equity in statement of unconsolidated comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognized
immediately in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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c) Accumulating compensated absences 

Defined contribution scheme

a) Provident fund

b) Benevolent fund

A non-contributory benevolent fund, under which only the employees contribute to the fund.

4.19 Revenue recognition

Step 2. Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is
a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the
customer.

The Company operates recognised provident funds for all its employees. Equal
contributions are made, both by the Company and the employees, to the fund at
the rate of 7.5% of basic salary in the case of executive employees and 8.33%
of basic salary and adhoc relief cost of living allowance in the case of non
executive employees and the same is charged to the unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss. 

The Company recognises revenue from contract with customers based on a five step
model as set out in IFRS 15.

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement
between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets
out the performance obligations for every contract that must be met.

The executive and non-executives employees are eligible for compensated
absences benefits. Executive and non-executive employees can encash their
accumulated leave balance upon leaving the Company. However, non-executive
employees has an option to encash their unavailed leaves subject to a
maximum of 30 days at the end of each year. Provisions for these obligations
are made based on current salary levels. Unutilized leave balances may be
accumulated up to a maximum of 60 days for executives and 90 days for non-
executives.

The amount recognised in the unconsolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations. Actuarial gains
and losses are charged or credited to equity in unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:
For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Company
allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that
depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for satisfying each performance obligation.

Step 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognised when performance obligations are satisfied by transferring
control of a promised good to a customer and the control transfers at a point in time
or over time. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable excluding government levies. The Company recognizes its revenue on the
following basis:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

Late Payment Surcharge (LPS) on gas sales arrears is calculated from the
overdue date and recognized when it is probable that economic benefits will flow
to the entity. Revenue is recognized over time.

Income from construction contracts is recognized over time by referencing
progress towards satisfying the performance obligation. The Company uses a
cost-based input method to determine economic benefits. Revenue is
recognized over time.

Revenue from gas sales is recognized based on the gas supplied to consumers
at rates notified by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA). Accruals are
made for the estimated gas supplied between the last meter reading and year-
end. Revenue is recognized at a point in time, as management has determined
there is a single performance obligation: the supply of gas.

Meter rentals are recognized monthly at rates specified by OGRA for various
consumer categories of customers. Revenue is recognized over time, as the
single performance obligation is the availability of meters to customers.

Revenue from sale of meters, Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) and gas
condensate is recognised on delivery to the customers.
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vi) Gas transportation income

vii)

4.20 Tariff adjustment - indigenous gas and RLNG

4.21 Taxation and levy

4.21.1 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current and deferred tax.

Interruptible Transportation Agreements: Income is recognized when gas is 
transported from the network at OGRA-notified rates. Revenue is recognized 
over time.

Dividend income on equity investments is recognised when right to receive the
payment is established.

The tariff adjustment at this stage, referred to in note 38, represents the aggregate
amount of adjustments presented to OGRA for the determination of the FRR. This is
subject to change based on the final determination by OGRA.

Firm Transportation Agreement for RLNG: Income is recognized when the 
committed contracted capacity is made available to the shipper i.e. at point of 
time.

Current

The current tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the date of the
unconsolidated statement of financial position, and any adjustment or tax payable in
respect of prior years. The tax is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income or directly to equity. In this case the tax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, respectively.



Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all 
taxable temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated financial statements and the corresponding 
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realized.
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Deferred

Levy

4.22 Segment reporting

Minimum taxes that exceed the normal tax liability, as well as tax deducted at source
(other than from dividends received from subsidiaries, joint ventures, and
associates) under the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (‘the
Ordinance’), are not within the scope of IAS 12 - Income Taxes. Instead, these taxes
fall under the provisions of IFRIC 21 - Levies, and IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets. 

Consequently, a liability for these levies is recognized in accordance with IFRIC 21
when the event specified in the Ordinance that triggers the obligation occurs.
Therefore, excess minimum taxes and final taxes are recognized as liabilities when
they become due, ensuring compliance with the recognition and measurement
principles outlined in IAS 37.

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company.
An operating segment is an identifiable component of the Company that engages in
business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company’s other
components. 

An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.
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- Gas transmission and distribution

- Meter manufacturing 

4.23 Provisions 

4.24 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognized as provision.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to
a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related
income and expenditure. 

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment. The following are the segments identifies and is
consistent with the international financial reporting standards.

Gas transmission and distribution segment is engaged in transmission and
distribution of natural gas and construction contracts for laying of pipelines in
Sindh and Balochistan.

Meter manufacturing segment is engaged in manufacture and sale of gas 
meters.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. It can also be a
present obligation arising from the past events that is not recognized because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.
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Contingent assets

4.25 Earnings per share

4.26 Foreign currency translation

A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent
assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When an inflow is virtually certain, an asset
is recognized.

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax for the year by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan rupees at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange
ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains / (losses) are taken to the
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.
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 2025  2024 
Note

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 215,010,277        189,159,124        
Capital work in progress 5.2 13,645,841          14,751,117          

228,656,118        203,910,241        

5.1 Operating assets

Description Note

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      919,015               347,792               44,488,395          72,061,953          6,987,814            121,941                    
Additions / Transfers (at cost)5.1.1 -                      392,909               -                      259,998               -                      4,098,943            29,262,603          411,022               14,138                      
Disposals (NBV) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (495,447)             -                      (112)                          
Depreciation charge -                      -                      -                      (110,175)             (41,556)               (1,445,909)          (6,582,775)          (904,245)             (24,472)                     

Closing net book value 43,452,760          17,472,013          -                      1,068,838            306,236               47,141,429          94,246,334          6,494,591            111,495                    
Gross carrying value basis

year ended June 30, 2025
Cost / revalued amount 43,452,760          17,472,013          324,492               3,440,401            797,026               72,319,238          162,018,044        15,461,296          1,157,073                 
Accumulated depreciation -                      -                      (324,492)             (2,371,564)          (490,790)             (25,177,809)        (67,771,710)        (8,966,705)          (1,045,578)                

Net book value 43,452,760          17,472,013          -                      1,068,838            306,236               47,141,429          94,246,334          6,494,591            111,495                    

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      892,291               348,028               42,540,044          60,029,436          6,933,228            138,717                    
Additions (at cost) 5.1.1 -                      -                      -                      168,813               -                      3,282,954            18,246,189          877,079               8,300                        
Disposals (NBV) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (735,684)             -                      (126)                          
Depreciation charge -                      -                      -                      (142,089)             (236)                    (1,334,603)          (5,477,988)          (822,493)             (24,950)                     

Closing net book value 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      919,015               347,792               44,488,395          72,061,953          6,987,814            121,941                    
Gross carrying value basis

year ended June 30, 2024
Cost / revalued amount 43,452,760          17,079,104          324,492               3,180,403            797,026               68,220,295          133,250,888        15,050,274          1,143,047                 
Accumulated depreciation -                      -                      (324,492)             (2,261,388)          (449,234)             (23,731,900)        (61,188,935)        (8,062,460)          (1,021,106)                

Net book value 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      919,015               347,792               44,488,395          72,061,953          6,987,814            121,941                    

Annual rate of depreciation (in %) - - 5 5 5 2.5 to 5 5 to 10 6 .25 to 12.5 16.6 to 50

(Rupees in '000')

Gas 
transmission 

system

Gas distribution 
system and 
consumer 

meters

Compressor 
stations

Telecommunication
system

 (Rupees in '000)

Freehold land Leasehold land

Buildings and 
civil 

construction on 
freehold land

Buildings on 
leasehold land

Roads, 
pavements and 

related 
infrastructures

 2025  2024 
Note

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 215,010,277        189,159,124        
Capital work in progress 5.2 13,645,841          14,751,117          

228,656,118        203,910,241        

5.1 Operating assets

Description Note

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      919,015               347,792                        
Additions / Transfers (at cost)5.1.1 -                      392,909               -                      259,998               -                                 
Disposals (NBV) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                                           
Depreciation charge -                      -                      -                      (110,175)             (41,556)                        

Closing net book value 43,452,760          17,472,013          -                      1,068,838            306,236                        
Gross carrying value basis

year ended June 30, 2025
Cost / revalued amount 43,452,760          17,472,013          324,492               3,440,401            797,026                        
Accumulated depreciation -                      -                      (324,492)             (2,371,564)          (490,790)             (25,177,809)       

Net book value 43,452,760          17,472,013          -                      1,068,838            306,236                        

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      892,291               348,028                        
Additions (at cost) 5.1.1 -                      -                      -                      168,813               -                                 
Disposals (NBV) -                      -                      -                      -                      -                                           
Depreciation charge -                      -                      -                      (142,089)             (236)                             

Closing net book value 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      919,015               347,792                        
Gross carrying value basis

year ended June 30, 2024
Cost / revalued amount 43,452,760          17,079,104          324,492               3,180,403            797,026                        
Accumulated depreciation -                      -                      (324,492)             (2,261,388)          (449,234)             (23,731,900)       

Net book value 43,452,760          17,079,104          -                      919,015               347,792                        

Annual rate of depreciation (in %) - - 5 5 5 2.5 to 5

transmission 

 (Rupees in '000)

Freehold land Leasehold land

Buildings and 
civil 

construction on 
freehold land

Buildings on 
leasehold land

Roads, 
pavements and 

related 
infrastructures
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1,770,790 61,998                 1,162,194            46,313                 118,707               442,733               97,615                              189,159,124    
1,268,821 24,621                 330,506               4,832                   68,164                 506,675               -                                   36,643,232      

(5,311) (21)                      (19,791)               -                      -                      -                      -                                   (520,681)          
(647,177) (40,710)               (177,217)             (16,391)               (54,160)               (221,137)             (5,473)                              (10,271,398)     

2,387,123 45,887                 1,295,693            34,754                 132,711               728,271               92,142                              215,010,277    

9,983,343 653,279               4,165,834            596,937               834,650               2,430,042            1,258,757                         336,365,185    
(7,596,220) (607,391)             (2,870,141)          (562,183)             (701,939)             (1,701,771)          (1,166,615)                       (121,354,908)   
2,387,123 45,887                 1,295,693            34,754                 132,711               728,271               92,142                              215,010,277    

1,634,863 50,735                 1,192,766            48,511                 96,493                 293,636               100,840                            174,831,452    
658,757 51,434                 153,154               19,058                 69,577                 300,184               -                                   23,835,499      

(3,448) -                      (14,654)               -                      -                      -                      (1,174)                              (755,086)          
(519,382) (40,171)               (169,072)             (21,256)               (47,363)               (151,087)             (2,051)                              (8,752,741)       

1,770,790 61,998                 1,162,194            46,313                 118,707               442,733               97,615                              189,159,124    

8,719,833 628,679               3,855,118            592,105               766,486               1,923,367            1,258,757                         300,242,634    
(6,949,043) (566,681)             (2,692,924)          (545,792)             (647,779)             (1,480,634)          (1,161,142)                       (111,083,510)   
1,770,790 61,998                 1,162,194            46,313                 118,707               442,733               97,615                              189,159,124    

33.33 20 20 20 16.6 to 33.33 14.3 to 16.6

Motor vehicles
Furniture and 

fixture
Office equipment

Computer and 
ancillary 

equipments

Supervisory control and 
data acquisition system 

(SCADA)
Total

Tools and 
equipment

72,061,953          6,987,814            121,941                    1,770,790            61,998                 1,162,194            46,313                 118,707               442,733               97,615                              189,159,124    
29,262,603          411,022               14,138                      1,268,821            24,621                 330,506               4,832                   68,164                 506,675               -                                   36,643,232      

(495,447)             -                      (112)                          (5,311)                 (21)                      (19,791)               -                      -                      -                      -                                   (520,681)          
(6,582,775)          (904,245)             (24,472)                     (647,177)             (40,710)               (177,217)             (16,391)               (54,160)               (221,137)             (5,473)                              (10,271,398)     
94,246,335          6,494,591            111,495                    2,387,123            45,888                 1,295,692            34,754                 132,711               728,271               92,142                              215,010,277    

162,018,044        15,461,296          1,157,073                 9,983,343            653,279               4,165,833            596,937               834,650               2,430,042            1,258,757                         336,365,185    
(67,771,710)        (8,966,705)          (1,045,578)                (7,596,220)          (607,391)             (2,870,141)          (562,183)             (701,939)             (1,701,771)          (1,166,615)                       (121,354,907)   
94,246,335          6,494,591            111,495                    2,387,123            45,888                 1,295,692            34,754                 132,711               728,271               92,142                              215,010,277    

60,029,436          6,933,228            138,717                    1,634,863            50,735                 1,192,766            48,511                 96,493                 293,636               100,840                            174,831,452    
18,246,189          877,079               8,300                        658,757               51,434                 153,154               19,058                 69,577                 300,184               -                                   23,835,499      

(735,684)             -                      (126)                          (3,448)                 -                      (14,654)               -                      -                      -                      (1,174)                              (755,086)          
(5,477,988)          (822,493)             (24,950)                     (519,382)             (40,171)               (169,072)             (21,256)               (47,363)               (151,087)             (2,051)                              (8,752,741)       
72,061,953          6,987,814            121,941                    1,770,790            61,998                 1,162,194            46,313                 118,707               442,733               97,615                              189,159,124    

133,250,888        15,050,274          1,143,047                 8,719,833            628,679               3,855,118            592,105               766,486               1,923,367            1,258,757                         300,242,634    
(61,188,935)        (8,062,460)          (1,021,106)                (6,949,043)          (566,681)             (2,692,924)          (545,792)             (647,779)             (1,480,634)          (1,161,142)                       (111,083,510)   
72,061,953          6,987,814            121,941                    1,770,790            61,998                 1,162,194            46,313                 118,707               442,733               97,615                              189,159,124    

5 to 10 6 .25 to 12.5 16.6 to 50 10 33.33 20 20 20 16.6 to 33.33 14.3 to 16.6

(Rupees in '000')

Motor vehicles
Furniture and 

fixture
Office equipment

Computer and 
ancillary 

equipments

Supervisory control and 
data acquisition system 

(SCADA)
Total

Gas distribution 
system and 
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meters

Compressor 
stations

Telecommunication
system

Plant and 
machinery

Tools and 
equipment
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5.1.1

2025 2024
Note

5.1.2 Details of depreciation for the year are as follows:

Transmission and distribution costs 39.2 9,585,443     8,194,419    
Administrative expenses 40.1 431,223        300,939       
Selling expenses 40.2 17,813          16,856         

10,034,479   8,512,214    
Meter manufacturing division 42.1 33,462          40,700         
LPG air mix 42.2 117,295        110,971       
Capitalised on projects 86,161          88,855         

10,271,397   8,752,741    
5.1.3 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Details of disposal of operating assets are as follows:

This includes the transfer of the gas transmission pipeline, valued at Rs. 4,099 million (2024: Rs.
3,283 million), and the gas distribution system, valued at Rs. 29,263 million (2024: Rs. 18,246
million), from capital work in progress.

(Rupees in '000)

 Cost 
 Accumulated 
depreciation 

 Net book 
value 

 Sale 
proceeds 

 Gain / (loss) 
on sale 

 Mode of 
disposal 

 Particulars of 
buyers 

Gas Distribution System

Gas Meters
      766,214           389,640        376,574                -         (376,574)

 Gas meters 
retired  Scrap sales 

Gas Distribution Pipelines
   1,699,073        1,582,381        116,692                -         (116,692)

 Pipeline 
replaced  Write off 

Plant and machinery
Elevator Kone 7000 Indentical Lift Pt 21/20-15 New 
Building H.O          6,251              4,669           1,582              353           (1,229) Auction

M/s. Nighat Angel
 Traders

Gas Chromotograph         17,051            16,199              852            1,198               346 Auction M/s. Shahid Taj

Motor Vehicle
Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All
 Accessories          2,411              1,697              714              723                 9 Service Rule Mr. Afeef Ahmed
Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All
 Accessories          2,742              1,388           1,353            2,742            1,388 Insurance Claim

M/s. National
 Insurance Company
 Limited (a related
 party)

Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All
 Accessories          1,930              1,351              579              579                 -   Service Rule

Mr. A. Waheed
 Jumani

Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All
 Accessories          2,742              1,064           1,678            1,677                 (1)    Service Rule Mr. Shakeel Ahmed
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear
 Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          2,154              1,161              993            1,095               102 Service Rule Mr. Javed Mehmood
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear
 Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          3,270                 951           2,319            2,357                 38 Service Rule Mr. Mustafa Kamal 
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear
 Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          1,998              1,398              600              599                 (1)   Service Rule

Mr.Niaz Ahmed
 Marri

Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear
 Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          2,154              1,110           1,044            1,120                 76 Service Rule Mr.Subhan Ali Dasti 
Pick-Up Double Cabin 4 X 4, Diesel, 2500 - 3200Cc, Fully
 Loaded          3,644              2,915              729            3,624            2,895 Insurance Claim

M/s. National
 Insurance Company
 Limited (a related
 party)

      23,045           13,035        10,008        14,516           4,506 
Total items having book value exceeding Rs. 500,000    2,511,634        2,005,924        505,710          16,067       (489,643)

Items having book value upto  Rs. 500,000 904,868     889,895         14,973        57,642        42,669         

Total - 2025 3,416,502 2,895,819    520,681    73,709       (446,974)    
Total - 2024 2,777,383 2,022,298    755,085    117,693     (637,392)    

Items having book value exceeding Rs. 500,000
(Rupees in '000)
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District Area of Land

Sq. Yards
5.1.4

LPG Air Mix Plant Awaran 19,360         
LPG Plant, Allotment of Government Land in

Mauza Karwat
LPG Plant Gwadar 19,360         
Regional office Hyderabad 38,893         
Billing office Hyderabad 1,079           
Plot ensured for Community Centre for offices Hyderabad 2,398           
Head Quarter-3 Hyderabad - Compressor Station Hyderabad 40,667         
Head Office Building Karachi 24,200         
Karachi Terminal Station (K.T)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      Karachi 225,447       
Distribution Office Karachi West Karachi 9,680           
Site office Karachi 19,360         
Zonal Billing Office & Customer Facilitation

Centre (CFC) Nazimabad
Medical Centre M.A Jinnah Road Karachi 115              
Khadeji Base Camp Karachi 125,841       
Land for Construction of Distribution Central Offices Karachi 355 & 572
Site proposed for CFC and Distribution office DHA Karachi 600              
Dope Yard for Distribution East Karachi 653              

LPG Air Mix Plant
 Kot Ghulam 
Muhammad 

19,360         

Regional Office Larkana Larkana 16,214         
Site proposed for Distribution offices Mastung 1,320           
Zonal Office Naushero Feroz 3,572           
Regional Office Nawab Shah Nawab Shah 6,111           
Head Quarter-2 Nawab Shah - Compressor Station Nawab Shah 46,667         
LPG Air Mix Plant Noshki 19,360         
Land proposed for SSGC building Pishin 2,556           
Regional Office Quetta             4,840 
Stores, Dope yard for Quetta Region. Quetta             2,420 
Head Quarter Quetta Quetta 108,460       
Land proposed for Zonal Office Sanghar 4,414           
Mini Stadium , CFC & Distribution Office Shahdadkot 32,307         
Sinjhoro Office Sinjhoro 600              
LPG Air Mix Plant Surab 19,360         
Regional Office Sukkur / Pipe Yard Sukkur 115              
Head Quarter-1 Sukkur Sukkur 43,333         

Particulars of Land and Building

Gwadar 19,360         

Karachi 2,221           
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Note

Karachi Terminal Station (K.T)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

5.1.5

 2025  2024 

5.2 Capital work in progress

Projects:
Gas distribution system 4,709,312     4,013,805    
Gas transmission system 93,259          1,145,682    
Cost of buildings under construction and others 743,738        1,050,610    

5,546,309     6,210,097    
Less: Accumulated impairment loss (452,552)      (452,552)      

5,093,757     5,757,545    
Stores and spares held for capital projects 5.2.3 8,287,498     8,732,885    
LPG air mix plant 264,586        260,687       

8,552,084     8,993,572    
13,645,841   14,751,117  

5.2.1

5.2.2

5.2.3 Stores and spares held for capital projects

Gas distribution and transmission 8,766,016     9,229,303    
Less: Accumulated impairment loss (478,518)      (496,418)      

8,287,498     8,732,885    
6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 255,948        186,844       

Net carrying value basis
Balance as at July 01, 186,844        195,756       
Additions 167,816        128,158       
Amortization 6.1 (98,712)        (137,070)      
Balance as at June 30, 255,948        186,844       

The residual value of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment is amounting to Rs.
823.462 million (2024: Rs. 619.842 million).

(Rupees in '000)

Note
 2025  2024 

(Rupees in '000)

The borrowing costs capitalised during the year in the gas transmission and distribution system
and related capital work in progress amounted to Rs. 2,218 million (2024: Rs. 2,285 million).
Borrowing costs related to general borrowings were capitalised at the rate of 15.04% (2024:
22.29%).

Additions to capital expenditures incurred during the year amounting to Rs. 33,336 million (2024:
Rs. 23,705 million).
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2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

Gross carrying value basis
Cost 1,282,143     1,114,327    
Accumulated amortization (1,026,195)   (927,483)      
Net book value 255,948        186,844       

33.33            33.33           

6.1 The amortisation charge is allocated to administrative expenses (refer note 40.1)

7.1

7.2

7.3

Transmission and distribution costs 39.2           63,808           58,717 
Administrative expenses 40.1 4,596          22,176         
Selling expenses 40.2 23,640            2,001           

92,044          82,894         

The company has entered into lease arrangements for right of use of buildings used in 
operations and for customer facilitation facilities.

The rate of depreciation is based on the term of the respective agreement and ranges from 33%
to 40% (2024: 33% to 40%).

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Annual amortization rate (in %)

7 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Cost 208,994        181,527       
Accumulated depreciation (121,534)       (91,832)        
Net book value 87,460          89,695         

Cost
Balance as at July 01, 181,527        166,732       
Additions during the year 91,938          104,681       
Derecognition during the year (64,471)         (89,886)        
Balance as at June 30, 208,994        181,527       

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at July 01, 91,832          93,095         
Depreciation charge for the year 7.3 92,044          82,894         
Derecognition during the year (62,342)         (84,157)        
Balance as at June 30, 121,534        91,832         

Net book value 87,460          89,695         
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8 DEFERRED TAXATION

Charge/(reversal)  Reversal 
to profit or loss to OCI

(Rupees in '000)

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 20,977,988   3,143,367       -               24,121,355  

Deductible temporary differences
Provision against employee benefits (2,135,042)    (561,088)         155,338                (2,540,793)   

selbaviecer rehto   & stbed deriapmi tsniaga noisivorP (8,697,139)    (905,854)         -               (9,602,993)   
Provision against slow-moving store and spares (152,993)       (14,512)           -               (167,505)      
Liability not paid within three years (28,500,441)  3,951,719       -               (24,548,722) 
Carry forward of tax losses (1,492,587)    1,492,587       - -                                
Minimum income tax (9,466,760)    5,657,777       -               (3,808,983)   
Others (848,657)       (355,848)         -               (1,204,505)   

(51,293,621)  9,264,783       155,338

155,338
(155,338)

                (41,873,501) 
Sub total (30,315,633)  12,408,149                    (17,752,146) 
Deferred tax asset not recognized 19,154,829   (12,408,149)                   6,591,342    
Total (11,160,804)  -                  -               (11,160,804) 

Charge/(reversal)  Reversal 
to profit or loss to OCI

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 19,071,961   1,906,027       -               20,977,988  

Deductible temporary differences
Provision against employee benefits (2,198,282)    (615,194)         678,434        (2,135,042)   

(8,143,764)    (553,375)         -               (8,697,139)   
Provision against slow-moving store and spares (141,967)      

 

(11,026)           -               (152,993)      
Liability not paid within three years (33,082,709)

  

4,582,268       -               (28,500,441) 
Carry forward of tax losses (3,547,988)

    

2,055,400       -               (1,492,587)   
Minimum income tax (12,284,883)

  

2,818,123       -               (9,466,760)   
Others (1,726,684)

    

878,027          -               (848,657)      

(61,126,277)

  

9,154,223       678,434        (51,293,620) 
Sub total (42,054,316)  11,060,250     678,434        (30,315,632) 
Deferred tax asset not recognized 33,687,997   (14,533,169)    -               19,154,828  
Total (8,366,319)    (3,472,919)      678,434        (11,160,804) 

8.1

2024
Balance as 

at July 01, 2023
Balance as 
at June 30, 2024

(Rupees in '000)

As at June 30, 2025, the Company has a net deferred tax asset of Rs. 17,752 million (2024: Rs.
30,316 million) out of which a deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 11,161 million (2024: Rs.
11,161 million) has been recognised and remaining balance of Rs. 6,591 million (2024: 19,155
million) is unrecognised.

2025
Balance as 

at July 01, 2024
Balance as 
at June 30, 2025

selbaviecer rehto   & stbed deriapmi tsniaga noisivorP
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On July 1, 2022, the Company has signed a restructuring agreement relating to loan, with SSGC
LPG Limited, where by the terms of the previous agreement has been amended. Consequently,
the said loan has become repayable on demand.

 2025  2024 
Note

9 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

At cost
Investment in subsidiaries 9.1 1,102,278     1,083,708    

At fair value through other comprehensive income
Associates and other investments 9.2 454,109        256,705       

1,556,387     1,340,413    

9.1.1

9.1.2

(Rupees in '000)

This represent investment in Alternative Energy (Private) Limited (SSGC AE), which was
incorporated on September 08, 2022 under the Companies Act, 2017, as a private limited
company. The principle activity of SSGC AE will be to provide production, storage, supply, and
distribution of conventional and alternate energy.

This represents the difference between the carrying amount of the loan received and the present
value of the loan.

Percentage  2025  2024 
of holding   Note

9.1 Investment in subsidiaries

SSGC LPG Limited
100,000,000 (2024: 100,000,000) 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
(wholly owned subsidiary) 100% 1,000,000      1,000,000       

SSGC Alternate Energy (Private) Limited
2,000,000 (2024: 2,000,000) 
ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
(wholly owned subsidiary) 100% 9.1.1 20,000           20,000            

Unwinding effect of 
interest free loan 9.1.2 82,278           63,708            

1,102,278      1,083,708       

(Rupees in '000)
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Note

2025 2024

9.2 Investment - at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in associates Perecentage 
of shareholdingSui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 

2,414,174 (2024: 2,414,174) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 0.38% 281,758        153,228       

Pakistan Refinery Limited

0.50% 106,880        73,080         

Other investments
United Bank Limited

0.01% 65,471          30,397         
454,109        256,705       

9.2.1

10 LONG TERM LOANS

  Secured
Executives 10.1 -               36                
Less: current maturity -               (23)               

-               13                

Less: current maturity 15 (42,232)        (42,954)
Other employees 10.1 & 10.2  235,541  228,250

        
193,309        185,296       

 Unsecured
Loan to a subsidiary 10.3 425,000        525,000       
Less: current maturity (100,000)      (100,000)      

325,000        425,000       

518,309        610,309       

237,256 (2024: 118,628) ordinary shares of
   Rs. 5 each

Investments in Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited represent investment in 'associated
companies' in terms of provisions of the Companies Act 2017.

(Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

3,150,000 (2024: 3,150,000) ordinary 
shares
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10.1 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans are as follows;

10.2

10.3

2025  2024 
Note

11 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 794,920         681,640         
Spares 3,613,398      3,351,962      
Loose tools 1,424             1,888             

4,409,742      4,035,490      
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores 11.1 (549,069)        (499,280)        

3,860,673      3,536,210      
Stores and spares in transit 490,170         495,320         

11.2 4,350,843      4,031,530      

11.1 The movement in provision for slow moving and obsolete stores are as follows:

Balance as at July 01, 499,280         461,765         
Add: Charge for the year 49,789           37,515           
Balance as at June 30, 549,069         499,280         

These represent loans provided for house building, renovation and purchase of vehicle
under the terms of employment. These are recoverable in monthly installments over a
period of 6 to 10 years, and are secured against the retirement benefits balances of
respective employees and deposit of title deeds. Loans to non-executive employees are
mark-up free. 

This amount represents a loan provided to SSGC LPG Limited (a wholly owned
subsidiary), carrying mark-up ranging between 15.27% to 20.89% (2024: 21.52% to
23.14%) which is equivalent to the weighted average bank borrowing rate of the Company.
The Company has restructured the outstanding balance of short-term loan i.e. Rs.700
million into a long-term loan and reschedule the repayment terms by entering into the
restructuring agreement signed dated June 30, 2021. The principal loan amount along with
interest is repayable in thirty-two equal installments in a term period of eight years
commencing from October 04, 2022. As at June 30, 2025 seventeen installments remain
unpaid.

(Rupees in '000)

Other Other
  employees employees

Balance as at July 01, 36             228,250        59             181,390       
Add: Disbursements during the year -           62,600          -           100,405       
Less: Repayments during the year (36)           (55,309)        (23)           (53,545)        
Balance as at June 30, -           235,541        36             228,250       

2025 2024

Executives Executives
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2025 2024
Note

11.2 Stores, spares and loose tools are held for the following operations:

Transmission 3,447,435      3,183,987      
Distribution 903,408         847,543         

4,350,843      4,031,530      
12 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Gas transmission and distribution
Gas in pipelines 2,068,147      2,214,091      
Stock of Synthetic Natural Gas 25,846           18,207           
Stock of Gas Condensate 11,070           6,047             

2,105,063      2,238,345      
Gas meters

Components 989,173         1,489,206      
Work-in-process 131,820         183,810         
Finished goods 17,434           154,181         

1,138,427      1,827,197      
Less: Provision for slow moving and 

obsolete stock 12.1 (28,535)          (28,285)          
3,214,955      4,037,257      

12.1 The movement in provision for slow moving and obsolete stock are as follows:

Balance as at July 01, 28,285           27,778           
Add: Charge for the year 250                507                
Balance as at June 30, 28,535           28,285           

13 CUSTOMERS' INSTALLATION WORK IN PROGRESS 

2025 2024
Note

14 TRADE DEBTS

Considered good
Secured 38,969,911    31,284,902    
Unsecured 91,953,707    96,162,683    

14.1 & 14.2 130,923,618  127,447,585  
Considered doubtful 33,161,685    27,445,368    

164,085,303  154,892,953  
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 14.3 (33,161,685)   (27,445,368)   

130,923,618  127,447,585  

(Rupees in '000)

This represents cost of work carried out by the Company on behalf of the customers at
their premises. Upon completion of work, the cost thereof is transferred to transmission
and distribution cost and recoveries from such customers are shown as a deduction, as
reflected in note 39.2 of the unconsolidated financial statements.

(Rupees in '000)
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14.1

a. OD rate being paid by the Company; or
b. Rate at which interest is payable on gas producer bills.

It includes receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE) related to the sale of indigenous gas
amounting to Rs. 28,539 million, including a long outstanding balance of Rs. 26,289 million
(2024: Rs. 26,289 million), excluding Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC).

As KE has been continuously defaulting and not making principle as well as LPS payment,
the Company filed a suit against KE in the Honourable High Court of Sindh in November
2012, for recovery of Rs. 55,705 million including principal outstanding amounting to Rs.
45,705 million on account of the supply of gas and Rs. 10,000 million on account of LPS.
In addition, KE has also filed a case against the Company in the Honourable High Court of
Sindh for recovery of damages/losses of Rs. 61,614 million as KE claimed that the
Company had not supplied the committed quantity of natural gas to KE.

The above suit has been filed based as per the agreement dated June 30, 2009 which was
entered between the Company and KE for making outstanding payment in 18 installments.
The Company was entitled to charge LPS on outstanding principal amount at rate highest
of:

Despite the agreement, KE continuously defaulted on installment payments, and the
Company therefore charged LPS up to June 2016. However, in line with opinions from
firms of Chartered Accountants, the management decided to recognize LPS on a receipt
basis effective from July 1, 2012, and accordingly reversed the LPS income that had been
recognized from June 30, 2012 onwards.

However, the Company maintains a memorandum records which indicate an aggregate
LPS income of Rs. 202,744 million (2024: Rs. 178,696 million) including LPS income for
the year ended June 30, 2025 of Rs. 24,048 million (2024: Rs. 31,936 million) which has
not been recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements. As of the reporting date,
the aggregate claim on account of disputed balances works out to be Rs. 232,396 million
(including GIDC of Rs. 3,363 million).

In view of the legal counsel of the Company, the management considers outstanding
balance as good and recoverable. The legal counsel also viewed that the Company has a
valid claim over LPS on outstanding balance, but considering that the matter is in dispute,
as discussed above, the Company has decided to recognize LPS from KE when either
such claimed amounts are recovered or when these are decreed and their recovery is
assured.

In March, 2014, the Company signed a payment plan with KE in order to streamline the
payment modalities in relation to current monthly bills and old outstanding principal
amount, in which the issue of LPS was not addressed. The plan expired on March 31,
2015, and first addendum was included to the original payment plan effective from April
01, 2015 to March 31, 2016. Upon expiry, the second addendum was included to the
original payment plan on June 18, 2016 effective from April 01, 2016 to March 31, 2017.
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14.2

In June 2022, a Task Force was constituted by the then Prime Minister to resolve
issues/disputes related to KE. During their meetings, it was decided to enter into a multi-
party Mediation Agreement in order to resolve KE’s receivables and payables issues
between all the stakeholders. Accordingly, after deliberations, a Mediation Agreement has
been executed between the Stakeholders. The Federal Cabinet also ratified the decision
and the Mediation Agreement was also cleared by Law & Justice Division.

The parties then submitted their respective claims with the Mediator. First mediation
meeting was held in May 2024 which was attended by all the parties except Karachi Water
Sewerage Board which refused to join the mediation process and did not attend the
proceedings. During the course of second meeting which was held on August 15, 2024,
the counsel for Central Power Purchasing Authority (CPPA-G), National Transmission and
Dispatch Company (NTDC) and Government of Pakistan informed the Mediator that the
time period provided in the Mediation Agreement for rendering an opinion by the Mediator
has lapsed (which was sixty (60) days from the date of appointment of Mediator,
extendable by a further thirty (30) days).

As a result, MoE vide letter dated September 18, 2024, shared a draft summary to be
moved by the Power Division for the consideration and approval of the ECC regarding
extension on the period of determination by the Mediator for a further period of sixty (60)
days. In this respect, SSGC shared its views / comments on the draft ECC summary, that
any further extensions can be done with mutual consent by all the parties.

In view of the above, ECC vide its decision dated February 03, 2025 has approved the
summary / proposal of Power Division to amend the Mediation Agreement to provide for a
further period of ninety (90) days from the date of approval for concluding the Mediation
process.

Subsequently, the Mediator held several meetings with the stakeholders; however, the
Mediator vide its letter dated June 05, 2025 submitted that the mediation proceedings
were concluded on the note that a mutually acceptable agreement in a collaborative and
consensual manner is not possible.

It includes receivables from Pakistan Steel Mills Corporation Limited (PSML) amounting to
Rs. 21,770 million (excluding GIDC of Rs. 2,664 million) (June 30, 2024: Rs. 21,778
million) which includes a LPS of Rs. 2,051 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2,051 million)
receivable against sale of indigenous gas. This includes an overdue amount of Rs. 21,770
million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 21,604 million) excluding GIDC.                                         

The PSML has been defaulting and not making payments of principal as well as LPS,
therefore Company charged LPS up to June 2016. However, in line with opinions from
firms of Chartered Accountants, the management decided to recognize LPS on a receipt
basis effective from July 1, 2012, and accordingly reversed the LPS income that had been
recognized from June 30, 2012 onwards.

Currently, management is in a process of negotiating payment plan, which has not been 
finalized till the filing of these unconsolidated financial statements but the supply of gas and 
payment is continuing as per old plan.



However, the Company maintains a memorandum account shown aggregate LPS income
of Rs. 75,231 million (2024: Rs. 74,345 million) (including LPS income for the year ended
June 30, 2025 of Rs. 886 million (2024: 9,876 million)) which has not been recognized in
the unconsolidated financial statements. However in July 2024, PSML has been
disconnected, therefore, no LPS recorded in the memorandum account after July 2025.
The aggregate legal claim of Rs. 99,665 million including Rs. 2,664 million GIDC.
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 2025  2024 

14.3 The movement in allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

Balance as at July 01, 27,445,368    25,495,071    
Add: Charge for the year 5,716,317      1,950,297      
Balance as at June 30, 33,161,685    27,445,368    

14.4

On April, 2016, the Honourable Court of Sindh passed an order restraining PSML from
creating any third party interest in relation to its assets including but not limited to
immovable assets owned by it upto the extent of this amount.

(Rupees in '000)

The Company filed a suit in the HCS in April 2016, for recovery of its outstanding amount 
of gas bills and LPS aggregate claim amounting to Rs. 41,354 million up to February 2016.

PSML has filed its counter claim approximately of Rs. 38,660 million on account of losses 
due to low gas pressure provided to PSML from March 2015 to December 2016. Legal 
counsel of the Company is of the view that due to vagaries of litigation nothing could be 
expressed with any degree of certainty in the contested matters.

Currently, PSML’s financial position is adverse, and has no capacity to repay its obligations 
on its own, therefore, the entire amount as appeared in books of account was claimed from 
OGRA in the determination of Final Revenue Requirement (FRR) FY 2024-25 of the 
Company. OGRA in its decision directed the Company to take up the matter of PSML's 
outstanding balances with the FG for a comprehensive resolution.

The maximum aggregate balances from related parties along with aging are disclosed in 
note 51.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements.
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15 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Secured
Loan/Advance to:

Executives 15.1 1,738             109,799         
Other employees 15.1 576,634         290,093         

578,372         399,892         
Current portion of long term loans 

Executives -                 23                  
to subsidiary 10 100,000         100,000         
Other employees 10 42,232           42,954           

142,232         142,977         
Loans to related party 15.2 296,429         533,573         

1,017,033      1,076,442      

15.1

15.2

 2025  2024 

16 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Considered good
Advances for goods and services 378,988         36,738           
Trade deposits 11,371           14,371           
Prepayments 273,675         307,374         

664,034         358,483         

On June 30, 2021, the Company entered into an agreement with SSGC LPG Limited a
related party for restructuring of loan arrangement whereby the outstanding balance of
accrued interest on loan to a related party amounting Rs. 1,149 million and late payment of
bills on sale of LPG amounting Rs. 36 million (in total Rs. 1,185 million) was freezed and
treated as interest free loan. Repayments of this loan are being made in 20 quarterly equal
installments commencing from  October 4, 2021.

On July 1, 2022, the Company has signed a restructuring agreement relating to above
mentioned loan, where by the terms of the previous agreement has been amended.
Consequently, the said loan has become repayable on demand.

(Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

These represent loans for house building, motorcycle and festival advances to the 
employees according to the terms of employment. These loans / advances  are interest free 
and are secured against the employee retirement benefit balances.
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17 INTEREST ACCRUED

Late payment of bills / invoices from
Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited 239,689         239,689         

239,689         239,689         
Interest accrued on:

Sales tax refund 22.6 487,739         487,739         
Bank deposits 54,850           62,619           
Loan to related parties 15.2 & 18.7 20,666           29,433           

802,944         819,480         
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (112,400)        (112,400)        

690,544         707,080         
18 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Receivable from:
GoP against tariff adjustment - indigenous gas 18.1 545,281,936  564,329,233  
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 18.2 48,502,979    145,795,900  
Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited 18.3 2,262,314      2,262,314      
SSGC LPG Limited 7,844             7,743             
Pakistan LNG Limited 832,801         1,353,924      

 2025  2024 
Note

Gas infrastructure development cess customers 34.7 6,837,838      6,894,354      
GPO against gas bill collection 18.4 315,215         2,315,215      
General sale tax 18.5 79,123,934    87,370,580    
Sindh sales tax 2,451             766,751         
Suppliers against asset contribution 18.6 163,880         231,767         
Miscellaneous 18.7 396,358         149,859         

683,727,550  811,477,640  
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 18.8 (2,544,768)

(20,458,963)

     (2,544,768)     
681,182,782

1,411,666

  808,932,872  

18.1 Receivable from GoP against tariff adjustment - indigenous gas 

Balance as at July 01, 564,329,233     498,763,608 
(Less) / Add: (Recovered) / charge for the year 38.1       63,878,757 
Less: Subsidy for LPG air mix operations        1,686,868 

Balance as at June 30,  18.1.1 545,281,936    564,329,233 

(Rupees in '000)
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18.1.1

18.2 At the reporting date, receivable balance from SNGPL comprises of the following:

Differential tariff 18.2.1        4,284,080        4,284,080 
Uniform cost of indigenous gas                     -        15,818,845 
Uniform cost of RLNG 18.2.2      20,000,000      20,000,000 
Lease rentals             18,207        1,609,134 
Contingent rent             19,529             19,529 
Capacity and utilisation charges of RLNG 3,958,765           54,587,819 
LSA margins of RLNG           374,281        3,032,074 
RLNG transportation income      19,848,117      46,444,419 

 18.2.3      48,502,979    145,795,900 

18.2.1

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

This includes Rs. 390 million (2024: Rs. 390 million) recoverable from the Government
of Pakistan (GoP) on account of remission of gas receivables from people of Ziarat
under instructions from GoP. Although, management is confident that this amount is
fully recoverable, being prudent full provision has already been recorded against the
same in these unconsolidated financial statements.

As at June 30, 2025, the Company has receivable balance of Rs. 4,284 million (2024:
Rs. 4,284 million) which stands outstanding from May 2020 till date.

18.2.2

18.2.3 During the year, with the mutual consent of both Sui companies, an exercise was
initiated to reconcile the long outstanding balances pertaining prior to June 2020.
Resultantly, the Company made a settlement with SNGPL and has reconciled these
long outstanding balances except for disclosed in 18.2.1. 

The Company is in the process of reconciling this disputed amount and is hopeful that
it will be sorted out in due course.

This represents advance paid to SNGPL against Cost of Gas Equalization to be
adjusted against any shortfall, if any, in Final Revenue Requirement (FRR) determined 
by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA). The Ministry of Energy (Petroleum
Division) has directed SNGPL and SSGCL to enter into a ‘Cost of Gas Equalization
Agreement’ to facilitate the adjustments arising out of FRR. The execution of
agreement is currently pending between both parties.

OGRA vide its decision dated November 20, 2018, had directed that the stock of
RLNG withheld by the Company to be purchased from Sui Northern Gas Pipeline
Limited (SNGPL) will be calculated based on the historical weighted average cost
price in Pakistani Rupees. Consequently, the Company has recorded sales as per the
relevant applicable OGRA notified rates. The Tariff differential represents gain owing
to the difference between the current and historical rates, which were passed on to the 
SNGPL up to May 2020.
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18.3 This amount comprises of receivable in respect of royalty income & fuel charges, sale
of natural gas liquids, Federal Excise Duty (FED), Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on franchise
services and receivable from JJVL at the rate of ad-hoc 57% value of LPG / NGL
extraction as per the agreement signed between the Company and JJVL pursuant to
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) order dated December 04, 2018
amounting to Rs. 19 million (2024: Rs. 19 million), Rs. 108 million (2024: Rs. 108
million), Rs. 1,070 million (2024: Rs. 1,070 million), Rs. 646 million (2024: Rs. 646
million), Rs. 420 million (2024: Rs. 420 million) respectively. Although, management is
confident that this amount is fully recoverable, being prudent provision of 2,143 million
has already been recorded against the same in these unconsolidated financial
statements.

During the year, the matter was taken up by Special Investment Facilitation Council
(SIFC) for the resumption of gas supplies to JJVL to meet the national objective of
enhancing domestic production and reducing reliance on imported LPG. Several
meetings were held in this respect at various SIFC committees.

After detailed deliberations and a series of meetings, the final draft agreement has
been agreed and initialed by both the parties on June 17, 2025. The initialed
agreement had been placed before SIFC-Executive Committee (SIFC-EC) in its
meeting dated June 18, 2025 in which it accorded approval of the agreement.

Subsequently, in view of the SIFC-EC approval, the initialed agreement has also been
approved by the Board. Subsequently, both the parties signed the agreement on July
28, 2025 for its formal execution. Consequently, subsequent to the year end, Rs 420
million in respect of revenue sharing agreement has been received.

18.4

18.5

18.6

This represents sales tax refunds that arose due to the excess of average purchase
cost over average sales price, uniform purchase price adjustment with SNGPL and
zero rating of sales tax on gas sales for various industries. These refunds are
processed through FBR’s Sales Tax Automated Refund Repository (STARR) system.
Due to several snags in the functioning of STARR, the Commissioner has deferred
processing of tax refunds and has also deferred the payments of already processed
refunds. The deferred refunds are issued to the Company on the basis of manual
verification of documents (third-party vendor sales tax returns) by tax authorities.

This represents receivable from Mari Energies Limited, Spud Energy Pty Limited, PKP
Exploration Limited and Government Holdings (Private) Limited (referred as BJV) in
respect of Zarghun gas transmission pipeline under pipeline contribution agreement.
The receivable has been recognised using discounted cash flow technique.

This represents receivable balance from Pakistan Post Office against gas bills
collected from January 2022 to March 2022 and deposited in Government Treasury.
The management is making efforts to recover the amount.
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Note

This includes foreign currency amounting to USD 15,000 (2024: 15,000 USD).

This includes a balance of Rs. 3.0 million (2024: Rs. 13 million) from SSGC Alternate
Energy (Private) Limited, a related party, on which accrued mark-up amounts to Rs.
4.4 million (2024: Rs. 1.8 million). This receivable balance carries a markup at the rate
of 15.27% (2024: 22.47%) and is repayable on demand. The maximum aggregate
balance along with aging are mentioned in note 51.1 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

18.7

2025 2024

18.8

       2,544,768        2,586,874 
Less: Reversal during the year                     -             (42,106)

2,544,768      2,544,768      

19 TAXATION - NET

Advance tax 83,570,624    44,255,779    
Provision for tax (34,801,935)   (30,393,332)   

48,768,689    13,862,447    
20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 20.1 8,382             8,258             
Cash at banks

 - current accounts       447,236         376,286         
 - deposit accounts      20.2 731,457         738,638         

1,178,693      1,114,924      

1,187,075      1,123,182      

20.1

(Rupees in '000)
Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance as at July 01, 

Balance as at June 30,

20.2

21 SHARE CAPITAL

21.1

 2025  2024 2025 2024
(Numbers of shares) (Rupees in '000)

 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000    10,000,000    10,000,000 

These carries mark-up at rate ranges from 6% to 19%  (2024: 6% to 20.56% ) per annum.

Authorized share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each
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21.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

219,566,554   219,566,554   2,195,666     2,195,666     

661,349,755   661,349,755   6,613,497     6,613,497     
880,916,309   880,916,309   8,809,163     8,809,163     

21.2.1

21.2.2

 2025  2024 
(Number of Shares)

Modaraba)       223,500       223,500 
 57,754,179  57,754,179 
 57,977,679  57,977,679 

issued as fully paid bonus 
shares

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.
The shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and
are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the shareholders. All shares rank
equally with regard to the Company's residual assets. Currently, Government of
Pakistan (GoP) holds 53.18% (2024: 53.18%) paid up capital of the Company.

Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated company / undertaking by virtue
of common directorship are as follows: 

B.R.R Guardian Limited (formerly B.R.R Guardian

State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

issued as fully paid in cash

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

22 RESERVES

Capital reserves
Share capital restructuring reserve 22.1 146,868      146,868      
Fixed assets replacement reserve 22.2 88,000        88,000        

234,868      234,868      
Revenue reserves

Dividend equalisation reserve 36,000        36,000        
Special reserve I 22.3 333,141      333,141      
Special reserve II 22.4 1,800,000   1,800,000   
General reserve 22.5 2,015,653   2,015,653   
Reserve for interest on sales tax refund 22.6 487,739      487,739      

4,672,533   4,672,533   
4,907,401   4,907,401   
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22.1 Share capital restructuring reserve 

22.2 Fixed assets replacement reserve

22.3 Special reserve I

22.4 Special reserve II

This represents the reserves for reduction in share capital of former Sui Gas
Transmission Company Limited (SGTC) due to merger of Sui Gas Transmission
Company Limited and Southern Gas Company Limited (SGC) in March 1989. 

This represents profit allocated in 1986 by former Southern Gas Company Limited for
replacement of gas distribution lines in rural areas of Sindh. Subsequently all the
rehabilitation activities were carried out from the Company's working capital. 

This represents special reserve for accumulated balance arising on a price increase
of Rs. 4.10 per MCF granted to the Company by the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in 
January 1987 effective from July 1, 1985 to enable the Company to meet the
requirements of Asian Development Bank regarding debt / equity ratio and other
financial covenants specified in loan agreements with them. 

This represents special undistributable reserve created as per the decision of the
Board of Directors to meet the future requirements of the Company.

22.5 General reserve

22.6 Reserve for interest on sales tax refund

23 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

23.1 The Company has carried out the revaluation of its freehold land and leasehold land
respectively. The last revaluation was carried out on June 30, 2023 by an
independent valuer M/s M J Surveyors (Private) Limited which resulted in a surplus of
Rs. 5,728 million. The revaluation was carried out based on the market value
assessment being the fair value of the freehold and leasehold land.

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of the revalued asset would have
been as follows:

This represents the reserve for the interest accrued on the sales tax refundable under
Section 67 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990, which is not available for distribution to
shareholders till the time it will be received.

This represents the reserve created by the Company for the payment of dividends.
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 2025  2024 

Freehold land       472,860 472,860      
Leasehold land       223,867 223,867      

      696,727 696,727      

23.2

 (Rupees in '000)

The fair value of the freehold and leasehold land are derived using the Sale
Comparison approach. The sales value is determined by physically analysing the
condition of land and by ascertaining the market value of similar land.

Details of the Company's freehold and leasehold land and information about fair value
hierarchy, as at June 30, 2025 are as follows.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land -                  43,452,760 -               43,452,760   
Leasehold land -                  17,079,104 -               17,079,104   

-               60,531,864   -               60,531,864   

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land -                  43,452,760 -               43,452,760   
Leasehold land -                  17,079,104 -               17,079,104   

-               60,531,864   -               60,531,864   

---------------------------Rupees in '000---------------------------

2024

2025

---------------------------Rupees in '000---------------------------

23.2.1

23.2.2

 2025  2024 
24 LONG TERM FINANCING Note

Secured
Banking companies 24.1 10,176,745  33,824,950  

Unsecured 
Customer  finance 24.2 118,961      118,774      
Government of Sindh 24.3 753,333      618,042      

872,294      736,816      
11,049,039  34,561,766  

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and
is not available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with Section 241
of the Companies Act, 2017.

Forced sale values of freehold land and leasehold land is Rs. 36,934 million and
Rs. 14,517 million, respectively.

 (Rupees in '000)
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24.1 Banking companies

24.1.1

24.1.2 This represents term finance facility of Rs. 15,000 million, obtained from United
Bank Limited (UBL) and Meezan Bank Limited with UBL acting as agent . The loan
is secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and
future movable fixed assets of the Company comprising of compressor stations,
transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline under construction, machinery and
equipments. The effective markup rate charged during the year ranges from
11.33% to 20.52% (2024: 21.26% to 24.14%) per annum.

Installment Repayment
payable period Note

Faysal Bank Limited - Led Consortium Quarterly 2022-2026 24.1.1 5,833,333     11,666,666    
United Bank Limited  - Led Consortium Quarterly 2022-2028 24.1.2 12,812,500   15,000,000    
The Bank of Punjab Quarterly 2024-2026 24.1.3 13,750,000   15,000,000    
Meezan Bank Limited At maturity 2025-2026 24.1.4 20,000,000   -                
Unamortised transaction cost (52,421)        (50,049)          

52,343,412   41,616,617    
Less: Current maturity 32 (42,166,667) (7,791,667)     

10,176,745   33,824,950    

  
2025  2024 

(Rupees in '000)

24.1.3

24.1.4

This represents term finance facility of Rs. 15,000 million, obtained from Bank of
Punjab. The loan is secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all
present and future movable fixed assets of the Company comprising of compressor
stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline under construction, machinery
and equipments. The effective markup rate charged during the year ranges from 11.69
% to 22.02% per anum (2024: 22.02% per annum).

This represents musharka finance facility of Rs 21,000 million, obtained from 
syndicate of banks in March 2022, in which Faysal Bank Limited is acting as agent. 
The loan is secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all 
present and future movable fixed RLNG assets of the Company related to project 
but not limited to compressor stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, 
pipeline under construction, machinery and equipments. Furthermore, loan is 
secured by a sovereign guarantee from Government of Pakistan (GoP). The 
effective markup rate charged during the year ranges from 12.28% to 21.81%  
(2024: 22.81% to 23.05%) per annum.

This represents musharka finance facility of  Rs. 20,000 million, obtained from 
Meezan Bank Limited. The loan is secured against pari passu charge by way of 
hypothecation on all present and future movable fixed assets of the Company 
comprising of compressor stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline 
under construction, machinery and equipments. The effective markup rate charged 
during the year ranges from 11.66% to 12.39% per annum.
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 2025  2024 
Note

24.2 Customer finance

Customer finance 24.2.1 120,145          119,364            
32 (1,184)            (590)                 

118,961          118,774            

24.2.1

24.3 Government of Sindh

24.3.1

This represents contributions received from certain industrial customers for laying of
distribution lines for supply of gas at their premises. Mark-up on these balances ranges
from 1% to 3% per annum. Principal and interest are adjustable in 48 equal
installments through credits in the monthly gas bills of the consumers.

 (Rupees in '000)

Less: Current maturity

The Company has obtained unsecured development loans from Government of Sindh
for supply of gas to various districts and areas of Sindh.

Principal Mark up 2025 2024
Installment repayment rate p.a. Note
payable period

Government of Sindh loan - III yearly 2012 - 2021 4% 24.3.1 80,000           80,000          
Government of Sindh loan - IV yearly 2014 - 2023 4% 24.3.1 500,000         500,000        
Government of Sindh loan - V yearly 2015 - 2024 4% 24.3.1 360,000         360,000        

-                (135,291)       
940,000         804,709        

Less: current maturity 32 (186,667)        (186,667)       
753,333         618,042        

(Rupees in '000)

Less: impact of discounting of 
Government of Sindh Loan

24.3.2

 2025  2024 
Note

25 SECURITY DEPOSITS

From Consumers 25.1 & 25.2 38,969,911     31,284,902       
From Gas contractors 25.3 116,445          115,076            

39,086,356     31,399,978       

The Company has revised the Government of Sindh (GoS) loan arrangements by
adjusting the outstanding loan as at June 30, 2017, amounting to Rs. 3,940 million
(principal of Rs. 3,000 million and accrued interest of Rs. 940 million) with the approved 
grant from GoS amounting to Rs. 3,000 million. The Company has also filed claim
regarding the waiver of the financial charges recorded and paid in prior years
amounting to Rs. 541 million which are based on the waiver amount of Rs. 3,000
million, later converted into grant. Currently, the Company is charging finance cost and
amortising deferred credit on outstanding loan net of waiver claim as mentioned.

 (Rupees in '000)
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25.1

25.2

25.3

 2025  2024 
Note

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

To executives
Provision for:

Post retirement medical and free gas 
supply facilities 8,738,699       6,640,146         

Compensated absences 26.1 885,241          622,156            
9,623,940       7,262,302         

The deposits obtained from consumers, other than domestic consumers, are being
utilized for business purposes in accordance with the terms of the contracts with
consumers.
These represent security deposits received from contractors. These deposits are
interest free and are refundable upon completion or cancellation of the contract.

 (Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
Note

26.1
absences

Balance as at July 01, 622,156          875,703            
Add / (less): Provision / (reversal) made 

during the year 263,085          (253,547)           
Balance as at June 30, 885,241          622,156            

27 PAYABLE AGAINST TRANSFER OF PIPELINE

Payable to Engro Elengy Terminal Limited 27.1 523,169          607,696            
Less: Current maturity (92,447)          (84,527)             

430,722          523,169            

 (Rupees in '000)

Movement in provision for compensated

This represents security received against amounts due from consumers on account of 
gas sales. These deposits are repayable upon cancellation of the contract for gas 
supply or upon submission of a bank guarantee in lieu of security deposits.. They are 
also adjustable against unrecovered trade debts from the respective consumers. 
Mark-up is payable at 5% per annum on deposits from all consumers, other than 
domestic, which aggregate to Rs. 18,133 million (2024: 16,933 million).
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 2025  2024 
Note  (Rupees in '000)

27.1

28 DEFERRED CREDIT

Government of Pakistan (GoP)
contributions / grants

Balance as at July 01, 4,514,118       3,840,646         
Add: Additions / adjustment during the year 31.3 275,007          1,048,699         

   Amortized during the year (450,474)        (375,227)           
Balance as at June 30, 28.1 4,338,651       4,514,118         

Government of Sindh - Conversation of 
loan into grant

Balance as at July 01, 1,736,245       1,784,919         
Add: Additions / adjustment during the year 31.3 248,548          80,482              
Less: Amortized during the year (137,112)        (129,156)           
Balance as at June 30, 1,847,681       1,736,245         

Government of Sindh grants
Balance as at July 01, 76,173            84,095              
Less: Amortized during the year (76,173)          (7,922)               
Balance as at June 30, -                 76,173              
Less: current maturity (573,451)        (566,724)           

28.1  5,612,881       5,759,812         

The Company entered into an agreement with Engro Elengy Terminal Limited (EETL)
under which the pipeline has been transferred to the Company from EETL and
corresponding liability has been recognised using discounted cash flows by using 3
months KIBOR prevailing on inception date.

28.1

2025 2024
Note

29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contribution from customers 3,973,789       3,768,214         
29.3 8,275,049       6,506,608         

12,248,838     10,274,822       

This represents amount received from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) and
Government of Sindh (GoS) and for supply of gas to new towns and villages and the
same is recognised as grant when the conditions specified by the GoP and GoS are
met. This amount is amortised over the useful life of related projects.

 (Rupees in '000)

29.1 & 29.2
Advance received from customers



144
Annual Report 2025

29.1 Contribution from customers

Balance as at July 01, 4,055,191       3,841,959         
Add: Addition during the year 568,043          517,904            
Less: Amortized during the year (315,176)        (304,672)           

4,308,058       4,055,191         
Less: Current maturity (334,269)        (286,977)           
Balance as at June 30, 3,973,789       3,768,214         

29.2

29.3

 2025  2024 
Note

30 LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance as on July 01, 86,178         66,315              
Add: Additions during the year 90,055         98,952              
Interest expense 18,065         17,954              

194,298       183,221            
Less: Payments made during the year (104,039)      (97,043)             

90,259         86,178              
Less: Current maturity (78,527)        (68,292)             
Balance as at June 30, 11,732         17,886              

The expected maturity analysis of  lease payment is as follows:

within one year 78,527         68,292              
between 2 to 5 years 11,732         17,886              

90,259            86,178              

This represents amount received from the customers as contribution towards the cost
of supplying and laying distribution, service and main pipeline lines. These are being
amortized over the useful lives of the distribution system.

This represent advances received from customer against laying of distribution
pipelines, services etc.

 (Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
 (Rupees in '000)

31 LONG TERM ADVANCES

Long term advances 3,610,466    2,508,204      

31.1 These represent amounts received from Government of Pakistan (GoP) and
Government of Sindh (GoS) for gas supply to new towns and villages and laying of
distribution lines, etc. These advances are transferred to deferred credit once the
related projects are commissioned, which is then amortised over the estimated useful
lives of related assets.
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31.2
are as follows:

Balance as at July 01,        2,508,204          3,337,572 
Add: Additions during the year        1,625,817             299,814 
Less: Transferred to deferred credit 28          (523,555)         (1,129,182)
Balance as at June 30, 3,610,466       2,508,204         

31.3

 2025  2024 
Note

32 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING

Loan from banking companies 24.1 42,166,667     7,791,667         
Customer finance 24.2 1,184              590                   
Government of Sindh loans 24.3 186,667          186,667            

42,354,518     7,978,924         
33

Short term borrowing from
financial institutions - secured 33.1 82,806,374     37,774,786       

33.1

The movement in long term 

During the year, the Company has transferred Rs. 275 million (2024: Rs. 1,049 million)
from Government of Pakistan (GoP) funded projects and Rs. 249 million (2024: Rs. 80
million) form Government of Sindh (GoS) funded projects.

 (Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
Note  (Rupees in '000)

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

The total limit of various financing facilities available from commercial banks against 
short-term running facilities aggregate to Rs. 110,000 million (2024: Rs. 50,000 million) out 
of which the company has utilized Rs 82,806 million (2024: 37,775 million). The applicable 
markup rates during the year range from one to three months KIBOR plus basis ranging 
from 0.1% to 1.00% (2024: 0.1% to 1.00% ). These facilities are secured by first pari passu 
and second amendment to the joint hypothecation agreement and ranking charge over 
present and future stock in trade and trade debts of the Company. Markup is payable on 
monthly and quarterly basis with the effective interest rate charged during the year ranging 
from 11.38% to 22.21% (2024: 21.68% to 23.77%) per annum.
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2025 2024
Note

34 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable against:
 

Indigenous gas 829,422,912   857,841,931     
RLNG 34.3  18,342,310     104,832,095     

847,765,222   962,674,026     
Tariff adjustment- RLNG to GoP 34.4  18,744,630     34,946,646       
Service charges to Engro Energy

Terminal (EETL) 3,478,338       3,141,619         
Accrued liabilities / bills payable 8,964,988       12,350,447       
Employee benefits 34.5  3,966,879       5,453,838         
Liquidated damages to Jamshoro

Power Company Limited (JPCL) 1,533,994       1,533,994         
Deposits / retention money to suppliers 1,245,972       1,162,486         
Advance against right of way 34.6  18,088            18,088              
Withholding tax 90,904            95,329              
Sales tax and Federal Excise Duty 173,722          603,480            
Sindh sales tax 297,721          1,170                
Gas infrastructure development cess to GoP 34.7  6,837,838       6,894,354         
Off the Grid (Captive power plants) levy to GOP 218,845          -                   
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 34.8  1,382,612       911,973            
Others           34.9  933,949          757,873            

895,653,702   1,030,545,323  

34.1

 (Rupees in '000)

34.1 & 34.2 

This includes Rs. 705,646 million (2024: Rs. 692,696 million) payable to Oil and Gas
Development Company Limited (OGDCL), Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and
Government Holdings (Private) Limited (GHPL) in respect of indigenous gas
purchases. 
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34.2

34.3 As disclosed in note 18.2.3, an exercise was initiated to reconcile the long-outstanding
balances pertaining prior to June 2020. Resultantly, the Company made a settlement
with SNGPL and has reconciled the long outstanding balances pertaining to RLNG
purchases.

With effect from July 01, 2012, the Company has been accounting for LPS income
from KE and PSML on receipt basis based on the opinions obtained from the firms of
Chartered Accountants for compliance with then applicable International Accounting
Standards 18 “Revenue”. On adoption of IFRS15 "Revenue from contract with
customers'' which supersedes IAS 18, the Company has obtained an updated opinion
from the firm of Chartered Accountants to recognise LPS income from KE and PSML
on a receipt basis. However, the Company continued recognition of the LPS expense
payable on outstanding bills of the Government Controlled E&P Companies i.e.
OGDCL, PPL, and GHPL to comply with the requirements of the accounting standards,
as such standards do not allow the Company to offset its LPS income against the mark-
up expense in absence of legal right to set off, despite the fact that the Company has
never paid such LPS to Government Controlled E&P companies. Therefore,
management approached the ministry through its letter dated September 01, 2016, to
allow similar treatment of its LPS payable to Government Controlled E & P Companies
due to special and unusual circumstances arising from the circular debt. Management’s
request was also based on, besides the unique situation of circular debt, past
settlement record on a net basis which was approved by the Economic Coordination
Committee (ECC) in 2001, and the fact that OGDCL, PPL, and GHPL are not recording
any such LPS income in their financial statements and assert that such income will be
recorded only when the same is received.

In response to the Company’s above request, the MP & NR vide their letter dated
January 03, 2017 has supported the contention of the Company that it will not
recognize LPS expense payable to the Government Controlled E&P Companies
(OGDCL, PPL and GHPL), effective from July 01, 2012, till the time Company receives
payment for LPS income from KE and PSML and it would be settled simultaneously
subject to fulfilment of all the codal formalities.

In financial year 2024, the Company has reversed the accrued LPS of Rs. 15,832
million payable to the OGDCL, PPL and GHPL, booked prior to July 01, 2012 in line
with the clarification obtained from Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) vide its
letter dated April 28, 2025 to record the same on actual settlement basis.

Based on the aforesaid letters and legal opinion obtained by the Company, the
aggregate unrecognized accrued markup up is Rs. 370,655 million (June 30, 2024: Rs.
275,296 million).
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 2025  2024 
Note

34.4

Balance as at July 01,      34,946,646        23,826,990 
(Less) / Add: (Charge) / recovered during

the year 38.2        10,662,765 
Add: GOP adjustment on RLNG tariff               1,596             456,891 
Balance as at June 30,      18,744,630        34,946,646 

34.5 Employee Benefits

Gratuity fund 45 4,849,482       4,904,419         
Pension fund 45 (1,339,717)

(16,203,612)

     199,836            
Provident fund 10,368            10,206              
Compensated absences - non executive 446,746          339,377            

3,966,879       5,453,838         

34.6

34.7

 (Rupees in '000)
Tariff adjustment - RLNG payable to GoP

This amount was received by the Company from Pak Arab Refinery Limited (PARCO)
in accordance with an agreement dated October 12, 1988. It represents consideration
for 50% share of PARCO in the Indus right bank pipeline common Right Of Way
(ROW) and is the full settlement of PARCO's total liability for its share, irrespective of
the final amount of compensation payable to the land owners by the Company. The
final liability of the Company has not been estimated, as the amount of compensation
due to land owners has not been determined by the OGRA. Accordingly, the amount
received from PARCO has been classified as an advance. 

The Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) was levied with effect from
December 15, 2011 and is chargeable from industrial gas customers at different rates
as prescribed by the Federal Government through OGRA notification. GIDC is
collected and deposited with the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources
(MP&NR) in a manner prescribed by the Federal Government.

On June 13, 2013, the Honorable Peshawar High Court (PHC) declared the levy,
imposition and recovery of GIDC unconstitutional with the direction to refund GID so
far collected. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) examined the case and
vide its findings dated August 22, 2014, concluded that GIDC is a fee and not a tax and
on either count GIDC could not have been introduced through a money bill under
Article 73 of the Constitution, therefore the same was, not validly levied in accordance
with the Constitution. However, on September 25, 2014, the President of Pakistan had
promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Ordinance 2014, (GIDC
Ordinance) which is applicable to the whole of Pakistan and has to be complied by all
parties.
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On September 29, 2014, the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) gave a stay order to
various parties against the promulgation of Presidential order on September 25, 2014. 

The Company being a collecting agent had collected and deposited GIDC to the
MP&NR. The Company will refund to the customers once it will be received from
MP&NR.

On 13 August 2020, SCP has upheld the promulgation of the GIDC Act and instructed
that all arrears of GIDC that have become due up to July 31, 2020, shall be recovered
by the Companies responsible under the GIDC Act from their end customers. 

 2025   2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

34.8 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance as at July 01,           911,973             376,347 
41           373,574             484,746 

Add: Interest accrued             97,065               50,880 
Balance as at June 30,        1,382,612             911,973 

34.9

Add: Charge for the year

However, as a concession, the same is to be recovered in twenty four equal monthly
instalments starting from August 01, 2020 without the component of late payment
surcharge. The Company has initiated the billing of GIDC from August 01, 2020, the
same is recovered from customers and submitted to MP&NR. The SCP in its judgment
dated November 03, 2020 dismissed all review petitions filed against its earlier
judgment dated August 13, 2020, stating that the companies claiming any relief under
GIDC Act may approach the right forum. Subsequent to the judgment of SCP dated
August 13, 2020, more than 1700 customers have filed fresh cases before SHC,
wherein, customers stated that they are not liable to pay GIDC as the same has not
been collected by them, SHC restrained the company from collection of GIDC
installments from those customers and the matter is pending adjudication before SHC. 

This includes Rs. 662 million (2024: Rs. 497 million) on account of amount payable to
disconnected customers for gas supply deposits.

On May 22, 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (GIDC Act) was 
passed by Parliament applicable on all customers. Following the imposition of the said 
Act, many customers filed a petition in HCS and obtained stay order against GIDC Act. 
The Company has obtained a legal opinion, which states that management has to comply 
with the stay order of  HCS.

On October 26, 2016, a single bench of HCS passed an order to refund / adjust the GIDC 
collected in the future bills of the respective plaintiff. The said order was stayed by the 
HCS through order dated November 10, 2016.
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 2025   2024 
(Rupees in '000)35 INTEREST ACCRUED

448,561          1,059,521            
953,970          880,238            
828,754          1,275,213         

                          
                      

99,283            99,283              
2,330,568       3,314,255         

Long term financing - banking companies
Long term deposits from customers
Short term borrowings
Late payment surcharge on processing 

36 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

36.1

36.1.1

36.1.2

Except for the contingencies disclosed elsewhere in the unconsolidated financial
statements, the following contingencies primarily relate to tax matters and other legal 

As disclosed in note 34.2, the management has reversed Late Payment Surcharge
(LPS) expense with effect from July 01, 2012 to June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs.
26,222 million on Government Controlled E&P Companies liabilities and ceased to
record LPS expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, June 30, 2018, June 30,
2019, June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, June 30, 2022, June 30, 2023, June 30, 2024
and June 30, 2025 amounting to Rs. 7,569 million, Rs. 7,477 million, Rs. 10,525
million, Rs. 26,335 million, Rs 25,939 million, Rs. 27,921 million, Rs. 44,303 million
and Rs. 99,005 million and Rs. 95,359 million, respectively in these unconsolidated financial
statements. The Company will record and pay such LPS in the period when it
receives LPS on amount receivable from KE and PSML.

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) based on the constitutional
petition filed by the petitioner had declared the Implementation Agreement dated
August 12, 2003, awarded to Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited (JJVL) to be in gross
violation of the bidding process and constituted a Committee to calculate the
additional royalty payable by JJVL based on Saudi Aramco price plus freight. The
committee calculated the additional royalty of Rs. 4,250 million which was paid by
JJVL accordingly. However, the freight matter is still outstanding and to be resolved
by a final decision by the SCP. 

In the hearing held in January 2019, SCP directed JJVL to pay admitted liability of
Rs. 249 million in respect of freight which was also paid by JJVL and the remaining
balance is yet to be determined by SCP.

Due to ongoing freight case hearings by the SCP, and keeping in view that there are
certain matters under instant Arbitration which are also sub-judice at the SCP
consequent upon the termination of Memorandum of Understanding (MoUs) between
the Company and JJVL, the arbitration proceedings between the parties under the
Pakistan Arbitration Act, 1940 ( The Arbitration Act) as amended from time to time
has been adjourned. All the disputed matters taken to arbitration would be finalized
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The Company had negative margins while doing business with JJVL in financial year
2015-16 due to decline in oil prices and consequent decline in margins in LPG /
NGL business. Consequently, the Company sent termination notices to JJVL dated
May 4, 2016, against which JJVL obtained a stay order from the Honourable High
Court of Sindh (HCS). The aggregate balance due from JJVL amounts to Rs. 2,262
(2024: Rs. 2,262 million) (note 18.3) on which accrued LPS amounting to Rs. 240
million (2024: Rs. 240 million) is included in interest accrued (note 17).

once SCP passes its order on freight charges and other matters. However, the
Arbitration proceedings between the parties have now been resumed and in the first
meeting dated August 17, 2023, it was decided that both the parties will file amended
pleadings / claims & counter claims. The Company, therefore filed its revised claims
considering the revision in cut off dates which were earlier filed upto June 2016 have
now been revised till June 2018 on account of principal amounts and August 2023 in
respect of markup.

Moreover, the firm has to submit the ‘Determination Report’ as per the agreement in
order to finalize the revenue sharing percentage. Accordingly, the same has been
submitted by the firm to SCP in December 2020 after having inputs / working from
both the parties. However, the matter is pending in SCP and the final consideration of
the company will be subject to conclusion of this matter at SCP.

The SCP through its decision dated June 13, 2018 upheld the termination by the
Company and stated that the termination was validly done and the Company was
well within its legal and contractual right to do so.

After cancellation of MoUs by SCP on June 13, 2018, JJVL submitted a proposal
based on profit sharing to SCP which was forwarded to the Company by SCP. The
SCP was also informed that the Company is in the process of hiring a consultant for
providing professional advice on the best option available with respect to the
LPG/NGL extraction business.

Subsequently, the firm of Chartered Accountants after consultation with both parties
came up with a mechanism of revenue sharing of 57% to the Company and 43% to
JJVL on ad-hoc basis and an agreement was signed between the Company and
JJVL and submitted to SCP for its approval. The same was validated by SCP in its
order dated December 29, 2018. SCP also directed the Company to resume the
supply of gas to JJVL plant based on the new terms provided in the agreement. The
agreement was valid for 1.5 years from the date of agreement and unless renewed
by the parties through mutual written consent it shall stand terminated automatically.
Accordingly, in June 2020 the said agreement stands expired and since then no gas
has been supplied to JJVL.
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36.1.3

36.1.4

The Company has discontinued the gas supply to Habibullah Coastal Power
Company Limited (HCPCL) after the expiry of 20 years Gas Sales Agreement. In
order to secure the outstanding gas receivables amounting to Rs. 1,113 million, the
Company has opted for encashment of HCPCL bank guarantees which are sufficient,
as of the reporting date, to recover the outstanding gas receivables. In response,
HCPCL filed a suit vide Suit no. 1570 of 2019 and obtained stay from the HCS
regarding encashment of bank guarantees by the Company. In view of the available
bank guarantee, no provision has been made in these unconsolidated financial
statements.

The tax authorities had passed an order for FY 2017-18 creating Federal Excise Duty
(FED) demand on RLNG, having tax impact of Rs. 2,951 million.

Based on the advice of its tax advisor, the management is confident that the case will
be in its favor of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in these
unconsolidated financial statements.

The Company has filed an application with FBR for the constitution of the Alternative
Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC) on the matter of Federal Excise Duty (FED)
on LNG into RLNG.

Furthermore, the matters which were pending in SCP which includes royalty on
freight charges and final determination of the revenue sharing arrangement, have
been ruled out by the constitutional bench of SCP through its decision dated
December 09, 2024, stating that the matters before the SCP have already been
decided and the parties can seek their remedies before other alternative forums
available to them under the law. Being aggrieved of the above decision, the
Company has filed a Civil Review Petition (CRP) in the SCP with the request to
review its decision as several matters as referred above were still pending for
decision by the SCP.

During the year, the matter was taken up by Special Investment Facilitation Council
(SIFC) for the resumption of gas supplies to JJVL to meet the national objective of
enhancing domestic production and reducing reliance on imported LPG. Several
meetings were held in this respect at various SIFC committees.

After detailed deliberations and a series of meetings, the final draft agreement has
been agreed and initialed by both the parties on June 17, 2025. The initialed
agreement had been placed before SIFC-Executive Committee (SIFC-EC) in its
meeting dated June 18, 2025 in which it accorded approval of the agreement.

Subsequently, in view of the SIFC-EC approval, the initialed agreement has also
been approved by the Board. Subsequently, both the parties signed the agreement
on July 28, 2025 for its formal execution. Consequently, subsequent to the year end,
Rs 420 million in respect of revenue sharing agreement has been received.
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36.1.5

36.1.6

36.1.7

Accordingly, no provision regarding the said claim has been made in these
unconsolidated financial statements as the management, based on its legal advisor's
opinion, are confident that the matter would be in favor of the Company.

The income tax authorities have passed orders for the Tax Years 2007, 2008, 2009,
2013, 2014, 2015 & 2017 disallowing tax depreciation on fixed assets held under
musharaka arrangement, having a tax impact of Rs. 2,214 million.

All the orders were contested before Commissioner (Appeals) who decided the case
in the favour of the Company. Currently, the case is pending adjudication before
ADRC, Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) and HCS.

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The tax authorities have passed sales tax order for FY 2017-18 on issues of non-
charging of sales tax on RLNG – Indigenous Gas Swap and RLNG transportation
income. The tax exposure is Rs 23,649 million.

The Company has filed application with the FBR for constitution of Alternative
Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC) on the matter of sales tax on RLNG –
Indigenous Gas Swap, against which the Company has received a letter from FBR
requiring no objection certificate (NOC) about Chairperson of the committee. The
management is currently in consultation with its legal division to respond to this letter.

Based on the advice of its tax advisor, the management is confident that the case will
be in its favor of the Company (since same matter has already been closed in favour
of SNGPL), therefore, no provision has been made in these unconsolidated financial
statements.

Previously the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) had decided an Appeal in favor
of Income Tax Department on the issue of capital gain made on disposal of LPG
business in the financial year ended June 30, 2001 resulting in a tax impact of Rs.
143 million. Management has filed an appeal before HCS. The management is of the
view that sale of LPG business being in nature of slump transaction was not
chargeable to tax under the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.
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36.1.8 The Large Taxpayer Office Karachi (LTO) have passed an order disallowing cost of
gas purchased but lost as UFG (in excess of OGRA Benchmark) for financial year
(FY) 2008-09, 2010-11 to 2020-21 having cumulative tax impact of Rs. 56,634
million. LTO Karachi has also passed an Assessment Order for FY 2021-22 levying
tax on UFG (in excess of OGRA Benchmark) deducted by OGRA from Revenue
Requirements of the Company. The total exposure on this account is Rs. 13,120
million.

Cases for FY 2015-16 to 2018-19, 2020-21 and 2021-22 were defended before
ADRC who decided the issue in favour of the Company (in line with Appellate
Tribunal judgment in case of SNGPL).

36.1.9

36.1.10

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an order against
the Company with demand along with default surcharge and penalty for incorrect
adjustment of withholding sales tax against input invoices for the period July 2017 to
April 2018. The principal tax demand of Rs. 1,235 million was recovered by the tax
department. 

Currently, the matter is sub-judice before Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee
(ADRC). 

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Tax Authorities passed order against the Company for Tax Year 2010
disallowing brought forward turnover tax credit adjustment of year 2008 amounting to
Rs. 414 million. The case was defended in HCS who decided the case against the
Company (based on similar judgment in another company’s case). The Company has
filed an appeal before SCP. However SCP referred the case to ADRC.

Remaining cases are still sub-judice before the forums of ADRC, ATIR and HCS.

The said issue has already been decided in favor of SNGPL by Lahore Bench of
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue and thus a legal precedent is in field which has
also been upheld by Commissioner (Appeals) in Company’s case.
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36.1.11

The cases for FY 2015-16 to 2018-19 & 2021-22 were defended before ADRC who
upheld the tax demand via order dated June 26, 2025, amounting to Rs. 7,725 million
which was also paid, on interest income but allowed claim of interest expense
(subject to payment). The Company is in coordination with tax authorities for claim of
interest expense.

As disclosed in note 14.1 and 14.2 to these unconsolidated financial statements –
trade debts, interest income from KE and PSML is not being recognized in the
unconsolidated financial statements, in accordance with requirements of International
Accounting Standards as well as legal and accounting opinions obtained by the
Company.

However, tax authorities have passed orders for FY 2014-15 to 2021-22, on said
unrecognized interest income from KE and PSML having tax impact of Rs 43,681
million.

36.1.12

36.1.13

36.1.14

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The Company is subject to various other claims totaling Rs. 8,760 million by income
tax and sales tax authorities. The management is confident that ultimately these
claims would not be payable.

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the unconsolidated
financial statements.

The tax authorities have passed an order for Tax year 2015, disallowing interest
expense on delayed payment to Energy and Petroleum (E&P) Companies for gas
purchases as well as taxing benefit of lower interest rate on Government of Sindh
loans, among other observations, having a tax impact of Rs. 3,135 million.

The matter was contested before Commissioner (Appeals) who decided the case in
favour of the Company. Currently, the case is pending adjudication before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue and HCS.

There are several other pending litigations in the nature of billing disputes,
employees disputes and related matters in which the Company is defendant /
respondent. The management, based on the view of the in-house legal advisor, is of
the view that the aggregate exposure in all the said cases is not material to the
Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these unconsolidated financial 
statements.
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36.1.15 As of June 30, 2025, the Company has an aggregate disputed difference of Rs.
10,661 million with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) on account of tariff
differential. The management is in the process of sorting out such difference and
does not anticipate any adverse consequences, accordingly no provision has been
made in these unconsolidated financial statements for eventual liability. For further
details, refer note 18.2 of these unconsolidated financial statements.

 2025   2024 
(Rupees in '000)

36.1.16 Claims against the Company not acknowledged
as debt       4,244,716       3,542,868 

The management is confident that ultimately these claims would not be payable.

 2025   2024 
36.2 Commitments Note (Rupees in '000)

Guarantees issued on behalf of the Company 11,305,845    11,371,855   
Commitments for capital and other expenditure 6,439,971      5,524,345     

37

Sales
Indigenous gas   398,665,581   326,114,907 
RLNG   118,290,033   158,306,663 

  516,955,614   484,421,570 
Less: Sales tax

Indigenous gas    (59,266,079)   (47,563,660)
RLNG    (18,360,514)   (24,197,822)

   (77,626,593)   (71,761,482)
439,329,021  412,660,088  

38 TARIFF ADJUSTMENTS

Indigenous gas 38.1 63,878,757   
RLNG 38.2 (10,669,122)  

                53,209,635

(20,458,963)
16,203,612
(4,255,351)    

38.1 Tariff adjustment - indigenous gas

Price increase adjustment 65,565,625   
Subsidy for LPG air mix operations 42.2 (1,686,868)    

                63,878,757

(19,047,297)
(1,411,666)
(20,458,963    

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 
CUSTOMERS - GAS SALES
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 2025  2024 
Note

38.2 Tariff adjustment - RLNG

GOP adjustment on RLNG tariff (6,357)            
Price adjustment (10,662,765)   

   (10,669,122)
39 COST OF GAS SALES

Cost of gas 39.1 399,254,975

16,203,612
16,203,612

-

  426,782,573  
Transmission and distribution costs 39.2 24,829,101    28,704,641    

424,084,076  455,487,214  
39.1 Cost of gas

Gas in pipelines as at July 1, 2,214,091      1,945,446      
RLNG purchases 116,270,159  123,533,323  
Indigenous gas purchases 283,533,318  304,301,336  

402,017,568  429,780,105  
Gas consumed internally (694,446)       (783,441)        
Gas in pipelines as at June 30, (2,068,147)    (2,214,091)     

(2,762,593)    (2,997,532)     
399,254,975  426,782,573  

(Rupees in '000)

38.1.1

As per the UFG study report finalized by a firm of Chartered Accountant, revised
UFG allowance formula is the product of gas volume available for sale in the
distribution system and the UFG % allowed. The UFG % allowed in the distribution
network is determined as the sum of distribution UFG benchmark (5%) and the local
conditions allowance (percentage achievement of KMIs of 2.6%), whereas the UFG
% allowed for transmission network is 0.14%. OGRA has determined distribution
UFG % allowed at 7.46% [5% + (2.46% based on KMI achievement)], whereas the
benchmark UFG % allowed for gas transmission is 0.14%.

The Company, in its petition to OGRA, had worked out Unaccounted for Gas (UFG)
on total volume of indigeneous gas in its transmission and distribution system at
10.09 % against which OGRA has determined UFG at 12.07 %. UFG, in the parlance
of a gas distribution and transmission company, means the difference between gas
purchased in volume, gas billed in volume and gas used internally by the Company in
volumes for its operations. UFG results from a number of factors which inter alia
comprise gas leakages both underground and over ground, measurement errors,
meter tampering, meter getting slow with time and use, illegal connections and such
other connections which bypass the meters installed.
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39.2 Transmission and distribution costs

Salaries, wages and benefits 6,841,507      12,728,291    
Contribution to / accruals in respect of staff

retirement benefit schemes 39.2.1 2,986,457      2,510,413      
Depreciation on operating assets 5.1.2 9,585,443      8,194,419      
Depreciation on right of use assets 7 63,808           58,717           
Repairs and maintenance 2,979,128      2,901,191      
Stores, spares and supplies consumed 1,144,141      1,211,867      
Gas consumed internally 693,836         773,291         
Legal and professional 494,017         135,549         
Software maintenance 51,634           58,466           
Electricity 276,574         216,218         
Security 1,633,698      1,348,117      
Insurance 112,142         109,567         
Travelling 94,348           92,261           
Material and labor used on consumers'

installation 6,048             19,403           
Postage and revenue stamps 2,924             2,368             

2025 2024
Note

Rent, rates and taxes 216,101         782,388         
Others 658,909         394,706         

27,840,715    31,537,232    
Recoveries / allocations to:

Gas distribution system capital expenditure (2,824,579)    (2,598,243)     
Installation costs recovered from customers 13 (46,890)         (93,942)          

(2,871,469)    (2,692,185)     
Recoveries of service cost from 

39.2.2 (135,732)       (135,732)        
Allocation to sale of gas condensate (4,413)           (4,674)            

24,829,101    28,704,641    

(Rupees in '000)

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited
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39.2.1 Contributions to / accrual in respect of
  staff retirement benefit schemes

Contributions to the provident fund 346,758         335,716         
Charge in respect of pension funds: 

executives 135,722         303,660         
non executives 611,258         542,196         

746,980         845,856         
Charge in respect of gratuity funds: 

executives 198,547         223,062         
non executives 188,455         160,125         

387,002         383,187         
Accrual in respect of unfunded post retirement

Medical facility 1,135,264      1,225,481      
Accrual in respect of compensated absences

Executives 263,084         (253,547)        
Other employees 107,369         (26,280)          

370,453         (279,827)        
2,986,457      2,510,413      

39.2.2

2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

40 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Administrative expenses 40.1 3,945,871      3,744,553      
Selling expenses 40.2 3,432,222      3,440,258      

7,378,093      7,184,811      

This represents recovery in respect of obligation against pipeline transferred to the 
Company from Engro Elengy Terminal Limited (EETL) amounting to Rs. 135.7 million 
(2024: Rs. 135.7 million).
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2025 2024
Note

40.1 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 2,208,922      2,112,618      
Contribution to / accruals in respect of staff

retirement benefit schemes 40.1.1 236,101         273,659         
Depreciation on operating assets 5.1.2 431,223         300,939         
Depreciation on right of use assets 7.3 4,596             2,001             
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 98,712           137,070         
Repairs and maintenance 292,530         209,213         
Stores, spares and supplies consumed 50,548           52,769           
Legal and professional 145,356         138,762         
Software maintenance 210,491         176,481         
Electricity 14,532           13,030           
Security 33,137           27,542           
Insurance and royalty 22,548           17,052           
Travelling 36,338           36,314           
Postage and revenue stamps 7,320             11,229           
Rent, rates and taxes 15,536           78,767           
Director meeting fee 28,167           27,221           
Others 136,687         147,948         

3,972,744      3,762,616      
Less: Allocation to meter manufacturing division 42.1 (26,873)         (18,063)          

3,945,871      3,744,553      

(Rupees in '000)

40.1.1 Contributions to / accrual in respect of
staff retirement benefit schemes

Contribution to the provident fund 66,267           57,890           
Charge in respect of pension funds: 

executives 32,969           72,764           
non-executives 35,956           29,140           

68,925           101,904         
Charge in respect of gratuity funds: 

executives 47,856           52,270           
non-executives 11,102           9,100             

58,958           61,370           
Accrual in respect of 

unfunded post retirement:
gas facility (5,352)           1,433             
medical facility 47,303           51,062           

41,951           52,495           
236,101         273,659         
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 2025  2024 
Note40.2 SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 2,048,426     2,174,456     
Contribution to / accruals in respect of staff

retirement benefit schemes 40.2.1 317,507        318,579        
Depreciation on operating assets 5.1.2 17,813          16,856          
Depreciation on right of use 7.3 23,640          22,176          
Repairs and maintenance 2,387            1,936            
Stores, spares and supplies consumed 28,924          33,242          
Electricity 312,456        237,997        
Insurance 1,334            1,250            
Travelling 331               466               
Gas bill and collection charges 612,605        570,891        
Postage and revenue stamps 1,467            487               
Rent, rates and taxes 15,281          14,393          
Others 50,051          47,529          

3,432,222     3,440,258     

40.2.1 Contribution to / accrual in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes

Contribution to the provident fund 71,073          71,753          
Charge in respect of pension funds: 

executives 19,135          36,376          
non-executives 152,569        135,961        

171,704        172,337        
Charge in respect of gratuity funds: 

executives 27,782          31,074          
non-executives 46,948          43,415          

74,730          74,489          
317,507        318,579        

41 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit 5,638            6,221            
Fee for other audit related services 1,220            1,429            
Out of pocket expenses 594               832               

7,452            8,482            
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 373,574        484,746        
Liquidated damages -                3,721,000     
Sports expenses 42,396          42,293          
Reversal of LPS income from WAPDA

and SNGPL -                17,951,015   
Corporate social responsibility 11,731          6,554            

(Rupees in '000)

Provision against slow-moving and 
obsolete stores and spares 31,937          -                

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 448,441        637,550        
Exchange loss 2,215,884     -                

3,131,415     22,851,640   
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 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)42 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Income from financial assets
Receivable against asset contribution 9,372            26,010          
Interest on loan to related party 102,321        127,448        
Late payment surcharge 5,028,201     2,650,053     
Liquidated damages recovered 125,693        117,353        
Return on TDR's and saving accounts 422,183        272,826        
Dividend income 40,490          5,220            

5,728,260     3,198,910     
Income from other than financial assets

RLNG transportation income 12,681,981   15,273,044   
Exchange gain -                4,638,356     
Meter rentals 1,587,272     1,603,546     
LNG service agreement 1,577,580     1,595,757     
Sale of gas condensate - net -                21,995          
Meter manufacturing division profit - net 42.1 1,426,504     674,691        
Deferred credit and contract liabilities 875,215

262,809
        781,512        

LPG air mix distribution - net 42.2                272,189        
Recoveries from customers 129,375        115,579        
Sale of tender documents 8,430            8,599            
Reversal against slow-moving and 

obsolete stores and spares -                9,757            
Amortization of Government grant 76,173          7,922            
Rental from SSGC LPG Limited 1,536            1,386            
Reversal of LPS expense from E&P Companies -                15,832,411   
Miscellaneous 121,892        153,491        

24,477,027   44,189,145   
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2025 2024
Note

Less: Sales tax (1,265,789)    (571,124)       
Net sales 6,858,210     3,133,554     
Less: Cost of goods sold

Raw material consumed (4,088,586)    (1,592,742)    
Salaries wages and other benefits 42.1.2 (847,206)       (612,208)       
Stores and spares consumed (25,915)         (13,687)         
Fuel, power and electricity (80,690)         (54,006)         
Insurance (16,204)         (4,387)           
Repairs and maintenance (29,184)         (13,658)         
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 5.1.2 (33,462)         (40,700)         
Transportation (32,175)         (13,876)         
Other expenses (280,642)       (100,027)       

(5,434,064)    (2,445,291)    
Gross profit 1,424,146     688,264        
Administrative expenses 40.1 (26,873)         (18,063)         
Operating profit 1,397,273     670,201        
Other income 29,231          4,490            
Profit for the year 1,426,504     674,691        

42.1.1 Gas meters used by the Company are included in operating fixed assets at manufactured cost.

42.1.2 The salaries, wages and other benefits includes:

Salaries, wages and other benefits 800,876        575,922        
Provident fund contribution 10,791          10,419          
Pension fund 25,856          15,414          
Gratuity 9,683            10,453          

847,206        612,208        

(Rupees in '000)42.1 Meter manufacturing division profit - net
Gross sale of gas meters:

Company's consumption 1,695,434     1,009,473     
Outside sales 6,428,565     2,695,205     

 8,123,999     3,704,678     
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42.2 Income from LPG air mix distribution - net
Sales 79,576          143,077        
Subsidy      1,686,868     
Less: Cost of sales  (878,546)

 1,411,666
       (1,202,999)    

Gross profit         626,946        
Distribution, selling and administrative expenses

   Salaries, wages and other benefits (104,924)

 612,696

       (95,695)         
   Depreciation on operating fixed assets (117,295)       (110,971)       
   Others (216,331)       (237,155)       

(438,550)       (443,821)       

2025  2024 
Note

Amortisation of deferred credit 27,545         27,544         
Other income 61,118         61,520         
Profit for the year  262,809        272,189       

43 FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:

Long term financing 6,879,857    6,807,770    
Short term borrowings 6,203,783    7,869,492    
Security deposits 762,033       751,683       
Government of Sindh 151,227       19,649         
Payable against transfer of pipeline 51,205         58,447         
Lease liability 18,065         17,954         
Workers Profit Participation Fund 97,065         50,880         
Others 197,210       84,008         

14,360,445  15,659,883  
Less: Finance cost capitalised 5.2.1 (2,217,562)   (2,285,145)  

12,142,883  13,374,738  

44 TAXATION

Current year -               3,472,918    
Deferred tax -               (3,472,918)  

-               -              

44.1

(Rupees in '000)

A portion of the minimum tax paid under section 153(1)(b) and Final taxes paid under
section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37, and includes super tax thereon of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, has been classified as levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 /
IAS 37.
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2025  2024 
44.2 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit 

Accounting profit for the year 7,097,912  9,210,168    

Tax rate 29% 29%

Tax charge @ 29% 2,058,394    2,670,949    
Impact of super tax -               1,417,518    

               

-
              

Impact of deferred tax recognized -

               

(3,472,918)

  
Others (2,058,394)

   

(615,549)

 
-                

(Rupees in '000)

  
45 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

45.1 Funded post retirement pension and gratuity schemes

Fair value of plan assets and present value of obligation

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,472,881  9,324,699   12,591       10,805,814 
Fair value of plan assets (2,079,569) (8,144,258) (745,620)    (7,136,773)  

(606,688)    1,180,441   (733,029)    3,669,041   

Movement in present value of defined benefit
obligation

Balance as at July 01, 2024 1,619,522  7,601,517   11,889       10,438,819 
Current service cost 44,023       370,341      -             456,492      
Interest cost 240,087     1,059,297   1,627         1,482,742   
Benefit paid during the year (94,943)      (1,139,319) (1,670)        (1,008,065)  
Remeasurement acturial gain / (loss) (335,808)    1,432,863   745            (564,174)     
Balance as at June 30, 2025 1,472,881  9,324,699   12,591       10,805,814 

Movement in fair value of plan assets
Balance as at July 01, 2024 1,275,578  7,426,663   155,996     5,709,254   
Interest income on plan assets 192,728     1,035,221   21,470       831,508      
Contribution during the year 615,768     373,151      1,290,581  259,200      
Amount transferred in / (out) (89,840)      89,840        (838,266)    838,266      
Benefits paid during the year (94,943)      (1,139,319) (1,670)        (1,008,065)  
Remeasurement acturial gain / (loss) 180,278     358,702      117,509     506,610      
Balance as at June 30, 2025 2,079,569  8,144,258   745,620     7,136,773   

As mentioned in note 4.19 to these unconsolidated financial statements, the Company operates
approved funded pension and gratuity schemes for all employees. Contributions are made to these
schemes based on actuarial valuation. Latest actuarial valuations were carried out as at June 30, 2025
under the Projected Unit Credit method for both non-executive and executive staff members.

The fair value of plan assets and present value of defined benefit obligations of the pension and gratuity
schemes at the valuation date were as follows:

Liability / (Asset)  in unconsolidated statement of financial position 
2025

Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Balance as at July 01, 2024 343,944     174,854      (144,107)    4,729,565   
Expense recognised for the year 198,382     287,417      831,564     256,319      
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (533,246)    1,091,321   (129,905)    (1,057,643)  
Contribution made during the year (615,768)    (373,151)    (1,290,581) (259,200)     
Balance as at June 30, 2025 (606,688)    1,180,441   (733,029)    3,669,041   

Current service cost 44,023       370,341      -             456,492      
Interest cost 240,087     1,059,297   1,627         1,482,742   
Interest income (192,728)    (1,035,221) (21,470)      (831,508)     
Amount transferred out / (in) 107,000     (107,000)    851,407     (851,407)     

198,382     287,417      831,564     256,319      

Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss recognised in
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurement actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation due to:

Financial assumptions 23,550       582,769      (124)           998,267      
Experience adjustments (359,358)    850,094      869            (1,562,441)  

(335,808)    1,432,863   745            (564,174)     
Remeasurement on plan assets arising on

Actual return on plan assets (362,862)    (1,269,304) (137,185)    (1,242,679)  
Expected return on plan assets 192,728     1,035,221   21,470       831,508      
Net return on plan assets over interest income (170,134)    (234,083)    (115,715)    (411,171)     
Difference in opening fair value of assets after audit (10,144)      (124,619)    (1,794)        (95,439)       

(180,278)    (358,702)    (117,509)    (506,610)     
Adjustment for previous amount transferrable (17,160)      17,160        (13,141)      13,141        

(533,246)    1,091,321   (129,905)    (1,057,643)  

Movement in liability / (asset)  in 
unconsolidated statement of financial position 

2025
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Expense recognised in the unconsolidated
statement of  profit or loss during 
year in respect of the above 
schemes were as follows:

Composition of plan assets of the fund

Listed shares 11.82% 0.56% 18.77% 0.14%
Debt instruments 87.48% 97.01% 78.89% 100.16%
Others including cash & cash equivalents 0.69% 2.43% 2.34% 1.75%
Investment in mutual fund. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.01%
Payable to related party 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% (2.07)%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Fair value of plan assets of the fund
Listed shares 245,895     45,944        139,940     10,138        
Debt instruments 1,819,223  7,900,684   588,199     7,148,126   
Others including cash & cash equivalents 14,451       197,630      17,481       125,058      
Investment in mutual fund. -             -             -             868             
Payable to related party -             -             -             (147,417)     
Total 2,079,569  8,144,258   745,620     7,136,773   

Detail of employees valued

Detail of employees valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2025:

Total number of employees 1,740         1,740          -             4,256          
Total monthly salaries 303,636     303,636      -             220,792      
Total number of pensioner 190            -             16              -              
Total monthly pension 4,666         -             144            -              

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,619,522  7,601,517   11,889       10,438,819 
Fair value of plan assets (1,275,578) (7,426,663) (155,996)    (5,709,254)  

343,944 174,854 (144,107)    4,729,565  

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Movement in present value of defined benefit
obligation

Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,640,000  8,260,995   10,335       8,888,826   
Current service cost 49,085       416,238      -             395,351      
Interest cost 268,456     1,282,975   1,560         1,401,540   
Benefit paid during the year (63,307)      (976,077)    (1,594)        (881,030)     
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (274,712)    (1,382,614) 1,588         634,132      
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,619,522  7,601,517   11,889       10,438,819 

Executives Non-executives

2025
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Liability / (Asset)  in unconsolidated statement of financial position 
2024

Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

2024

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------
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Movement in fair value of plan assets

Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,398,669  6,602,251   144,152     5,063,051   
Interest income on plan assets 232,084     1,032,977   21,729       824,938      
Contribution during the year 118,603     246,101      176,820     339,916      
Benefits paid during the year (63,307)      (976,077)    (1,594)        (881,030)     
Amount transferred in / (out) (438,763)    438,763      (181,000)    181,000      
Remeasurement acturial gain / (loss) 28,292       82,648        (4,111)        181,379      
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,275,578  7,426,663   155,996     5,709,254   

Movement in liability / (asset)  in unconsolidated
statement of financial position

Liability / (asset) as at July 01, 2023 241,331     1,658,744   (133,817)    3,825,775   
Expense recognised for the year 430,536     321,157      729,314     222,470      
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (209,320)    (1,558,946) (562,784)    1,021,236   
Contribution made during the year (118,603)    (246,101)    (176,820)    (339,916)     
Liability / (asset)  as at June 30, 2024 343,944     174,854      (144,107)    4,729,565   

Current service cost 49,085       416,238      -             395,351      
Interest cost 268,456     1,282,975   1,560         1,401,540   
Interest income (232,084)    (1,032,977) (21,729)      (824,938)     
Amount transferred out / (in) 345,079     (345,079)    749,483     (749,483)     

430,536     321,157      729,314     222,470      

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Remeasurement actuarial (gain) / loss recognised
in unconsolidated statement of comprehensive 
income

Remeasurement actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation due to:

Financial assumptions (1,686)        91,872        (56)             124,285      
Experience adjustments (273,026)    (1,474,486) 1,644         509,847      

(274,712)    (1,382,614) 1,588         634,132      
Remeasurement on plan assets arising on

Actual return on plan assets (260,376)    (1,091,606) (17,618)      (945,132)     
Expected return on plan assets 232,084     1,032,977   21,729       824,938      
Net return on plan assets over interest income (28,292)      (58,629)      4,111         (120,194)     
Difference in opening fair value of assets after audit -             (24,019)      -             (61,185)       

(28,292)      (82,648)      4,111         (181,379)     
Adjustment for previous amount transferrable 93,684       (93,684)      (568,483)    568,483      

(209,320)    (1,558,946) (562,784)    1,021,236   

Expense recognised in the unconsolidated
statement of  profit or loss during 
year in respect of the above 
schemes were as follows:

2024
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------
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Composition of plan assets of the fund

Listed shares 4.27% 0.82% 20.72% 1.48%
Debt instruments 95.33% 98.58% 71.77% 93.72%
Others including cash & cash equivalents 0.40% 0.60% 7.51% 4.81%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Fair value of plan assets of the fund

Listed shares 54,477       60,904        32,321       84,296        
Debt instruments 1,215,972  7,321,447   111,965     5,350,597   
Others including cash & cash equivalents 5,129         44,312        11,710       274,361      
Total 1,275,578  7,426,663   155,996     5,709,254   

Detail of employees valued

Detail of employees valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Total number of employees 1,850         1,850          -             4,339          
Total monthly salaries 265,320     265,320      -             233,165      
Total number of pensioner 186            -             19              -              
Total monthly pension 3,924         -             136            -              

Significant assumptions used for the valuation of above schemes are as follows:

2025 2024

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
Salary increase rate in the first year

Executives 15.00% 15.00%
Non- Executives 25.00% 15.00%

Expected rate of increase in salary level 10.75% -              
Executives 10.75% 12.75%
Non- Executives 11.75% 12.75%

Increase in pension 5.75% 8.75%
Mortality rates
Rates of employee turnover Moderate Moderate

2024
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Executives and 
Non-executives 

SLIC (2001-05)-1

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected rate of salary and pension increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Discount rate 1% 1,357,573  8,984,944   11,246       10,340,895 
Salary increase rate 1% 1,504,009  9,650,835   -             11,311,229 
Pension increase

 rate 1% 1,576,386  -             12,645       -              
Discount rate 1% 1,608,446  9,694,307   12,610       11,168,884 
Salary growth rate 1% 1,608,446  9,019,820   -             10,464,544 
Pension increase

 rate 1% 1,383,072  -             11,206       -              

The expected pension and gratuity expense for the financial year ending June 30, 2026 is as follows:

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

Current service cost 34,291       446,028      -             469,307      
Interest cost 173,237     1,019,605   1,375         1,210,445   
Interest income on plan assets (240,671)    (888,397)    (82,852)      (802,627)     
Interest cost (67,434)      131,208      (81,477)      407,818      
Amount transferred out / (in) 252,669     (252,669)    614,863     (614,863)     

      219,526       324,567       533,386        262,262 

Executives Non-Executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Impact of change in assumptions in 
present value of defined benefit obligation

Increase in
assumption

Change in
assumption

Increase in
assumption

Executives Non-executives

---------------------------(Rupees'000)------------------------------

45.2 Unfunded post retirement medical benefit and gas supply facilities 

Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical gas facility
facility

Liability in unconsolidated statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation     8,731,065               7,634        8,738,699 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Liability as at July 01, 2024     6,629,289             10,857 6,640,146      
Expense recognised for the year     1,182,566             (5,352) 1,177,214      
Payments during the year      (242,199)             (1,404) (243,603)        
Remeasurement acturial loss     1,161,409               3,533 1,164,942      
Liability as at June 30, 2025     8,731,065               7,634        8,738,699 

The Company provides free medical and gas supply facilities to its retired executive
employees. The free gas supply facility has been discontinued for employees who had
retired after December 31, 2000. The latest actuarial valuations of the liability under these
schemes were carried out as at June 30, 2025 under the Projected Unit Credit Method,
results of which are as follows: 

2025

Total

--------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------
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Expense recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 203,724      -                 203,724         
Past service cost -              (7,005)            (7,005)            
Interest cost 978,842      1,653             980,495         

1,182,566   (5,352)            1,177,214      

Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical gas facility
facility

Remeasurement acturial loss recognised in
unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurement acturial loss on defined benefit obligation due to:

Financial assumptions 990,711      523                991,234         
Experience adjustments 170,698      3,010             173,708         

1,161,409   3,533             1,164,942      

Detail of employee valued

Detail of employee valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2025:

Total number of actives 1,504          -                 
Total number of beneficiaries 2,350          23                  

Total

2025

------------(Rupees in '000)-----------

Medical 
facility

Gas
 facility
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Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical gas facility
facility

Liability in unconsolidated statement of financial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation     6,629,289             10,857        6,640,146 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Liability as at July 01, 2023     6,587,344               9,256 6,596,600      
Expense recognised for the year     1,276,543               1,433 1,277,976      
Payments during the year      (202,698)             (2,120) (204,818)        
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss   (1,031,900)               2,288 (1,029,612)     
Liability as at June 30, 2024     6,629,289             10,857        6,640,146 

Expense recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 208,813      -                 208,813         
Interest cost 1,067,730   1,433             1,069,163      

1,276,543   1,433             1,277,976      

Remeasurement acturial (gain)/loss recognised
in unconsolidated statement of comprehensive 
income
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation due to:

Financial assumptions (341,665)     -                 (341,665)        
Experience adjustments (690,235)     2,288             (687,947)        

(1,031,900)  2,288             (1,029,612)     

2024

Total

--------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------
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Detail of employee valued

Detail of employee valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Total number of actives 1,680             -                 
Total number of beneficiaries 2,283             25                  

45.3 Significant assumptions used for the valuation of above schemes are as follows:

2025 2024

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
Medical inflation rate - (Post-Retirement) 10.75% 12.75%
Medical inflation rate - (Pre-Retirement) 10.75% 12.75%
Gas inflation rate 13.75% 14.75%
Benefit limit - Gas 61,500           48,000           
Expected medical expense for adult - retires and deceased staff 103,500         82,500           
Expected medical expense for adult - active (family of two) 207,000         165,000         
Expected medical expense for children 10,000           10,000           
Mortality rates (for death in service & post retirement mortality)
Rate of employees turnover Moderate Moderate

Discount rate 7,667,801      11,175           
Medical inflation rate (Pre retirement) 8,938,806      -                 
Medical inflation rate (Post retirement) 9,829,583      -                 
Gas inflation rate -                 12,452           

Executives

Medical 
facility

Gas
 facility

 SLIC (2001-05) 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are
discount rate, expected rate of medical and gas increase. The sensitivity analyses below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Change in 
assumption

---------(Rupees in '000)--------

Increase in 
assumption

Impact of change in assumptions in 
present value of defined benefit 

obligation
Post 

retirement 
medical facility

Post 
retirement 
gas facility
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Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical facility gas facility

Discount rate 10,039,956    12,458           
Medical inflation rate (Pre retirement) 8,536,093      -                 
Medical inflation rate (Post retirement) 7,803,380      -                 
Gas inflation rate -                 11,170           

The expected medical and gas expense for financial year ending June 30, 2026 is as follows:
Post Post 

retirement retirement 
medical facility gas facility

Current service cost 249,677         -                 
Net interest cost 1,024,070      816                

1,273,747      816                

45.4

2025  2024 

46 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before levy and taxation 7,097,912    9,210,168      
Adjustments for:

Non-cash and other items 47.1 34,294,574    29,487,227    
Working capital changes 47.2 (14,659,705)   (9,413,452)     

26,732,781    29,283,943    

---------(Rupees in '000)--------

Change in 
assumption

(Rupees in '000)

Decrease in 
assumption

All investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified there under. 

2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

Profit for the year (Rupees in '000) 2,689,308    6,839,126        

Average number of ordinary shares(Number of shares) 880,916,309  880,916,309    

Earnings per share -
basic and diluted (Rupees) 3.05             7.76                 
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2025 2024
Note

47.1

Provisions 47.1.1 8,869,806      4,600,614      
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 5.1.2 10,271,397    8,752,741      
Depreciation on right of use assets 7 92,044           82,894           
Depreciation on projects capitalised 5.1.2 (86,161)          (88,855)          
Amortization of intangible assets 6 98,712           137,070         
Finance cost 12,208,905    13,298,337    
Recognition of income against deferred credit and 

contract liability (902,762)        (809,056)        
Amortization of government grant 42 (76,173)          (7,922)            
Dividend income 42 (40,490)          (5,220)            
Interest income (524,504)        (400,274)        
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 41 446,972         637,393         
Increase / (decrease) in long term advances 1,102,262      (829,368)        
Increase in deferred grant and contract liability 2,783,866      1,923,868      
Finance cost on lease liabilities 43 18,065           17,954           
Reversal of LPS income from SNGPL and WAPDA -

-
                 17,951,015    
         Reversal of LPS expense from E&P companies                  (15,832,411)   

Adjustment against investment in related party (18,570)          -                 
Finance cost against transfer of pipeline 43 51,205           58,447           

34,294,574    29,487,227    

47.1.1 Provisions

Provision against slow moving / obsolete stores 32,139           (9,203)            
Allowance for expected credit loss 5,716,317      1,950,297      
Provision for compensated absences 370,454         (279,827)        
Reversal in provision against loss allowance -                 (42,106)          
Provision for post retirement medical and free gas 

supply facilities 1,177,214      1,277,976      
Provision for retirement benefits 1,573,682      1,703,477      

8,869,806      4,600,614      

47.2 WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Store, spares and loose tools (369,102)        (404,957)        
Stock-in-trade 822,052         (592,834)        
Customers' installation work-in-progress 39,406           (23,064)          
Trade debts (9,192,350)     (11,152,846)   
Advances, deposits and prepayments (305,551)        234,165         
Other receivables 127,750,339  (101,474,841) 

118,744,794    (113,414,377) 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (133,404,500) 104,000,925  
(14,659,705)   (9,413,452)     

(Rupees in '000)
ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-CASH AND 
OTHER ITEMS
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47.2.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 20        1,187,075        1,123,182 

2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

Short term borrowings 33    (82,806,374)    (37,774,786)
   (81,619,299)    (36,651,604)

48 CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance as at July 01,             86,178      42,540,964 
Addition in lease / proceed from long term loan           108,120      20,000,000 
Repayment of lease liability / long term loan         (104,039)      (9,273,205)
Balance as at June 30,             90,259      53,267,759 

Balance as at July 01,             66,315      32,189,311 
Addition in lease / proceed from long term loan           116,906      15,018,320 
Repayment of lease liability / long term loan           (97,043)      (4,666,667)
Balance as at June 30,             86,178      42,540,964 

2024

Lease liability
Long term 
financing

2025

Lease liability
Long term 
financing
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49 REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managing Managing 
Director Director

Directors' fees (note 50.3) -            28,167         -                   -                 27,221                    -                          

Managerial remuneration 29,319      -               4,145,924        29,078            -                          3,045,395               

Housing 10,088      -               1,513,846        12,266            -                          1,224,128               

Utilities 2,242        -               336,409           2,726              -                          272,028                  

Retirement benefits
- Grautity 158           -               235,911           -                 -                          190,792                  

- Provident fund 1,681        -               179,277           -                 -                          192,519                  

- Pension 143           -               198,292           -                 -                          278,105                  

- EOBI 4               -               5,969               4                     -                          4,543                      

1,986        -               619,449           4                     -                          665,959                  

43,635      28,167         6,615,628        44,074            27,221                    5,207,510               

Total number 1               12                1,370               1                     12                           1,242                      

49.1 Executive means any employee whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million per year.

49.2

49.3

50 CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PERFORMANCE

Natural gas transmission

MMCF HM3 MMCF HM3
Transmission operation

Capacity - annual rated 

  capacity at 100% load 

  factor with compression 990,610       279,092,975    990,610          279,092,975           

Utilisation - volume of 

gas transmitted 596,411  168,031,941    620,833          174,912,522           

Capacity utilisation factor (%) 60.21% 60.21% 62.67% 62.67%

2025 2024

Directors Executives Directors Executives

--------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in 000) ---------------------------------------------------------------

The Chairperson, Managing Director and certain Executives are also provided with the Company
maintained vehicles in accordance with their entitlement. In addition, the Chairperson of the
Company was paid Rs. 2.57 million (2024: Rs. 3.20 million) as Honorarium. Executives are also
provided with medical facilities in accordance with their entitlement.

Non-executive directors are paid fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committees, with no other remuneration.

2025 2024
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Natural gas distribution

Meter manufacturing division

51 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2025 2024

Government related entities - various

- Purchase of fuel and lubricant 383,290         271,153         
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of 

  sales tax 40,539,094    59,179,825    
- Mark-up expense on short term finance -                 79,813           
- Gas purchases - Indigenous gas 168,415,435  175,570,563  
- Gas purchases - RLNG 116,270,159  123,533,323  

   - Sale of gas condensate -                 26,679           
- Sale of gas meter spare parts inclusive of 

  sales tax 5,440,527      2,261,147      
- Rent of premises 17,207           11,805           
- Insurance premium 177,852         156,243         
- Royalty 1,594             1,783             
- License fee 376,440         107,214         
- PPRA fee 22,182           17,170           

                            - Telecommunication 54,009           18,403           
- Electricity 333,938         332,469         
- RLNG transportation income 12,681,980    15,273,045    
- Reversal of LPS income from SNGPL and WAPDA -                 17,951,015    
- Reversal of LPS Expense from E&P Companies -                 15,832,411    
- LPG purchases 912,356         1,216,609      
- Income against LNG service agreement 1,577,580      1,595,757

5,189

      
- Dividend income 35,270           -                 
- Markup income on bank deposit 4,536                              

The Company has no control over the rate of utilisation of its capacity as the use of available
capacity is dependent on off-takes by the customers. 

During the year meter manufacturing division produced and assembled 1,117,334 meters (2024:
504,940 meters) against an annual capacity of 1.2 million meters (With extended assembly lines
and extra hour working)

The related parties comprise of subsidiary companies, associated companies due to common
directorship, Government related entities, staff retirement benefits plans, directors and key
management personnel (including their associates). Purchase and sale of gas from / to related
parties are determined at rates finalized and notified by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority
(OGRA). Remuneration of key management personnel are in accordance with the term of
employment / appointment. Other transaction with the related parties are carried out as per
agreed terms. 

The details of transactions with related parties not disclosed else where in these unconsolidated
financial statements are as follows:

Basis of 
Relationship --------- (Rupees in '000) --------
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2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

Karachi Grammar School
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of sales tax 95                  107                

Key management personnel
- Remuneration 262,546         199,335         

Engro Fertilizers Limited
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of sales tax -                 2,265             

Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
- Subscription / Trainings 1,018             234                

Indus Hospital & Health Network
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of sales tax -                 1,037             

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of sales tax 260                259                
- Subscription 2,228             1,986             

Pakistan Cables Ltd
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of sales tax 291,819         319,202         

SSGC LPG Limited
- Interest Income on loan 102,321         127,448         
- Rent on premises 1,536             1,386             

SSGC Alternate Energy (Private) Limited
- Payment on behalf of Company 7,915             6,693             
- Interest Income on loan 2,594             1,537             

Staff Retirement Benefit Plans
- Contribution to provident fund 505,649         485,661         
- Contribution to pension fund 1,029,946      1,159,850      
- Contribution to gratuity fund 543,736         543,627         

Contribution to the defined contribution and benefit plans are in accordance with the terms of the
entitlement of the employees and / or actuarial advice. Balance payable to / receivable from
these employees benefit plans are disclosed in notes 26, 34 and 45 to these unconsolidated
financial statements.

Remuneration to the executive officers of the Company (disclosed in note 50 to these
unconsolidated financial statements) and loans and advances to them (disclosed in notes 10 and
15 to these unconsolidated financial statements) are determined in accordance with the terms of
their employment. Mark-up free security deposits for gas connections to the executive staff of the
Company is received at rates prescribed by the Government of Pakistan (GOP).
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2025 2024

Government related entities - various

- Sale of gas and allied charges 57,369,256    58,211,200    
- Gas purchases - Indigenous gas (716,733,782) (709,357,094) 
- Gas purchases - RLNG (18,342,311)   (104,832,096) 
- Sale of gas condensate 4,365             4,365             
- Gas meters and spare parts 1,328,686      2,706,361      
- Uniform cost of gas -                 15,818,846    
- Uniform cost of gas- RLNG 20,000,000    20,000,000    
- Cash at bank 19,339           171,906         
- Stock loan 28,015           1,503             
- Gas supply deposit (508,767)        (682,074)        
- Contingent rent 19,529           19,529           
- Differential tariff 4,284,080      4,284,080      
- Capacity and utilisation charges of RLNG 3,958,765      54,587,819    
- RLNG transportation income 20,680,918    47,798,343    
- LSA margins 374,282         3,032,075      
- Lease rentals 18,207           -                 
- Advance for sharing right of way (18,088)          (18,088)

(2,512)

          
- Advance against LPG purchases 118,518         143,306         
- Long term deposits 12,663           11,435
- Retention Money

           

- Prepayment 177,924         140,748         
                 

-

                 

Karachi Grammar School
- Sale of gas and allied charges 5                    5                    
- Gas supply deposit (22)                 (22)                 

                                  
                                 

                                  

                                  

Pakistan Stock Exchange
- Sale of gas and allied charges 8                    8                    
- Gas supply deposit (99)                 (99)                 

The details of amount due (to) / from related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these
unconsolidated financial statements are as follows: 

(Rupees in '000)
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Pakistan Cables Ltd
- Sale of gas and allied charges 7,696             37,856           
- Gas supply deposit (1,189)            (1,189)            

SSGC LPG Limited
- Long term investment 1,082,278      1,063,708      
- Interest on loan 16,254           29,433           
- Long term loan 325,000         450,000         
- Current portion of long term loan 100,000         75,000           

                                  
                  

- Short term loan 296,429         533,573         
- LPG sales 5,698             5,698             
- Rent on premises 738                637                
- Receivable against management fees 1,408             1,408             

SSGC Alternate Energy (Private) Limited
- Long term investment 20,000           20,000           
- Other receivables 2,995             13,009           
- Accrued markup 4,412             -                 

51.1 Maximum aggregate outstanding balance from related parties at the end of any month is as below:

2025 2024

Included in Trade Debts

Government related entities
- K-Electric Limited 32,053,844    45,685,561    
- Water and Power Development Authority 449,243         3,197,701      
- Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 1,892             1,642             
- Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited 3,680             756                
- Pakistan Steel Mills Corporation (Private) Limited 24,433,924    99,822,349    
- National Bank Of Pakistan 18,206           9,204             
- State Bank of Pakistan 4,239             3,310             
- State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan 208                66                  
- Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 87                  403                
- Pakistan Machine Tool Factory 8,229             7,541             
- Pakistan Railways 548                222                
- Pakistan Navy 479,449         285,209         
- Pakistan Engineering 17                  9                    
- Pakistan Security Printing Corporation (Pvt) Limited 74,497           53,401           
- National Investment Trust Limited 17                  8                    
- Hydrocarbon Development Institute of Pakistan 49                  76                  
- Security Papers Limited 87,113           82,849           
- Mari Petroleum Company Limited 110                119                
- National Insurance Company Limited 501                574                
- Pakistan Refinery Limited 193,569         81,140           
- Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 215                27                  
- Pakistan Petroleum Limited 353                393

208,724
6,840

20,249
10,062

6,246
-

1,168

                
- Pakistan Steel Mill Limited 170,721         
- Enar Petroleum Refining Facility 6,543             
- Jamshoro Power Company Limited 422,695         
- Karachi Shipyard and Engineering Works Ltd. 10,938           
- National Industrial Park 6,772             
- Pak Arab Refinery Ltd. 916                
- Pakistan Television Corporation Ltd. 1,563             

             

(Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)
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2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

 Other Associated Companies
- Karachi Grammar School 19                  33                  
- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 82                  56                  
- Pakistan Cables Ltd 46,837           47,579           

Included in loans and advances
- SSGC LPG Limited 983,180         1,311,430      
- SSGC Alternate energy (Private) limited 15,635           13,009           

The aging of related party balances (related to financial assets) at the reporting date is as follows:

Past due 1 month 11,549,356    7,594,553      
Past due 2-3 months 879,194         1,453,913      
Past due 4-12 months 688,483         22,808,577    
Past due over 12 months 96,019,087    176,047,693  

109,136,120  207,904,736  

52  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

Credit risk

The objective of Company’s overall financial risk management is to minimize earnings volatility and
provide maximum return to shareholders. The Board of Directors of the Company has overall
responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management frame work and
policies. 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of any collateral.
Credit risk arises from long term loan and deposits trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits,
bank balances, interest accrued and other receivables.  

To reduce the exposure toward the credit risk, comprehensive customer category wise credit limits and
terms have been established. The Company continuously monitors the credit given to customers and
interest accrued thereon and has established a dedicated recovery department for follow-up, recovery
or disconnection of gas supply as the  case may be.

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement at year end is the carrying
amount of the financial assets as set out below: 
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2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

Trade debts 130,923,618 127,447,585  
Loans and advances 1,535,342     1,686,751      
Deposits 34,401          36,084           
Interest accrued 202,805        219,341         
Other receivables 49,903,862   147,539,193  
Bank balances 1,178,693     1,114,924      

183,778,721 278,043,878  

52.1  Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

Cash deposits 38,969,911   31,284,902    
Bank guarantee / irrevocable letter of credit 90,372,869   73,439,051    

52.2  Credit Quality

Long term loan and deposits

The company take security deposits against supply of gas to industrial, commercial and domestic
customers on the basis of average three months gas consumption as per OGRA notification. These
collaterals are adjusted / called following on disconnection of gas supply. Details of security held at
year end is as follows: 

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance
of such assets and where available external credit ratings. The carrying values of all financial assets
which are neither past due nor impaired are given in the note 54.1.3 to these unconsolidated financial
statements.

The credit quality of the Company’s major bank accounts is assessed with reference to external credit
ratings which are as follows: 
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52.3 Past due and impaired financial assets

Industrial and commercial customers

Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment

Not due balances 29,512,040        -                     44,480,672        -                      

Past due but not impaired 33,864,694        -                     50,034,909        -                      

Past due and impaired 4,882,736          432,407          4,923,861          2,906,296           

Disconnected customers 26,530,483          3,404,385          2,795,299          2,795,299           

Total 94,789,953      3,836,792          102,234,741      5,701,595           

The age analysis of trade debt balances relating to industrial and commercial customers at year end is 
as follows: 

2025 2024

Bank Rating Agency
Short term Long term

National  Bank of Pakistan PACRA - VIS A-1+ AAA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Dubai Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1+ AA
Standard Charated  Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA, VIS A-1+, A-1+ AA, AA+
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Askari Bank limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
The Bank Of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA+
First Women Bank Limited PACRA A-2 A-
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited PACRA A-1 AA-
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1 AA-
Habib Metropolitian Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited PACRA A-1 AA
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA-
Easy Paisa Digital Bank PACRA A-1 A+
Citi Bank N.A. Moody's P-1 Aa3

Deutsche Bank A.G
Moody's, S&P, 

Fitch   A-1, F-1 A-1, A, A-

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
S&P* , 

Moody's** A , A-1
Sindh Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AA-

Rating
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The Company has collateral / security against industrial and commercial customers amounting to Rs.
108,506 million (2024: Rs. 90,372 million) and replenishes such collateral based on gas consumption
and requirements of the customers. When recovery is not made within one month, such customers'
balances are generally considered past due. In case of past due balances, the Company starts the
recovery process through the recovery department, and if the amount is in excess of collateral and is
not recovered by the recovery department, then disconnection of the meter (disconnected customers)
is considered. Receivables which are past due and against which recoveries are not made or which are
disconnected are considered as impaired debts.

  

Past due but not impaired balances include aggregate overdue balances of K-Electric (KE), Pakistan
Steels Mills Limited (PSML) and Water & Power Development Authority (WAPDA) amounting to Rs.
26,420 million (2024: Rs. 48,224 million) and are subject to inter corporate circular debt of government
entities and K-Electric.

Domestic customers

Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment

Not due balances                     -                     -                     -                      

Past due but not impaired 3,146,105
6,083,898

        -                     25,833,437        -                      

Past due and impaired 41,789,305        11,048,851          11,031,340        5,950,339           

Disconnected customers 18,276,042        18,276,042        15,793,434        15,793,434         

Total 69,295,350        29,324,893        52,658,211        21,743,773         

Interest accrued

Other receivables

52.4

  

Concentration of credit risk

2025 2024

 The age analysis of trade debt balances relating to domestic customers at year end is as follows: 

The Company has collateral / security against domestic customers amounting to Rs. 20,837 million
(2024: Rs. 14,352 million) and replenishes such collateral based on gas consumption and requirement
of the customers. When recovery is not made within one month, such customers balances are
generally considered past due. 

As at June 30, 2025, interest accrued net of provision was Rs. 691 million (2024: Rs. 707  million). 

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other conditions.
Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry. Concentration of credit risk is determined with references
to the individual customers / counter parties, type as well as geographical distribution of customers /
counterparties. Concentration of credit risk in financial assets of the Company is as follows:

As at June 30, 2025, other receivable financial assets amounted to Rs. 49,904 million (2024: Rs. 147,539 
million). Past due other receivables amounting to Rs. 42,129 million (2024: Rs. 124,318 million) include 
over due balances of SNGPL amounting to Rs. 39,859 million  (2024: Rs. 122,048 million), JJVL 
amounting to Rs. 2,262 million (2024: Rs. 2,262 million) and of SSGC LPG amounting to Rs. 8 million 
(2024: Rs. 8 million).
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Trade debts

Customer category wise concentration of credit risk in respect of trade debts at year end is as follows:

2025 2024

Power generation companies 28,847,348   30,849,372    
Cement industries 20,462          18,641           
Fertilizer and steel industries 23,823,191     24,858,322    
Other industries 33,972,564   37,401,688    

86,663,565
   

93,128,023
    

Commercial customers 2,206,465     3,367,477      
Domestic customers 42,053,588   30,952,085    

130,923,618 127,447,585  

Karachi 94,027,299   97,272,336    
Sindh (excluding Karachi) 21,119,844   20,402,748    
Balochistan 15,776,475   9,772,501      

130,923,618 127,447,585  
Interest accrued

Other receivables

Geographical region wise concentration of credit risk in respect of trade debts at year end is as follows:

Most significant counter parties of the Company in respect of interest accrued are disclosed in note 17
to these unconsolidated  financial statements.

(Rupees in '000)
Industrial customers

Most significant other receivables of the Company are in respect of tarrif differential and uniform cost of 
gas agreement with SNGPL as disclosed in note 18 to these unconsolidated financial statements. 
These balances are subject to inter corporate circular debt.
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Carrying amount
Contractual cash 

flows
Not later than six 

months

Later than six 
months but not 
later than 1 year

Later than one 
year but not later 

than
2 years

Later than
2 years

As at June 30, 2024

Long term finance 42,540,690         (58,662,966)        (7,153,458)          (10,284,887)        (27,082,082)        (14,142,539)        
Payable against transfer of 

pipeline 607,696               (607,696)             (67,866)               (67,866)               (135,732)             (336,232)             
Short term borrowings 37,774,786         (37,774,786)        (37,774,786)        -                      -                      -                      
Trade and other payables 981,638,533       (981,638,533)      (981,638,533)      -                      -                      -                      
Interest accrued 3,314,255           (3,314,255)          (3,314,255)          -                      -                      -                      
Security deposits 31,399,978         (31,399,978)        -                      -                      -                      (31,399,978)        
Lease liability 86,178                 (86,178)               -                      (68,292)               -                      (17,886)               
Employee benefits 7,262,302           (7,262,302)          -                      -                      -                      (7,262,302)          
Unclaimed dividend 341,320               (341,320)             (341,320)             -                      -                      -                      

1,104,965,738    (1,121,088,014)   (1,030,290,218)   (10,421,045)        (27,217,814)        (53,158,937)        

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

52.5 Liquidity risk

As at June 30, 2025

Long term finance 53,403,557         (63,452,946)        (15,994,580)        (33,176,769)        (7,111,317)          (7,170,280)          
Payable against transfer of 

pipeline 523,169               (523,169)             (67,866)               (67,866)               (135,731)             (251,706)             
Short term borrowings 82,806,374         (82,806,374)        (82,806,374)        -                      -                      -                      
Trade and other payables 863,940,551       (863,940,551)      (863,940,551)      -                      -                      -                      
Interest accrued 2,330,568           (2,330,568)          (2,330,568)          -                      -                      -                      
Security deposits 39,086,356         (39,086,356)        -                      -                      -                      (39,086,356)        
Lease liability 90,259                 (90,259)               -                      (78,527)               -                      (11,732)               
Employee benefits 9,623,940           (9,623,940)          -                      -                      -                      (9,623,940)          
Unclaimed dividend 341,320               (341,320)             (341,320)             -                      -                      -                      

1,052,146,094    (1,062,195,483)   (965,481,259)      (33,323,162)        (7,247,048)          (56,144,014)        

Carrying amount
Contractual cash 

flows
Not later than six 

months

Later than six 
months but not 
later than 1 year

Later than one 
year but not later 

than
2 years

Later than
2 years

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because 
of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 
associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
damage to the Company's reputation. Due to nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit 
lines available. The Company’s liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to fulfill 
its obligation, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date 
to the contractual maturity date.
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52.6 Market risk

52.7 Currency risk

Rupees US Dollars Rupees US Dollars
in '000 in '000 in '000 in '000

Creditors for gas 103,316,400   363,662          140,371,003   503,483          

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

2025 2024 2025 2024

277.79            283.24            284.10 278.80            

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the
basis of latest available market rates. The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in notes 24.1
and 25.1 to these unconsolidated financial statements. Contractual cash flows of the long term
deposits are determined on the assumption that adjusted / refund of these deposits will not be
required before expiry of 40 years from reporting date.

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer
or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk (equity price risk). 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a
change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into foreign currencies. 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on creditors for gas that are denominated in a currency
other than functional currency of the Company. The currency in which these transactions
primarily are denominated is US Dollars. The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as
follows: 

2025 2024

Above net exposure is payable by the Company in Rupees at the rate on which these are settled
by the Company. Currently, the Company does not obtain forward cover against the gross
exposure as exchange loss / gain on purchases of gas and supplies is recovered from / paid to
Government of Pakistan as part of guaranteed return.

Average rates Reporting date rate
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Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

2025 2024

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

Loan and advances -                 36                   
Cash and bank balances 731,457          738,638          
Receivable against asset contribution 163,880          231,767          

895,337          970,441          
Financial liabilities

Long term deposits (18,132,598)    (16,933,408)    
Government of Sindh loan (940,000)         (804,709)         
Payable against transfer of pipeline (523,169)         (607,696)         
Lease liability (90,259)           (86,178)           

(19,686,026)    (18,431,990)    
Variable rate instruments

Financial assets
Other receivables 22,262,314     38,081,159     
Loan to related party 425,000          525,000          

22,687,314     38,606,159     
Financial liabilities

Long term loan except Government of Sindh loan (52,463,557)    (41,735,981)    
Short term borrowings (82,806,374)    (37,774,786)    
Trade and other payables (23,605,580)    (39,000,238)    

(158,875,511)  (118,511,005)  
(136,188,197)  (79,904,846)    

A ten percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Rupee against US Dollar at June 30, 2025
would have (decreased) / increased trade creditors by Rs. 10,332 million (2024: Rs. 14,037
million). There is no effect of strengthening / (weakening) of US dollar on unconsolidated equity
and unconsolidated statement of profit or loss of the Company as exchange loss / gain on
purchases of gas and store and supplies is recovered from / paid to Government of Pakistan
(GOP) as part of tariff adjustments. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2024.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure
arises from short and long term borrowings from banks. At the reporting date the interest rate
profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows: 

(Rupees in '000)
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Equity price risk

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fixed rate instruments bear fixed interest rate while all other borrowings bear variable interest
rate and are indexed to KIBOR. Borrowing is generally determined on the basis of business
needs. The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a regular basis by monitoring
existing facilities against prevailing market interest rates and taking into account various other
financing options available.

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and the equity of the
Company. 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have net increased or
(net decreased) the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss of the Company as at June 30,
2025, by Rs. 1,362 million (2024: Rs. 799 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis as for 2024.

Equity price risk is the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as the result of
changes in the levels of KSE-100 Index and the value of individual shares. The equity price risk
exposure arises from the Company's investments in listed equity securities. This arises from
investments held by the Company for which prices in the future are uncertain. The fair value of
listed equity investments of the Company that are exposed to price risk as at June 30, 2025 is
Rs. 454 million (2024: Rs. 257 million).

A ten percent increase / decrease in the prices of listed equity securities of the Company at the
reporting date would have increased / (decreased) long term investment and unconsolidated
equity by Rs. 45.4 million (2024: Rs. 25.7 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables,
in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2024.

The carrying values of all financial instruments reflected in these unconsolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values except for investment in unquoted companies which are
reflected at cost less impairment losses.
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1:
Level 2:

Level 3:

Level 1- Listed securities

Level 2 - Operating fixed assets (Freehold and lease land) 

There have been no transfers during the year.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows: 

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 1 and level 2

The valuation has been determined through closing rates of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Other than disclosed above the fair value of all financial assets and liabilities equals to their
carrying amounts.

The fair value of the freehold and leasehold land are derived using the Sale Comparison approach. 
The sales value is determined by physically analysing the condition of land and by ascertaining the 
market value of similar land, which is by selling in near vicinity.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

-                      60,531,864  -                                  60,531,864 

Financials assets
At fair value through OCI

Listed equity securities               454,109                  -   -                                       454,109 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

-
                      

60,531,864
  

-
                       

           60,531,864 

Financials assets - through OCI
Quoted equity securities 256,705

              -              
 

-                      
 256,705

               

2024

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Non-financial assets
Operating fixed assets - 
free hold and lease hold land (Note 5.1)

2025

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Non-financial assets
Operating fixed assets - 
free hold and lease hold 
land (Note 5.1)
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Capital risk management

The Company is not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements. 

2025 2024

The gearing ratio as at June 30, is as follows:

Total borrowings
Long term finance 11,049,039     34,561,766     
Short term borrowings 82,806,374     37,774,786     
Current portion of long term finance 42,354,518     7,978,924       

136,209,931   80,315,476     
Less: Cash and bank balances (1,187,075)      (1,123,182)      
Net debts 135,022,856   79,192,294     

Capital employed    144,478,380      86,232,682 

Gearing ratio 0.93                0.92                

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to the shareholders or
issue new shares. 

(Rupees in '000)

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its
businesses. 

53 OPERATING SEGMENTS

1) Gas transmission and distribution (sale of gas); and
2) Meter manufacturing (manufacturing and sale of gas meters)

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Company that are regularly reviewed by the Chief operating decision maker in
order to allocate resources to segments and to asses their performance. As a result, management has
identified the following two segments:
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53.1 Segment revenue and results
The following is analysis of the company's revenue and results by reportable segment.

2025 2024

Segment profit / (loss)
Return on assets net of UFG  disallowance

Gas transmission 11,081,561      14,189,416       
Gas distribution and marketing
 - Lower Sindh 4,267,968        6,584,811         
 - Upper Sindh 2,108,660        5,150,494         
 - Balochistan (8,966,418)       (11,620,919)      
Meter manufacturing 21,914             26,171              

Total segment results 8,513,685        14,329,973       
Unallocated

Finance cost (12,142,883)     (13,374,738)      
Other income - net 10,727,110      8,254,933         

Profit / (loss) before tax 7,097,912        9,210,168         

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets

Gas transmission 255,964,044    288,912,683     
Gas distribution and marketing

 - Lower Sindh 510,337,557    565,289,435     
 - Upper Sindh 144,482,863    155,345,150     
 - Balochistan 148,889,764    150,430,278     

Meter manufacturing 2,651,721        1,829,267         
Total segment assets 1,062,325,949 1,161,806,813  

(Rupees in '000)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are same as disclosed in note 4.22
to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Unallocated
- Loans and advances 1,535,342        1,686,751         
- Taxation - net 48,768,689      13,862,447       
- Interest accrued 690,544           707,080            
- Cash and bank balances 1,187,075        1,123,182         

52,181,650      17,379,460       

1,114,507,599 1,179,186,273  

Segment liabilities

Gas transmission 74,752,735      158,151,574     
Gas distribution and marketing

 - Lower Sindh 641,528,445    597,706,125     
 - Upper Sindh 113,908,822    154,712,934     
 - Balochistan 275,709,540    262,571,157     

Meter manufacturing 339,608           127,276            

1,106,239,150 1,173,269,067  
Total liabilities as per unconsolidated 
statement of  financial position

Total assets as per unconsolidated 
statement of  financial position
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56 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

57 DATE OF AUTHORISATION 

58 GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated. 

These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in Board of Directors meeting
held on November 05, 2025.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified to reflect more appropriate
presentation of events and transaction for the purpose of comparison, which are as follow:

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

From To

Unclaimed dividend                55,980   
Trade and 
Other 
Payables

Unclaimed 
Dividend

Description (Rupees in '000) Reclassified

54 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

55 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
2025 2024

                6,358                  6,639 

                6,499                  6,615 Average number of employees during the year

Total number of employees as at the reporting date

The Board of Directors have proposed a final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2025 
of Rs. 0.5 per share amounting to Rs 440.46 million at their meeting held on November 5, 
2025 for approval of the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM). 
These financial statements do not include the effect of the above dividend that will be 
accounted for in the period in which it is approved.



CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S REPORT

Qualified Opinion

�

�

TO THE MEMBERS OF SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis for Qualified Opinion
•
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Emphasis of Matter

Key Audit Matters

Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit mattersS.No

1.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

REVENUE

•

•

•

•

•
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Information Other than the Consolidated and Unconsolidated Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Key audit mattersS.No

2.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS OBLIGATION

3. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

•

•

•

•

•

•
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Place: 

Dated: 

UDIN: 
BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Propert plant and ip t 232,203,374      1      
Int e assets 6 255,948             4             
R ht o  use assets 101,639             2             
De erred taxation 11,067,233        11 4        

 ter invest ents 9 454,109                          
 ter loans 1 193,309             9             
 ter deposits 24,038               22 1               

Total non-current assets 244,299,650      219 6      

Current assets
tores spares and loose tools 11 4,357,324          4 4          
toc trade 12 3,915,698          4 44          
usto ers' installation or pr ress 1 249,970             6             

Trade ts 14 130,982,705      6      
s and advances 1 620,604             9             

Advances deposits and prepa ents 16 810,794             6             
Interest accrued 1 682,659             1             

her receiv les 1 681,590,342            
Taxation  net 19 51,327,204        16 126 4        

rt ter invest ents 129,223             129 22             
ash and  lances 2 2,925,655          2          

Total current assets 877,592,178      66      
Total assets 1,121,891,828   1 1   

(Rupees in '000)

The annexed notes 1 to  or an inte ral part o  these consolidated inancial state ents
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves 

re apital 21 8,809,163          16          
Reserves 22 4,907,401          4 1          

rplus on re easure ent o  VT I securities 417,582                          
rplus on revaluation o  propert plant and ip t 2 60,742,638                

Accu ulated loss (62,729,565)       629       
12,147,219        9 19          

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

 ter inanc 24 11,049,039        6        
curit  deposits 2 39,903,488        2        

E plo ee its 26 9,631,488                    
Pa le a inst trans er o  pipeline 2 430,722             169             
De erred credit 2 5,612,881          2          

ontract li ilities 29 12,248,838        2        
se li ilities 31,812                              

 ter advances 1 3,610,466          2 4          
Total non-current liabilities 82,518,734                
Current liabilities

urrent portion o
 ter inancin  2 42,354,518        924          

Pa le a inst trans er o  pipeline 2 92,447                              
De erred credit 2 573,451             4             

ontract li ilities 29 334,269                          
se li ilities 82,352               6               

rt ter orro in s 82,806,374        6        
Trade and other pa les 4 898,310,576      1 111   
Unc ed dividend 341,320                          
Interest accrued 2,330,568                    

Total current liabilities 1,027,225,875   1   
Total liabilities 1,109,744,609   1   
Total equity and liabilities 1,121,891,828   1 1   
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 6

The annexed notes 1 to  or an inte ral part o  these consolidated inancial state ents

(Rupees in '000)
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

Revenue ro  contracts ith custo ers  as sales 450,699,488      
ss A ri  adjust ent (4,255,351)           

446,444,137      
ss st o s sales (434,103,241)    

ross pro it 12,340,896          
Less: Operating Expenses

Ad inistrative and selli xpenses (7,577,865)       4     
ther operati xpenses 41 (3,166,070)       4   

Allo ance or expected credit loss (5,716,317)            
(16,460,252)        
(4,119,356)       4 2   

ther operati inco e 42 24,629,329          
perati it 20,509,973          

ance cost (12,152,632)     9   
Pro i ore lev  and taxation 8,357,341            

v
ini u  tax di erential (4,402,530)            
al tax (6,074)                             

(4,408,604)       1     
Pro i ore taxation 3,948,737              
Taxation 44 (507,485)               
Pro it or the ear 3,441,252              

Earni s per share sic and diluted 46 3.91                                

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees)

The annexed notes 1 to or  an i l part o  these consolidated inancial state ents
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024

Profit for the year 3,441,252           

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year 

Re easure ent l  in o  retire ent e it li tion  net o  tax (541,635)        1    

Unrealised in on r easure ent o  V  invest ents 197,404                 

her co prehensive l  inco e or the ear (344,231)        1    

Total co prehensive inco e or the ear 3,097,021         

The annexed notes 1 to  or  an int l part o  these consolidated inancial state ent

(Rupees in '000)

Ite s that ill not  reclassi ied uentl  to consolidated 
state ent o  pro t or l
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Issued, 
subscribed Capital Revenue
and paid-up reserves reserves

capital (Note 22) (Note 22)
(Note 21.2) (Note 23)

                                                  

Balance as at July 01, 2023 16   6        4 6     1         42 6       91  1 49   

Pro it or the ear                                                                                                               292 1     292 1     
ther co prehensive inco e or the ear                                                                        1 1                                1 6 29 1     

                                                                       1 1                                9 962 46 4   
Balance as at June 30, 2024 16   6        4 6     1         42 6       629 1  9 19     

Pro it or the ear                 -                     -                     -                       -                          -   3,441,252     3,441,252     
ther co prehensive loss or the ear                 -                     -                     -             197,404                        -          (541,635) (344,231)      

                -                     -                     -             197,404                        -        2,899,617 3,097,021     
Balance as at June 30, 2025 8,809,163   234,868        4,672,533     417,582         60,742,638       (62,729,565)  12,147,219   

The annexed notes 1 to  or  an inte ral part o  these consolidated nancial state ents

Total co prehensive inco e or the ear 
ended une  4

Total co prehensive inco e or the ear 
ended une  

Reserves

(Rupees in '000)

 
Accumulated 

loss 
Total

Surplus on re-
measurement 

of FVTOCI 
securities

Surplus on 
revaluation of 
property, plant 
and equipment
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

CONSOLIDATED  STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
sh rated ro  operations 4 29,017,357           9           

inancial char s paid (15,398,381)                    
E plo ee its paid (241,897)                              
Pa ent or retire ent its (2,540,200)                           

ecurit  deposits received  net 7,742,806             1             
Deposits paid  net (1,317)                   41                 

s and advances to e plo ee  net (260,735)                                
Interest inco e received 514,294                                
Taxes paid (40,134,686)                      

Net cash s used in rated ro  operat  activities (21,302,759)          12 2           

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Ac uisition o  propert plant and ent (33,537,266)          24          
Proceeds ro  disposal o  propert plant and ent 74,601                  121 1                
Pa ent st pa  or trans er o  pipeline (135,736)                              
Dividend received 40,490                  22                     

Net cash used in invest  activities (33,557,911)          24          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds ro  loans 20,000,000                      
Repa ents o  loans (9,273,205)            4 666            
Proceeds ro  consu er inance 1,056                                             
Repa ent o  consu er inance (275)                                            
Repa ent o  lease t (108,364)               99 169                 

Net cash rated ro  inanc  activities 10,619,212           9           
Net decrease in cash and cash valents (44,241,458)          1 211            

sh and cash valents at  o  the ear (35,639,261)                    
sh and cash valents at the end o  the ear (79,880,719)          261          

The annexed notes 1 to  or  an int ral part o  these consolidated inancial state ent

(Rupees in '000)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 The "Group" consists of:

Holding Group
ui outhern pan  i ited

2025 2024
Subsidiary Group % %

 P  i ited 100
 Alternate Ener ivate i ited 100

Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

Region Address

arachi West Plot No   and ITE Area arachi
arachi East Plot # 21 1  ector 22  or  Industrial Area  arachi
arachi entral

der d pposite Ne  Ei  National a  der
Na shah Nea i andar Art ller ous ociet  Na shah

u ur oli ar Road  TE area u u
r ana Nea hai h Zaid Wo en ospital  r ana

uetta a  Road  uetta

PERCENTAGE OF HOLDING

The r stered o ice o the ldin pan is situated at use ir hah
uha ad ule an Road loc 14 ulshan e arachi The eter
anu acturi  plant is situated at its' re stered o ice

arachi Ter inal opposite a ari Pa ain Universi
Road  arachi
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SSGC LPG Limited

SSGC Alternate Energy (Private) Limited

1.2 Basis of consolidation
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1.3 Regulatory framework

Under the provisions o license ven the il and as Re ulato Authori
under the RA rdinance the ldin pan is provided ith

annual return ore taxation sed on W ted Aver e st o pital ‘W
ro the ear 9 excludin interes other non operatin expenses and non

operatin inco e ro the re erence res in place o the ixed rate o return o the
aver e operatin assets excludin pipelines constructed or t under de erred
credit arr ents

The deter ination o annual r red return is revie ed under the ter s o
the license or trans ission distri tion and sale o natural s tar ts and
para eters set Inco e earned in excess sho o the ve ranteed
return is pa  to  recover  ro  the vern ent o  Pa istan  
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2 BASIS FOR PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Significant accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments

These consolidated inancial state ents have n prepared under the historical cost
convention  unless other ise stated

These consolidated inancial state ents are presented in Pa istan Rupees hich is
the o pan 's unctional and presentation currenc

The preparation o these consolidated inancial state ents in con or i ith
accountin and reportin standards as applic e in Pa istan r res ent
to a e esti ates assu ptions and j ents that a ect the application o
accountin policies the reported a ounts o assets and s revenue expenses
and the acco pan in disclosures The esti ates and assu ptions are continuousl
evaluated and are sed on historical experience and other actors includin
expectation o uture events that are ved to e reas e under the
circu stances Revision to accountin esti ates are rec sed in the period in

hich the esti ate is revised and in an  uture periods a ected

The ollo in esti ates and assu ptions hich are s icant to these consolidated
inancials state ents

These consolidated inancial state ents have n prepared in accordance ith the
accountin and reportin standards as applic e in Pa istan The accountin and
reporti  standards applic  in Pa istan co prise o

International inancial Reportin andards issued the International
Accounti tandard oard I as are noti ied under the o panies Act
Provisions o and directives issued under the panies Ac and ate

ned Enterprises vernance and erations ct  2

Where provisions o and directives issued under the panies Ac and ate
ned Enterprises overnance and perations Ac di er ith the

r re ent o I the provisions o and directives issued under the panies
Ac and ate ned Enterprises overnance and perations Ac
have een ollo ed
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2.4.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

2.4.2 Stock in trade

2.4.3 Stores, spares and loose tools

2.4.4 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets due from public sector consumers

Other financial assets

2.4.5 Employee benefits 

Deter inin the recover o these inancial assets the roup uses jective
evidence or the uncollecta t  o  the due alances accor  to the ori  ter s

ents ade the roup in esti atin the recover o the ces
sed on the pa in o the respective consu ers The ts deter ined

t ul  r red provision or are considered to e ritten o

The esti ate o the collecti e a ount o other inancial assets is ade accordin to
the Expected edit ss odel

tain actuarial assu ptions have n adopted as disclosed in note 4 to these
consolidated inancial state ents or valuation o these tions An c s in
assu ptions ill i pact the carr  a ount o  these o tions

The roup revie s the net realis e value o stoc in trade to assess an di inution
in the respective carr in values and also revie the stoc or slo ovin and

selence
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2.4.6 Taxation

2.4.7 Provisions and contingencies

3

3.1

3.1.1

anuar  1  4

anuar  1  4

anuar  1  4

anuar  1  4

A end ents to I 16 ' ses' A end ents to clari ho a
selle essee s s tl easures sale and leas c
transactions

A end ents to 1 'Presentation o inancial ate ents'
assi ication o  l ties as current or non current

A end ents to 1 'Presentation o inancial ate ents' Non
current ties ith covenants

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are
effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

The ollo in standards a end ents and interpretations are e ective or the ear
ended une These standards a end ents and interpretations are either
not relevant to the roup's operations or did not have s icant i pact on the

inancial state ents other than certain additional disclosures
Effective date  

(annual periods 
beginning on or 

after)
A end ents to I ' inancial Instru ents Disclosures'

      stneenarra ecnani reilppu

The roup ta es into account the applic e inco e tax la and the decisions
j ents ta en the appellate authorities Accor the current and de erred
tax rec sed ased on these applic  la s  decisions  j ents

anuar  1  4
A end ents to ' ate ent o sh lo s' upplier
inance arr ents
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3.2

anuar  1  6

anuar  1  6

anuar  1  

anuar  1  6

anuar  1  6

anuar  1  

tain annual i prove ents have also een ade to a nu r o  I s and I s

I 1  Insurance ontracts

I 1 ' irs ti e Adoption o International inancial Reportin andards' has n
issued e ective ro ul eve it has not n adopted et
locall  ecurities and Exc o ission o  Pa istan

I  'Presentation and Disclosures in inancial ate ents' has n issued
e ective ro anua eve it has not n adopted et locall

ecurities and Exc o ission o  Pa istan

A end ents to I ' inancial Instru ents Disclosures'
A end ents r rdin the classi ication and easure ent o
inancial instru ents

A end ents to I 9 ' inancial Instru ents' A end ents
r rdin the classi ication and easure ent o inancial
instru ents

A end ents to 21 'The E ects o a s in or n
Exc  Rates'   o  Exc

A end ents to I ' inancial Instru ents Disclosures'
A end ents r rdin nature dependent electrici contracts that
are o ten structured as po er purchase a ree ents

A end ents to I 9 ' inancial Instru ents' A end ents
r rdin nature dependent electrici contracts that are o ten
structured as po er purchase a ree ents

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective
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3.3

3.3.1 n Au st 14 the overn ent o Pa istan o launched ena ir
E plo ees oc ption che e the ‘ che or e plo ees o certain ate

ned Enterprises Es and non ate ned Enterprises here oP holds
s icant invest ents non Es The sche e is applic e to per anent and
contractual e plo ees ho ere in the e plo ent o these entities on the date o
launch o the che e s ject to co pletion o ive ears vestin period
contractual e plo ees and  per anent e plo ees in certain instances

The che e provides or a cash pa ent to e plo ees on retire ent or ter ination
sed on the price o shares respective entities To ad inister this sche e oP

shall trans er 12% o its invest ent in such Es and non Es to Trust und to e
created or the purpose each o such entities The e e plo ees ould e
allocated units each Trust und in proportion to their respective th o service
and on retire ent or ter ination such e plo ees ould e entitled to receive such
a ounts ro Trust unds in exc e or the surrendered units as ould e
deter ined sed ar et price or listed entities or rea up value or non listed
entities  The shares relati  to the surrendered units ould trans erred a  to P

It is also entioned in the sche e that % o dividend related to shares trans erred
to the respective Trust und ould e distri ted a st the unit holder e plo ees
The ce % dividend ould e trans erred the respective Trust und to the

ntral Revolvin und d the Privati ation ission o Pa istan
or pa ent to e plo ees st surrendered units The de ici i an in Trust
unds to eet the re purchase co it ent ould e et P

The che e developed in co pliance ith the stated oP polic or e po er ent
o e plo ees o E's need to e accounted or the covered entities includin the

ldin roup under the provisions o a ended International inancial Reportin
andard 2 – hare sed Pa ent 2 eve eepin in vie the

di iculties that a e aced the entities covered under the che e the
ecurities Exc e ission o Pa istan on receivin representations

ro so e o entities covered under the che e and a ter havin consulted the
Institute o artered Accountants o Pa istan has ranted exe ption to such
entities ro the application o I 2 to the che e vide 1 dated
une  

I 1 'Insurance contracts' has n noti ied the to e e ective or
annual periods on or a ter anua 1 ever has noti ied
the revised ti e ra e or the adoption o I 1 hich ill e adopted anua

 

I 19 sidiaries ithout Pu c Accounta t Disclosures' has n issued
e ective ro anua eve it has not n adopted et locall

ecurities and Exc o ission o  Pa istan

Exemptions from applicability of certain standards and interpretations to standards
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the exe ption not n ranted there ould have n no i pact on the net
pro it o the ldin roup as the annual return o the ldin pan is
deter ined under the r to revenue r re en hich ould have covered an
additional cost i incurred the ldin pan in respect o the a oresaid

che e

3.3.2

3.4

I 9 inancial Instru ents replaces 9 inancial Instru ents Rec tion
and easure ent or annual periods on or a ter ul The
application o I 9 has unda entall c d the ldin pan s accountin
or i pair ent losses or inancial assets replacin s incurred loss

approach ith expected credit loss approach

Accor there is no recorded on the inancial assets due ro the oP in
these consolidated inancial state ents

Non-compliance with IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts



Annual Report 2025

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets

Initial recognition

Elements of cost

The cost o  the operati  ixed assets includes

a

Measurement after recognition

eehold land and leasehold land are stated at revalued a ount and surplus arisin
on revaluation o reehold land and leasehold land is rec sed as surplus on
revaluation o  propert  plant and e en

The aterial accountin policies applied in the preparation o these consolidated
inancial state ents are set out These policies have n consistentl applied

to all the ears presented

its purchase price includin i port duties non re e purchase taxes a ter
deducti  trade discounts and re tes  and
an cost directl attri ta e to ri the asset to the location and condition
necessar  or it to e c  o  operati  in the anner intended  the up

peratin ixed assets except reehold land leasehold land and capital o in
pr ress are stated at cost less accu ulated depreciation and i pair ent loss i
an   
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Subsequent expenditure

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

An revaluation increase arisin on the revaluation o leasehold land and reehold
land is rec sed in consolidated state ent o co prehensive inco e and
presented as a separate co ponent o as urplus on revaluation o propert
plant and en except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease or
the sa e asse

The increase in carr in a ount o an asset is adjusted to the extent o previousl
rec sed loss char d to the consolidated state ent o pro it and loss An
decrease in carr in a ount o an asset arisin on the revaluation is char d to
consolidated state ent o pro it or loss to the extent that it exceeds the ce i
an held in the revaluation surplus on propert plant and ent relatin to a
previous revaluation o  that asse

Expenditures incurred to replace a co ponent o an ite o operatin ixed assets is
capitalised and the asset so replaced is retired ther s s t expenditure is
capitalised onl hen it is pr e that uture econo ic its associated ith the
ite ill lo to the enti and the cost o the ite s can e easured r All other
expenditures are rec sed in consolidated state ent o  pro it or loss hen incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation is char d to the consolidated state ent o pro it or loss usin stra t
line sis over its use ul li e at the rate ven in note o these consolidated
inancial state ents Depreciation on additions is char d ro the onth hen

assets are av  or use and no depreciation is char  in the onth o  disposal

Assets' residual values and their use ul lives are revie ed and adjusted at each
reporti  date i  s icant and appropriate

The n or loss arisin on the disposal or retire ent o an asset is deter ined as the
di erence t een the sale proceeds and the carr in a ount o the asse and is
rec sed in the consolidated state ent o  pro it or loss
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Capital work in progress 

pital o in pr ress is stated at cos less an accu ulated i pair ent losses
The cost includes expenditure incurred rro in costs related to the speci ic asset
durin the installation and construction period and advances ade in the course o
construction and installation Trans ers are ade to the relevant asset cate hen
the assets are co pleted and av  or their intended use

4.2 Intangible assets

4.3 Leases - Right of use assets

Right of use assets

Inta  asset ith a inite use ul li e is a orti ed on a stra t line asis at the rates 
as entioned in note 6 to these consolidated inancial state ents A orti ation

s hen the asset is av e or use and ceases hen the asset is
derec sed A orti ation char e is rec sed in consolidated state ent o pro it
or loss

At inception o a contrac the roup assesses hether a contract is or contains a
lease sed hether the contract conve s the ri t to control the use o an identi ied
asset or a period o ti e in exc e or consideration se ter s are tiated
on an individual asis and contains a ide ra  o  di erent ter s and conditions

The ri t o use asset is initiall easured at cost hich is the initial easure ent o
lease adjusted or an lease pa ents ade at or ore the co ence ent
date plus an initial direct costs incurred and an esti ate o costs to dis antle
re ove the underl in or to restore the underl in asset or the site on hich it is
located less an lease incentive received u s tl ri t o use asset is

easured at cost less accu ulated depreciation and i pair ent losses i an The
ri t o use asset is depreciated on a stra t line ethod over the lease te

entioned in note to these consolidated inancial state ents Depreciation is
char  to the consolidated state ent o  pro it or loss

An inta e asset is rec sed as an asse i it is pr e that uture econo ic
its attri ta e to the asset ill lo to the enti and the cost o such asset can

 easured re

Inta e assets are easured initiall at cost and s s tl stated at cost less
accu ulated a orti ation and i pair ent losses  i  an
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Lease Liability

se is initiall easured at the present value o the expected lease
pa ents that are not paid at the co ence ent date The lease pa ents are
discounted usin the interest rate i plicit in the lease I that rate cannot e readil
deter ined hich is rall the case or leases o the roup the lessee's
incre ental rro in rate is used the rate that the individual lessee ould
have to pa to rro the unds necessa to tain an assets o si ilar value to the
ri t o use asset in a si ilar econo ic environ ent ith si ilar ter s and
conditions

se is s s tl easured at a orti ed cost usin the e ective interest
rate ethod It is re easured hen there is a c e in uture lease pa ents
arisin ro a c e in ixed lease pa ents or an index or rate c e in the

roup's esti ate o the a ount expected to e pa e under a residual value
rantee or i the roup c s its assess ent o hether it ill exercise a

purchase extension or ter ination option The correspondin adjust ent is ade to
the carr in a ount o the ri t o use asse or is recorded in the consolidated
state ent o pro it or loss i the carr in a ount o ri t o use asset has n
reduced to ero

4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reportin date the roup revie s the carr in a ounts o its non inancial
assets to identi circu stances indicatin occurrence o i pair en The
recover e a ount is the r o an asset s air value less costs to sell and value
in use Value in use is ascertained thr h discountin o the esti ated uture cash
lo s usin a discount rate that re lects current ar et assess ents o the ti e value

o one and the ri s speci ic to the assets An i pair ent loss is rec sed as
an expense in the consolidated state ent o pro it or loss unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued a oun in hich case the i pair ent loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease or the purpose o assessin i pair en assets are rouped
at the lo est levels or hich there are separatel identi e cash lo s cash

rati  units

The roup has not elected to rec se ri t o use assets and lease s or
sho te leases that have a lease te o 12 onths or less and leases o lo value
assets



221
Annual Report 2025

4.5 Financial Instruments

4.5.1 Financial assets

An i pair ent loss is reversed i there has n a c e in the esti ates used to
deter ine the recover e a oun An i pair ent loss is reversed onl to the extent
that the asset s carr in a ount does not exceed the carr in a ount that ould
have n deter ined net o depreciation or a orti ation i no i pair ent loss had

n rec sed previousl Reversal o i pair ent loss is rec sed i ediatel in
the consolidated state ent o pro it or loss unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued a oun in hich the reversal o the i pair ent loss is treated as a
revaluation increase

I pair ent losses rec sed in prior periods are assessed at each reportin date or
indicators that the loss has decreased or no r exists An i pair ent loss is
reversed i there has n a c e in the esti ates used to deter ine the
recover e a oun An i pair ent loss is reversed onl to the extent that the assets
carr in a ount does not exceed the carr in a ount that ould have n
deter ined  i  no i paire ent loss has een rec sed

A inancial instru ents is an contract that ves rise to a inancial asset o one enti
and a inancial l t  or e t  instru ent o  another entit

Classification and measurement of financial assets

inancial assets are classi ied into appropriate cate ries at a orti ed cos air value
thr h other co prehensive inco e or at air value thr h pro it or loss The

ent deter ines the classi ication o inancial assets into appropriate
cate ries sed on the r s siness odel or the inancial assets
and the contractual ter s o  the cash lo s
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At amortized cost

At fair value through other comprehensive income

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

For financial assets classified as equity instruments, the Group may elect to classify
irrevocably some of its equity investments as equity instruments at FVOCI. Such
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income when:

-

-

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

Other financial assets

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

All financial assets which do not fall into the first two categories must be stated at fair
value through profit or loss.

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets at amortized cost are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses, if any. Interest income and impairment losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through other comprehensive income are initially
and subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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4.5.2 Financial liabilities

4.5.3 Derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequently to initial
recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership. On derecognition of a financial
asset, in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, other than the financial assets that are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income which on derecognition are
transferred to retained earnings in equity.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recorded at fair
value and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values
of the financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

4.5.4 Off-setting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable
right to set-off the recognised amount and the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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4.5.5 Impairment of financial assets

The Group measures the ECL of a financial instrument in a way that reflects: 

- the time value of money; and 

- an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a
range of possible outcomes; 

- reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECL are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECL are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL). 

- development of ECL model, including the various formulas and choice of inputs; 

ECL are measured for the maximum contractual period over which the entity is
exposed to credit risk. The significant estimates relating to the measurement of ECL
relate to the fair value of the collaterals in place, the expected timing of the collection
and forward looking economic factors.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied simplified approach
in calculating ECL adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. 

Elements of the ECL model that are considered accounting judgments and estimates
include: 

The Group recognizes an allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) for all debt 
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss, excluding financial assets due 
from Government of Pakistan, in respect of circular debt, due to exemption granted by 
SECP as explained in note 3.3.2 above. ECL are based on the difference between the 
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that 
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective 
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral 
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. 
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- the segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis; 

- selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability
weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the ECL model; and 

- determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic
inputs, and their effect on Probability of Default (PDs), Exposure At Default (EADs)
and Loss Given Default (LGDs). 

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are
significantly past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows. 

The Group also reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other
receivables that are due from GOP to assess amount of bad debts and provision
required there against on annual basis. As referred in note 3.3.2 to these
consolidated financial statements, the SECP has exempted application of the
requirements of ECL on financial assets due directly / ultimately from GOP, provided
that the Group is following the requirements of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, in respect of these financial assets.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECL) on trade
debts except for receivable balances as mentioned in note 3.3.2 due from GoP or
ultimately due from the GoP (including receivables in context of circular debt). The
amount of ECL is adjusted at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition of the respective financial assets.

- determining the criteria if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment;

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade debts. The ECL on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecasted
direction of economic conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.
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(i) Significant increase in credit risk

For all other financial assets, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the
reporting date. 

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing the financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if:
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(1)
(2)

(3)

(ii)

(iii)

(a)
(b)
(c)

(d)

(e)

(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on
other financial assets other than those mentioned in note 3.3.2.

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above);
the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to
the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation, or
the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

The financial instrument has a low risk of default,
The borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, and
Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

Definition of default

The Group employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and generate
estimates of probability of default (“PD”) of exposures with the passage of time.
This analysis includes the identification for any changes in default rates and
changes in key macro-economic factors across various geographies of the
Group.

Credit-impaired financial assets
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date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the
future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

4.6 Stores, spares and loose tools

4.7 Stock-in-trade

 
Gas in pipelines

Meter manufacturing

Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated cost of completion and the estimate cost necessary to make sales.

Stock of gas in transmission pipelines is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable
value. Cost is determined on weighted average cost basis.

Stock of meter manufacturing is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The cost is determined as follows:

- Component material At moving average cost comprising purchase price,
transportation cost and other overheads.

- Work in process and 
finished goods

At moving average cost comprising direct cost of
component material, labour and other production and
related overheads.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the original effective interest rate. 

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at moving average cost basis except in-
transit, which are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid
there on till the reporting date.

A provision is made for slow moving and obsolete stores, spares and loose tools.

Stock of LPG in storage is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is 
recognised on monthly weighted average basis and net realisable value is arrived at 
after deducting impairment loss, if any.
       
Stock-in-transit, if any, are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other 
charges incurred as of reporting date.
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Trade debts and other receivables 

4.9

4.8

Cash and cash equivalents

4.10 Share Capital

4.11 Dividend and reserves appropriation

4.12 Borrowings

From financial institutions

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Discount
on issue of shares is separately reported in consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. 

Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and
reserve appropriation are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the
Board of Directors.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the payment amount is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless, at the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and loss 
allowance, if any. The Group measures the loss allowance for trade and other 
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECL), other than 
receivables from GoP in respect of circular debt which is based on incurred loss model 
and impairment is determined when there is an objective evidence that balances get 
impaired.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and 
cash equivalents includes cash on hand and other short-term highly liquid investments 
with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Additionally, cash and cash equivalents includes short-term borrowings that are 
repayable on demand.  Bank overdrafts and short-term borrowings are presented 
within borrowings in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial 
position.
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From Government Authorities

4.13 Borrowing costs

4.14 Deferred Credit

Covenants that the Group is required to comply with, on or before the end of the
reporting period, are considered in classifying loan arrangements with covenants as
current or non-current. Covenants that the Group is required to comply with after the
reporting period do not affect the classification at the reporting date.

Long term loans received from the Government of Sindh with interest rate lower than
prevailing market interest rates for a similar instrument are initially measured at fair
value. The fair value is estimated at the present value of all future cash payments
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for a similar instrument with a
similar credit rating. Difference between fair value and proceeds received is treated
as government grant and is amortized over the useful life of related asset
constructed. 

The borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying assets in which case such costs are capitalised as part of
the cost of their assets, net-off interest income as the Group investments on their
borrowings. All other borrowing costs are charged off in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred. The Group determines a
weighted average capitalization rate in case of general borrowings attributable to
qualifying asset.

4.15 Contract Liabilities

Deferred credit received from the government to cover the cost of supplying and
laying transmission, service, and main pipelines. Amortization of deferred credit
begins when the related asset is available for use and continues over its estimated
useful life.

A contract liability is recognised for the Holding Company’s obligation to transfer 
goods or services to a customer for which the Holding Company has received 
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer 
pays consideration, or the Holding Company has a right to an amount of consideration 
that is unconditional (i.e. a receivable), before the Holding Company transfers a good 
or service to the customer, the Holding Company shall present the contract as a 
contract liability when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is 
earlier). Contract liabilities include amounts received from customers as contributions 
toward the cost of supplying and laying transmission, service, and main pipelines. 
Revenue recognition for such contract liabilities begins when the related asset is 
available for use and is amortised over its useful life.
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4.16 Trade and other payables

4.17 Employee benefits

4.17.1 Short term obligations

4.17.2 Post employment benefits

The Group operates the following post employment benefits schemes for its employees:

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined
contribution plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the “Projected Unit Credit method”. The most recent valuation was
carried out as at June 30, 2025.

Trade and other payables are stated at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not
billed to the Group.

a) Pension and Gratuity Schemes

In case of gratuity scheme, qualifying service period for executives is five years
of service and non-executives is one year on death or permanent total
disablement during service, otherwise five years of service. Contributions to the
schemes are payable on the recommendations of the actuary.

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating annual 
leaves that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the 
period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are 
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated statement of 
financial position.

The Holding Company operates an approved funded pension scheme and an 
approved funded gratuity scheme for executives and non-executives.

An executive who qualifies for pension at the time of retirement from the Group 
and does not surrender his pension, shall be entitled to gratuity at the rate of 20 
days basic salary for each completed year of service. An executive who qualifies 
for pension at the time of retirement from the Group and surrenders his pension, 
shall be entitled to gratuity at the rate of 50 days basic salary for each completed 
year of service. 
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b) Medical and free gas facility schemes

c) Accumulating compensated absences 

The amount recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as reduced by the
fair value of the plan assets. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions for the defined benefit plan
are charged or credited to equity in statement of consolidated comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise. Past service costs are recognized
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The Holding Company provide medical and free gas facility to executives and
their dependents, post-retirement. Executives who retired up to December 31,
2000, are eligible for the free gas facility. Significant assumptions for valuing
these schemes are provided in note 45.

The executive and non-executives employees are eligible for compensated
absences benefits. Executive and non-executive employees can encash their
accumulated leave balance upon leaving the Holding Company. However, non-
executive employees has an option to encash their unavailed leaves subject to a
maximum of 30 days at the end of each year. Provisions for these obligations
are made based on current salary levels. Unutilized leave balances may be
accumulated up to a maximum of 60 days for executives and 90 days for non-
executives.

The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations. Actuarial gains
and losses are charged or credited to equity in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Plan assets held by the fund include equity instruments, mutual funds, Pakistan
Investment Bonds, Marker Treasury Bills, Term Finance Certificates, Term
Deposit and cash and cash equivalents. The actual return on plan assets
represents the difference between the fair value of plan assets at the beginning
of the year and as at the end of the year, after adjustments for contributions
made by the Group as reduced by benefits paid during the year. 

The subsidiary, SSGC LPG Limited, operates a funded gratuity scheme for its 
permanent and contractual employees who have served for minimum 1 year. The 
employees are entitled for gratuity at the rate of 50 days of basic salary, for every 
service year. Significant assumptions used for valuation of these schemes are 
mentioned in note 45.
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Defined contribution scheme

a) Provident fund

b) Benevolent fund

Step 2. Identify performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is a
promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer.

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of
third parties.

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract:
For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the Group allocates
the transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the
amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue from contract with customers based on a five step
model as set out in IFRS 15.

Step 1. Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agreement
between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets
out the performance obligations for every contract that must be met.

A non-contributory benevolent fund, under which only the employees contribute
to the fund.

The Holding Company operates recognised provident funds for all its employees.
Equal contributions are made, both by the Holding Company and the employees,
to the fund at the rate of 7.5% of basic salary in the case of executive employees
and 8.33% of basic salary and adhoc relief cost of living allowance in the case of
non executive employees and the same is charged to these consolidated
statement of profit or loss. 

4.18 Revenue recognition
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Step 5. Recognize revenue when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation.

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Meter rentals are recognized monthly at rates specified by OGRA for various
consumer categories of customers. Revenue is recognized over time, as the
single performance obligation is the availability of meters to customers.

Revenue from sale of meters, Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG) and gas
condensate is recognised on delivery to the customers.

Late Payment Surcharge (LPS) on gas sales arrears is calculated from the
overdue date and recognized when it is probable that economic benefits will flow
to the entity. Revenue is recognized over time.

Revenue is recognised when performance obligations are satisfied by transferring
control of a promised good to a customer and the control transfers at a point in time
or over time. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable excluding government levies. The Group recognizes its revenue on the
following basis:

Revenue from gas sales is recognized based on the gas supplied to consumers
at rates notified by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA). Accruals are
made for the estimated gas supplied between the last meter reading and year-
end. Revenue is recognized at a point in time, as management has determined
there is a single performance obligation: the supply of gas.

v)

vi) Gas transportation income

-

-

(vii) Dividend income on equity investments is recognised when right to receive the
payment is established.

Income from construction contracts is recognized over time by referencing
progress towards satisfying the performance obligation. The Company uses a
cost-based input method to determine economic benefits. Revenue is recognized 
over time.

Firm Transportation Agreement for RLNG: Income is recognized when the
committed contracted capacity is made available to the shipper i.e. at point of
time.

Interruptible Transportation Agreements: Income is recognized when gas is
transported from the network at OGRA-notified rates. Revenue is recognized
over time.
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4.19 Tariff adjustment - indigenous gas and RLNG

4.20 Taxation and levy

4.20.1 Taxation

Taxation comprises of current and deferred tax.

The tariff adjustment at this stage, referred to in note 38, represents the aggregate
amount of adjustments presented to OGRA for the determination of the FRR. This is
subject to change based on the final determination by OGRA.

Current

Deferred

Levy

The current tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the date of the consolidated
statement of financial position, and any adjustment or tax payable in respect of prior
years. The tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly to equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly to equity, respectively.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all
taxable temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

Minimum taxes that exceed the normal tax liability, as well as tax deducted at source
(other than from dividends received from subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates)
under the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (‘the Ordinance’), are not
within the scope of IAS 12 - Income Taxes. Instead, these taxes fall under the
provisions of IFRIC 21 - Levies, and IAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. 

Consequently, a liability for these levies is recognized in accordance with IFRIC 21
when the event specified in the Ordinance that triggers the obligation occurs.
Therefore, excess minimum taxes and final taxes are recognized as liabilities when
they become due, ensuring compliance with the recognition and measurement
principles outlined in IAS 37.
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4.21 Segment reporting

An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial
information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly corporate assets, income tax assets, liabilities and related
income and expenditure. 

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period to acquire
property, plant and equipment. The following are the segments identifies and is
consistent with the international financial reporting standards.

Gas transmission and distribution

Meter manufacturing 

4.22 Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Gas transmission and distribution segment is engaged in transmission and
distribution of natural gas and construction contracts for laying of pipelines in
Sindh and Balochistan.

Meter manufacturing segment is engaged in manufacture and sale of gas 
meters.

meters.

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Holding 
Company. An operating segment is an identifiable component of the Holding Company 
that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur 
expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 
Holding Company's other components.  

-

-
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4.23 Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from the past events that is not recognized because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the
accounts. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognized as provision.

Contingent assets

4.24 Earnings per share

4.25 Foreign currency translation

A contingent asset is a probable asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent assets
are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When an inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognized.

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax for the year by
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistan rupees at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange ruling
at the reporting date. Exchange gains / (losses) are taken to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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 2025  2024 
Note

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 218,515,341     192,697,545          
Capital work in progress 5.2 13,688,033       14,815,476            

232,203,374     207,513,021          

5.1 Operating assets

Description Note

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,847,526      17,225,224         500,435          793,886              -                        941,478            349,208                 44,488,395    71,617,842          6,987,814     122,162                    776,619     
Addtions / Transfers (at cost) -                   392,909              -                  19,935                -                        277,431            -                         4,098,943      29,262,603          411,022        14,138                      94,494       
Disposals (NBV) -                   -                     -                  -                      -                        -                    -                         -                (495,447)              -                (112)                                     
Depreciation charge -                   -                     (1,413)             (84,453)               -                        (112,967)           (41,596)                  (1,445,909)    (6,585,789)           (904,245)       (24,495)                     (81,603)     

Closing net book value 43,847,526      17,618,133         499,022          729,368              -                        1,105,942         307,612                 47,141,429    93,799,209          6,494,591     111,693                    789,510     
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025

Cost / revalued amount 43,847,526      17,618,133         518,451          1,480,354           324,492                3,505,089         797,820                 72,319,238    168,804,540        15,461,296   1,163,158                 1,176,296  
Accumulated depreciation -                   -                     (19,429)           (750,986)             (324,492)               (2,399,147)        (490,208)                (25,177,809)  (75,005,331)         (8,966,705)    (1,051,465)                (386,786)   

Net book value 43,847,526      17,618,133         499,022          729,368              -                        1,105,942         307,612                 47,141,429    93,799,209          6,494,591     111,693                    789,510     

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,847,526      17,225,224         501,848          745,488              -                        917,076            349,484                 42,540,044    59,586,562          6,933,228     138,961                    773,065     
Additions (at cost) 5.1.1

5.1.1

-                   120,156              168,813            -                         3,282,954      18,247,946          877,079        8,300                        81,352       
Disposals (NBV) -                   -                    -                         -                (735,684)              -                (126)                          
Depreciation charge -                   (1,413)             (71,758)               (144,411)           (276)                       (1,334,603)    (5,480,982)           (822,493)       (24,973)                     (77,798)     

Closing net book value 43,847,526      17,225,224         500,435          793,886              -                        941,478            349,208                 44,488,395    71,617,842          6,987,814     122,162                    776,619     
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024

Cost / revalued amount 43,847,526      17,225,224         518,451          1,460,419           324,492                3,227,658         797,820                 68,220,295    140,037,384        15,050,274   1,149,132                 1,081,802  
Accumulated depreciation -                   -                     (18,016)           (666,533)             (324,492)               (2,286,180)        (448,612)                (23,731,900)  (68,419,542)         (8,062,460)    (1,026,970)                (305,183)   

Net book value 43,847,526      17,225,224         500,435          793,886              -                        941,478            349,208                 44,488,395    71,617,842          6,987,814     122,162                    776,619     

Annual rate of Depreciation rate (in %) - - 23 23 5 5 - 20 5 - 20 2.5 to 5 5 to 23 6 .25 to 12.5 16.6 to 50 10

(Rupees in '000')

Gas 
transmission 

system

Gas distribution 
system and 

consumer meters

Compressor 
stations

Telecommunication
system

Cylinders

 (Rupees in '000)

Freehold land Leasehold land
Terminal PQ-5 
on Leasehold 

land

Civil work on 
leasehold - 

Trestle and Jetty

Buildings and 
civil construction 
on freehold land

Buildings on 
leasehold land

Roads, pavements 
and related 

infrastructures

 2025  2024 
Note

5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 218,515,339     192,697,545          
Capital work in progress 5.2 13,688,033       14,815,476            

232,203,372     207,513,021          

5.1 Operating assets

Description Note

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,847,526      17,225,224         500,435          793,886              -                        941,478            349,208                 44,488,395    
Addtions / Transfers (at cost) -                   392,909              -                  19,935                -                        277,431            -                         4,098,943      
Disposals (NBV) -                   -                     -                  -                      -                        -                    -                                        
Depreciation charge -                   -                     (1,413)             (84,453)               -                        (112,967)           (41,596)                  (1,445,909)    

Closing net book value 43,847,526      17,618,133         499,022          729,368              -                        1,105,942         307,612                 47,141,429    
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2025

Cost / revalued amount 43,847,526      17,618,133         518,451          1,480,354           324,492                3,505,089         797,820                 72,319,238    
Accumulated depreciation -                   -                     (19,429)           (750,986)             (324,492)               (2,399,147)        (490,208)                (25,177,809)  

Net book value 43,847,526      17,618,133         499,022          729,368              -                        1,105,942         307,612                 47,141,429    

Net carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024

Opening net book value (NBV) 43,847,526      17,225,224         501,848          745,488              -                        917,076            349,484                 42,540,044    
Additions (at cost) 5.1.1 -                   120,156              168,813            -                         3,282,954      
Disposals (NBV) -                   -                    -                                        
Depreciation charge -                   (1,413)             (71,758)               (144,411)           (276)                       (1,334,603)    

Closing net book value 43,847,526      17,225,224         500,435          793,886              -                        941,478            349,208                 44,488,395    
Gross carrying value basis
year ended June 30, 2024

Cost / revalued amount 43,847,526      17,225,224         518,451          1,460,419           324,492                3,227,658         797,820                 68,220,295    
Accumulated depreciation -                   -                     (18,016)           (666,533)             (324,492)               (2,286,180)        (448,612)                (23,731,900)  

Net book value 43,847,526      17,225,224         500,435          793,886              -                        941,478            349,208                 44,488,395    

Annual rate of Depreciation rate (in %) - - 23 23 5 5 - 20 5 - 20 2.5 to 5

transmission 
system

 (Rupees in '000)

Freehold land Leasehold land
Terminal PQ-5 
on Leasehold 

land

Civil work on 
leasehold - 

Trestle and Jetty

Buildings and 
civil construction 
on freehold land

Buildings on 
leasehold land

Roads, pavements 
and related 

infrastructures
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525,467 2,455,173   69,430        1,192,376         89,331            50,277            121,822      445,465          97,615                 -                192,697,545   
267 1,325,420   24,621        342,803            9,473              8,327              76,051        507,973          -                       -                36,866,410     
-             (5,311)         (21)              (20,470)             -                 -                  -              -                  -                       -                (521,361)         

(32,880) (671,328)     (42,768)       (186,595)           (9,013)            (17,498)           (56,248)       (222,981)         (5,473)                  -                (10,527,254)    
492,854 3,103,954   51,262        1,328,114         89,791            41,106            141,625      730,457          92,142                 -                218,515,339   

1,027,739 7,363,300   696,988      4,373,211         177,317          632,453          901,209      2,483,915       1,258,757            2,896,366     348,827,648   
(534,885) (4,259,346)  (645,726)     (3,045,097)        (87,526)          (591,347)         (759,584)     (1,753,458)      (1,166,615)           (2,896,366)    (130,312,308)  
492,854 3,103,954   51,262        1,328,114         89,791            41,106            141,625      730,457          92,142                 -                218,515,339   

548,590 2,280,178   59,874        1,223,695         96,419            51,658            100,042      296,569          100,840               -                178,316,371   
12,376 714,837      52,041        161,310            21,112            71,414        302,065          -                       24,121,755     
(3,020) (3,448)         -              (15,038)             -                  -              -                  (1,174)                  (758,490)         

(32,479) (536,394)     (42,485)       (177,591)           (7,088)            (22,493)           (49,634)       (153,169)         (2,051)                  (8,982,091)      
525,467 2,455,173   69,430        1,192,376         89,331            50,277            121,822      445,465          97,615                 -                192,697,545   

1,027,472 6,043,191   672,388      4,050,878         167,844          624,126          825,158      1,975,942       1,258,757            2,896,366     312,482,599   
(502,005) (3,588,018)  (602,958)     (2,858,502)        (78,513)          (573,849)         (703,336)     (1,530,477)      (1,161,142)           (2,896,366)    (119,785,054)  
525,467 2,455,173   69,430        1,192,376         89,331            50,277            121,822      445,465          97,615                 -                192,697,545   

5 - 20 5 - 33.33 5 - 20 2 - 10 5 - 20 3 - 20 3 to 33.33 14.3 to 16.6 20

Computer and 
ancillary 

equipments

Supervisory 
control and data 

acquisition 
system (SCADA)

Construction 
equipment

TotalPlant and 
machinery

Tools and 
equipment

Motor vehicles Bowsers and 
bobtail

Furniture and 
fixture

Office 
equipment

Spherical 
tanks

71,617,842          6,987,814     122,162                    776,619     525,467     2,455,173   69,430        1,192,376         89,331            50,277            121,822      445,465          97,615                 -                192,697,545   
29,262,603          411,022        14,138                      94,494       267            1,325,420   24,621        342,803            9,473              8,327              76,051        507,973          -                       -                36,866,410     

(495,447)              -                (112)                          -            -             (5,311)         (21)              (20,470)             -                 -                  -              -                  -                       -                (521,361)         
(6,585,789)           (904,245)       (24,495)                     (81,603)     (32,880)      (671,328)     (42,768)       (186,595)           (9,013)            (17,498)           (56,248)       (222,981)         (5,473)                  -                (10,527,253)    
93,799,209          6,494,591     111,693                    789,510     492,854     3,103,954   51,262        1,328,114         89,791            41,106            141,625      730,457          92,142                 -                218,515,341   

168,804,540        15,461,296   1,163,158                 1,176,296  1,027,739  7,363,300   696,988      4,373,211         177,317          632,453          901,209      2,483,915       1,258,757            2,896,366     348,827,648   
(75,005,331)         (8,966,705)    (1,051,465)                (386,786)   (534,885)    (4,259,346)  (645,726)     (3,045,097)        (87,526)          (591,347)         (759,584)     (1,753,458)      (1,166,614)           (2,896,366)    (130,312,307)  
93,799,209          6,494,591     111,693                    789,510     492,854     3,103,954   51,262        1,328,114         89,791            41,106            141,625      730,457          92,143                 -                218,515,341   

59,586,562          6,933,228     138,961                    773,065     548,590     2,280,178   59,874        1,223,695         96,419            51,658            100,042      296,569          100,840               -                178,316,371   
18,247,946          877,079        8,300                        81,352       12,376       714,837      52,041        161,310            21,112            71,414        302,065          -                       24,121,755     

(735,684)              -                (126)                          (3,020)        (3,448)         -              (15,038)             -                  -              -                  (1,174)                  (758,490)         
(5,480,982)           (822,493)       (24,973)                     (77,798)     (32,479)      (536,394)     (42,485)       (177,591)           (7,088)            (22,493)           (49,634)       (153,169)         (2,051)                  (8,982,091)      
71,617,842          6,987,814     122,162                    776,619     525,467     2,455,173   69,430        1,192,376         89,331            50,277            121,822      445,465          97,615                 -                192,697,545   

140,037,384        15,050,274   1,149,132                 1,081,802  1,027,472  6,043,191   672,388      4,050,878         167,844          624,126          825,158      1,975,942       1,258,757            2,896,366     312,482,599   
(68,419,542)         (8,062,460)    (1,026,970)                (305,183)   (502,005)    (3,588,018)  (602,958)     (2,858,502)        (78,513)          (573,849)         (703,336)     (1,530,477)      (1,161,142)           (2,896,366)    (119,785,054)  
71,617,842          6,987,814     122,162                    776,619     525,467     2,455,173   69,430        1,192,376         89,331            50,277            121,822      445,465          97,615                 -                192,697,545   

5 to 23 6 .25 to 12.5 16.6 to 50 10 20 5 - 20 5 - 33.33 5 - 20 2 - 10 5 - 20 3 - 20 3 to 33.33 14.3 to 16.6 20

Computer and 
ancillary 

equipments

Supervisory 
control and data 

acquisition 
system (SCADA)

Construction 
equipment

Total

(Rupees in '000')

Plant and 
machinery

Tools and 
equipment

Motor vehicles Bowsers and 
bobtail

Furniture and 
fixture

Office 
equipment

Gas distribution 
system and 

consumer meters

Compressor 
stations

Telecommunication
system

Cylinders Spherical 
tanks
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5.1.1

2025 2024
Note

5.1.2 Depreciation charge for the year on operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:

Details of disposal of operating assets are as follows:

(Rupees in '000)

 Cost 
 Accumulated 

depreciation 
 Net book 

value 
 Sale 

proceeds 

 Gain / 
(loss) 

on sale 

 Mode of 
disposal 

 Particulars of 
buyers 

Gas Distribution System

Gas Meters      766,214         389,640      376,574                 -        (376,574)
 Gas meters 

retired  Scrap sales 

Gas Distribution Pipelines   1,699,073      1,582,381      116,692                 -        (116,692)
 Pipeline 
replaced  Write off 

Plant and machinery
Elevator Kone 7000 Indentical Lift Pt 21/20-15 New Building 
H.O          6,251             4,669          1,582              353          (1,229) Auction

M/s. Nighat Angel 
Traders

Gas Chromotograph        17,051           16,199             852           1,198               345 Auction M/s. Shahid Taj

Motor Vehicle
Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All 
Accessories          2,411             1,697             714              723                 9 Service Rule Mr. Afeef Ahmed
Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All 
Accessories          2,742             1,388          1,353           2,742            1,388 Insurance Claim

M/s. National 
Insurance Company 
Limited (a related 
party)

Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All 
Accessories          1,930             1,351             579              579                   0 Service Rule Mr. A. Waheed 

Jumani
Motor Vehicles|Car 1300Cc, 1.3L  Automatic With All 
Accessories          2,742             1,064          1,678           1,677                 (0) Service Rule Mr. Shakeel Ahmed
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear 
Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          2,154             1,161             993           1,095               102 Service Rule Mr. Javed 

Mehmood
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear 
Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          3,270                951          2,319           2,357                 38 Service Rule Mr. Mustafa Kamal 
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear 
Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          1,998             1,399             599              599                   0 Service Rule Mr.Niaz Ahmed 

Marri
Motor Vehicles|Car 'New Suzuki Cultus Ags (Auto Gear 
Shift)' 1000Cc, C/W Accessories          2,154             1,110          1,044           1,120                 76 Service Rule Mr.Subhan Ali Dasti 
Pick-Up Double Cabin 4 X 4, Diesel, 2500 - 3200Cc, Fully 
Loaded          3,644             2,915             729           3,624            2,895 Insurance Claim

M/s. National 
Insurance Company 
Limited (a related 
party)

       23,045           13,037        10,008         14,516            4,508 
Total items having book value exceeding Rs. 500,000   2,511,634      2,005,926      505,708         16,067      (489,641)

Items having book value upto  Rs. 500,000 908,732    893,079        15,653       58,534       42,881        

Total - 2025 3,420,366 2,899,005     521,361     74,601       (446,760)     
Total - 2024 2,782,694 2,024,204     758,490     121,021     (637,469)      

Items having book value exceeding Rs. 500,000
(Rupees in '000)

This includes the transfer of the gas transmission pipeline, valued at Rs. 4,099 million (2024: Rs. 3,283 million), 
and the gas distribution system, valued at Rs. 29,263 million (2024: Rs. 18,248 million), from capital work in 
progress.

Transmission and distribution costs 39.2 9,830,027      8,413,941      
Administrative expenses 40.1 440,880         310,240         
Selling expenses 40.2 19,428           17,384           

10,290,335    8,741,565      
Meter manufacturing division 42.1 33,462           40,700           
LPG air mix 42.2 117,295         110,971         
Capitalised on projects 86,161           88,855           

10,527,253    8,982,091      
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District Area of Land
Sq. Yards

5.1.4

LPG Air Mix Plant Awaran 19,360          
LPG Plant at Gwadar, Allotment of Government Land in Mauza Karwat Gwadar 19,360          
LPG Plant Gwadar 19,360          
Regional office Hyderabad 38,893          
Billing office Hyderabad 1,079            
Plot ensured for Community Centre for offices at Hyderabad Hyderabad 2,398            
Head Quarter - 3 - Compressor Station Hyderabad 40,667          
Head Office Building Karachi 24,200          
Karachi Terminal Station (K.T) Karachi 225,447        
Distribution Office Karachi West Karachi 9,680            
Site office Karachi 19,360          
Zonal Billing office & Customer Facilitation Centre Nazimabad Karachi 2,221            
Medical Centre M.A Jinnah Road Karachi 115               
Khadeji Base Camp Karachi 125,841        
Land for Construction of Distribution Central offices Karachi 355               
Land for Construction of Distribution Central offices Karachi 572               
Site proposed for Customer Facilitation Centre and Distribution office DHA Karachi 600               
Dope Yard for Distribution East Karachi 653               

LPG Air Mix Plant
 Kot Ghulam 
Muhammad 19,360          

Regional office Larkana 16,214          
Site proposed for Distribution offices Mastung 1,320            
Zonal office Naushero Feroz 3,572            
Regional office Nawab Shah 6,111            
Head Quarter -2 - Compressor Station Nawab Shah 46,667          
LPG Air Mix Plant Noshki 19,360          
Land proposed for SSGC building in Pishin Pishin 2,556            
Regional office Quetta              4,840 
Stores, Dope yard for Quetta Region. Quetta              2,420 
Head Quarter Quetta 108,460        
Land proposed for Zonal office at Sanghar Sanghar 4,414            
Mini Stadium , Customer Facilitation Centre & Distribution office Shahdadkot 32,307          
Sinjhoro office Sinjhoro 600               
LPG Air Mix Plant Surab 19,360          
Regional office Sukkur / Pipe Yard Sukkur Sukkur 115               
Head Quarter -1 Sukkur Sukkur 43,333          
SSGC LPG Ltd Muridke 30,250          
SSGC LPG Ltd Hari-Pur 14,520          
SSGC LPG Ltd Port Qasim 72,600          

5.1.5

5.1.6

Particulars of Land and Building

As at June 30, 2025, the residual value of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment is amounting to Rs.
823.462 million (2024: Rs. 619.842 million).

The LPG cylinders are not in possession of the subsidiary SSGC LPG due to nature of the business. In view of 
large number of distributors / customers, the management considers it impracticable to disclose particulars of 
cylinders not in possession of the Subsidiary as required under para 12 of part II of the Fourth Schedule to the 
Act.       
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 2025  2024 
Note

5.2 Capital work in progress

Projects:
Gas distribution system 4,709,312      4,071,374      
Gas transmission system 93,259           1,145,682      
Cost of buildings under construction and others 779,140         1,050,610      

5,581,711      6,267,666      
Impairment of capital work in progress (452,552)       (452,552)       

5,129,159      5,815,114      
Stores and spares held for capital projects - net 5.2.3 8,294,288      8,739,675      
LPG air mix plant 264,586         260,687        

8,558,874      9,000,362      
13,688,033    14,815,476    

5.2.1

(Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

The borrowing costs capitalised during the year in the gas transmission and distribution system and related
capital work in progress amounted to Rs. 2,218 million (2024: Rs. 2,285 million). Borrowing costs related to
general borrowings were capitalised at the rate of 15.04% (2024: 22.29%).

5.2.2

5.2.3 Stores and spares held for capital projects

Gas distribution and transmission 8,772,806      9,236,093      
Less: Accumulated impairment loss (478,518)       (496,418)       

8,294,288      8,739,675      
6 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 255,948         186,844        

Net carrying value basis
Balance as at July 01, 186,844         195,756        
Additions 167,816         128,158        
Amortization (98,712)         (137,070)       
Balance as at June 30, 255,948         186,844        

 2025  2024 

Gross carrying value basis
Cost  1,282,143      1,114,327      
Accumulated amortization  (1,026,195)    (927,483)       
Net book value 255,948         186,844        

33.33             33.33            

6.1 The amortisation charge is allocated to administrative expenses (refer note 40.1)

Additions to capital expenditures incurred during the year amounting to Rs. 33,537 million (2024: Rs. 24,085
million).

(Rupees in '000)

Annual amortization rate (in %)
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 2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

7 RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Cost 233,086         204,155        
Accumulated depreciation (131,447)       (99,413)         
Net book value 101,639         104,742        

Cost
Balance as at July 01, 204,155         187,929        
Additions during the year 93,402           106,112        
Derecognition during the year (64,471)         (89,886)         
Balance as at June 30, 233,086         204,155        

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at July 01,  99,413          98,586        
Depreciation charge for the year  94,376            84,984          
Derecognition during the year (62,342)         (84,157)         
Balance as at June 30, 131,447         99,413          

Net book value 101,639         104,742        

7.1

7.2

7.3 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

8 DEFERRED TAXATION

The Group has entered into lease arrangements for right of use of buildings used in operational and customer 
facilitation activities and 15 acres land and building of Holding Company used by subsidiary company, SSGC LPG.

The rate of depreciation is based on the term of the respective agreement and ranges from 33% to 40% (2024: 33% 
to 40%) per annum.

39.2            64,656            59,608 
40.1 6,080             3,200             
40.2 23,640           22,176           

94,376           84,984           

Transmission and distribution 
Administrative expenses
Selling expenses

Charge/(reversal)  Reversal 

to profit or loss to OCI

Note

Taxable temporary differences
Accelerated tax depreciation 21,442,203              3,129,462                  -                         24,571,665              

Deductible temporary differences
Provision against employee benefits
Provision against impaired debts & other receivables

(2,134,327)              (561,316)                   (159,281)                (2,854,924)              

(8,711,413)              (905,854)                   (9,617,267)              

Provision against slow-moving store and spares (152,993)                 (14,512)                     (167,505)                 

Liability not paid within three years (28,500,441)            3,951,719                  (24,548,722)            

Carry forward of tax losses (1,492,591)              1,492,588                  (3)                            

Minimum income tax (9,732,064)              5,657,777                  (4,074,287)              

Others (918,566)                 (359,641)                   (1,278,207)              

(51,642,395)            9,260,761                  (159,281)                (42,540,915)            

Sub total (30,200,192)            12,390,223                (159,281)                (17,969,250)            

Deferred tax asset not recognized 8.1 19,154,828              (12,408,149)              155,338                 6,902,017                

Total (11,045,364)            (17,926)                     (3,943)                    (11,067,233)            

Balance as at 
July 01, 2024

Balance as at 
June 30, 2025

2025

(Rupees in '000)
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Charge/(reversal)  Reversal 

to profit or loss to OCI

Note
Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 19,410,965                 2,031,238               -                             21,442,203                

Deductible temporary differences

Provision against employee benefits (2,195,225)                  (623,633)                684,531                     (2,134,327)                 

selbaviecer rehto   & stbed deriapmi tsniaga noisivorP (8,154,378)                  (557,035)                -                             (8,711,413)                 

Provision against slow-moving store and spares (141,967)                    (11,026)                  -                             (152,993)                    

Liability not paid within three years (33,082,709)                4,582,268               -                             (28,500,441)               

Carry forward of tax losses (3,576,408)                  2,083,817               -                             (1,492,591)                 

Minimum income tax (12,550,187)                2,818,123               -                             (9,732,064)                 

Others (1,796,596)                  878,030                  -                             (918,566)                    

(61,497,470)                9,170,544               684,531                     (51,642,395)               

Sub total (42,086,505)                11,201,782             684,531                     (30,200,192)               

Deferred tax asset not recognized 8.1 33,687,997                 (14,533,169)            -                             19,154,828                

Total (8,398,508)                  (3,331,386)             684,531                     (11,045,364)               

8.1

 2025  2024 

9 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

At fair value through other comprehensive income          454,109          256,705 
Associates and other investments

(Rupees in '000)

2024

Balance as at July 
01, 2023

Balance as at 
June 30, 2024

(Rupees in '000)

As at June 30, 2025, the Group has a net deferred tax asset of Rs. 17,969 million (2024: Rs. 30,200 million) out 
of which a deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 11,063 million (2024: Rs. 11,045 million) has been recognised and 
remaining balance of Rs. 6,906 million (2024: 19,155 million) is unrecognised.
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9.1 Investment - at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in associates Perecentage of shareholding
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 

2,414,174 (2024: 2,414,174) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 0.38% 281,758         153,228        

Pakistan Refinery Limited
3,150,000 (2024: 3,150,000) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 0.50% 106,880         73,080          

Other investments
United Bank Limited

237,256 (2024: 118,628) ordinary
shares of Rs. 5 each 0.01% 65,471           30,397          

454,109         256,705        

9.1.1

10 LONG TERM LOANS

  Secured
Executives 10.1 -                36                 
Less: current maturity -                (23)                

-                13                 

Other employees 10.1 & 10.2 235,541         228,250        
Less: current maturity 15 (42,232)         (42,954)         

193,309         185,296        

193,309         185,309        

Investments in Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited represent investment in 'associated companies' in terms of
provisions of the Companies Act 2017.

Other Other
  employees employees

Balance as at July 01, 36            228,250      59            181,390      
Disbursements during the year -          62,600        -          100,405      
Repayments during the year (36)          (55,309)       (23)          (53,545)       
Balance as at June 30, -          235,541      36            228,250      

2025 2024

Executives Executives

10.1 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans are as follows;

2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)
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10.2

11 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores 801,401         687,474         
Spares 3,613,398      3,351,962      
Loose tools 1,424             1,888             

4,416,223      4,041,324      
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete store 11.1 (549,069)        (499,280)        

3,867,154      3,542,044      
Stores and spares in transit 490,170         495,320         

11.2 4,357,324      4,037,364      

11.1 The movement in provision for slow moving and obsolete stores are as follows:

Balance as at July 01, 499,280         461,765         
Add: Charge for the year 49,789           37,515           
Balance as at June 30, 549,069         499,280         

11.2 Stores, spares and loose tools are held for the following operations:

Transmission 3,447,435      3,183,987      
Distribution 909,889         853,377         

4,357,324      4,037,364      

2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

These represent loans provided for house building and motorcycle under the terms of 
employment. These are recoverable in monthly installments over a period of 6 to 10 years, 
and are secured against the retirement benefits balances of respective employees and 
deposit of title deeds. Loans to non-executive employees are mark-up free.
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2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

12 STOCK-IN-TRADE

Gas transmission and distribution
Gas in pipelines 2,068,147      2,214,091      
Stock of Synthetic Natural Gas 25,846           18,207           
Stock of Gas Condensate 11,070           6,047             

2,105,063      2,238,345      
Liquified Petroleum Gas with third parties in transit

at terminal plants

Liquified Petroleum Gas 12.1
12.2

663,867         444,842         
LPG Stock in transit 36,876           4,344             

700,743         449,186         

Gas meters
Components 989,173         1,489,206      
Work-in-process 131,820         183,810         
Finished goods 17,434           154,181         

1,138,427      1,827,197      
Provision against slow moving and 

obsolete stock 12.3 (28,535)          (28,285)          
3,915,698      4,486,443      

12.3 The movement in provision for slow moving and obsolete stores are as follows:

This represents the inter-plant movement of stock already recognised.

Balance as at July 1, 28,285           27,778           
Add: Charge for the year 250                507                
Balance as at June 30, 28,535           28,285           

13 CUSTOMERS' INSTALLATION WORK IN PROGRESS 

12.2

 2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

12.1

This represents cost of work carried out by the Holding Company on behalf of the
customers at their premises. Upon completion of work, the cost thereof is transferred to
transmission and distribution cost and recoveries from such customers are shown as
deduction there from as reflected in note 39.2 of the consolidated financial statements.

This includes 20.75 metric tons of LPG held by the hospitality owner Terra Energy (Private) 
limited, amounting to Rs. 3.42 million (2024: Rs. 3.27 million). The LPG is being withheld by 
hospitality owner due to non-payment against invoices issued to the Group for hospitality 
services, the Group held the invoices for the services payment due to unregistered status of 
the hospitality owner with the Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA).The stock has been recorded 
based on the weighted average cost.
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2025 2024
Note

14 TRADE DEBTS

Considered good
Secured  39,027,955    29,060,089    
Unsecured  91,918,151    98,425,997    

14.1 & 14.2 130,946,106  127,486,086  
Considered doubtful 33,234,883    27,481,967    

164,180,989  154,968,053  
Allowance for expected credit loss 14.3 (33,198,284)   (27,481,967)   

130,982,705  127,486,086  

14.1

a. OD rate being paid by the Holding Company; or
b. Rate at which interest is payable on gas producer bills.

(Rupees in '000)

It includes receivable from K-Electric Limited (KE) related to the sale of indigenous gas
amounting to Rs. 28,539 million, including a long outstanding balance of Rs. 26,289
million (2024: Rs. 26,289 million), excluding Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC).

As KE has been continuously defaulting and not making principle as well as LPS payment,
the Holding Company filed a suit against KE in the Honourable High Court of Sindh in
November 2012, for recovery of Rs. 55,705 million including principal outstanding
amounting to Rs. 45,705 million on account of the supply of gas and Rs. 10,000 million on
account of LPS. In addition, KE has also filed a case against the Holding Company in the
Honourable High Court of Sindh for recovery of damages/losses of Rs. 61,614 million as
KE claimed that the Holding Company had not supplied the committed quantity of natural
gas to KE.

The above suit has been filed based as per the agreement dated June 30, 2009 which
was entered between the Holding Company and KE for making outstanding payment in 18
installments. The Holding Company was entitled to charge LPS on outstanding principal
amount at rate highest of:

Despite the agreement, KE continuously defaulted on installment payments, and the
Holding Company therefore charged LPS up to June 2016. However, in line with opinions
from firms of Chartered Accountants, the management decided to recognize LPS on a
receipt basis effective from July 1, 2012, and accordingly reversed the LPS income that
had been recognized from June 30, 2012 onwards.

However, the Holding Company maintains a memorandum records which indicate an
aggregate LPS income of Rs. 202,744 million (2024: Rs. 178,696 million) including LPS
income for the year ended June 30, 2025 of Rs. 24,048 million (2024: Rs. 31,936 million)
which has not been recognized in the consolidated financial statements. As of the
reporting date, the aggregate claim on account of disputed balances works out to be Rs.
232,396 million (including GIDC of Rs. 3,363 million). 
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In view of the legal counsel of the Holding Company, the management considers
outstanding balance as good and recoverable. The legal counsel also viewed that the
Holding Company has a valid claim over LPS on outstanding balance, but considering that
the matter is in dispute, as discussed above, the Holding Company has decided to
recognize LPS from KE when either such claimed amounts are recovered or when these
are decreed and their recovery is assured.

In March, 2014, the Holding Company signed a payment plan with KE in order to
streamline the payment modalities in relation to current monthly bills and old outstanding
principal amount, in which the issue of LPS was not addressed. The plan expired on
March 31, 2015, and first addendum was included to the original payment plan effective
from April 01, 2015 to March 31, 2016. Upon expiry, the second addendum was included
to the original payment plan on June 18, 2016 effective from April 01, 2016 to March 31,
2017. Currently, management is in a process to negotiate payment plan, which has not
been finalized till the filing of these consolidated financial statements but the supply of gas
and payment is continuing as per old plan.

In June 2022, a Task Force was constituted by the then Prime Minister to resolve
issues/disputes related to KE. During their meetings, it was decided to enter into a multi-
party Mediation Agreement in order to resolve KE’s receivables and payables issues
between all the stakeholders. Accordingly, after deliberations, a Mediation Agreement has
been executed between the Stakeholders. The Federal Cabinet also ratified the decision,
and the Mediation Agreement was also cleared by the Law & Justice Division. Parties
have submitted their respective claims to the Mediator, and the mediation is now in
process.

The parties then submitted their respective claims with the Mediator. First mediation
meeting was held in May 2024 which was attended by all the parties except Karachi Water
Sewerage Board which refused to join the mediation process and did not attend the
proceedings. During the course of second meeting which was held on August 15, 2024,
the counsel for Central Power Purchasing Authority (CPPA-G), National Transmission and
Dispatch Company (NTDC) and Government of Pakistan informed the Mediator that the
time period provided in the Mediation Agreement for rendering an opinion by the Mediator
has lapsed (which was sixty (60) days from the date of appointment of Mediator,
extendable by a further thirty (30) days).

In view of the above, ECC vide its decision dated February 03, 2025 has approved the
summary / proposal of Power Division to amend the Mediation Agreement to provide for a
further period of ninety (90) days from the date of approval for concluding the Mediation
process.

As a result, Ministry of Energy (MoE) vide letter dated September 18, 2024, shared a draft 
summary to be moved by the Power Division for the consideration and approval of the 
Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) regarding extension on the period of 
determination by the Mediator for a further period of sixty (60) days. In this respect, the 
Holding Company shared its views / comments on the draft ECC summary, that any further 
extensions can be done with mutual consent by all the parties.
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14.2

Subsequently, the Mediator held several meetings with the stakeholders; however, the
Mediator vide its letter dated June 05, 2025 submitted that the mediation proceedings
were concluded on the note that a mutually acceptable agreement in a collaborative and
consensual manner is not possible.

The PSML has been defaulting and not making payments of principal as well as LPS,
therefore Holding Company charged LPS up to June 2016. However, in line with opinions
from firms of Chartered Accountants, the management decided to recognize LPS on a
receipt basis effective from July 1, 2012, and accordingly reversed the LPS income that
had been recognized from June 30, 2012 onwards.

However, the Holding Company maintains a memorandum account shown aggregate LPS
income of Rs. 75,231 million (2024: Rs. 74,345 million) (including LPS income for the year
ended June 30, 2025 of Rs. 886 million (2024: 9,876 million)) which has not been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements. However in mid of July 2024, PSML
has been disconnected, therefore, no LPS recorded in the memorandum account after
July 2025. The aggregate legal claim of Rs. 99,665 million including Rs. 2,664 million
GIDC.

On April, 2016, the Honourable Court of Sindh passed an order restraining PSML from
creating any third party interest in relation to its assets including but not limited to
immovable assets owned by it upto the extent of this amount.

PSML has filed its counter claim approximately of Rs. 38,660 million on account of losses
due to low gas pressure provided to PSML from March 2015 to December 2016. Legal
counsel of the Holding Company is of the view that due to vagaries of litigation nothing
could be expressed with any degree of certainty in the contested matters.

It includes receivables from Pakistan Steel Mills Corporation Limited (PSML) amounting to 
Rs. 21,770 million (excluding GIDC of Rs. 2,664 million) (2024: Rs. 21,778 million) which 
includes a LPS of Rs. 2,051 million (2024: Rs. 2,051 million) receivable against sale of 
indigenous gas. This includes an overdue amount of Rs. 21,770 million (2024: Rs. 21,604 
million) excluding GIDC.

The Holding Company filed a suit in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (HCS) in April 
2016, for recovery of its outstanding amount of gas bills and LPS aggregate claim 
amounting to Rs. 41,354 million up to February 2016.
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 2025  2024 
Note

14.3 The movement in allowance for expected credit loss is as follows:

Balance as at July 1, 27,481,967    25,531,670    
Add: Charge for the year 5,716,317      1,950,297      
Balance as at June 30, 33,198,284    27,481,967    

15 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Secured
Loan/Advance to:

Executives 15.1 1,738             109,799         
Other employees 15.1 576,634         215,093         

578,372         324,892         
Current portion of long term loans 

Executives -                23                                                  
Other employees 10 42,232           42,954           

42,232           42,977                                           
620,604         367,869         

15.1

 2025  2024 

16 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Considered good
Advances for goods and services 424,611         90,160           
Trade deposits 109,110         24,037           
Prepayments 277,073         329,279         

810,794         443,476         

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

Currently, PSML’s financial position is adverse, and has no capacity to repay its obligations on 
its own, therefore, the entire amount as appeared in books of account was claimed from OGRA 
in the determination of Final Revenue Requirement (FRR) FY 2024-25 of the Holding 
Company. OGRA in its decision directed the Holding Company to take up the matter of PSML's 
outstanding balances with the FG for a comprehensive resolution.    

These represent loans for house building, motorcycle and festival advances to the employees 
according to the terms of employment. These loans / advances  are interest free and are 
secured against the employee retirement benefit balances.
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 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

Gas infrastructure development cess customers 34.7 6,837,838      6,894,354      
GPO against gas bill collection 18.4 315,215         2,315,215      
General sale tax 18.5 79,527,268    87,664,269    
Sindh sales tax 2,451             766,751         
Suppliers against asset contribution 18.6 163,880         231,767         
Miscellaneous 408,429         137,012         

684,135,110  811,755,086  
Allowance for expected credit loss 18.7 (2,544,768)     (2,544,768)     

681,590,342  809,210,318  

17 INTEREST ACCRUED

Late payment of bills / invoices from
Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited 239,689         239,689         

                 
Interest accrued on:                 

Sales tax refund 22.6 487,739         487,739         
Bank deposits 63,702

3,929
           62,620           

Accrued markup            1,803                                             
795,059         791,851         

Allowance for expected credit loss (112,400)        (112,400)        
682,659         679,451         

18 OTHER RECEIVABLES 

Receivable from:
GoP against tariff adjustment - indigenous gas 18.1 545,281,935  564,329,233               
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 18.2 48,502,979    145,795,900  
Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited 18.3 2,262,314      2,262,314      

     
                                                                              

Pakistan LNG Limited 832,801         1,353,924      



253
Annual Report 2025

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

18.1 Receivable from GoP against tariff adjustment - indigenous gas 

Balance as at July 01, 564,329,233
(20,458,964)

1,411,666

     498,763,608 
Less/Add: (Recovered) / Charge during the year 38.1      63,878,757 
Subsidy for LPG air mix operations        1,686,868 

Balance as at June 30,  18.1.1    545,281,935    564,329,233 

18.1.1

18.2 At the reporting date, receivable balance from SNGPL comprises of the following:

Differential tariff 18.2.1        4,284,080        4,284,080 
Uniform cost of indigenous gas                    -        15,818,845 
Uniform cost of RLNG 18.2.2      20,000,000      20,000,000 
Lease rentals             18,207        1,609,134 
Contingent rent             19,529             19,529 
Capacity and utilisation charges of RLNG 3,958,765           60,843,167 
LSA margins of RLNG           374,281        3,032,074 
RLNG transportation income      19,848,117      40,189,071 

 18.2.3      48,502,979    145,795,900 

18.2.1

This includes Rs. 390 million (2024: Rs. 390 million) recoverable from the Government
of Pakistan (GoP) on account of remission of gas receivables from people of Ziarat
under instructions from GoP. Although, management is confident that this amount is
fully recoverable, being prudent full provision has already been recorded against the
same in these consolidated financial statements.

As at June 30, 2025, the Holding Company has receivable of Rs. 4,284 million (2024:
Rs. 4,284 million) which stands outstanding from May 2020 till to date.

OGRA vide its decision dated November 20, 2018, had directed that the stock of
RLNG withheld by the Holding Company to be purchased from SNGPL will be
calculated based on the historical weighted average cost price in Pakistani Rupees.
Consequently, the Holding Company has recorded sales as per the relevant applicable
OGRA notified rates. The Tariff differential represents gain owing to the difference
between the current and historical rates, which were passed on to the SNGPL up to
May 2020.

The Holding Company is in the process of reconciling this disputed amount and is
hopeful that it will be sorted out in due course.
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18.2.2

18.2.3

18.3

18.4

During the year, with the mutual consent of both Sui companies, an exercise was
initiated to reconcile the long outstanding balances pertaining prior to June 2020.
Resultantly, the Holding Company made a settlement with SNGPL and has reconciled
these long outstanding balances except for disclosed in 18.2.1.

This amount comprises of receivable in respect of royalty income & fuel charges, sale
of natural gas liquids, Federal Excise Duty (FED), Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on franchise
services and receivable from JJVL at the rate of ad-hoc 57% value of LPG / NGL
extraction as per the agreement signed between the Holding Company and JJVL
pursuant to Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) order dated December 04,
2018 amounting to Rs. 19 million (2024: Rs. 19 million), Rs. 108 million (2024: Rs. 108
million), Rs. 1,070 million (2024: Rs. 1,070 million), Rs. 646 million (2024: Rs. 646
million), Rs. 419.6 million (2024: Rs. 419.6 million) respectively. Although,
management is confident that this amount is fully recoverable, being prudent provision
of Rs. 2,142.87 million has already been recorded against the same in these consolidated
financial statements.

This represents receivable balance from Pakistan Post Office against gas bills
collected from January 2022 to March 2022 and deposited in Government Treasury.
The management is making efforts to recover the amount.

This represents advance paid to SNGPL against Cost of Gas Equalization to be 
adjusted against any shortfall, if any, in Final Revenue Requirement (FRR) determined 
by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority (OGRA). The Ministry of Energy (Petroleum 
Division) has directed the Holding Company and SNGPL to enter into a ‘Cost of Gas 
Equalization Agreement’ to facilitate the adjustments arising out of FRR. The execution 
of agreement is currently pending between both parties.

During the year, the matter was taken up by Special Investment Facilitation Council 
(SIFC) for the resumption of gas supplies to JJVL to meet the national objective of 
enhancing domestic production and reducing reliance on imported LPG. Several 
meetings were held in this respect at various SIFC committees.

After detailed deliberations and a series of meetings, the final draft agreement has been 
agreed and initialed by both the parties on June 17, 2025. The initialed agreement had 
been placed before SIFC-Executive Committee (SIFC-EC) in its meeting dated June 18, 
2025 in which it accorded approval of the agreement. Subsequently, in view of the 
SIFC-EC approval, the initialed agreement has also been approved by the Board. 
Subsequently, both the parties signed the agreement on July 28, 2025 for its formal 
execution. Consequently, subsequent to the year end, Rs 420 million in respect of 
revenue sharing agreement has been received.
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18.5

18.6 This represents receivable from Mari Energies Limited, Spud Energy Pty Limited, PKP
Exploration Limited and Government Holdings (Private) Limited (referred as BJV) in
respect of Zarghun gas transmission pipeline under pipeline contribution agreement.
The receivable has been recognised using discounted cash flow technique.

2025 2024

18.7

       2,544,768        2,586,874 
                   -             (42,106)

2,544,768      2,544,768      

19 TAXATION - NET

Advance tax 86,636,624    48,036,165    
Provision for tax (35,309,420)   (31,909,631)   

51,327,204    16,126,534    

20 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 20.1 8,705             8,538             
Cash at banks

 - current accounts       447,236         1,704,084      
 - deposit accounts      20.2 2,469,714      422,903         

2,916,950      2,126,987      

2,925,655      2,135,525      

20.1

Balance as at June 30,

(Rupees in '000)
Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance as at July 01, 
Reversal during the year

Note

This represents sales tax refunds that arose due to the excess of average purchase cost 
over average sales price, uniform purchase price adjustment with SNGPL and zero 
rating of sales tax on gas sales for various industries. These refunds are processed 
through FBR’s Sales Tax Automated Refund Repository (STARR) system. Due to 
several snags in the functioning of STARR, the Commissioner has deferred processing 
of tax refunds and has also deferred the payments of already processed refunds. The 
deferred refunds are issued to the Holding Company on the basis of manual verification 
of documents (third-party vendor sales tax returns) by tax authorities.

This includes foreign currency cash in hand amounting to USD 15,000 (2024: USD 
15,000).



256
Annual Report 2025

       

20.2

21 SHARE CAPITAL

21.1

 2025  2024 2025 2024
(Numbers of shares) (Rupees in '000)

 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000    10,000,000     10,000,000 

21.2 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

219,566,554    219,566,554    2,195,666     2,195,666      

661,349,755    661,349,755    6,613,497     6,613,497      
880,916,309    880,916,309    8,809,163     8,809,163      

21.2.1

21.2.2

 2025  2024 
(Number of Shares)

      223,500        223,500 
 57,754,179   57,754,179 
 57,977,679   57,977,679 

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

22 RESERVES

Capital reserves
Share capital restructuring reserve 22.1 146,868      146,868       
Fixed assets replacement reserve 22.2 88,000        88,000         

234,868      234,868       

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

These carries mark-up at rate ranges from 6% to 19%  (2024: 6% to 20.56% ) per annum:

Authorized Share Capital

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 
each

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued as fully paid in cash

Issued as fully paid bonus 
shares

The Holding Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed
income. The shareholders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the shareholders. All
shares rank equally with regard to the Holding Company's residual assets. Currently,
Government of Pakistan (GoP) holds 53.18% (2024: 53.18%) paid up capital of the
Holding Company.

Ordinary shares of the Holding Company held by associated company /undertaking
by virtue of common directorship are as follows: 

B.R.R Guardian Limited (formerly B.R.R Guardian Modaraba)
State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan
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2025 2024
Note (Rupees in '000)

Revenue reserves
Dividend equalisation reserve 36,000        36,000         
Special reserve I 22.3 333,141      333,141       
Special reserve II 22.4 1,800,000   1,800,000    
General reserve 22.5 2,015,653   2,015,653    
Reserve for interest on sales tax refund 22.6 487,739      487,739       

4,672,533   4,672,533    
4,907,401   4,907,401    

22.1 Share capital restructuring reserve 

22.2 Fixed assets replacement reserve

22.3 Special reserve I

22.4 Special reserve II

22.5 General reserve

This represents the reduction of share capital of former Sui Gas Transmission
Company Limited (SGTC) due to merger of Sui Gas Transmission Company Limited
and Southern Gas Company Limited (SGC) in March 1989. 

This represents profit allocated in 1986 by former Southern Gas Company Limited for
replacement of gas distribution lines in rural areas of Sindh. Subsequently, all the
rehabilitation activities were carried out from the Holding Company's working capital. 

This represents special undistributable reserve created as per the decision of the
Board of Directors to meet the future requirements of the Holding Company.

This represents accumulated balance arising on a price increase of Rs. 4.10 per MCF 
granted to the Holding Company by the Government of Pakistan (GoP) in January 
1987 effective from July 1, 1985 to enable the Holding Company to meet the 
requirements of Asian Development Bank regarding debt / equity ratio and other 
financial covenants specified in loan agreements with them.

This represents the reserve created by the Holding Company for the payment of 
dividends.
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22.6 Reserve for interest on sales tax refund

23 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

23.1

 2025  2024 

Freehold land       517,627 517,627       
Leasehold land       327,514 327,514       

      845,141 845,141       

23.2

This represents the reserve for the interest accrued on the sales tax refundable under
Section 67 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990, which is not available for distribution to
shareholders till the time it is received.

Had there been no revaluation, the carrying value of the revalued asset would have
been as follows:

 (Rupees in '000)

The fair value of the freehold and leasehold land are derived using the Sale
Comparison approach. The sales value is determined by physically analysing the
condition of land and by ascertaining the market value of similar land.

Details of the Group's freehold and leasehold land and information about fair value
hierarchy, as at June 30, 2025 are as follows.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land -                43,847,526 -              43,847,526 
Leasehold land -                17,740,254 -              17,740,254 

-              61,587,780 -              61,587,780 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Freehold land -                43,847,526 -              43,847,526 
Leasehold land -                17,740,254 -              17,740,254 

-              61,587,780 -              61,587,780 

2025

---------------------------Rupees in '000---------------------------

2024

---------------------------Rupees in '000---------------------------

The Group has carried out the revaluation of its freehold land and leasehold land 
respectively. The latest revaluation was carried out on June 30, 2023 by an 
independent valuer M/s M J Surveyors (Private) Limited which resulted in a surplus of 
Rs. 5,728 million. The revaluation was carried out based on the market value 
assessment being the fair value of the freehold and leasehold land. 
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23.2.1

23.2.2

 2025  2024 
24 LONG TERM FINANCING Note

Secured
Banking companies 24.1 10,176,745 33,824,950 

Unsecured 
Customer  finance 24.2 118,961      118,774      
Government of Sindh 24.3 753,333      618,042      

872,294      736,816      
11,049,039 34,561,766 

24.1 Banking companies

24.1.1

24.1.2

 (Rupees in '000)

The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is
not available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with Section 241 of the
Companies Act, 2017.

Forced sale values of freehold land and leasehold land is Rs. 36,934 million and Rs.
14,517 million, respectively.

This represents term finance facility of Rs 21,000 million, obtained from syndicate of
banks in March 2022, in which Faysal Bank Limited is acting as agent. The loan is
secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and future
movable fixed RLNG assets of the Holding Company related to project but not limited
to compressor stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline under
construction, machinery and equipments. Furthermore, loan is secured by a sovereign
guarantee from Government of Pakistan (GoP). The effective markup rate charged
during the year ranges from 12.28% to 21.81%  (2024: 22.81% to 23.05%) per annum.

This represents term finance facility of Rs. 15,000 million, obtained from United Bank
Limited (UBL) and Meezan Bank Limited with UBL acting as agent . The loan is
secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and future
movable fixed assets of the Holding Company comprising of compressor stations,
transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline under construction, machinery and
equipments. The effective markup rate charged during the year ranges from 11.33%
to 20.52% (2024: 21.26% to 24.14%) per annum.

Installment Repayment
payable period Note

Faysal Bank Limited - Led Consortium quarterly 2022-2026 24.1.1 5,833,333     11,666,666   
United Bank Limited  - Led Consortium quarterly 2022-2028 24.1.2 12,796,406   15,000,000   
The Bank of Punjab quarterly 2024-2026 24.1.3 13,750,000   15,000,000   
Meezan Bank Limited At maturity 2025-2026 24.1.4 20,000,000   -               
Unamortised transaction cost (36,327)         (50,049)        

52,343,412   41,616,617   
Less: Current maturity 32 (42,166,667)  (7,791,667)   

10,176,745   33,824,950   

  2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)
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24.1.3

24.1.4

 2025  2024 
Note

24.2 Customer finance

Customer finance 24.2.1 120,145            119,364            
32 (1,184)              (590)                  

118,961            118,774            

24.2.1

24.3 Government of Sindh

This represents term finance facility of Rs. 15,000 million, obtained from Bank of
Punjab. The loan is secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all
present and future movable fixed assets of the Holding Company comprising of
compressor stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline under
construction, machinery and equipments. The effective markup rate charged during the
year ranges from 11.69 % to 22.02% per anum (2024: 22.02% per annum).

This represents term finance facility of Rs. 20,000 million, obtained from Meezan Bank
Limited. The loan is secured against pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all
present and future movable fixed assets of the Holding comprising of compressor
stations, transmission and distribution pipelines, pipeline under construction, machinery
and equipments. The effective markup rate charged during the year ranges from
11.66% to 12.39% per annum.

 (Rupees in '000)

Less: Current maturity

This represents contributions received from certain industrial customers for laying of
distribution lines for supply of gas at their premises. Mark-up on these balances ranges
from 1% to 3% per annum. Principal and interest are adjustable in 48 equal installments
through credits in the monthly gas bills of the consumers.

Principal Mark up 2025 2024
Installment repayment rate p.a. Note
payable period

Government of Sindh loan - III yearly 2012 - 2021 4% 24.3.1 80,000          80,000         
Government of Sindh loan - IV yearly 2014 - 2023 4% 24.3.1 500,000        500,000       
Government of Sindh loan - V yearly 2015 - 2024 4% 24.3.1 360,000        360,000       

24.3.2 -               (135,291)      
940,000        804,709       

Less: current maturity 32 (186,667)      (186,667)      
753,333        618,042       

(Rupees in '000)

Less: impact of discounting 
of Government of Sindh loan
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24.3.1

24.3.2

The Holding Company has obtained unsecured development loans from Government of
Sindh for supply of gas to various districts and areas of Sindh.

 2025  2024 
Note

25 SECURITY DEPOSITS

From Consumers 25.1 & 25.2 39,767,643      32,026,456       
From Gas contractors 25.2 135,845            134,226            

39,903,488      32,160,682       

25.1

25.2

25.3

 2025  2024 
Note

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

To executives
Provision for:
Post retirement medical and free gas 

supply facilities 8,738,699        6,640,146         
Compensated absences 26.1 892,789            630,512            

9,631,488        7,270,658         

 (Rupees in '000)

This represents security received against amounts due from consumers on account of
gas sales. These deposits are repayable upon cancellation of the contract for gas
supply or upon submission of a bank guarantee in lieu of security deposits.. They are
also adjustable against unrecovered trade debts from the respective consumers. Mark-
up is payable at the rate of 5% per annum on deposits from all consumers, other than
domestic, which aggregate to Rs. 18,133 million (2024: 16,933 million).

The deposits obtained from consumers, other than domestic consumers, are being
utilized for business purposes in accordance with the terms of the contracts with
consumers.
These represent security deposits received from contractors. These deposits are
interest free and are refundable upon completion or cancellation of the contract.

 (Rupees in '000)

The Holding Company has revised the Government of Sindh (GoS) loan arrangements by 
adjusting the outstanding loan as at June 30, 2017, amounting to Rs. 3,940 million with 
the approved grant from GoS amounting to Rs. 3,000 million. The Holding Company has 
also filed claim regarding the waiver of the financial charges recorded and paid in prior 
years amounting to Rs. 541 million which are based on the waiver amount of Rs. 3,000 
million, later converted into grant. Currently, the Holding Company is charging finance 
cost and amortising deferred credit on outstanding loan net of waiver claim as mentioned.
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2025 2024
Note

26.1
absences - executives

Balance as at July 01, 630,512            882,925            
Add / (less): Provision / (reversal) made 
during the year 262,277            (252,413)          
Balance as at June 30, 892,789            630,512            

Movement in provision for compensated

 (Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
Note  (Rupees in '000)

27 PAYABLE AGAINST TRANSFER OF PIPELINE

Payable to Engro Elengy Terminal Limited 27.1 523,169            607,696            
Less: current maturity (92,446)            (84,527)             

430,723            523,169            

27.1

28 DEFERRED CREDIT

Government of Pakistan (GoP)
contributions / grants

Balance as at July 1, 4,514,118        3,840,646         
Add: Additions / adjustment during the year 31.3 275,007            1,048,699         

   Less: Amortized during the year (450,474)          (375,227)          
Balance as at June 30, 28.1 4,338,651        4,514,118         

Government of Sindh - Conversation of 
loan into grant
Balance as at July 01, 1,736,245        1,784,919         
Add: Additions / adjustment during the year 31.3 248,548            80,482              

   Less: Amortized during the year (137,112)          (129,156)          
Balance as at June 30, 1,847,681        1,736,245         

Government of Sindh grants
Balance as at July 01, 76,173              84,095              

   Less: Amortized during the year 24.3.2 (76,173)            (7,922)               
Balance as at June 30, -                   76,173              
Less: current maturity (523,451)          (566,724)          

5,612,881        5,759,812         

The Holding Company entered into an agreement with Engro Elengy Terminal Limited
(EETL) under which the pipeline has been transferred to the Holding from EETL and
corresponding liability has been recognised using discounted cash flows by using 3
months KIBOR prevailing on inception date.
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28.1

2025 2024
Note

29 CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contribution from customers  3,973,789        3,768,214         
29.3  8,275,049        6,506,608         

 12,248,838      10,274,822       
29.1 Contribution from customers

Balance as at July 01, 4,055,191        3,841,959         
Addition during the year 568,043            517,904            

   Less: Amortized during the year (315,176)          (304,672)          
4,308,058        4,055,191         

Less: current maturity  (334,269)          (286,977)          
Balance as at June 30,  3,973,789        3,768,214         

29.2

29.3

 2025  2024 
Note

30 LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance as on July 01, 109,436         86,854              
Add: Additions / adjustments during the year 91,519           100,383            
Add: Interest expense 21,573           21,368              

222,528         208,605            
Payments made during the year (108,364)       (99,169)             

114,164         109,436            
Less: current maturity (82,352)         (68,706)             
Balance as at June 30, 31,812           40,730              

2025 2024

This represents amount received from the Government of Pakistan (GoP) and
Government of Sindh (GoS) and for supply of gas to new towns and villages and the
same is recognised as grant when the conditions specified by the GoP and GoS are
met. This amount is amortised over the useful life of related projects.

 (Rupees in '000)

29.1 & 29.2
Advance received from customers

This represents amount received from the customers as contribution towards the cost of
supplying and laying distribution, service and main pipeline lines. These are being
amortized over the useful lives of the distribution system.

This represent advances received from customer against laying of distribution pipelines,
services etc.

 (Rupees in '000)

 (Rupees in '000)

The expected maturity analysis of  lease payment is as follows:

within one year 82,352           68,706           
between 2 to 5 years 31,812           40,730           

114,164            109,436            
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Long term advances  3,610,466             2,508,204            

2025 2024
Note  (Rupees in '000)

2025 2024
Note  (Rupees in '000)

31 LONG TERM ADVANCES

31.1

31.2
are as follows:

Balance as at July 01,          2,508,204          3,337,572 
Add: Additions during the year          1,625,817             299,814 
Less: Transferred to deferred grant 28            (523,555)         (1,129,182)
Balance as at June 30, 3,610,466        2,508,204         

31.3

 2025  2024 
Note

32 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING

Loan from banking companies 24.1 42,166,667      7,791,667         
Customer finance 24.2 1,184                590                   
Government of Sindh loans 24.3 186,667            186,667            

42,354,518      7,978,924         
33

Short term borrowing from
financial institutions - secured 33.1 82,806,374      37,774,786       

These represent amounts received from Government of Pakistan (GoP) and
Government of Sindh (GoS) for gas supply to new towns and villages and laying of
distribution lines, etc. These advances are transferred to deferred grant once the related
projects are commissioned, which is then amortised over the estimated useful lives of
related assets.

The movement in long term advances 

 (Rupees in '000)

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

During the year, the Group has transferred Rs. 275 million (2024: Rs. 1,049 million) to 
Government of Pakistan (GoP) funded projects and Rs. 249 million (2024: Rs. 80 million) 
to Government of Sindh (GoS) funded projects.
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33.1

2025 2024
Note

34 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable against:  
Indigenous gas 829,422,912    857,841,931     
RLNG 34.3  18,342,310      104,832,095     

847,765,222
18,744,630

    962,674,026     
34.4                     34,946,646       

Terminal (EETL) 3,478,338        3,141,619         
Accrued liabilities / bills payable 11,246,228      13,077,158       
Employee benefits 34.5     3,971,502        5,444,005         
Liquidated damages to Jamshoro

Power Company Limited (JPCL) 1,533,994        1,533,994         
Deposits / retention money to suppliers 1,309,155        1,223,156         
Right of way 34.6  18,088              18,088              
Withholding tax 108,958            107,486            
Sales tax and Federal Excise Duty 174,585            603,945            
Sindh sales tax 304,997            1,258                
Gas infrastructure development cess to GoP 34.7  6,837,838        6,894,354         
Off the Grid (Captive power plants) levy to GOP 218,845            -                    

250,908            710,224            
Transport, advertisement & hospitality services 28,682              72,408              
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) 34.8  1,382,612        911,973            
Provisions -                   13,908              
Others           34.9  935,993            765,863            

898,310,576    1,032,140,111  

 (Rupees in '000)

34.1 & 34.2

Tariff adjustment- RLNG to GoP
Service charges to Engro  Energy

Advance from customers and distributors

The total limit of various financing facilities available from banks against short-term 
running facilities aggregate to Rs. 110,000 million (2024: Rs. 50,000 million) out of which 
the Group has utilized Rs 82,806 million (2024: 37,775 million). The applicable markup 
rates during the year range from one to three months Kibor plus basis ranging from 0.1% 
to 1.00% (2024: 0.1% to 1.00% ). These facilities are secured by first pari passu and 
second amendment to the joint hypothecation agreement and ranking charge over 
present and future stock in trade and trade debts of the Group. Markup is payable on 
monthly and quarterly basis with the effective interest rate charged during the year ranging 
from 11.38% to 22.21% (2024: 21.68% to 23.77%) per annum.
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34.1

34.2

  

34.3

This includes Rs. 705,646 million (2024: Rs. 692,696 million) payable to Oil and Gas
Development Company Limited (OGDCL), Pakistan Petroleum Limited (PPL) and
Government Holdings (Private) Limited (GHPL) in respect of indigenous gas purchases. 

With effect from July 1, 2012, the Holding Company has been accounting for LPS
income from KE and PSML on receipt basis based on the opinions obtained from the
firms of Chartered Accountants for compliance with then applicable International
Accounting Standards 18 “Revenue”. On adoption of IFRS15 "Revenue from contract
with customers'' which supersedes IAS 18, the Holding Company has obtained an
updated opinion from the firm of Chartered Accountants to recognise LPS income from
KE and PSML on a receipt basis. However, the Holding Company continued recognition
of the LPS expense payable on outstanding bills of the Government Controlled E&P
Companies i.e. Oil and Gas Development Company Limited (OGDCL), Pakistan
Petroleum Limited (PPL), and Government Holding (Private) Limited (GHPL) to comply
with the requirements of the accounting standards, as such standards do not allow the
Holding Company to offset its LPS income against the mark-up expense in absence of
legal right to set off, despite the fact that the Holding Company has never paid such
LPS to Government Controlled E&P companies. Therefore, management approached
the ministry through its letter dated September 01, 2016, to allow similar treatment of its
LPS payable to Government Controlled E & P Companies due to special and unusual
circumstances arising from the circular debt. Management’s request was also based on,
besides the unique situation of circular debt, past settlement record on a net basis
which was approved by the Economic Coordination Committee (ECC) in 2001, and the
fact that OGDCL, PPL, and GHPL are not recording any such LPS income in their
financial statements and assert that such income will be recorded only when the same
is received.

In response to the Holding Company’s above request, the MP & NR vide their letter
dated January 03, 2017 has supported the contention of the Holding Company that it
will not recognize LPS expense payable to the Government Controlled E&P Companies
(OGDCL, PPL and GHPL), effective from July 1, 2012, till the time Holding Company
receives payment for LPS income from KE and PSML and it would be settled
simultaneously subject to fulfilment of all the codal formalities.

In year 2024, the Holding Company has reversed the accrued LPS of Rs. 15,832 million
payable to the OGDCL, PPL and GHPL, booked prior to July 01, 2012 in line with the
clarification obtained from Ministry of Energy (Petroleum Division) vide its letter dated
April 28, 2025 to record the same on actual settlement basis.

Based on the aforesaid letters and legal opinion obtained by the Holding Company, the
aggregate unrecognized accrued markup up is Rs. 370,655 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 275,296 million.

As disclosed in note 18.2.3, an exercise was initiated to reconcile the long-outstanding
balances pertaining prior to June 2020. Resultantly, the Holding Company made a
settlement with SNGPL and has reconciled the long outstanding balances.



267
Annual Report 2025

 2025  2024 
Note

34.4

Balance as at July 01,        34,946,646        23,826,990 
(Less) / Add: (Charge) / recovered during

the year 38.2        10,662,765 
Add: GOP adjustment on RLNG tariff                 1,596             456,891 
Balance as at June 30,        18,744,630        34,946,646 

34.5 Employee Benefits

Gratuity fund 4,854,105        4,894,586         
Pension fund (1,339,717)

(16,203,612)

       199,836            
Provident fund 10,368              10,206              
Compensated absences - non executive 446,746            339,377            

3,971,502        5,444,005         

34.6

34.7

 (Rupees in '000)
Tariff adjustment - RLNG payable to GoP

The Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) was levied with effect from
December 15, 2011 and is chargeable from industrial gas customers at different rates
as prescribed by the Federal Government through OGRA notification. GIDC is collected
and deposited with the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources (MP&NR) in a
manner prescribed by the Federal Government.

On June 13, 2013, the Honorable Peshawar High Court (PHC) declared the levy,
imposition and recovery of GIDC unconstitutional with the direction to refund GID so far
collected. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) examined the case and
vide its findings dated August 22, 2014, concluded that GIDC is a fee and not a tax and
on either count GIDC could not have been introduced through a money bill under Article
73 of the Constitution, therefore the same was, not validly levied in accordance with the
Constitution. However, on September 25, 2014, the President of Pakistan had
promulgated Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Ordinance 2014, (GIDC Ordinance)
which is applicable to the whole of Pakistan and has to be complied by all parties.

This amount was received by the Holding Company from Pak Arab Refinery Limited 
(PARCO) in accordance with an agreement dated October 12, 1988. It represents 
consideration for 50% share of PARCO in the Indus right bank pipeline common Right Of 
Way (ROW) and is the full settlement of PARCO's total liability for its share, irrespective 
of the final amount of compensation payable to the land owners by the Holding Company. 
The final liability of the Holding Company has not been estimated, as the amount of 
compensation due to land owners has not been determined by the OGRA. Accordingly, 
the amount received from PARCO has been classified as an advance.
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On October 26, 2016, a single bench of SHC passed an order to refund / adjust the
GIDC collected in the future bills of the respective plaintiff. The said order was stayed by
the SHC through order dated November 10, 2016.

On September 29, 2014, the Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) gave a stay order to
various parties against the promulgation of Presidential order on September 25, 2014. 

On 13 August 2020, SCP has upheld the promulgation of the GIDC Act and instructed
that all arrears of GIDC that have become due up to July 31, 2020, shall be recovered
by the Companies responsible under the GIDC Act from their end customers. 

Note (Rupees in '000)
34.8 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance as at July 01,             911,973             376,347 
41             373,574             484,746 

Add: Interest accrued               97,065               50,880 
Balance as at June 30,          1,382,612             911,973 

34.9

Add: Charge for the year

This includes Rs. 662 million (2024: Rs. 497 million) on account of amount payable to
disconnected customers for gas supply deposits.

The Holding Company being a collecting agent had collected and deposited GIDC to the 
MP&NR. The Holding Company will refund to the customers once it will be received from 
MP&NR.

However, as a concession, the same is to be recovered in twenty four equal monthly 
instalments starting from August 01, 2020 without the component of late payment 
surcharge.  The Holding Company has initiated the billing of  GIDC from August 01, 2020, 
the same is recovered from customers and submitted to MP&NR. The SCP in its 
judgment dated November 03, 2020 dismissed all review petitions filed against its earlier 
judgment dated August 13, 2020, stating that the companies claiming any relief under 
GIDC Act may approach the right forum. Subsequent to the judgment of  SCP dated 
August 13, 2020, more than 1700 customers have filed fresh cases before SHC, wherein, 
customers stated that they are not liable to pay GIDC as the same has not been collected 
by them, SHC restrained the company from collection of GIDC installments from those 
customers and the matter is pending adjudication before SHC.

On May 22, 2015, the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2015 (GIDC Act) was 
passed by Parliament applicable on all customers. Following the imposition of the said 
Act, many customers filed a petition in SHC and obtained stay order against GIDC Act. 
The Holding Company has obtained a legal opinion, which states that management has 
to comply with the stay order of  SHC.
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35 INTEREST ACCRUED

448,561            1,059,521         
953,970            880,238            
828,754            1,275,213         

                                  
                               

99,283              99,283              
2,330,568        3,314,255         

Long term deposits from customers
Short term borrowings
Late payment surcharge on processing 

Long term financing - banking companies

36 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

36.1 In respect of the Holding Company

36.1.1

36.1.1.1

36.1.1.2

Except for the contingencies disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following contingencies primarily relate to tax matters and other
legal disputes;

As disclosed in note 34.2, the management has reversed Late Payment Surcharge
(LPS) expense with effect from July 01, 2012 to June 30, 2016 amounting to Rs.
26,222 million on Government Controlled E&P Companies liabilities and ceased to
record LPS expense for the year ended June 30, 2017, June 30, 2018, June 30,
2019, June 30, 2020, June 30, 2021, June 30, 2022, June 30, 2023, June 30, 2024
and June 30, 2025 amounting to Rs. 7,569 million, Rs. 7,477 million, Rs. 10,525
million, Rs. 26,335 million, Rs 25,939 million, Rs. 27,921 million, Rs. 44,303 million
and Rs. 99,005 million and Rs. 95,359 million, respectively in these consolidated financial
statements. The Company will record and pay such LPS in the period when it
receives LPS on amount receivable from K-Electric (KE) and Pakistan Steel Mills
Limited (PSML).

The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) based on the constitutional
petition filed by the petitioner had declared the Implementation Agreement dated
August 12, 2003, awarded to Jamshoro Joint Venture Limited (JJVL) to be in gross
violation of the bidding process and constituted a Committee to calculate the
additional royalty payable by JJVL based on Saudi Aramco price plus freight. The
committee calculated the additional royalty of Rs. 4,250 million which was paid by
JJVL accordingly. However, the freight matter is still outstanding and to be resolved
by a final decision by the SCP. 

In the hearing held in January 2019, SCP directed JJVL to pay admitted liability of
Rs. 249 million in respect of freight which was also paid by JJVL and the remaining
balance is yet to be determined by SCP.
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Due to ongoing freight case hearings by the SCP, and keeping in view that there
are certain matters under instant Arbitration which are also sub-judice at the SCP
consequent upon the termination of Memorandum of Understanding (MoUs)
between the Company and JJVL, the arbitration proceedings between the parties
under the Pakistan Arbitration Act, 1940 ( The Arbitration Act) as amended from
time to time has been adjourned. All the disputed matters taken to arbitration would
be finalized once SCP passes its order on freight charges and other matters.
However, the Arbitration proceedings between the parties have now been resumed
and in the first meeting dated August 17, 2023, it was decided that both the parties
will file amended pleadings / claims & counter claims. The Company, therefore filed
its revised claims considering the revision in cut off dates which were earlier filed
upto June 2016 have now been revised till June 2018 on account of principal
amounts and August 2023 in respect of markup.

The SCP through its decision dated June 13, 2018 upheld the termination by the
Company and stated that the termination was validly done and the Company was
well within its legal and contractual right to do so.

The Holding Company had negative margins while doing business with JJVL in 
financial year 2015-16  due to decline in oil prices  and consequent decline in margins 
in LPG / NGL business. Consequently, the Company sent termination notices to JJVL 
dated May 4, 2016, against which JJVL obtained a stay order from the Honourable 
High Court of Sindh (HCS). The aggregate balance due from JJVL amounts to Rs. 
2,262 (2024: Rs. 2,262 million) (note 18.3) on which accrued LPS amounting to Rs. 
240 million (2024: Rs. 240 million) is included in interest accrued (note 17).

After cancellation of MoUs by SCP on June 13, 2018, JJVL submitted a proposal 
based on profit sharing to SCP which was forwarded to the Holding Company by 
SCP. The SCP was also informed that the Holding Company is in the process of 
hiring a consultant for providing professional advice on the best option available with 
respect to the LPG/NGL extraction business.

Subsequently, the firm of Chartered Accountants after consultation with both parties 
came up with a mechanism of revenue sharing of 57% to the Holding Company and 
43% to JJVL on ad-hoc basis and an agreement was signed between the Holding 
Company and JJVL and submitted to SCP for its approval. The same was validated 
by SCP in its order dated December 29, 2018. SCP also directed the Holding 
Company to resume the supply of gas to JJVL plant based on the new terms provided 
in the agreement. The agreement was valid for 1.5 years from the date of agreement 
and unless renewed by the parties through mutual written consent it shall stand 
terminated automatically. Accordingly, in June 2020 the said agreement stands 
expired and since then no gas has been supplied to JJVL.
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Moreover, the firm has to submit the ‘Determination Report’ as per the agreement
in order to finalize the revenue sharing percentage. Accordingly, the same has
been submitted by the firm to SCP in December 2020 after having inputs / working
from both the parties. However, the matter is pending in SCP and the final
consideration of the company will be subject to conclusion of this matter at SCP.

During the year, the matter was taken up by Special Investment Facilitation Council
(SIFC) for the resumption of gas supplies to JJVL to meet the national objective of
enhancing domestic production and reducing reliance on imported LPG. Several
meetings were held in this respect at various SIFC committees.

After detailed deliberations and a series of meetings, the final draft agreement has
been agreed and initialed by both the parties on June 17, 2025. The initialed
agreement had been placed before SIFC-Executive Committee (SIFC-EC) in its
meeting dated June 18, 2025 in which it accorded approval of the agreement.

Subsequently, in view of the SIFC-EC approval, the initialed agreement has also
been approved by the Board. Subsequently, both the parties signed the agreement
on July 28, 2025 for its formal execution. Consequently, subsequent to the year
end, Rs 420 million in respect of revenue sharing agreement has been received.

36.1.1.3

36.1.1.4

The Holding Company has discontinued the gas supply to Habibullah Coastal
Power Company Limited (HCPCL) after the expiry of 20 years Gas Sales
Agreement. In order to secure the outstanding gas receivables amounting to Rs.
1,113 million, the Holding Company has opted for encashment of HCPCL bank
guarantees which are sufficient, as of the reporting date, to recover the outstanding
gas receivables. In response, HCPCL filed a suit vide Suit no. 1570 of 2019 and
obtained stay from the HCS regarding encashment of bank guarantees by the
Holding Company. In view of the available bank guarantee, no provision has been
made in these consolidated financial statements.

The tax authorities had passed an order for FY 2017-18 creating Federal Excise
Duty (FED) demand on RLNG, having tax impact of Rs. 2,951 million.

Furthermore, the matters which were pending in SCP which includes royalty on 
freight charges and final determination of the revenue sharing arrangement, have 
been ruled out by the constitutional bench of SCP through its decision dated 
December 09, 2024, stating that the matters before the SCP have already been 
decided and the parties can seek their remedies before other alternative forums 
available to them under the law. Being aggrieved of the above decision, the Holding 
Company has filed a Civil Review Petition (CRP) in the SCP with the request to 
review its decision as several matters as referred above were still pending for 
decision by the SCP.
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36.1.1.5

36.1.1.6

The Holding Company has filed an application with FBR for the constitution of the
Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC) on the matter of Federal Excise
Duty (FED) on LNG into RLNG.

Based on the advice of its tax advisor, the management is confident that the case
will be in its favor of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made
in these consolidated financial statements.

The tax authorities have passed sales tax order for FY 2017-18 on issues of non-
charging of sales tax on RLNG – Indigenous Gas Swap and RLNG transportation
income. The tax exposure is Rs 23,649 million.

The Holding Company has filed application with the FBR for constitution of
Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee (ADRC) on the matter of sales tax on
RLNG – Indigenous Gas Swap, against which the Holding Company has received a
letter from FBR requiring no objection certificate (NOC) about Chairperson of the
committee. The management is currently in consultation with its legal division to
respond to this letter.

Based on the advice of its tax advisor, the management is confident that the case
will be in its favor of the Holding Company (since same matter has already been
closed in favour of SNGPL), therefore, no provision has been made in these
consolidated financial statements.

Previously the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) had decided an Appeal in
favor of Income Tax Department on the issue of capital gain made on disposal of
LPG business in the financial year ended June 30, 2001 resulting in a tax impact of
Rs. 143 million. Management has filed an appeal before HCS. The management is
of the view that sale of LPG business being in nature of slump transaction was not
chargeable to tax under the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

36.1.1.7

Accordingly, no provision regarding the said claim has been made in these
consolidated financial statements as the management, based on its legal advisor's
opinion, are confident that the matter would be in favor of the Holding Company.

The income tax authorities have passed orders for the Tax Years 2007, 2008, 2009,
2013, 2014, 2015 & 2017 disallowing tax depreciation on fixed assets held under
musharaka arrangement, having a tax impact of Rs. 2,214 million.

All the orders were contested before Commissioner (Appeals) who decided the
case in the favour of the Holding Company. Currently, the case is pending
adjudication before ADRC, Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) and HCS.
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36.1.1.8

36.1.1.9

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Large Taxpayer Office Karachi (LTO) have passed an order disallowing cost of
gas purchased but lost as UFG (in excess of OGRA Benchmark) for financial year
(FY) 2008-09, 2010-11 to 2020-21 having cumulative tax impact of Rs. 56,634
million. LTO Karachi has also passed an Assessment Order for FY 2021-22 levying
tax on UFG (in excess of OGRA Benchmark) deducted by OGRA from Revenue
Requirements of the Holding Company. The total exposure on this account is Rs.
13,120 million.

Cases for FY 2015-16 to 2018-19, 2020-21 and 2021-22 were defended before
ADRC who decided the issue in favour of the Holding Company (in line with
Appellate Tribunal judgment in case of SNGPL).

Remaining cases are still sub-judice before the forums of ADRC, ATIR and HSC.

The said issue has already been decided in favor of SNGPL by Lahore Bench of
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue and thus a legal precedent is in field which has
also been upheld by Commissioner (Appeals) in Company’s case.

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has passed an order against
the Holding Company with demand along with default surcharge and penalty for
incorrect adjustment of withholding sales tax against input invoices for the period
July 2017 to April 2018. The principal tax demand of Rs. 1,235 million was
recovered by the tax department. 

Currently, the matter is sub-judice before Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee
(ADRC). 

36.1.1.10

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Tax Authorities passed order against the Holding Company for Tax Year 2010
disallowing brought forward turnover tax credit adjustment of year 2008 amounting
to Rs. 414 million. The case was defended in HCS who decided the case against
the Holding Company (based on similar judgment in another company’s case). The
Holding Company has filed an appeal before SCP however SCP referred the case
to ADRC.
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36.1.1.11

36.1.1.12

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in Note 14 to these consolidated financial statements – trade debts,
interest income from KE and PSML is not being recognized in the consolidated
financial statements, in accordance with requirements of International Accounting
Standards as well as legal and accounting opinions obtained by the Holding
Company.

However, tax authorities have passed orders for FY 2014-15 to 2021-22, on said
unrecognized interest income from KE and PSML having tax impact of Rs 43,681
million.

The cases for FY 2015-16 to 2018-19 & 2021-22 were defended before ADRC who
upheld the tax demand via order dated June 26, 2025, amounting to Rs. 7,725
million which was also paid, on interest income but allowed claim of interest
expense (subject to payment). The Holding Company is in coordination with tax
authorities for claim of interest expense.

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

The tax authorities have passed an order for Tax year 2015, disallowing interest
expense on delayed payment to Energy and Petroleum (E&P) Companies for gas
purchases as well as taxing benefit of lower interest rate on Government of Sindh
loans, among other observations, having a tax impact of Rs. 3,135 million.

The matter was contested before Commissioner (Appeals) who decided the case in
favour of the Holding Company. Currently, the case is pending adjudication before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue and HCS.

The management is confident on advice of its legal counsel that the case will be in
favour of the Holding Company, therefore, no provision has been made in the
consolidated financial statements.

36.1.1.13

36.1.1.14 There are several other pending litigations in the nature of billing disputes,
employees disputes and related matters in which the Holding Company is
defendant / respondent. The management, based on the view of the in-house legal
advisor, is of the view that the aggregate exposure in all the said cases is not
material to the Holding Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in
these consolidated financial statements.

The Holding Company is subject to various other claims totaling Rs. 8,760 million
by income tax and sales tax authorities. The management is confident that
ultimately these claims would not be payable.
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36.1.1.15

 2025   2024 
(Rupees in '000)

36.1.2
acknowledged as debt
Claims against the Holding Company not 

     4,244,716     3,542,868 

The management is confident that ultimately these claims would not be payable.

36.1.3 Commitments

Guarantees issued on behalf of the Holding Company
Commitments for capital and other expenditure

11,305,845   11,371,855  
6,439,971     5,524,345    

As of June 30, 2025, the Holding Company has an aggregate disputed difference of
Rs. 10,661 million with Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) on account of
tariff differential. The management is in the process of sorting out such difference
and does not anticipate any adverse consequences, accordingly no provision has
been made in these consolidated financial statements for eventual liability. For
further details, refer note 18.2 of these consolidated financial statements.

36.2 In respect of the Subsidiary (SSGC LPG)

36.2.1 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued an order under Section
122(5A) of the ITO for tax year 2013, creating a demand of Rs. 46.281 million on the
grounds that LPG sales were not covered by SRO 586 of 1991. The Subsidiary
appealed, and the Commissioner Appeals remanded the case for reassessment.
The Subsidiary filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR)
against the appeal order. ATIR later upheld that the Subsidiary was not a
manufacturer but remanded certain issues back to the department. The department
issued a fresh order without giving the Subsidiary a fair hearing. The Subsidiary
again appealed to CIR(A), who remanded the case with instructions to bifurcate
sales into FTR and NTR and allocate expenses accordingly. 

Separately, the Subsidiary filed a rectification application with ATIR, citing an
overlooked binding precedent (Hazara Efficient Gas case). The ATIR accepted the
application, moved it to a larger bench, and granted a stay on demand recovery.
Despite this, the department issued another order in violation of ATIR’s directions,
leading to another appeal by the Subsidiary.

In July 2023, ATIR ruled in favor of the Subsidiary, recognising it as a manufacturer.
The tax department challenged this before the High Court of Sindh (HCS), which
initially suspended the ATIR’s order. During the year HCS amended its order and
accepted the Subsidiary’s stance, and directed the department to issue an
exemption certificate for future imports till further any court order. Next hearing is
scheduled on October 16, 2025. As per legal advisor opinion, the Subsidiary
expects a favorable outcome.



276
Annual Report 2025

       

36.2.2

36.2.3

For tax year 2014, under similar case, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue
(ACIR) issued an order on January 11, 2017, creating a demand amounting to Rs.
116.605 million. The Subsidiary appealed before Commissioner Appeal Inland
Revenue CIR(A), and the CIR(A) remanded the case on March 21, 2017. No appeal
in Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has been filed by the tax department
against this decision within the prescribed lapse time of 60 days, indicating no
objection. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in these consolidated
financial statements.

On dated July 11, 2014, the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised
a demand of Rs. 5.910 million on account of input tax disallowed under SRO
490(I)/2004 for Tax years 2013 and 2014. The Subsidiary has filed an appeal before
the Commissioner (Appeals). During pendency of the appeal, the tax authorities
recovered the disputed amount from the Subsidiary’s bank account. The
Subsidiary’s legal counsel is of the opinion that the matter is likely to be decided in
the Subsidiary’s favour, with full refund of the recovered amount.

36.2.4

36.2.5

36.2.6

36.2.7

During 2020 the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued a notice demanding Sindh
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (SWPPF) contributions of Rs. 2.783 million and
Rs. 9.237 million for the years 2017 and 2018, asserting the Subsidiary qualifies as
an “Industrial Establishment” under the Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Act,
2015. The Subsidiary challenged the notice, obtained a stay from the High Court of
Sindh, and maintains that the Act is inapplicable due to its trans-provincial
operations. The management remains confident of a favorable outcome.

On April 20, 2018, the Subsidiary received a notice from the SRB for alleged short
payment of Rs. 7.398 million in Sindh Sales Tax on royalty fees paid to Port Qasim
Authority for July 2016 to November 2017. A stay was granted by the High Court of
Sindh on May 23, 2018. The Subsidiary withdrew the petition on March 4, 2025,
while the stay remained effective. The case is pending before SRB, and no hearing
has been conducted yet by SRB. No provision has been made, as management
expects a favorable outcome.

The Inland Revenue conducted an audit under Section 25 of the Sales Tax Act,
1990, and raised a demand of Rs. 55.23 million under section 11. The Subsidiary
appealed, and CIR(A) partially annulled the demand. The Subsidiary then appealed
to ATIR, which ruled in its favor. The tax department has filed a reference before the
High Court of Sindh, where the matter is pending. No provision has been made, as
management expects a favorable outcome.

During 2015, the Subsidiary received notice from the Assistant Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (ACIR) against short payment of sales tax for the periods 2013 and 2014.
Later ACIR also passed order in original and created demand of Rs. 2.6 million.
Against the said order Subsidiary has filed an appeal before Commissioner Appeals
which is still pending for hearing and we expect relief in appeal.
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36.2.8

36.2.9 On November 24, 2023, the Assistant Commissioner SRB issued a demand of Rs.
0.391 million for alleged short payment of sales tax for FY 2015–16. The Subsidiary
appealed, on the grounds that the matter was previously settled in 2018.
Management believes no provision is necessary.

The SRB raised a demand of Rs. 24.414 million for alleged violation of Sections 15
and 15A(1)(a) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011, on account of
inadmissible input tax for various tax periods from December 2016 to July 2019.
Aggrieved by the order of the Assistant Commissioner, SRB, the Subsidiary has
filed an appeal before the Commissioner (Appeals), SRB, contending that the input
tax claimed on transportation and construction services is valid, supported by sales
tax invoices at the statutory rate of 13%, and payments duly made through banking
channels. The non-submission of Form “I” by the service provider, if any, is a matter
between the provider and SRB. The Subsidiary’s legal counsel is of the view that the 
appeal is likely to be decided in the Subsidiary’s favour.

36.2.10

36.2.11

36.2.12

36.2.13 As of June 30, 2025, the Subsidiary is involved in an arbitration titled Enexis DMCC
vs. SSGC LPG Limited under Tender Enquiry No. SLL/832. The claimant has filed
a claim of USD 0.217 million (Rs. 64.356 million), while the Subsidiary has
submitted a counter claim of Rs. 93.307 million. Recently, M/S Enexis raised a
demurrage claim, which the Subsidiary has rejected. The M/S Enexis subsequently
issued a pre-arbitration notice dated October 05, 2024, in accordance with the

During the year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) FBR issued an
order under Section 161(1) raising a demand amounting to Rs. 6.127 million,
including Rs. 2.562 million surcharge, for alleged non-deduction of withholding tax
in Tax Year 2019. The Subsidiary has appealed and believes that the outcome will
be in favour hence no provision has been made.

On January 15, 2024, Deputy Commissioner (DC) Sindh Revenue Board (SRB)
passed an order amounting to Rs. 8.990 million for non-payment of Sindh Workers'
Welfare Fund (SWWF) as of June 30, 2021. The Subsidiary appealed to the
Commissioner Appeals SRB on the ground the Subsidiary is involved in trans-
provincial operations and did not consider the decision of the Honorable Supreme
Court of Pakistan in Messers Sui Southern Gas Subsidiary Limited, and others
versus Federation of Pakistan and others (2018 SCMR 802), and a stay was
granted on February 6, 2024, until the next hearing. The Subsidiary’s legal counsel
is of the opinion that the matter is likely to be decided in the Subsidiary’s favour.

On June 16, 2025, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued a
show cause notice under Sections 122(9) and 122(5A) for Tax Year 2022,
requesting information on the Subsidiary’s tax affairs. The Subsidiary is contesting
the matter, has submitted the information, and no amended assessment has been
issued. The case is still pending before the department and no order has been
issued yet.
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   (20,458,963)

   (19,047,297)
   (1,411,666)

   (20,458,963)

   (4,255,351)
16,203,612

38 TARIFF ADJUSTMENTS

Indigenous gas 38.1                 63,878,757   
RLNG 38.2  (10,669,122)  

                53,209,635   
38.1 Tariff adjustment - indigenous gas

Price increase adjustment 65,565,625   
Subsidy for LPG air mix operations 42.2 (1,686,868)    

               63,878,757   

Note

 2025  2024 

36.2.14 COMMITMENTS

Guarantees issued on behalf of the Company   116,972,904   116,972,904 
For Port Qasim Custom Authority   104,970,000   104,970,000 
For High Court of Sindh     12,002,904     12,002,904 

(Rupees)

terms and conditions of the tender (“T&C”). SLL responded through a letter dated
November 04, 2024 denying the liability of demurrage. As the arbitration is ongoing
and the outcome cannot be reliably estimated at this stage. The Subsidiary expects
favorable outcome hence no provision has been made.

Contracts for capital and other expenditures
Opex  275,593,195    56,330,344 
Capex      4,813,143  170,165,908 
LPG Purchase  306,208,801  654,216,056 

 586,615,139  880,712,308 

36.2.14.1 This represent the bank guarantee paid to Port Qasim Authority against the
compliance of their rules and regulations.

37

Sales
Indigenous gas   398,665,581   326,114,907 
RLNG   118,290,033   158,306,663 
LPG     12,535,638     37,802,447 
Services          867,208          618,630 

  530,358,460   522,842,647 
Less: Sales tax

Indigenous gas   (59,266,079)   (47,563,660)
RLNG   (18,360,514)   (24,197,822)
LPG     (1,919,265)     (3,690,738)
Services        (113,114)          (71,170)

  (79,658,972)   (75,523,390)
450,699,488 447,319,257 

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 
CUSTOMERS - GAS SALES
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38.1.1

As per the UFG study report finalized by a firm of Chartered Accountant, revised
UFG allowance formula is the product of gas volume available for sale in the
distribution system and the UFG % allowed. The UFG % in the distribution network
allowed is determined as the sum of distribution UFG benchmark (5%) and the local
conditions allowance (percentage achievement of KMIs of 2.6%), whereas the UFG
% allowed for transmission network is 0.14%. OGRA has determined distribution
UFG % allowed at 7.46% [5% + (2.46% based on KMI achievement)], whereas the
benchmark UFG % allowed for gas transmission is 0.14%.

 2025  2024 
Note

38.2

GoP adjustment on RLNG tariff (6,357)             
Price adjustment (10,662,765)    

                   -   

    (10,669,122)

(Rupees in '000)
Tariff adjustment - RLNG

39 COST OF GAS SALES

Cost of gas 39.1 408,845,304

16,203,612
16,203,612

  458,643,473  
Transmission and distribution costs 39.2 25,257,937    29,119,036    

434,103,241  487,762,509  
39.1 Cost of gas

Gas in pipelines as at July 01, 2,663,277      2,965,845      
Gas purchases

RLNG 116,270,159  123,533,323  
Indigenous gas 283,533,318  304,301,336  
LPG 9,841,886      31,289,687    

412,308,640  462,090,191  
Gas consumed internally (694,446)       (783,441)       
Gas in pipelines as at June 30, (2,768,890)    (2,663,277)    

(3,463,336)    (3,446,718)    
408,845,304  458,643,473  

The Holding Company, in its petition to OGRA, had worked out Unaccounted for Gas 
(UFG) on total volume of indigeneous gas in its transmission and distribution system 
at 10.09 % against which OGRA has determined UFG at 12.07 %. UFG, in the 
parlance of a gas distribution and transmission company, means the difference 
between gas purchased in volume, gas billed in volume and gas used internally by the 
Holding Company in volumes for its operations. UFG results from a number of factors 
which inter alia comprise gas leakages both underground and over ground, 
measurement errors, meter tampering, meter getting slow with time and use, illegal 
connections and such other connections which bypass the meters installed.
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 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

39.2 Transmission and distribution costs

Salaries, wages and benefits 6,919,060     12,803,059   
Contribution to / accruals in respect of staff

retirement benefit schemes 39.2.1 2,988,652     2,514,820     
Depreciation on operating assets 5.1.2 9,830,027     8,413,941     
Depreciation on right of use assets 7.3 64,656          59,608          
Repairs and maintenance 2,984,567     2,916,763     
Stores, spares and supplies consumed 1,148,468     1,227,106     
Gas consumed internally 693,836        773,291        
Legal and professional 498,741        144,097        
Software maintenance 51,634          58,466          
Electricity 292,488        236,526        
Security 1,662,281     1,372,812     
Insurance 136,478        126,723        
Travelling 105,931        92,443          
Material and labor used on consumers' installation 6,048            19,403          
Postage and revenue stamps 3,037            2,368            
Rent, rates and taxes 216,767        782,437        
Others 666,881        407,765        

28,269,551   31,951,627   
Recoveries / allocations to:

Gas distribution system capital expenditure (2,824,579)    (2,598,243)    
Installation costs recovered from customers 13 (46,890)         (93,942)         

(2,871,469)    (2,692,185)    
Recoveries of service cost from 

39.2.2 (135,732)       (135,732)       
Allocation to sale of gas condensate (4,413)           (4,674)           

25,257,937   29,119,036   

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline 
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39.2.1 Contributions to / accrual in respect of
  staff retirement benefit schemes

Contributions to the provident fund 346,758         335,716          
Charge in respect of pension funds: 

executives 135,722         303,660          
non executives 611,258         542,196          

746,980         845,856          
Charge in respect of gratuity funds: 

executives 200,742         227,469          
non executives 188,455         160,125          

389,197         387,594          

2025 2024
(Rupees in '000)

Accrual in respect of unfunded post retirement
Medical facility 1,135,264      1,225,481       

Accrual in respect of compensated absences
Executives 263,084         (253,547)         
Other employees 107,369         (26,280)           

370,453         (279,827)         
2,986,457      2,510,413       

39.2.2

40 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES
Administrative expenses 40.1 4,108,551      3,917,660       
Selling expenses 40.2 3,469,314      3,487,104       

7,577,865      7,404,764       

2025 2024
Note

This includes recovery in respect of obligation against pipeline transferred to the
Holding Company from Engro Elengy Terminal Limited (EETL) amounting to Rs. 135.7
million (2024: Rs. 135.7 million).

(Rupees in '000)
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40.1.1 Contributions to / accrual in respect of
staff retirement benefit schemes

Contribution to the provident fund 66,267           57,890            
Charge in respect of pension funds: 

executives 32,969           72,764            
non-executives 35,956           29,140            

68,925           101,904          
Charge in respect of gratuity funds: 

executives 51,170           58,850            
non-executives 11,102           9,100              

62,272           67,950            
Accrual in respect of 

unfunded post retirement:
gas facility (5,352)            1,433              
medical facility 47,303           51,062            

41,951           52,495            
239,415         280,239          

 2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

40.1 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and benefits 2,298,373      2,226,874       
Contribution to / accruals in respect of staff

retirement benefit schemes 40.1.1 239,415         280,239          
Depreciation on operating assets 5.1.2 440,880         310,240          
Depreciation on right of use assets 7 6,080             3,200              
Amortisation of intangible assets 6 98,712           137,070          
Repairs and maintenance 296,856         219,944          
Stores, spares and supplies consumed 50,548           54,632            
Legal and professional 165,141         144,470          
Software maintenance 210,491         176,481          
Electricity 14,532           13,030            
Security 33,618           28,027            
Insurance and royalty 27,861           18,459            
Travelling 37,382           39,075            
Postage and revenue stamps 7,557             11,618            
Rent, rates and taxes 15,577           78,789            
Director meeting fee 38,867                            
Others 153,534         157,654

35,921
          

4,135,424      3,935,723       
Less: Allocation to meter manufacturing division 42.1 (26,873)          (18,063)           

4,108,551      3,917,660       
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40.2.1 Contribution to / accrual in respect of staff retirement benefit schemes

Contribution to the provident fund 71,073          71,753          
Charge in respect of pension funds: 

executives 19,135          38,395          
non-executives 152,569        135,961        

171,704        174,356        
Charge in respect of gratuity funds: 

executives 28,517          31,074          
non-executives 46,948          43,415          

75,465          74,489          
318,242        320,598        

 2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)Note40.2 SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and benefits 2,072,106     2,203,273     
Contribution to / accruals in respect of staff

retirement benefit schemes 40.2.1 318,242        320,598        
Depreciation on operating assets 5.1.2 19,428          17,384          
Depreciation on right of use 7 23,640          22,176          
Repairs and maintenance 3,801            5,722            
Stores, spares and supplies consumed 28,924          33,254          
Electricity 313,125        238,480        
Insurance 2,692            1,559            
Travelling 481               859               
Gas bill and collection charges 612,605        570,891        
Postage and revenue stamps 1,511            487               
Rent, rates and taxes 20,232          19,123          
Others 52,527          53,298          

3,469,314     3,487,104     
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41 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Auditors' remuneration

Statutory audit 6,799            7,164            
Fee for other audit related services 1,220            1,429            
Out of pocket expenses 832               963               

8,851            9,556            
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 373,574        484,746        
Liquidated damages -                3,721,000     
Sports expenses 42,396          42,293          
Reversal of LPS income from WAPDA

and SNGPL -                17,951,015   
Corporate social responsibility 11,731          6,554            
Provision against slow-moving and 

obsolete stores and spares 31,937          -                
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 448,229        637,550        
Exchange loss 2,249,352     -                

3,166,070     22,852,714   

Note
 2025  2024 

(Rupees in '000)

42 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Income from financial assets

Receivable against asset contribution 9,372            26,010          
                              Late payment surcharge 5,028,201     2,650,053     

Liquidated damages recovered 142,875        117,353        
Return on TDR and saving accounts 517,502        476,126        
Dividend income 40,490          5,220            

5,738,440     3,274,762     
Income from other than financial assets

RLNG transportation income 12,681,981   15,273,044   
Exchange gain -                4,680,514     
Meter rentals 1,587,272     1,603,546     
LNG service agreement 1,577,580     1,595,757     
Sale of gas condensate - net -                21,995          
Meter manufacturing division profit - net 42.1 1,426,504     674,691        
Deferred credit and contract liabilities 875,215        781,512        
LPG air mix distribution - net 42.2 262,809        272,189        
Recoveries from customers 129,375        115,579        
Sale of tender documents 22,868          8,853            
Reversal against slow-moving and 

obsolete stores and spares -                9,757            
Amortization of Government grant 76,173          7,922            
Reversal of LPS expense from E&P Companies -                15,832,411   
Amortization of long term deposits 98,639          274,919        
Miscellaneous 152,473        162,832        

24,629,329   44,590,282   
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Note
 2025  2024 

(Rupees in '000)

42.1 Meter manufacturing division profit - net
Gross sale of gas meters:

Company's consumption 1,695,434     1,009,473     
Outside sales 6,428,565     2,695,205     

 8,123,999     3,704,678     
Less: Sales tax (1,265,789)    (571,124)       
Net sales 6,858,210     3,133,554     
Less: Cost of goods sold

Raw material consumed (4,088,586)    (1,592,742)    
Salaries wages and other benefits 42.1.2 (847,206)       (612,208)       
Stores and spares consumed (25,915)         (13,687)         
Fuel, power and electricity (80,690)         (54,006)         
Insurance (16,204)         (4,387)           
Repairs and maintenance (29,184)         (13,658)         
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 5.1.2 (33,462)         (40,700)         
Transportation (32,175)         (13,876)         
Other expenses (280,642)       (100,027)       

(5,434,064)    (2,445,291)    
Gross profit 1,424,146     688,263        
Administrative expenses 40.1 (26,873)         (18,063)         
Operating profit 1,397,273     670,200        
Other income 29,231          4,491            
Profit for the year 1,426,504     674,691        

42.1.1 Gas meters used by the Holding Company are included in operating fixed assets at
manufactured cost.
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42.1.2 The salaries, wages and other benefits includes:

Salaries, wages and other benefits 800,876        575,922        
Provident fund contribution 10,791          10,419          
Pension fund 25,856          15,414          
Gratuity 9,683            10,453          

847,206        612,208        

2025  2024 
Note

43 FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:
Long term financing 6,879,857    6,807,770   
Short term borrowings 6,203,783    7,878,936   
Security deposits 762,033       751,683      
Government of Sindh 151,227       19,649        
Payable against transfer of pipeline 51,205         58,447        
Lease liability 21,573         21,368        
Workers Profit Participation Fund 97,065         50,880        
Others 203,451       93,252        

14,370,194  15,681,985 
Less: Finance cost capitalised 5.2.1 (2,217,562)   (2,285,145)  

12,152,632  13,396,840 

(Rupees in '000)

42.2 Income from LPG air mix distribution - net

Sales 79,576          143,077        
Subsidy 1,411,666     1,686,637     
Less: Cost of sales  (878,546)       (1,202,999)    
Gross profit 612,696        626,715        
Distribution, selling and administrative expenses

   Salaries, wages and other benefits (104,924)       (95,464)         
   Depreciation on operating fixed assets (117,295)       (110,971)       
   Others (216,331)       (237,155)       

(438,550)       (443,590)       
Amortisation of deferred credit 27,545         27,544        
Other income 61,118         61,520        
Profit for the year 262,809       272,189      
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44 TAXATION

Current 490,524       4,360,033   
Prior 34,888         60,347        
Deferred (17,927)        (3,331,389)  

507,485       1,088,991   

44.1 A portion of the minimum tax paid under section 153(1)(b) and Final taxes paid under
section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in terms of
requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37, and includes super tax thereon of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, has been classified as levy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 /
IAS 37.

2025  2024 

44.2 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit 
(Rupees in '000)

2025  2024 
(Rupees in '000)

45 STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

45.1 In respect of the Holding Company

45.1.1 Funded post retirement pension and gratuity schemes

Fair value of plan assets and present value of obligation

The fair value of plan assets and present value of defined benefit obligations of the pension and gratuity
schemes at the valuation date were as follows:

Accounting profit for the year 8,357,341  11,752,050 

Tax rate 29% 29%

Tax charge at applicable tax rate 2,423,629    3,408,095 
Impact of super tax 125,745       1,652,270    
Impact of deferred tax recognized (17,927)        (3,331,389)   
Others (2,023,962)   (639,985)      

507,485    1,088,991 

As mentioned in note 4.18 to these consolidated financial statements, the Holding Company operates 
approved funded pension and gratuity schemes for all employees. Contributions are made to these 
schemes based on actuarial valuation. Latest actuarial valuations were carried out as at June 30, 2025 
under the Projected Unit Credit method for both non-executive and executive staff members.
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,472,881  9,324,699   12,591       10,805,814 
Fair value of plan assets (2,079,569) (8,144,258) (745,620)    (7,136,773)  

(606,688)    1,180,441   (733,029)    3,669,041   

Movement in present value of defined benefit
obligation

Balance as at July 01, 2024 1,619,522  7,601,517   11,889       10,438,819 
Current service cost 44,023       370,341      -             456,492      
Interest cost 240,087     1,059,297   1,627         1,482,742   
Benefit paid during the year (94,943)      (1,139,319) (1,670)        (1,008,065)  
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (335,808)    1,432,863   745            (564,174)     
Balance as at June 30, 2025 1,472,881  9,324,699   12,591       10,805,814 

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Balance as at July 01, 2024 1,275,578  7,426,663   155,996     5,709,254   
Interest income on plan assets 192,728     1,035,221   21,470       831,508      
Contribution during the year 615,768     373,151      1,290,581  259,200      
Amount transferred in / (out) (89,840)      89,840        (838,266)    838,266      
Benefits paid during the year (94,943)      (1,139,319) (1,670)        (1,008,065)  
Remeasurement acturial gain / (loss) 180,278     358,702      117,509     506,610      
Balance as at June 30, 2025 2,079,569  8,144,258   745,620     7,136,773   

Movement in liability / (asset)  in 
consolidated statement of financial position

Liability / (Asset)  in consolidated statement of financial position 
2025

Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Current service cost 44,023       370,341      -             456,492      
Interest cost 240,087     1,059,297   1,627         1,482,742   
Interest income (192,728)    (1,035,221) (21,470)      (831,508)     
Amount transferred out / (in) 107,000     (107,000)    851,407     (851,407)     

198,382     287,417      831,564     256,319      

Expense recognised in the consolidated 
statement of  profit or loss during 
year in respect of the above 
schemes were as follows:

Balance as at July 01, 2024 343,944     174,854      (144,107)    4,729,565   
Expense recognised for the year 198,382     287,417      831,564     256,319      
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (533,246)    1,091,321   (129,905)    (1,057,643)  
Contribution made during the year (615,768)    (373,151)    (1,290,581) (259,200)     
Balance as at June 30, 2025 (606,688)    1,180,441   (733,029)    3,669,041   
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Experience adjustments (359,358)    850,094      869            (1,562,441)
Financial assumptions 23,550 582,769 (124) 998,267

  
(335,808)    1,432,863   745            (564,174)     

Remeasurement on plan assets arising on
Actual return on plan assets (362,862)    (1,269,304) (137,185)    (1,242,679)  
Expected return on plan assets 192,728     1,035,221   21,470       831,508      
Net return on plan assets over interest income (170,134)    (234,083)    (115,715)    (411,171)     

(10,144)      (124,619)    (1,794)        (95,439)       
(180,278)    (358,702)    (117,509)    (506,610)     

Adjustment for previous amount transferrable (17,160)      17,160        (13,141)      13,141        
(533,246)    1,091,321   (129,905)    (1,057,643)  

Composition of plan assets of the fund

Listed shares 11.82% 0.56% 18.77% 0.14%
Debt instruments 87.48% 97.01% 78.89% 100.16%
Others including cash & cash equivalents 0.69% 2.43% 2.34% 1.75%
Investment in mutual fund. 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.01%
Payable to related party 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% (2.07)%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Detail of employees valued
Detail of employees valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2025:

Executives Non-executives
2025

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Difference in opening fair value of 
assets after audit

Total number of employees 1,740         1,740          -             4,256          
Total monthly salaries 303,636     303,636      -             220,792      
Total number of pensioner 190            -             16              -              
Total monthly pension 4,666         -             144            -              

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,619,522  7,601,517   11,889       10,438,819 
Fair value of plan assets (1,275,578) (7,426,663) (155,996)    (5,709,254)  

 343,944  174,854  (144,107)     4,729,565  

Liability / (Asset)  in consolidated statement of financial position 
2024

Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Fair value of plan assets of the fund
Listed shares 245,895     45,944        139,940     10,138        
Debt instruments 1,819,223  7,900,684   588,199     7,148,126   
Others including cash & cash equivalents 14,451       197,630      17,481       125,058      
Investment in mutual fund. -             -             -             868             
Payable to related party -             -             -             (147,417)     
Total 2,079,569  8,144,258   745,620     7,136,773   
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Movement in present value of defined benefit
obligation

Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,640,000  8,260,995   10,335       8,888,826   
Current service cost 49,085       416,238      -             395,351      
Interest cost 268,456     1,282,975   1,560         1,401,540   
Benefit paid during the year (63,307)      (976,077)    (1,594)        (881,030)     
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (274,712)    (1,382,614) 1,588         634,132      
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,619,522  7,601,517   11,889       10,438,819 

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Balance as at July 01, 2023 1,398,669  6,602,251   144,152     5,063,051   
Interest income on plan assets 232,084     1,032,977   21,729       824,938      
Contribution during the year 118,603     246,101      176,820     339,916      
Benefits paid during the year (63,307)      (976,077)    (1,594)        (881,030)     
Amount transferred in / (out) (438,763)    438,763      (181,000)    181,000      
Remeasurement acturial gain / (loss) 28,292       82,648        (4,111)        181,379      
Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,275,578  7,426,663   155,996     5,709,254   

Movement in liability / (asset)  in consolidated
statement of financial position

Liability / (asset) as at July 01, 2023 241,331     1,658,744   (133,817)    3,825,775   
Expense recognised for the year 430,536     321,157      729,314     222,470      
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss (209,320)    (1,558,946) (562,784)    1,021,236   
Contribution made during the year (118,603)    (246,101)    (176,820)    (339,916)     
Liability / (asset)  as at June 30, 2024 343,944     174,854      (144,107)    4,729,565   

2024
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Current service cost 49,085       416,238     -             395,351     
Interest cost 268,456     1,282,975  1,560         1,401,540  
Interest income (232,084)    (1,032,977) (21,729)      (824,938)    
Amount transferred out / (in) 345,079     (345,079)    749,483     (749,483)    

430,536     321,157     729,314     222,470     

Expense recognised in the 
statement of  profit or loss during the 
year in respect of the above schemes 
were as follows:
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Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Remeasurement actuarial (gain) / loss recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive 
income

Remeasurement actuarial (gain) / loss on defined benefit obligation due to:

Financial assumptions (1,686)        91,872        (56)             124,285      
Experience adjustments (273,026)    (1,474,486) 1,644         509,847      

(274,712)    (1,382,614) 1,588         634,132      
Remeasurement on plan assets arising on

Actual return on plan assets (260,376)    (1,091,606) (17,618)      (945,132)     
Expected return on plan assets 232,084     1,032,977   21,729       824,938      
Net return on plan assets over interest income (28,292)      (58,629)      4,111         (120,194)     

-             (24,019)      -             (61,185)       
(28,292)      (82,648)      4,111         (181,379)     

Adjustment for previous amount transferrable 93,684       (93,684)      (568,483)    568,483      
(209,320)    (1,558,946) (562,784)    1,021,236   

Composition of plan assets of the fund

Listed shares 4.27% 0.82% 20.72% 1.48%
Debt instruments 95.33% 98.58% 71.77% 93.72%
Others including cash & cash equivalents 0.40% 0.60% 7.51% 4.81%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Fair value of plan assets of the fund

Listed shares 54,477       60,904        32,321       84,296        
Debt instruments 1,215,972  7,321,447   111,965     5,350,597   
Others including cash & cash equivalents 5,129         44,312        11,710       274,361      

Total 1,275,578  7,426,663   155,996     5,709,254   

Detail of employees valued

Detail of employees valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Total number of employees 1,850         1,850          -             4,339          
Total monthly salaries 265,320     265,320      -             233,165      
Total number of pensioner 186            -             19              -              
Total monthly pension 3,924         -             136            -              

2024
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------

Difference in opening fair value of 
assets after audit

2024
Executives Non-executives

------------------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------------------



292
Annual Report 2025

Significant assumptions used for the valuation of above schemes are as follows:

2025 2024

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
Salary increase rate in the first year

Executives 15.00% 15.00%
Non- Executives 25.00% 15.00%

Expected rate of increase in salary level 10.75% -              
Executives 10.75% 12.75%
Non- Executives 11.75% 12.75%

Increase in pension 5.75% 8.75%
Mortality rates
Rates of employee turnover Moderate Moderate

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity 

Discount rate 1% 1,357,573  8,984,944   11,246       10,340,895 
Salary increase rate 1% 1,504,009  9,650,835   -             11,311,229 
Pension increase

 rate 1% 1,576,386  -             12,645       -              
Discount rate 1% 1,608,446  9,694,307   12,610       11,168,884 
Salary growth rate 1% 1,443,855  9,019,820   -             10,464,544 
Pension increase

 rate 1% 1,383,072  -             11,206       -              

The expected pension and gratuity expense for the financial year ending June 30, 2026 is as follows:

Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity

Current service cost 34,291       446,028      -             469,307      
Interest cost 173,237     1,019,605   1,375         1,210,445   
Interest income on plan assets (240,671)    (888,397)    (82,852)      (802,627)     
Interest cost (67,434)      131,208      (81,477)      407,818      
Amount transferred out / (in) 252,669     (252,669)    614,863     (614,863)     

      219,526       324,567       533,386       262,262 

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
expected rate of salary and pension increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Executives and 
Non-executives 

SLIC (2001-05)-1

Change 
in 

assumption

Executives Non-Executives

(Rupees in '000)

Increase in
assumption

Decrease in
assumption

Executives Non-executives

(Rupees'000)

Impact of change in assumptions in 
present value of defined benefit obligation
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45.1.2 Unfunded post retirement medical benefit and gas supply facilities 

Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical gas facility
facility

Liability in consolidated statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligation         8,731,065                    7,634             8,738,699 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation
Liability as at July 01, 2024         6,629,289                  10,857 6,640,146           
Expense recognised for the year         1,182,566                  (5,352) 1,177,214           
Payments during the year           (242,199)                  (1,404) (243,603)             
Remeasurement acturial loss / (gain)         1,161,409                    3,533 1,164,942           
Liability as at June 30, 2025         8,731,065                    7,634             8,738,699 

Current service cost 203,724           -                      203,724              
Past service cost -                  (7,005)                 (7,005)                 
Interest cost 978,842           1,653                  980,495              

1,182,566        (5,352)                 1,177,214           

Remeasurement acturial loss recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Remeasurement acturial loss on defined benefit obligation due to:

Financial assumptions 990,711           523                     991,234              
Experience adjustments 170,698           3,010                  173,708              

1,161,409        3,533                  1,164,942           

Detail of employee valued

Detail of employee valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2025:

Total number of actives 1,504          -                 
Total number of beneficiaries 2,350          23                  

The Company provides free medical and gas supply facilities to its retired executive
employees. The free gas supply facility has been discontinued for employees who had retired
after December 31, 2000. The latest actuarial valuations of the liability under these schemes
were carried out as at June 30, 2025 under the Projected Unit Credit Method, results of which
are as follows: 

2025

Total

(Rupees in '000)

Expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Medical 
facility

Gas
 facility
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Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical gas facility
facility

Liability in consolidated statement of financial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation         6,629,289                  10,857             6,640,146 

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Liability as at July 01, 2023         6,587,344                    9,256 6,596,600           
Expense recognised for the year         1,276,543                    1,433 1,277,976           
Payments during the year           (202,698)                  (2,120) (204,818)             
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss        (1,031,900)                    2,288 (1,029,612)          
Liability as at June 30, 2024         6,629,289                  10,857             6,640,146 

Current service cost 208,813           -                      208,813              
Interest cost 1,067,730        1,433                  1,069,163           

1,276,543        1,433                  1,277,976           

in consolidated statement of comprehensive 
Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss recognised

income

Financial assumptions (341,665)         -                      (341,665)             
Experience adjustments (690,235)         2,288                  (687,947)             

(1,031,900)      2,288                  (1,029,612)          

Detail of employee valued

Detail of employee valued related to above scheme are as follows for the year ended June 30, 2024:

Total number of actives 1,680             -                 
Total number of beneficiaries 2,283             25                  

Total

2024

--------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------

Expense recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

Remeasurement acturial (gain) / loss on defined
benefit obligation due to:

Medical 
facility

Gas
 facility
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45.1.3 Significant assumptions used for the valuation of above schemes are as follows:

2025 2024

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
Medical inflation rate - (Post-Retirement) 10.75% 12.75%
Medical inflation rate - (Pre-Retirement) 10.75% 12.75%
Gas inflation rate 13.75% 14.75%
Benefit limit - Gas 61,500           48,000           
Expected medical expense for adult - retires and deceased staff 103,500         82,500           
Expected medical expense for adult - active (family of two) 207,000         165,000         
Expected medical expense for children 10,000           10,000           
Mortality rates (for death in service & post retirement mortality)
Rate of employees turnover Moderate Moderate

Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical facility gas facility

Discount rate 7,667,801      11,175           
Medical inflation rate (Pre retirement) 8,938,806      -                 
Medical inflation rate (Post retirement) 9,829,583      -                 
Gas inflation rate -                 12,452           
Discount rate 10,039,956    12,458           
Medical inflation rate (Pre retirement) 8,536,093      -                 
Medical inflation rate (Post retirement) 7,803,380      -                 
Gas inflation rate -                 11,170           

The expected medical and gas expense for financial year ending June 30, 2026 is as follows:

Post Post 
retirement retirement 

medical facility gas facility

Current service cost 249,677         -                 
Net interest cost 1,024,070      816                

1,273,747      816                

45.1.4

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are
discount rate, expected rate of medical and gas increase. The sensitivity analyses below
have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Executives

 SLIC (2001-05)

(Rupees in '000)

All investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the conditions specified there under. 

Impact of change in 
assumptions in 

present value of defined benefit 

Change in 
assumption

(Rupees in '000)

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption
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45.2 In respect of the Subsidiary

45.2.1 Staff retirement obligation / (asset) - gratuity 

2025 2024

Liability / (Asset) in consolidated statement of
financial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation 70,350            59,486            
Fair value of plan assets (65,727)           (69,319)           

4,623              (9,833)             

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at July 01, 2024             59,486             47,834 
Current service cost             11,841             11,702 
Interest cost               7,385               7,278 
Benefits paid during the year            (15,516)              (3,253)
Curtailment / settlement (gain)              (5,893)                     -   
Actuarial loss / (gain)             13,047              (4,075)
Balance as at June 30, 2025             70,350             59,486 

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Balance as at July 01, 2024             69,319             48,962 
Expected return on plan assets               9,191               7,791 
Contributions during the year               1,500               4,101 
Benefits paid on behalf of the fund                     -                    158 
Benefits paid during the year            (15,516)              (3,253)
Actuarial remeasurement               1,233             11,560 
Balance as at June 30, 2025             65,727             69,319 

The Subsidiary operates employee retirement benefits for permanent employees
who have completed the minimum service period. In accordance with the
requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuarial valuation was carried out as
at June 30, 2025, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been
made in the consolidated financial statements to cover obligation in accordance
with the actuarial recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for
the valuation and disclosures in respect of above-mentioned scheme is as follows:

(Rupees in '000)
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2025 2024

Balance as at July 01, 2024 (9,833)             (1,129)             
Charge for the year 4,142              11,189            
Contributions during the year (1,500)             (4,101)             
Actuarial remeasurement 11,814            (15,634)           
Benefits paid on behalf of the fund -                  (158)                
Balance as at June 30, 2025 4,623              (9,833)             

Expense recognised in consolidated statement of 
profit or loss during the year

Current service cost 11,841            11,702            
Interest cost - net (1,806)             (513)                
Curtailment gain (5,893)             -                  

4,142              11,189            
Remeasurements actuarial (gain) / loss recognised 

in consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Actuarial loss / (gain) on defined benefit obligations 13,047            (4,075)             
Actuarial gain on fair value of plan assets (1,233)             (11,560)           

11,814            (15,635)           

Significant assumptions used for the valuation of above scheme are as follows:

11.75% 14.75%
Salary increase rate short run per annum 15.00% 15.00%
Salary increase rate long run per annum 10.75% 13.50%

5.03 years 4.42 years
High High

SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05

Movement in liability / (assets) in consolidated 
financial statements

As of June 30, 2025: 42 employees (June 30, 2024: 42 employees) were covered
under the above scheme.

Estimated charge for the next financial year as per the actuarial valuation report
amounts to Rs. 11.131 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 11.656 million). Further,
contribution for the next financial year is amounting to Rs. 7.055 million (June 30,
2024: Rs. 6.238 million).

The weighted average duration of the obligation is 5.03 years (June 30, 2024: 4.42 year).

Withdrawal rates
Mortality Rates

Duration

(Rupees in '000)

Discount rate per annum
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Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

Mortality 1 year (forward / back) 70,160            70,523            
Withdrawal rates (10%) 70,340            70,359            

Comparisons for past years

The sensitivity analysis is prepared using same computation model and
assumptions as used to determine defined benefit obligation / (asset) based on
Projected Credit Unit Method. There is no change from prior year in respect of
methods and assumptions used to prepare sensitivity analysis. The impact of
change in following variables on defined benefit obligation is as follows:

2025

(Rupees in '000)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted
principal assumptions is:

As at June 30 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

Present value of defined benefit obligation 70,350      59,486      50,091      40,797      37,645      
Fair value of plan assets (65,727)     (69,319)     (48,962)     (30,990)     (37,705)     
Deficit / (surplus) 4,623        (9,833)       1,129        9,807        (60)            

Experience adjustment on plan liabilities 13,047      (4,075)       10,979      2,720        (5,292)       
Experience adjustment on plan assets (1,233)       (11,560)     (9,454)       -            -            

11,814      (15,635)     1,525        2,720        (5,292)       

--------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------

+ 100 bps - 100 bps + 100 bps - 100 bps

Present value of defined benefit obligation 67,136       73,878       74,172       66,813       

+ 100 bps - 100 bps + 100 bps - 100 bps

Present value of defined benefit obligation 56,964       62,226       62,499       56,671       

--------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------

Discount rate Salary increase
June 30, 2025

--------------------(Rupees in '000)--------------------

June 30, 2024
Discount rate Salary increase
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Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

(Rupees in '000)

2024

Mortality 1 year (forward / back)             59,281             59,672 
Withdrawal rates (10%)             59,477             59,495 

Base      70,349,719 

Discount rate (1% increase) 67,135,762     -4.57%
Discount rate (1% decrease) 73,877,956     5.02%

Salary growth rate (1% increase) 74,172,334     5.43%
Salary growth rate (1% decrease) 66,812,746     -5.03%
Withdrawal rates (10% Increase) 70,340,254     -0.01%
Withdrawal rates (10% Decrease) 70,359,141     0.01%
1 year Mortality age set back 70,522,763     0.25%
1 year Mortality age set forward 70,159,923     -0.27%

2025 2024

Fair value of plan assets of the fund

Shares 27,009            15,838            
Debt 37,615            25,919                                              
Cash and cash equivalents 1,103              27,562            

            65,727             69,319 

(Rupees in '000)

 Defined 
benefit 

 % Change
from base 

Maturity profile

11,428 Year 1   
 Year 2   
 Year 3   
 Year 4   
 Year 5   
 Year 6 to Year 10   
 Year 11 to above

            9,717              
12,455            9,024              

6,957              10,218            
6,432              9,236              

17,373            6,809              
46,514            60,007            
49,695            43,490            

 Defined 
benefit 

 % Change
from base 
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Significant risk:

Final salary risk

Asset volatility

Discount rate fluctuation

Life expectancy / withdrawal rate

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what
the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the
benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

A significant portion of the assets are invested in equity and sukkus which is
subject to the risk that as the market fluctuates, the amount in equity and sukkuks
may decline in value, and the Employees' Gratuity Fund (the fund) may lose some
or all of its principal. The remaining investments are in savings accounts. The cash
at bank exposure is almost 1.68% i.e. Rs. 1.102 million (2024: 39.76% i.e. Rs.
27.562 million).

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to
corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
current plans’ assets.

The gratuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The life expectancy is in almost
minimal range and is quite predictable in the ages when the employee is in the
accredited employment of the Company for the purpose of the gratuity. Thus, the
risk of life expectancy is almost negligible. 

The withdrawal risk is dependent upon the: benefit structure; age and retention
profile of the staff; the valuation methodology; and long-term valuation
assumptions. In this case, it is not a significant risk.

Inflation risk

The salary inflation is the major risk that the gratuity fund liability carries. In a
general economic sense and in a longer view, there is a case that if bond yields
increase, the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the
decrease in discounted gratuity liability. But viewed with the fact that asset values
will also decrease, the salary inflation does, as an overall affect, increases the net
liability of the Company.
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Model risk

Investment risk

Risk of insufficiency of assets

45.2.2 Other service obligation - unfunded leave encashment

2025 2024

Liability / (Asset) in consolidated statement of
financial position

Present value of defined benefit obligation 7,548              8,356              

The defined benefit gratuity liability is usually actuarially valued each year. Further,
the assets in the gratuity fund are also marked to market. This two-tier valuation
gives rise to the model risk.

The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the
liabilities. This risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of
investment.   

This is managed by making regular contribution to the fund as advised by the
actuary. 

The Company operates employee retirement benefits for permanent employees
who have completed the minimum service period. In accordance with the
requirements of IAS-19 “Employee Benefits”, actuarial valuation was carried out as
at June 30, 2025, using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”. Provision has been
made in the financial statements to cover obligation in accordance with the
actuarial recommendations. Details of significant assumptions used for the
valuation and disclosures in respect of above-mentioned scheme is as follows:

(Rupees in '000)

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at July 01, 2024 8,356              7,222              
Current service cost 962                 1,339              
Interest cost 1,141              1,116              
Benefits paid during the year (1,206)             (271)                
Set off against employee loan -                  (388)                

(1,705)             (662)                
Balance as at June 30, 2025 7,548              8,356              

Gain on actuarial remeasurement on 
obligation
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Expense recognised in consolidated statement of 
profit or loss during the year

Current service cost 962                 1,339              
Interest cost 1,141              1,116              
Expense for the year 2,103              2,455              

Remeasurements actuarial (gain) / loss recognised 
in consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation 1,705              662                 

Significant assumptions used for the valuation of above scheme are as follows:

2025 2024

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
Salary increase rate short run per annum 15.00% 15.00%
Salary increase rate long run per annum 10.50% 13.50%
Duration 5.07 years 4.55 years
Withdrawn rates High Moderate
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05

The expected compensated expense for the year ending June 30, 2026 will be Rs:
1.892 million (2024: Rs. 2.070 million).

The sensitivity of the compensated absence to changes in the weighted principal
assumptions:

2025 2024

Base 7,548              8,356              

Discount rate (1% increase) 7,184 -4.83%
Discount rate (1% decrease) 7,950 5.32%
Salary growth rate (1% increase) 7,983 5.76%
Salary growth rate (1% decrease) 7,147 -5.31%
Withdrawal rates (10% Increase) 7,571 0.30%
Withdrawal rates (10% Decrease) 7,522 -0.34%
1 year Mortality age set back 7,547 -0.01%
1 year Mortality age set forward 7,549 0.01%

The compensated absence expose the Company to the actuarial risks such as:

 Defined 
benefit 

 % Change
from base 
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Final salary risk

Discount rate risk

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to
corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan
liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the
current plans’ assets.

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what
the Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the
benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Model risk

Withdrawal rate risk

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a
risk to the benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

Inflation risk

The salary inflation is the major risk that the leave encashment liability carries. In a
general economic sense and in a longer view, there is a case that if bond yields
increase, the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains from the decrease
in discounted leave encashment liability. But viewed with the fact that asset values will
also decrease, the salary inflation does, as an overall affect, increases the net liability
of the Company.

The liability is usually actuarially valued each year. Further, there are no plan assets to
discharge the obligation.

2025  2024 
46

47 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before levy and taxation 8,357,341      11,752,050    
Adjustments for:

Non-cash and other items 47.1 34,736,761    29,789,376    
Working capital changes 47.2 (14,076,745)   (7,750,397)     

29,017,357    33,791,029    

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND
DILUTED

2025  2024 
Note (Rupees in '000)

Profit for the year (Rupees in '000) 3,441,252       8,292,017         
Average number of ordinary shares(Number of shares) 880,916,309   880,916,309     
Earnings per share -

basic and diluted (Rupees) 3.91                9.41                  
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2025  2024 
Note

47.1

Provisions 47.1.1 8,873,140      4,638,142      
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 5.1.2 10,527,253    9,070,946      
Depreciation on right of use assets 7 94,376           82,984           
Depreciation on projects capitalised 5.1.2 (86,161)          (88,855)          
Amortization of intangible assets 6 98,712           137,070         
Finance cost 12,360,702    13,317,025    
Recognition of income against deferred grant and 

contract liability (902,762)        (809,056)        
Amortization of government grant 42 (76,173)          (7,922)            
Dividend income 42 (40,490)          (5,220)            
Interest income (517,502)        (476,126)        
Loss on disposal of property plant and

equipment 41 446,760         637,469         
Increase / (decrease) in long term advances 1,102,262      (829,368)        
Increase in deferred grant and contract liability 2,783,866      1,923,868      
Finance cost on lease liabilities 43 21,573           21,368           
Reversal of LPS income from SNGPL and

WAPDA -                 17,951,015    
Reversal of LPS expense from E&P companies -                 (15,832,411)   
Finance cost against transfer of pipeline 43 51,205           58,447           

34,736,761    29,789,376    

47.1.1 Provisions

Provision against slow moving / obsolete stores 32,139           (9,203)            
Allowance for expected credit loss 5,716,317      1,950,297      
Provision for compensated absences 369,646         (278,693)        
Provision for post retirement medical and free gas 

supply facilities 1,177,214      1,277,976      
Provision for retirement benefits 1,577,824      1,714,666      
Reversal against provision for leave encashment -                 (16,901)          

8,873,140      4,638,142      

ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-CASH 
AND OTHER ITEMS

(Rupees in '000)
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2025 2024
Note

47.2 WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Store, spares and loose tools (369,749)         (401,976)         
Stock-in-trade 570,495          (21,621)           
Customers' installation work-in-progress 39,406            (23,064)           
Trade debts (9,212,936)      (11,140,034)    
Advances, deposits and prepayments (367,318)         282,059          
Other receivables 127,620,227   (101,417,286) 

118,280,125     (112,721,922) 
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities

Trade and other payables (132,356,870)  104,971,525   
(14,076,745)    (7,750,397)      

47.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances 21         2,925,655        2,135,525 
Short term borrowings 33     (82,806,374)     (37,774,786)

    (79,880,719)     (35,639,261)

48 CHANGE IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Balance as at July 01,            109,436      42,554,804 
Addition in lease / proceed from long term loan            113,092      20,000,000 
Repayment of lease liability / long term loan          (108,364)       (9,273,205)
Balance as at June 30,            114,164      53,281,599 

(Rupees in '000)

2025

Lease liability
Long term 
financing
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Balance as at July 01,              86,854      32,203,151 
Addition in lease / proceed from long term loan            121,751      15,018,320 
Repayment of lease liability / long term loan            (99,169)       (4,666,667)
Balance as at June 30,            109,436      42,554,804 

Lease liability
Long term 
financing

2024

49 REMUNERATION OF MANAGING DIRECTOR, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managing Managing 

Director Director

Directors' fees (note 50.3) -           38,867         -                  -                 35,921                   -                         

Managerial remuneration 33,887      -              4,231,104        49,109           -                         3,111,611               

Housing 11,915      -              1,543,239        17,869           -                         1,245,591               

Utilities 2,699        -              353,052           4,127             -                         277,396                  

Retirement benefits

- Grautity 158           -              247,567           -                 -                         199,755                  

- Provident fund 1,681        -              179,277           -                 -                         192,519                  

- Pension 143           -              198,292           -                 -                         278,105                  

- EOBI 4               -              5,969               4                    -                         4,543                      

1,986        -              631,105           4                    -                         674,922                  

50,487      38,867         6,758,500        71,109           35,921                   5,309,520               

Total number 2               17               1,384               2                    17                          1,268                      

49.1 Executive means any employee whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million per year.

49.2

49.3

50 CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PERFORMANCE
Natural gas transmission

MMCF HM3 MMCF HM3
Transmission operation

Capacity - annual rated 

  capacity at 100% load 

  factor with compression 990,610       279,092,975    990,610         279,092,975           

Utilisation - volume of 

gas transmitted 596,411       168,031,941    620,833         174,912,522           

Capacity utilisation factor (%) 60.21% 60.21% 62.67% 62.67%

2025 2024

Directors Executives Directors Executives

--------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in 000) ---------------------------------------------------------------

The Chairperson, Managing Director and certain Executives are also provided with the Group
maintained vehicles in accordance with their entitlement. In addition, the Chairperson of the
Holding Company was paid Rs. 2.57 million (2024: Rs. 3.20 million) as Honorarium. Executives
are also provided with medical facilities in accordance with their entitlement.

Non-executive directors are paid fees for attending meetings of the Board of Directors and its
committees, with no other remuneration.

2025 2024
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Natural gas distribution

Meter manufacturing division

51 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

2025 2024

Government related entities - various

- Purchase of fuel and lubricant 383,290         271,153          
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of 

  sales tax 40,539,094    59,179,825     
- Mark-up expense on short term finance -                 79,813            
- Gas purchases - Indigenous gas 168,415,435  175,570,563   
- Gas purchases - RLNG 116,270,159  123,533,323   

   - Sale of gas condensate -                 26,679            
- Sale of gas meter spare parts inclusive of 

  sales tax 5,440,527      2,261,147       
- Rent of premises 17,207            11,805            
- Insurance premium 177,852         154,978          
- Royalty 1,594              1,783              
- Licence fee 376,440         107,214          
- PPRA fee 22,182            17,170            
- Telecommunication 54,009            18,403            
- Electricity 333,938         332,469          
- RLNG transportation income 12,681,981    15,273,044     
- Reversal of LPS income from SNGPL and WAPDA -                 17,951,015     
- Reversal of LPS Expense from E&P Companies -                 15,832,411     
- LPG purchases 912,356         1,216,609       
- Income against LNG service agreement 1,577,580      1,595,757       
- Dividend income 35,270            -                  
- Markup income on bank deposit 4,536              5,189              

The Group has no control over the rate of utilisation of its capacity as the use of available
capacity is dependent on off-takes by the customers.

During the year meter manufacturing division produced and assembled 1,117,334 meters (2024:
504,940 meters) against an annual capacity of 1.2 million meters (with extended assembly lines
and extra hour working).

The details of transactions with related parties not disclosed else where in these consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

--------- (Rupees in '000) --------

The related parties comprise of associated companies due to common directorship, Government 
related entities, staff retirement benefits plans, directors and key management personnel 
(including their associates). Purchase and sale of gas from / to related parties are determined at 
rates finalized and notified by the Oil and Gas Regulatory Authority. Remuneration of key 
management personnel are in accordance with the term of employment/appointment. Other 
transaction with the related parties are carried out as per agreed terms.
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2025 2024
--------- (Rupees in '000) --------

Karachi Grammar School
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of  sales tax 95                   107                 

Key management personnel
- Remuneration 412,270         328,378          

Engro Fertilizers Limited
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of  sales tax -                 2,265              

- Subscription / Trainings 1,018              234                 

Indus Hospital & Health Network
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of  sales tax -                 1,037              

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of  sales tax 260                 259                 
- Subscription 2,228              1,986              

Pakistan Cables Ltd
- Sale of gas and allied charges inclusive of sales tax 291,819               319,202          

Staff Retirement Benefit Plans
- Contribution to provident fund 505,649         485,661          
- Contribution to pension fund 1,029,946      1,159,850       
- Contribution to gratuity fund 545,236         559,075          

Pakistan Institute of Corporate 
Governance

Contribution to the defined contribution and benefit plans are in accordance with the terms of the
entitlement of the employees and / or actuarial advice. Balance payable to / receivable from
these employees benefit plans are disclosed in notes 26, 34 and 45 to these consolidated
financial statements.

Remuneration to the executive officers of the Group (disclosed in note 50 to these consolidated
financial statements) and loans and advances to them (disclosed in notes 10 and 15 to these
consolidated financial statements) are determined in accordance with the terms of their
employment. Mark-up free security deposits for gas connections to the executive staff of the
Group is received at rates prescribed by the Government of Pakistan(GOP).

The details of amount due (to) / from related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements are as follows: 
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2025 2024

Government related entities - various

- Sale of gas and allied charges 57,369,526    58,211,200     
                                  
                                  

- Gas purchases - Indigenous gas (716,733,782) (709,357,094) 
- Gas purchases - RLNG (18,342,310)   (104,832,095) 
- Sale of gas condensate 4,365              4,365              
- Gas meters and spare parts 1,328,686      2,706,361       
- Uniform cost of gas -                 15,818,846     
- Uniform cost of gas- RLNG 20,000,000    20,000,000     
- Cash at bank 19,339            171,906          
- Stock loan 28,015            1,503                                                
- Gas supply deposit (508,766)        (682,074)        
- Contingent rent 19,529            19,529            
- Differential tariff 4,284,080      4,284,080       
- Capacity and utilisation charges of RLNG 3,958,765      54,587,819     
- RLNG transportation income 20,680,918    47,798,343     
- LSA margins 374,281         3,032,075       
- Lease rentals 18,207            
- Advance for sharing right of way (18,088)          (18,088)           
- Advance against LPG purchases 118,518         143,306          
- Long term deposits 12,663            11,435            
- Prepayment 177,924         140,748          
- Retention Money (2,512)            -                  

Karachi Grammar School
- Sale of gas and allied charges 5                     5                     
- Gas supply deposit (22)                 (22)                  

Pakistan Stock Exchange
- Sale of gas and allied charges 8                     8                     
- Gas supply deposit (99)                 (99)                  

Pakistan Cables Ltd
- Sale of gas and allied charges 7,696              37,856            
- Gas supply deposit (1,189)            (1,189)             

--------- (Rupees in '000) --------
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51.1  

2025 2024

Included in Trade Debts

Government related entities
- K-Electric Limited 32,053,844    45,685,561     
- Water and Power Development Authority 449,243         3,197,701       
- Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 1,892              1,642              
- Pakistan International Airlines Corporation Limited 3,680              756                 
- Pakistan Steel Mills Corporation (Private) Limited 24,433,924    99,822,349     
- National Bank Of Pakistan 18,206            9,204              
- State Bank of Pakistan 4,239              3,310              
- State Life Insurance Corporation of Pakistan 208                 66                   
- Pakistan National Shipping Corporation 87                   403                 
- Pakistan Machine Tool Factory 8,229              7,541              
- Pakistan Railways 548                 222                 
- Pakistan Navy 479,449         285,209          
- Pakistan Engineering 17                   9                     
- Pakistan Security Printing Corporation (Pvt) Limited 74,497            53,401            
- National Investment Trust Limited 17                   8                     
- Hydrocarbon Development Institute of Pakistan 49                   76                   
- Security Papers Limited 87,113            82,849            
- Mari Petroleum Company Limited 110                 119                 
- National Insurance Company Limited 501                 574                 
- Pakistan Refinery Limited 193,569         81,140            
- Oil & Gas Development Company Limited 215                 27                   
- Pakistan Petroleum Limited 353                 393                 
- Peoples Steel Mills Ltd 170,721         
- Enar Petroleum Refining Facility 6,543              
- Jamshoro Power Company Limited 422,695         
- Karachi Shipyard & Engineering Works Ltd 10,938            
- National Industrial Park 6,772              
- Pak Arab Refinery Ltd 916                 
- Pakistan Television Corporation Ltd 1,563

 208,724
 6,840

 20,249
 10,062

 6,246
 -

 1,168              

 Other Associated Companies
- Karachi Grammar School 19                   33                   

                                  
                                  

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 82                   56                   
- Pakistan Cables Ltd 46,837            47,579            

Past due 1 month  11,549,356     7,594,553       
Past due 2-3 months  879,194          1,453,913       
Past due 4-12 months  688,483         22,808,577     
Past due over 12 months  96,019,087    176,047,693   

 109,136,120  207,904,736   

Maximum aggregate outstanding balance from related parties at the end of any month is as
below:

--------- (Rupees in '000) --------

The aging of related party balances (related to financial assets) at the reporting date is as
follows:
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52  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk

Credit risk

2025 2024
--------- (Rupees in '000) --------

Trade debts 130,982,705  127,486,086  
Loans and advances 813,913         553,178         
Deposits 133,148         46,758           
Interest accrued 194,920         18,909           
Other receivables 49,908,089    147,518,603  
Bank balances 2,916,950      2,126,987      

184,949,725  277,923,324  

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement at year end is the carrying amount
of the financial assets as set out below: 

The objective of Group’s overall financial risk management is to minimize earnings volatility and provide
maximum return to shareholders. The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management frame work and policies. 

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Credit
risk arises from long term loan and deposits trade debts, loans and advances, trade deposits, bank
balances, interest accrued and other receivables.  

To reduce the exposure toward the credit risk, comprehensive customer category wise credit limits and
terms have been established. The Group continuously monitors the credit given to customers and
interest accrued thereon and has established a dedicated recovery department for follow-up, recovery or
disconnection of gas supply as the  case may be.

Loans and advances given to employees are secured against retirement benefits of the employees and
title deed of properties of employees. Balances are maintained with banks of sound credit rating. The
Group attempts to control credit risk in respect of other receivables by monitoring credit exposures of
counterparties.

Long term loan and deposits
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2025 2024
--------- (Rupees in '000) --------

52.1  Collateral and other credit enhancements obtained

Cash deposits 39,767,643    32,026,456    
Bank guarantee / irrevocable letter of credit 90,372,869    73,439,051    

52.2

  

Credit Quality

The Group take security deposits against supply of gas to industrial, commercial and domestic
customers on the basis of average three months gas consumption as per OGRA notification. These
collaterals are adjusted / called following on disconnection of gas supply. Details of security held at year
end is as follows: 

The Group monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of
such assets and where available external credit ratings.

The credit quality of the Group’s major bank accounts is assessed with reference to external credit
ratings which are as follows: 

Rating Agency
Bank Short Term Long Term

National Bank of Pakistan PACRA - VIS A-1+ AAA
Allied Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Dubai Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1+ AA
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA - VIS A-1+ AA
MCB Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
United Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Askari Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
The Bank of Punjab PACRA A-1+ AA+
First Women Bank Limited PACRA A-2 A-
Bank Al-Habib Limited PACRA A-1+ AAA
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA A-1 AA-
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited VIS A-1 A+
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA+
Meezan Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited PACRA - VIS A-1 AA
Silk Bank Limited VIS A-2 A-
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA A-1+ AA-
Easy Paisa Digital Bank PACRA A-1 A
Citi Bank N. A. Moody's - S & P -Fitch P-1, F-1, A-1 Aa3, A+, A+
Deutsche Bank A.G, Moody's - S & P -Fitch P-1 A-1, F-2 A1, A, A-
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China  S & P - Fitch - Moody's  "    , F1 + ,     " A
Sindh Bank Limited VIS A-1 + AA -

Rating 
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52.3  Past due and impaired financial assets

Industrial and commercial customers

Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment

Not due balances 29,512,040        -                     44,480,672         -                      

Past due but not impaired 33,864,694        -                     50,073,439         -                      

Past due and impaired 4,978,422          469,006          4,960,431           2,942,895           

Disconnected customers 26,530,483          3,404,385          2,795,299           2,795,299           

Total 94,885,639      3,873,391          102,309,841       5,738,194           

The age analysis of trade debt balances relating to industrial and commercial customers at year end is
as follows: 

2025 2024

Past due but not impaired balances include aggregate overdue balances of K-Electric (KE), Pakistan
Steels Mills Limited (PSML) and Water & Power Development Authority (WAPDA) amounting to Rs.
26,420 million (2024: Rs. 48,224 million) and are subject to inter corporate circular debt of government
entities and K-Electric.

Domestic customers

Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment Gross carrying 
amount

Impairment

Not due balances                      -                     -                      -                      

Past due but not impaired 3,146,105
6,083,898

        -                    25,833,437         -                      

Past due and impaired 41,789,305        11,048,851          11,031,340         5,950,339           

Disconnected customers 18,276,042        18,276,042        15,793,434         15,793,434         

Total 69,295,350        29,324,893        52,658,211         21,743,773         

 

2025 2024

 The age analysis of trade debt balances relating to domestic customers at year end is as follows: 

The Group has collateral / security against domestic customers amounting to Rs. 20,837 million (2024:
Rs. 14,352 million) and replenishes such collateral based on gas consumption and requirement of the
customers. When recovery is not made within one month, such customers balances are generally
considered past due. 

The Group has collateral / security against industrial and commercial customers amounting to Rs. 109,304 
million (2024: Rs. 91,133 million) and replenishes such collateral based on gas consumption and 
requirements of the customers. When recovery is not made within one month, such customers' balances 
are generally considered past due. In case of past due balances, the Group starts the recovery process 
through the recovery department, and if the amount is in excess of collateral and is not recovered by the 
recovery department, then disconnection of the meter (disconnected customers) is considered. 
Receivables which are past due and against which recoveries are not made or which are disconnected are 
considered as impaired debts.
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Interest accrued

Other receivables

52.4 Concentration of credit risk

Trade debts

Customer category wise concentration of credit risk in respect of trade debts at year end is as follows:

2025 2024

Power generation companies 28,847,348    30,849,372    
Cement industries 20,462           18,641           
Fertilizer and steel industries 23,823,191      24,858,322    
Other industries 34,031,651    37,401,688    

86,722,652    93,128,023    
Commercial customers 2,206,465      3,494,309      
Domestic customers 42,053,588    30,863,754    

130,982,705  127,486,086  

Karachi 94,086,386    97,399,168    
Sindh (excluding Karachi) 21,119,844    20,402,748    
Balochistan 15,776,475    9,684,170      

130,982,705  127,486,086  
Interest accrued

Other receivables

Geographical region wise concentration of credit risk in respect of trade debts at year end is as follows:

Most significant counter parties of the Group in respect of interest accrued are disclosed in note 17 to
these consolidated financial statements.

Most significant other receivables of the Group are in respect of lease rental, lease service cost,
contingent rent and uniform cost of gas agreement with SNGPL as disclosed in note 18 to these
consolidated financial statements. These balances are subject to inter corporate circular debt.

As at June 30, 2025, interest accrued net of provision was Rs. 683 million (2024: Rs. 679 million). 

As at June 30, 2025, other receivable financial assets amounted to Rs. 49,909 million (2024: Rs.
147,149 million). Past due other receivables amounting to Rs. 42,121 million (2024: Rs. 124,310 million)
include over due balances of SNGPL amounting to Rs. 39,859 million (2024: Rs. 122,048 million) and
JJVL amounting to Rs. 2,262 million (2023: Rs. 2,502 million)

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk
indicates the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a particular
industry. Concentration of credit risk is determined with references to the individual customers / counter
parties, type as well as geographical distribution of customers / counterparties. Concentration of credit
risk in financial assets of the Company is as follows:

--------- (Rupees in '000) --------
Industrial customers
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52.5 Liquidity risk

As at June 30, 2025

Long term finance 53,403,557            (63,452,946)           (15,994,580)           (33,176,769)           (7,111,317)             (7,170,280)             
Payable against transfer of 

pipeline 523,169                 (523,169)                (67,866)                  (67,866)                  (135,731)                (251,706)                
Short term borrowings 82,806,374            (82,806,374)           (82,806,374)           -                         -                         -                         
Trade and other payables 866,566,609          (866,566,609)         (866,566,609)         -                         -                         -                         
Interest accrued 2,330,568              (2,330,568)             (2,330,568)             -                         -                         -                         
Security deposits 39,767,643            (130,140,512)         -                         -                         -                         (130,140,512)         
Lease liability 114,164                 (114,164)                -                         (82,352)                  -                         (31,812)                  
Employee benefits 9,631,488              (9,631,488)             -                         -                         -                         (9,631,488)             
Unclaimed dividend 341,320                 (341,320)                (341,320)                -                         -                         -                         

1,055,484,891       (1,155,907,150)      (968,107,316)         (33,326,987)           (7,247,048)             (147,225,798)         

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the
possibility that the Group could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial liabilities as they fall due. The Group’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.
Due to nature of the business, the Group maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining committed credit lines available. The Group’s liquidity management
involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to fulfill its obligation, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against
internal and external requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
contractual maturity date.

Carrying amount
Contractual cash 

flows
Not later than six 

months

Later than six 
months but not 
later than 1 year

Later than one 
year but not later 

than
2 years

Later than
2 years

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

As at June 30, 2024

Long term finance 42,540,690            (58,662,966)           (7,153,458)             (10,284,887)           (27,082,082)           (14,142,539)           
Payable against transfer of 

pipeline 607,696                 (607,696)                (67,866)                  (67,866)                  (135,731)                (336,232)                
Short term borrowings 37,774,786            (37,774,786)           (37,774,786)           -                         -                         -                         
Trade and other payables 983,230,444          (983,230,444)         (983,230,444)         -                         -                         -                         
Interest accrued 3,314,255              (3,314,255)             (3,314,255)             -                         -                         -                         
Security deposits 32,026,456            (105,465,507)         -                         -                         -                         (105,465,507)         
Lease liability 109,436                 (109,436)                -                         (68,706)                  -                         (40,730)                  
Employee benefits 7,270,658              (7,270,658)             -                         -                         -                         (7,270,658)             
Unclaimed dividend 341,320                 (341,320)                (341,320)                -                         -                         -                         

1,107,215,741       (1,196,777,068)      (1,031,882,129)      (10,421,459)           (27,217,813)           (127,255,666)         

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Carrying amount
Contractual cash 

flows
Not later than six 

months

Later than six 
months but not 
later than 1 year

Later than one 
year but not later 

than
2 years

Later than
2 years
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52.6 Market risk

52.7 Currency risk

Rupees US Dollars Rupees US Dollars
in '000 in '000 in '000 in '000

Creditors for gas 103,316,400   363,662          140,371,003   503,483          

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

2025 2024 2025 2024

277.79            283.24            284.10 278.80            

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the
basis of latest available market rates. The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in notes 24.1
and 25.1 to these Consolidated financial statements. Contractual cash flows of the long term
deposits are determined on the assumption that adjusted / refund of these deposits will not be
required before expiry of 40 years from reporting date.

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer
or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of
securities and liquidity in the market. The market risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk (equity price risk). 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a
change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions entered into foreign currencies. 

The Group is exposed to currency risk on creditors for gas that are denominated in a currency
other than functional currency of the Group. The currency in which these transactions primarily
are denominated is US Dollars. The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows: 

2025 2024

Above net exposure is payable by the Group in Rupees at the rate on which these are settled by
the Group. Currently, the Group does not obtain forward cover against the gross exposure as
exchange loss / gain on purchases of gas and supplies is recovered from / paid to Government
of Pakistan as part of guaranteed return.

Average rates Reporting date rate
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Sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk

2025 2024

Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets

Loan and advances -                 36                   
Cash and bank balances 2,469,714       422,903          
Receivable against asset contribution 163,880          231,767          

2,633,594       654,706          
Financial liabilities

Long term deposits (18,132,598)    (16,933,408)    
Government of Sindh loan (940,000)         (804,709)         
Payable against transfer of pipeline (523,169)         (607,696)         
Lease liability (114,164)           (109,436)         

(19,709,931)    (18,455,249)    
Variable rate instruments

Financial assets
Other receivables 22,262,314     38,081,159     

Financial liabilities
Long term loan except Government of Sindh loan (52,463,557)    (41,735,981)    
Short term borrowings (82,806,374)    (37,774,786)    
Trade and other payables (23,605,580)      (39,000,238)    

(158,875,511)  (118,511,005)  
(136,613,197)  (80,429,846)    

A ten percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Rupee against US Dollar at June 30, 2024
would have (decreased) / increased trade creditors by Rs. 10,322 million (2024: Rs. 14,037
million). There is no effect of strengthening / (weakening) of US dollar on Consolidated equity
and Consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group as exchange loss / gain on purchases
of gas and store and supplies is recovered from / paid to Government of Pakistan (GOP) as part
of tariff adjustments. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as for 2024.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure
arises from short and long term borrowings from banks. At the reporting date the interest rate
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing financial instruments were as follows: 

-------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------- 

Fixed rate instruments bear fixed interest rate while all other borrowings bear variable interest
rate and are indexed to KIBOR. Borrowing is generally determined on the basis of business
needs. The Group analyses its interest rate exposure on a regular basis by monitoring existing
facilities against prevailing market interest rates and taking into account various other financing
options available.
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Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Equity price risk

Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
Consolidated statement of profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect the Consolidated statement of profit or loss and the equity of the Group. 

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have net increased or
(net decreased) the Consolidated statement of profit or loss of the Group as at June 30, 2025, by
Rs. 1,366 million (2024: Rs. 804 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
as for 2024.

Equity price risk is the risk of changes in the fair value of equity securities as the result of
changes in the levels of KSE-100 Index and the value of individual shares. The equity price risk
exposure arises from the Group's investments in listed equity securities. This arises from
investments held by the Group for which prices in the future are uncertain. The fair value of listed
equity investments of the Group that are exposed to price risk as at June 30, 2025 is Rs. 454
million (2024: Rs. 257 million).

A ten percent increase / decrease in the prices of listed equity securities of the Group at the
reporting date would have increased / (decreased) long term investment and Consolidated equity
by Rs. 45.4 million (2024: Rs. 25.7 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2024.

The carrying values of all financial instruments reflected in these Consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values except for investment in unquoted companies which are
reflected at cost less impairment losses.
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Fair value hierarchy

Level 1:
Level 2:

Level 3:

Level 1- Listed securities

Level 2 - Operating fixed assets (Freehold and lease land) 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

-                 61,465,659     -                      61,465,659 

Financials assets - through OCI
Quoted equity securities           454,109                     -   -                           454,109 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets

-                 61,465,659     -                      61,465,659 

Financials assets - through OCI
Quoted equity securities 256,705          -                 -                 256,705          

There have been no transfers during the year.

Operating fixed assets - free 
hold and lease hold land (Note 5.1)

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows: 

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 1 and level 2

The valuation has been determined through closing rates of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

2025

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Non-financial assets

2024

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------

Non-financial assets
Operating fixed assets - free 
hold and lease hold land (Note 5.1)

Other than disclosed above the fair value of all financial assets and liabilities equals to their
carrying amounts.

The fair value of the freehold and leasehold land are derived using the Sale Comparison.

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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Capital risk management

The Group is not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements. 

2025 2024

The gearing ratio as at June 30, is as follows:

Total borrowings
Long term finance 11,049,039     34,561,766     
Short term borrowings 82,806,374     37,774,786     
Current portion of long term finance 42,354,518     7,978,924       

136,209,931   80,315,476     
Less: Cash and bank balances (2,925,655)      (2,135,525)      
Net debts 133,284,276   78,179,951     

Capital employed    148,357,150      89,365,674 

Gearing ratio 0.90                0.87                

The Group manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to the shareholders or issue
new shares. 

-------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------- 

The objective of the Group when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its
businesses. 

53 OPERATING SEGMENTS

1) Gas transmission and distribution (sale of gas); and
2) Meter manufacturing (manufacturing and sale of gas meters)

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief operating decision maker in
order to allocate resources to segments and to asses their performance. As a result, management has
identified the following two segments:
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53.1 Segment revenue and results

The following is analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment.

2025 2024

Segment Profit / (loss)
Return on Assets net of UFG  disallowance

Gas transmission 11,081,561       14,189,416      
Gas distribution and marketing
 - Lower Sindh 4,267,969         6,584,811        
 - Upper Sindh 2,108,660         5,150,494        
 - Balochistan (8,966,418)       (11,620,919)     
Meter manufacturing 21,914              26,171             

Total segment results 8,513,685         14,329,973      
Unallocated

Finance cost (12,152,632)     (13,396,840)     
Other income - net 11,996,288       10,818,917      

Profit / (loss) before tax 8,357,341         11,752,050      

Segment assets and liabilities
Segment assets

Gas transmission 255,964,044     288,912,238    
Gas distribution and marketing

 - Lower Sindh 514,154,006     568,694,750    
 - Upper Sindh 144,482,863     155,345,150    
 - Balochistan 148,889,764     150,430,278    

Meter manufacturing 2,651,721         1,829,267        
Total segment assets 1,066,142,397  1,165,211,683 

Unallocated
- Loans and advances 813,913            553,178           
- Taxation - net 51,327,204       16,126,534      
- Interest accrued 682,659            679,451           
- Cash and bank balances 2,925,655         2,135,525        

55,749,431       19,494,688      
Total assets as per consolidated statement 

of  financial position 1,121,891,828  1,184,706,371 

(Rupees in '000)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are same as disclosed in note
4.22 to these consolidated financial statements.
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54 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

2025 2024
55 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

              6,402               6,683 

              6,549               6,665 

56 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

From To

Unpaid dividend      55,980 
Trade and 
Other Payables

Unclaimed 
Dividend

Gratuity Fund       9,833 
Other
Receivable

Trade and Other
Payables

57 DATE OF AUTHORISATION 

58 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated. 

These Consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in Board of Directors meeting
held on November 05, 2025.

Number of employees

Total number of employees as at the reporting date

Average number of employees during the year

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and reclassified to reflect more appropriate
presentation of events and transaction for the purpose of comparison, which are as follow:

Description
(Rupees in '000) Reclassified

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson

Muhammad Amin Rajput
Managing Director

Wajeeh Uddin Sheikh

2025 2024

Segment Liabilities
Gas transmission 74,752,735       158,147,217     
Gas distribution and marketing

 - Lower Sindh 645,033,905     600,097,588     
 - Upper Sindh 113,908,822     154,712,934     
 - Balochistan 275,709,540     262,571,158     

Meter manufacturing 339,608            127,276            
Total liabilities as per consolidated statement

of financial position 1,109,744,609  1,175,656,173  

(Rupees in '000)

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company have proposed a final dividend for the year ended June 
30, 2025 of Rs. 0.5 per share amounting to Rs 440.46 million at their meeting held on November 5, 
2025 for approval of the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM). These financial 
statements do not include the effect of the above dividend that will be accounted for in the period in 
which it is approved.
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Ten Years Summary
Key Statistical Data 
For the year ended 30 June Unit 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Gas purchased MMCF 295,018 313,132    373,624   415,005  429,144   454,530   445,604    438,389    469,381        
Gas sold MMCF 252,108 253,606    305,667   343,664  337,096   363,081   361,824    362,313    384,989        
Mains - transmission KM 4,206 4,175        4,143       4,143      4,126       4,054       4,054        3,997        3,614                
Mains & services - distribution - additions KM 337 376           649          929         528          784          689           758           871           
New connections Each 3,201 434           76,349     129,947  97,128     116,087   89,398      86,359      95,353            
LPG air mix sales MMBTU 230,041 234,557    254,140   224,956  222,381   163,596   216,015    156,242    108,963          
Gas meters - produced / assembled Each 504,940 291,050    430,908   453,014  452,670   582,590   503,840    444,850    491,799        

Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Gas Sales 484,422 285,782    351,906   317,401  295,722   251,645   184,015    187,028    214,637        
GST (71,761)           (43,066)     (52,277)    (45,914)   (43,922)   (32,381)   (25,252)     (25,666)     (31,234)         
Sales excluding GST 412,660            242,716 299,629   271,487  251,800   219,264   158,763    161,362    183,403        
Tariff adjustments 53,210             208,763    75,930     24,642    38,440     77,903     18,641      (4,689)       (44,787)     
Net sales 465,870           451,479 375,559   296,129  290,240   297,167   177,404    156,673    138,616        
Cost of gas (426,783)         (395,917)   (352,354)  (280,595) (284,344) (274,794) (168,464)   (140,658)   (147,285)      
Transmission and distribution costs (20,510)           (20,661)     (12,620)    (12,651)   (15,216)   (13,198)   (11,842)     (11,277)     (11,306)         
Administrative and selling expenses  (6,867)             (5,698)       (4,818)      (4,237)     (4,513)     (4,484)     (4,163)       (4,049)       (3,616)       
Depreciation (8,788)             (7,099)       (3,133)      (8,842)     (8,011)     (7,464)     (7,187)       (5,839)       (5,075)       
Other operating expenses (24,526)           (36,657)     (22,459)    (2,693)     (5,399)     (21,535)   (5,512)       (3,293)       (2,356)       
Other income 44,189             21,580      17,280     18,643    15,429     14,248     14,002      13,451      25,799           
Profit / (loss) before interest and taxation 22,585             7,028        (2,545)      5,754      (11,813)   (10,062)   (5,762)       5,008        (5,222)       
Finance cost (13,375)           (8,619)       (5,190)      (4,619)     (7,235)     (6,758)     (5,064)       (1,692)       (2,618)       
Profit / (loss) before taxation 9,210               (1,591)       (7,735)      1,135      (19,048)   (16,820)   (10,826)     3,316        (7,840)       
Taxation (2,371)             (10)            (3,709)      820         (2,344)     (1,575)     (4,022)       (1,980)       1,725        
Profit / (loss) for the year 6,839 

2025
 280,397 
 237,529 

 4,308 
 144 

 1,708 
 197,052 

 1,117,334 

516,956 
(77,627)           
 439,329           

(4,255) 
435,074           

(399,255)         
(15,180)           

(6,802) 
(10,225) 

(8,848)           
24,477 
19,241 

(12,143)           
7,098 

(4,409) 
2,689 (1,601)       (11,444)    1,955      (21,392)   (18,395)   (14,848)     1,336        (6,115)       

As at 30 June 
Capital Work in progress 14,751             12,583      14,931     11,538    11,862     11,527     11,071      8,726        23,433      
Operating tangible fixed assets 189,159           174,831    160,332   124,449  122,484   118,193   109,453    106,267    73,278      
Property, plant & equipment 203,910           187,414    175,263   135,987  134,346   129,720   120,524    114,993    96,711      
Intangible assets 187                  196           226          111         2 21            49             74             25             
Right of use assets 90                    74             85            149         221          -          -            -            -            
Long term financial assets 1,972               1,947        2,847       3,248      1,510       1,628       1,821        2,051        1,776        
Deferred tax 11,161             8,366        2,823       2,592      -          -          -            2,476        2,669        
Non-current assets 217,320           197,997    181,244   142,087  136,079   131,369   122,394    119,594    101,181    
Stores spares & loose tools 4,032               3,664        3,646       3,455      2,717       2,364       2,015        2,472        2,147        
Stock in trade 4,037               3,445        2,304       1,576      2,106       1,799       1,125        1,139        802           
Trade debts 127,448           118,245    102,209   92,134    91,809     84,157     76,761      82,137      86,285      
Other receivables 810,299           708,847    471,897   360,783  340,071   275,146   151,970    80,194      58,047      
Interest and mark-up accrued 707                  18,595      16,692     15,154    15,113     13,110     11,691      10,594      9,191        
Taxation - net 13,862             13,844      16,079     17,609    19,192     19,536     19,549      18,867      19,987      
Trade deposits & prepayments 358                  593           976          1,131      699          202          172           147           482           
Cash & bank balances 1,123               384           763          574         700          338          410           897           954           
Current assets 961,866           867,617    614,566   492,416  472,406   396,653   263,693    196,447    177,895       

Total Assets 1,179,186       1,065,614 795,810   634,503  608,485   528,023   386,087    316,041    279,076        

Share capital 8,809 8,809        8,809       8,809      8,809       8,809 8,809        8,809        8,809 
Reserves (62,727) (71,332)     (67,395)    (55,328)   (56,847)   (37,875)   (19,076)     (4,455)       (6,391)       
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 59,835 59,835      54,107     24,347    24,347     21,043     13,673      11,728      11,728      
Total Equity 5,917 (2,688)       (4,479)      (22,172)   (23,691)   (8,022)     3,406        16,082      14,146      
Employees post-retirement benefits 7,262               7,472        7,724       5,603      5,096       5,847       5,935        4,886        4,704        
Long term deposits & advances 33,908             31,118      28,478     26,027    23,308     20,629     18,331      16,429      13,555      
Payable against transfer of pipeline 523                  608           685          756         820          879          933           983           1,028        
Deferred credit 5,760               5,199        4,304       4,593      4,605       4,844       6,038        5,321        5,842        
Contract liabilities 10,275             9,767        9,517       7,786      6,197       4,402       -            -            -            
Lease liability 18                    13             19            43           105          -          -            -            -            
Long term financing 34,562             27,335      17,016     21,235    29,088     36,920     44,722      48,790      22,573      
Non-current liabilities 92,308             81,512      67,743     66,043    69,219     73,522     75,959      76,409      47,702      
Current portion of long term financing 7,979               4,854        6,665       8,081      8,086       9,838       11,574      7,045        5,756        
Short term borrowings 37,775             34,096      23,878     23,751    14,980     16,294     9,760        2,901        4,860        
Trade payables 962,674           876,467    632,570   500,257  478,933   376,881   234,616    168,177    143,782       
Other payables 68,213             50,934      50,644     40,577    42,715     41,013     32,923      28,060      45,829      
Current portion of payable against transfer of pipeline 85                    77             71            65           59            54            49             45             41             
Current portion of deferred credit 567                  510           443          442         432          395          571           423           428           
Current portion of contract liabilities 287                  297           263          232         192          167          -            -            -            
Current portion lease liability 68                    53             55            84           117          -          -            -            -            
Interest and mark-up accrued 3,314               19,502      17,957     17,143    17,442     17,881     17,229      16,899      16,532      
Current liabilities 1,080,961        986,790    732,546   590,632  562,957   462,523   306,722    223,550    217,228       

Total equity and liabilities 1,179,186        1,065,614 795,810   634,503  608,485   528,023   386,087    316,041    279,076    

Earning Per share (Rupees) 7.76

13,646 
215,010 
228,656 

256 
87 

2,098 
11,161 

242,258 
4,351 
3,215 

130,924 
682,450 

691 
48,769 

664 
1,187 

872,250 

1,114,508
8,809

(60,376)
59,835

8,268
9,624

42,697
431

5,613
12,249

12
11,049
81,674
42,355
82,806

847,765
48,230

92
573
334

79
2,331

1,024,565       

1,114,508

3.05 (1.82)         (12.99)      2.22        (24.28)     (20.88)     (16.86)       1.52          (6.94)         

Income statement Rs. Million

Balance Sheet
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Ten Years of Progress
Gas Customers 

Industrial
Karachi 

Sindh (Interior)

Balochistan

Sub - total

Commercial
Karachi 

Sindh (Interior)

Balochistan

Sub - total

Domestic
Karachi 

Sindh (Interior)  

Balochistan  

Sub - total  

Total
Karachi  

Sindh (Interior)  

Balochistan  

Grand Total  

Gas Sales in million cubic  feet

Industrial
Karachi      

Sindh (Interior)  

Balochistan  

Sub - total      

Commercial
Karachi  

Sindh (Interior)  

Balochistan  

Sub - total  

Domestic
Karachi  

Sindh (Interior)  

Balochistan  

Sub - total  

Total
Karachi  

Sindh (Interior)  

Balochistan  

Grand Total

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

3,369 3,442 3,490 3,482 3,572 3,566 3,503 3,497 3,474

534 571 637 650 643 645 646 640 643

194 196 201 205 57 59 58 59 57

4,097 4,209 4,328 4,337 4,272 4,270 4,207 4,196 4,147

13,780 15,226 16,048 16,446 17,119 17,520 15,810       15,898 16,064 

2,810 3,420 3,672 3,859 4,170 4,297 4,171 4,206 4,393 

 2,816 2,927 2,821 2,836 2,765 2,780 2,714 2,660 2,624 

19,406 21,573 22,541 23,141 24,054 24,597 22,695 22,764 23,081 

1,985,833 1,993,283 2,009,584 1,980,884 1,928,823 1,867,962 1,807,559 1,760,001 1,720,164 

913,057 919,307 925,163  902,533 874,483     847,207 813,107     793,123    772,925    

298,739 299,881 305,464  301,315 282,303     275,142 265,556 259,087     253,113

3,197,629 3,212,471 3,240,211 3,184,732 3,085,609 2,990,311 2,886,222 2,812,211 2,746,202 

2,002,982 2,011,951     2,029,122     2,000,812     1,949,514 1,889,048 1,826,872 1,779,396 1,739,702 

916,401 923,298         929,472       907,042        879,296 852,149    817,924     797,969     777,961    

301,749 303,004        308,486        304,356        285,125 277,981    268,328     261,806     255,794

3,221,132

112,355

32,406

6,050

150,810

3,735

712

 876

5,323

51,419

24,891

19,664

95,974

167,509

58,009

26,590

252,108

2025

 3,282

 491

 187

 3,960

 11,465

 2,171

 2,693

 16,329

 1,970,568

 905,155

 290,143

 3,165,866

 1,985,315

 907,817

 293,023

 3,186,155

 107,052

 27,120

 5,988

 140,160

 3,146

 397

 695

 4,238

 48,006

 23,300

 21,825

 93,131

 158,204

 50,817

 28,508

 237,529

3,238,253     3,267,080     3,212,210     3,113,935 3,019,178 2,913,124 2,839,171 2,773,457 

118,073 160,800        193,563 186,010     198,435     190,169     191,842     207,654    

29,919 34,181           37,719 36,298       50,633       52,860       52,756       74,164      

5,919 6,986 3,402 1,854         7,705         9,099         9,010         8,379

153,911 201,967 234,684 224,162     256,774     252,127     253,608     290,197    

5,272 6,318 6,709 6,991         7,962 7,847        7,825 7,772

1,040 1,223 1,242 1,401 1,642 1,621 1,618 1,641

866 957 913 951 984 905 901 843

7,178 8,498 8,864 9,343 10,588 10,373 10,344 10,256      

55,675 55,787 59,557 61,785       56,713 61,236       61,459       52,938      

26,031           25,142           26,065           26,874       24,025 24,681       25,527       22,151      

10,811 14,274 14,494 14,933       14,981 13,406         11,375 9,447

92,517 95,202        100,116           103,591      95,719 99,323       98,361       84,536

179،020         222,904        259,829 254,785 263,110 259,252 261,126     268,364

56،991 60,546           65,026 64,573       76,300 79,162       79,901       97,956      

17,595 22,217 18,809 17,737       23,670 23,410       21,286       18,669      

253,606         305,667        343,664 337,096 363,081 361,824 362,313     384,989 



Pattern of Shareholdings
As at June 30, 2025

# OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDINGS' SLAB TOTAL SHARES HELD

8039
5034
2709
9967
1285
454
304
195
133
71
66
51
100
38
33
17
17
19
13
13
8
7
51
7
11
4
3
4
5
3
5
4
18
3
2
4
2
4
3
3
1
1

100
500
1000
5000
10000
15000
20000
25000
30000
35000
40000
45000
50000
55000
60000
65000
70000
75000
80000
85000
90000
95000
100000
105000
110000
115000
120000
125000
130000
135000
140000
145000
150000
155000
160000
165000
170000
175000
180000
185000
190000
195000

1
101
501

1001
5001

10001
15001

20001
25001
30001
35001
40001
45001
50001
55001
60001
65001
70001
75001
80001
85001
90001
95001

100001
105001
110001
115001

120001
125001
130001
135001
140001
145001
150001
155001
160001
165001
170001
175001
180001
185001
190001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to

237,905
1,542,097

2,296,670
19,409,254

9,951,278
5,829,863
5,550,030
4,599,641
3,812,253
2,363,513
2,531,933
2,195,257
4,924,345
2,030,618
1,937,678
1,071,861
1,160,974
1,403,511

1,016,903
1,081,664

700,144
648,959

5,088,200
718,564

1,189,544
452,186

357,000
493,164
645,720
396,750

700,000
577,156

2,698,500
457,469
313,923
654,127

334,800
690,194
534,861
547,824
190,000
193,710
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Pattern of Shareholdings
As at June 30, 2025

# OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDINGS' SLAB TOTAL SHARES HELD

2,399,500
401,771

1,039,568
213,100

220,000
1,122,005
456,000
697,058
237,000
966,884

1,000,000
255,000
536,019

824,500
551,543

281,000
900,000
605,930

1,226,501
315,583
651,100

342,690
1,050,000

707,889
361,000
765,569
391,562
799,229
407,842
424,726
425,896
445,000
900,000

917,371
2,000,000
1,003,508
1,014,963
516,008

1,050,000
531,998

542,500
1,645,500

12
2
5
1
1
5
2
3
1
4
4
1
2
3
2
1
3
2
4
1 
2
1
3
2
1
2
1
2
1
1
1
1
2
2
4
2
2
1
2
1
1
3

195001
200001
205001
210001
215001

220001
225001
230001
235001
240001
245001
250001
265001
270001
275001
280001
295001
300001
305001
315001
325001
340001
345001
350001
360001
380001
390001
395001
405001
420001
425001
440001
445001
455001
495001
500001
505001
515001

520001
530001
540001
545001

200000
205000
210000
215000
220000
225000
230000
235000
240000
245000
250000
255000
270000
275000
280000
285000
300000
305000
310000
320000
330000
345000
350000
355000
365000
385000
395000
400000
410000
425000
430000
445000
450000
460000
500000
505000
510000
520000
525000
535000
545000
550000

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to



Pattern of Shareholdings
As at June 30, 2025

# OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDINGS' SLAB TOTAL SHARES HELD

1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
4
2
1
1
1
4
1
1
2
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

560,000
569,802

1,175,500
597,751

639,500
650,000
676,000
684,618

2,800,000
1,412,251
720,000
722,500
733,000

2,995,500
850,000
950,000

2,000,000
1,018,500
1,030,214
2,125,301
1,135,738

1,204,000
1,580,000
1,581,000
1,629,937
1,707,625
1,714,000
1,738,500
1,759,500
1,836,060
4,136,000
2,608,197
2,687,123

2,708,240
2,723,000
2,853,500
3,120,577

3,300,000
3,318,000
3,494,534
5,143,981

5,540,743

560000
570000
590000
600000
640000
650000
680000
685000
700000
710000
720000
725000
735000
750000
850000
950000
1000000
1020000
1035000
1065000
1140000
1205000
1580000
1585000
1630000
1710000
1715000
1740000
1760000
1840000
2070000
2610000
2690000
2710000
2725000
2855000
3125000
3300000
3320000
3495000
5145000
5545000

555001
565001
585001
595001
635001
645001
675001
680001
695001
705001
715001

720001
730001
745001
845001
945001
995001
1015001

1030001
1060001
1135001

1200001
1575001
1580001
1625001
1705001
1710001
1735001
1755001
1835001

2065001
2605001
2685001
2705001
2720001
2850001
3120001
3295001
3315001

3490001
5140001
5540001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
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# OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDINGS' SLAB TOTAL SHARES HELD

28873 880,916,309

6,045,904
6,399,509
7,970,200
9,696,837
10,717,700
10,941,554
12,694,227

13,205,000
15,791,083

50,000,000
63,882,029

468,468,218

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Pattern of Shareholdings
As at June 30, 2025

6050000
6400000
7975000
9700000
10720000
10945000
12695000
13205000
15795000
50000000
63885000
468470000

6045001
6395001
797000

9695001
10715001

10940001
12690001
13200001
15790001
49995001
63880001

468465001

to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to
to



Categories of Shareholders
As at June 30, 2025

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDERS

SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

Totals

 

 

 

 

 

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

AYAZ DAWOOD

GHAZALA MONEM

MOHAMMAD RAZIUDDIN MONEM

Executives

General Public

a. Local

b. Foreign

Foreign Companies

Others

GOP

SSGC EMPLOYEES EMPOWERMENT TRUST

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

Mutual Funds

Public Sector Companies and Corporation

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-banking
Finance Companies, Insurance Companies,
Takaful Companies, and Modarabas

THE PRESIDENT ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF PAKISTAN

Government  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

468,468,218

63,882,029

50,223,500

46,861,119

246,597

200,000

1,000

500

32,237,208

10,924,287

133,944,842

2,358,787

5 ,715,463

65,255,008

5 97,751

 

 

1

1

2

24

3

1

1

1

11

32

28,102

478

19

196

1

28,873 880,916,309

 

 

THE PRESIDENT ISLAMIC REPUBLIC OF PAKISTAN

SSGC EMPLOYEES EMPOWERMENT TRUST

STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORP. OF PAKISTAN

468,468,218

63,882,029

50,000,000

53.18

7.25

5 .68

0 .07

53.18

7.25

5 .70

5 .32

  0.03

  0.02

  0.00

  0.00

3 .66

1 .24

15.21

0 .27

0 .65

7 .41

100.00
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 2,080,000  20/20  3/3 – – – –  1/1  2/2 

 2,080,000  20/20  3/3 – – – –  2/2  1/1 

 480,000  9/6 – – – – – – – – – – 

 240,000  1/1 – – – –  1/1  1/1 – – 

 1,040,000  7/7  1/1  2/2  3/3 – – – – 

 1,600,000  20/12 – – – – – –  9/7  1/1 

 2,560,000  20/19  3/2  10/9 – –  1/1  1/1 

 3,520,000  20/20  3/3  10/10  9/9  2/2 – – 

 3,360,000  20/20 – –  10/10  9/9  2/2  1/1 

 3,280,000  20/20 – –  10/10  9/9  2/2 – – 

1

2

3

4

 

 

( )

 

 

 
 

 

-
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Customer
Class Unit / Region

Recovery Actions Recoveries from Customers

No. of
Customers

Action Amount
(Rs.in Million)

Recovered
Amount

(Rs.in Million)

Engaged 
Amount

(Rs.in Million)
No. of

Reconnections

Domestic

Total Domestic

Total Commercial

Total Domestic and Commercial

623,006 28,516 269,729 7,255 8,810

9,351 2,575 4,384 989 1,088

632,357 31,091 274,113 8,243 9,898

Unit-A Karachi

Unit-B Interior 
Sindh

 Unit-Q 
Balochistan

298,572

288,592

12,243

4,789

11,484

136,664

116,411

16,654

1,846

2,294

3,114

3,650

3,252

1,908

 

 

35,842

Commercial

Unit-A Karachi

Unit-B Interior 
Sindh

 Unit-Q 
Balochistan

2,022

5,452

463

833

1,279

1,153

2,496

735

173

370

446

177

406

505

 

1,877
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Description  Calls 
Received  

 
Calls Received  

IVR Calls 123,579  
Landed Calls  462,796  

Total Calls  586,375  Within 10
 Seconds  

Within 20 
Seconds  

Within
30 to 40  
Seconds  

Within 60
Seconds  

After 60
Seconds

Answered Calls  460,969  396,192  46,725 16,448  1,556 48  
Abandoned Calls  1,827      
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-

250

100

Schemes of 4th year 
implementation plan 
to be completed 

1

2

3

4

# Target (2024-25) 

3,257

175

55

Schemes of 84 villages in Sindh & 01 
scheme of Jhal Magsi Town, Balochistan 
were under execution where overall 
76% pipeline was laid down.

Achievements

Domestic*

Commercial 

Industrial / Captive Power** 

Description 
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352
351

349

349

348

347

345

343

344

342

341

340

340

339

338
338

338
338

337
336

334
335

333
332

359

(FY 2024-25)



 
 
 

_______________________ 
_______________________ 

 
 (

(



71ST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
FORM OF PROXY 

I / We __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
of _____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
being a member of SUI SOUTHERN GAS COMPANY LIMITED  holder of _______________________________________ 
Ordinary shares vide Registered Folio / CDC Account #. ___________________________________________________________ 
hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Miss__________________________________________ of  __________________________________ 
Folio #. / CDC Account #. _____________________________________ holding CNIC #. _________________________________ 
or failing whom Mr. / Mrs. / Miss _________________________________________ of___________________________________ 
Folio #. / CDC Account #. _________________________________ holding CNIC #. ____________________________________  
as my / our proxy to vote for me / us and on my / our behalf at the 71st  Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 
Thursday, November 27, 2025 at 11:00 a.m, at Jade Hall, Arena, Habib Rehmatullah Road, Karsaz, Karachi as well as through 
electronic means / audio / video link and / or at any adjournment thereof.
Signed under my / our hand this ________________________ day of ______________, 2025.

Witness (1) 
 
Name: ______________ 
Address:_____________ 
____________________ 
____________________ 
____________________ 
 
CNIC / Passport #: _____________ 
 

Witness (2) 
 
Name: ______________ 
Address:_____________ 
____________________ 
____________________ 
____________________ 
 
CNIC / Passport #: _____________ 
 

 
 
 

_______________________ 
_______________________ 

Signature of Member
(Should match with the specimen
signature in Company’s record)

 
 

 

NOTES:

All members, entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, are entitled to appoint another member in writing as 
their Proxy to attend and vote on their behalf. A legal entity, being a member, may appoint any person, regardless whether 
they are a member or not, as Proxy. In case of legal entities, a resolution of the Board of Directors / Power of Attorney with 
specimen signature of the person nominated to represent and vote on behalf of the legal entity, shall be submitted to the 
Company. The Proxy holders are required to produce their original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

The Proxy instrument must be complete in all respects and, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered 

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS / LEGAL ENTITIES:

In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in group account 
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the Proxy form as per the requirements 
mentioned below.

The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the 
form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the Passport of the beneficial owners and of the Proxy shall be furnished along with the Proxy Form.

The Proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

In case of a legal entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted 

1.

2.

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.






